Table of Contents

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(Amendment No. )

Filed by the RegistrantX] Filed by a Party otkigain the Registrant]
Check the appropriate box:

Preliminary Proxy Stateme

Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as penitted by Rule 148-6(e)(2))
Definitive Proxy Statemer

Definitive Additional Materials

Soliciting Material under §240.1-12

O0OxOO

CENTURYLINK, INC.

(Name of registrant as specified in its charter
(Name of person(s) filing proxy statement, if othethan the registrant)
Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate b
No fee required
O Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Ruidle-6(i)(4) and (-11.
(1) Title of each class of securities to which transacapplies

(2) Aggregate number of securities to which transactioplies:

(3) Per unit price or other underlying value of tratgaccomputed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-g1 ftath the amount on which
the filing fee is calculated and state how it watedmined)

(4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transac

(5) Total fee paid

O Fee paid previously with preliminary materie

O Check box if any part of the fee is offset as pded by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identifyfiing for which the offsetting fee
was paid previously. Identify the previous filing tegistration statement number, or the Form orefale and the date of its filin

(1) Amount Previously Paic

(2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement |

(3) Filing Party:

(4) Date Filed:




Table of Contents

\

b -
v WY

N
CenturyLink

2014 Notice of Annual Meeting
and Proxy Statement
and

Annual Financial Report

May 28, 2014
10:00 a.m. local time
100 CenturyLink Drive
Monroe, Louisiana



Table of Contents

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROX Y MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON MAY 28, 2014

This proxy statement and related materials are
available at www.envisionreports.com/ctl

All references in this proxy statement or relateaterials to “we,” “us,” “our,” the “Company” or “Ce nturyLink” refer to CenturyLink,
Inc. In addition, each reference to (i) t‘Board” refers to our Board of Directors, (ii) outexecutives” or “executive officers” refers to our
nine executive officers listed in the tables beigigron pages of this proxy statement, (i) “meeting” refers tbe 2014 annual meeting of our
shareholders described further herein, (iv) “nameetcutives,” “named officers,” “named executiveicdfs” or “NEOs” refers to the five
executive officers listed in the Summary Compemsatable appearing on pade of this proxy statement, (v) “senior officers” re$eo our
Chief Executive Officer, each other officer subjecBection 16 of the Securities Exchange Act 8418nd any other officer who reports
directly to our Chief Executive Officer, (vi) “Emiug refers to Embarqg Corporation, which we acquired July 1, 2009, (vii) “Qwest” refers
to Qwest Communications International Inc., whiahaequired on April 1, 2011, (viii) “Sawvis” refete SAVVIS, Inc., which we acquired on
July 15, 2011, and (ix) tH*SEC” refers to the U.S. Securities and Exchangen@uossion. Unless otherwise provided, all informati®

presented as of the date of this proxy staten
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TIME AND DATE
PLACE

ITEMS OF BUSINESS

RECORD DATE
PROXY VOTING

April 14, 2014

CenturyLink, Inc.
100 CenturyLink Drive
Monroe, Louisiana 71203

Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders

10:00 a.m. local time on May 28, 20

Corporate Conference Room
CenturyLink Headquarters
100 CenturyLink Drive
Monroe, Louisian:

1)
)

®3)
(4)

()

(6)

Elect as directors the 13 nominees nameian
accompanying proxy stateme

Ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as oudépendent
auditor for 201«

Ratify a bylaw amendment providing proxy egs rights

Conduct a non-binding advisory vote regagdinr executive
compensatiol

Act upon a shareholder proposal if properigsented at the
meeting

Transact such other business as may properhe before the
meeting and any adjournme

You can vote if you were a shareholder of record\pril 10, 2014

Shareholders are invited to attend the meetingisgn. Even if
you expect to attend, it is important that you voydelephone o
the Internet, or by completing and returning a groxvoting
instruction card

MG.L&MW
Stacey W. Go
Secretar
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CenturyLink, Inc.
100 CenturyLink Drive
Monroe, Louisiana 71203

PROXY STATEMENT
April 14, 2014

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING

Why am | receiving these proxy materials?

Our Board of Directors is soliciting your proxyyote at our 2014 annual meeting of shareholderausecyou owned shares of our stock
at the close of business on April 10, 2014, themtclate for the meeting, and are entitled to tlodse shares at the meeting. Our proxy
materials are being made available to you on tterriet beginning on or about April 16, 2014. Thisxy statement summarizes information
regarding matters to be considered at the meeYing.do not need to attend the meeting to vote gbares. For additional information on our
proxy materials, see “Other Matters — Proxy Maistiappearing below.

When and where will the meeting be held?

The meeting will be held at 10:00 a.m. local tinrmeVdednesday, May 28, 2014, in the corporate conéereoom at our corporate
headquarters, 100 CenturyLink Drive, Monroe, Lauisi. If you would like directions to the meetintggse see our website,
http://ir.centurylink.com

What matters will be considered at the meeting?
Shareholders will vote on the following mattershat meeting:

Board Voting

Matter Recommendatio Page Referen
» election of the 13 director nominees named hetésm(1) For each nomine 2
 ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as ondependent auditor for 2014 (Item For 16
 ratification of a bylaw amendment providing proxacass rights (ltem For 18
» nor-binding advisory vote regarding our executive congadion (Item 4 For 20
» the shareholder proposal described in trogystatement if it is properly presented at the Against 21

meeting (Item 5

How many votes may | cast?

You may cast one vote for every share of our comstook or Series L preferred stock that you owredhe record date. Our common
stock and Series L preferred stock vote togethersisgle class on all matters. In this proxy steet, we refer to these shares as @orfimor
Shares” and “Preferred Shares,” respectively, anlia “Voting Shares,” collectively. As of the redalate, we had 574,058,891 Common
Shares and 7,018 Preferred Shares outstanding.

What is the difference between holding shares asshareholder of record and as a beneficial owner?

If shares are registered in your name with oursfi@magent, Computershare Investor Services L.lydli,are the “shareholder of record”
of those shares and you may directly vote theseeshtogether with any shares credited to yourwaucib you are a participant in our automs
dividend reinvestment and stock purchase serviceioemployee stock purchase plans.

1
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If your shares are held on your behalf in a stadkérage account or by a bank or other nominee gyeuhe “beneficial ownef shares
held in “street name.” We have requested that coxypmaterials be made available to you by youkberpbank or nominee, who is considered
the shareholder of record of those shares.

If | am a shareholder of record, how do | vote?
If you are a shareholder of record, you may votgdarson at the meeting or by proxy in any of tHfang three ways:
» call 1-80(-652-8683 and follow the instructions provide
* log on to the Internet www.envisionreports.com/cand follow the instructions at that site;

* request a paper copy of our proxy materials arthviing receipt thereof, mark, sign and date youaxy card and return it to
Computershare

Please note that you may not vote by telephonkeointernet after 1:00 a.m. Central Time on MayZt8.4.

If  am a beneficial owner of shares held in streehame, how do | vote?

As the beneficial owner, you have the right torinst your broker, bank or nominee how to vote yshares by using any voting
instruction card supplied by them or by followirgeir instructions for voting by telephone, the tn&t, or in person.

If | am a benefit plan participant, how do | vote?
Please see “Additional Information About the Megtir Voting by Participants in Our Benefit Plans’bapring below.

Do | need identification to attend the meeting in prson?

Yes. Please bring proper identification, togethéhwhe Notice Regarding Availability of Proxy Maitgls mailed to you, which will sen
as your admission ticket. If your shares are helstieet name, please bring acceptable proof oEmhip, such as a letter from your broker or
an account statement stating or showing that yoefisally owned Voting Shares on the record date.

Where can | find additional information about the conduct of the meeting, voting requirements, and otr similar matters relating to
the meeting?

Please see “Additional Information About the Megtiappearing below.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
(Item 1 on Proxy or Voting Instruction Card)

The first proposal for consideration at the meetintpe election of each of the 13 candidates nametalv as a director for a one-year
term expiring at our 2015 annual meeting of shddshs, or until his or her successor is duly elé@ed qualified.

Acting upon the recommendation of its Nominatind &orporate Governance Committee, the Board hasnabed the 13 below-named
directors to stand for re-election to one-year teatthe meeting. Unless authority

2
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is withheld, all votes attributable to Voting Sharepresented by each duly executed and deliveced will be cast for the election of each of
the 13 below-named nominees. Under our bylaw notinigg@rocedures, these nominees are the only iddals who may be elected at the
meeting. For additional information on our nominatprocess, see “Corporate Governance — Directomifmtion Process.” If for any reason
any such nominee should decline or become unaldta for election as a director, which we doarticipate, the persons named as proxies
may vote instead for another candidate designatedeéoBoard, without re-soliciting proxies.

As discussed further under “Additional Informati@hout the Meeting — Vote Required to Elect Direstbeach of the 13 nominees
must receive a majority of the votes cast to betetkat the meeting.

Nominees For Election to the Board:

Listed below is information on each of the 13 induals nominated to stand for re-election to thai8oAs discussed further elsewhere
herein, five of our below-listed nominees formesgrved as directors of Embarq or Qwest prior toamguisitions of those companies.

The Board recommends that you vote “FOR” each ogtfollowing nominees:

Virginia Boulet, age 60; a director since 1995; Managing Directdregfacy Capital LLC, an investment banking
firm based in New Orleans, Louisiana, since Mar@h4 Special Counsel at Adams and Reese LLP, iy
from 2002 to March 2014; prior to then, practicedaacorporate and securities attorney for PhelpspoBy L.L.P.
from 1992 to 2002 and Jones Walker LLP from 198B8382; currently a director of W&T Offshore, Inc.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski

» Legal experience representing telecommuioicatcompanies and regarding business combinations
«  Director of another publicly-held company

Peter C. Brownage 55; a director since July 1, 2009; Chairma@reissmere Partners, LLC, a private investi
firm, since July 2009; held several executive lgpaditions, including Chairman of the Board, Presidand
Chief Executive Officer, with AMC Entertainment Ina theatrical exhibition company, between 1994 2009;
founded EPR Properties, a NYSE-listed real estatestment trust formerly known as EntertainmenpBres
Trust, in 1997 and served as its non-executive iétai of the Board of Trustees until 2003; curreatlyirector
of EPR Properties and Cinedigm Corp.; formerlyraatdr of National CineMedia, Inc. within the péise years
and a director of Embarq prior to July 1, 2009.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
»  Experience as a former chief executive péilicly-held company

e Qualifies as an “audit committee financigpert”
» Director of other publicl-held companie

3
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Richard A. Gephardtage 73; a director since July 1, 2009; Chief Exgeudfficer and President of Gephardt
Group, LLC, a multi-discipline consulting firm, si@ January 2005; consultant to Goldman Sachs &i@oe
January 2005; strategic advisor in the governmiaira practice group of DLA Piper between 2005 2009;
senior advisor to FTI Consulting between 2007 ad@2 member of the U.S. House of Representatives fr
1976 to 2005, representing Missouri’s Third Didtead holding key leadership positions, includingusie
Minority Leader; currently a director of Centener@aration, Ford Motor Company, Spirit Aerosystems
Holdings, Inc. and United States Steel Corporatiormerly a director of Dana Holding Company withire past
five years, and a director of Embarq prior to July009.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Government and labor relations expertise
 Director of other publicl-held companie

W. Bruce Hanks age 59; a director since 1992; a consultant witth@m, Bordelon and Co., Inc., an investmen
management and financial planning company, sin&;2a8thletic Director of the University of Louisiarat
Monroe from 2001 to 2004; held various executivsifians at CenturyLink from 1980 through 2001, most
notably Chief Operating Officer, Senior Vice Presitl— Corporate Development and Strategy, Chieditdral
Officer, and President — Telecommunications Sesjiverked as a certified public accountant withtPea
Marwick & Mitchell for three years prior to themjicently an advisory director of IberiaBank Corgara; also
served in the past on the executive boards of abt@ecommunications industry associations andtads of
other publicly-owned companies.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Prior executive experience with, and historkaawledge of, our company and its prior acquisiio
» Former experience as a certified public accanint
* Qualifies as an “audit committee financial entpe
» Prior experience as a director of other pub-owned companie

Gregory J. McCrayage 51; a director since 2005; Chief Executive d@ffiof Aero Communications, Inc., which
provides installation, engineering and supportises/to the communications industry, since July2®iterim
Chief Executive Officer of ACAL Energy Ltd., whiatevelops fuel cell engine technology, between Janua
2013 and July 2013; Chairman and Chief Executivic&f of Antenova Limited, a global wireless compats
development company, between 2003 and December, @bibZrman and Chief Executive Officer of PipingHot
Networks, a wireless sti-up, from 2000 to 2002; Senior Vice President, Guongr Operations, at Lucent
Technologies from 1997 to 2000; Sales Vice Presjd$i$. Eastern Region, at Lucent Technologies fi&94 tc
1997; held engineering, product management and athaagerial roles at AT&T and IBM from 1984 to B99

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
» Executive experience in the communicationstaetinology industries

» Experience as a chief executive of privatelidltmmpanies that have engaged in several acaquisatid
divestiture transactions

» Engineering expertise in communications industr
* International business experier
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C. G. Melville, Jr.,age 73; a director since 1968; retired in 1992r aieving as President of Melville Equipment,
Inc., a familyowned distributor of marine and industrial equipméor nearly 30 years; Chief Executive Officer
a family-owned telephone company for six yearsradts sale to CenturyLink in 1968.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
»  Experience owning and managing telecommutioica companies
»  Experience as a former chief executive afifg-owned privately-held companies

Fred R. Nichols,age 67; a director since 2003; retired in 2000 f@ox Communications, Inc., where he serve
Executive Vice President of Operations since 19@%] various executive positions at TCA Cable T\, I(which
was publicly-traded between 1982 and its sale t0i68d999) from 1980 to 1999, most notably sendisg
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officemrt997 to 1999 and President and Chief Operatitfigedf
from 1989 to 1997; also served in the past on xieewive boards of (i) two cable industry tradeoasgstions,

(ii) Telesynergy, a cable television programmingsuartium, and (iii) C-SPAN, a cable television netlky prior to
joining TCA in 1980, worked as a commercial barfikemine years and as a certified public accountatit Peat
Marwick & Mitchell for three years.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
e Executive experience in the communicatiomhistry
» Experience as a former chief executive péialicly-held company that engaged in multiple asiions
» Former experience as a certified public accourdadtcommercial banki

William A. Owens.age 73; a director since July 1, 2009; non-exeeufikairman of the Board of CenturyLink
since July 1, 2009; Managing Director and ChairmBAEA Investors Asia, a private equity companycs 2006
Vice Chairman, President and Chief Executive OfficieNortel Networks Corporation, a global supplér
communications equipment, from 2004 to 2005; Chairmnd Chief Executive Officer of Teledesic LLC, a
satellite communications company, from 1998 to 2008e Chairman, President and Chief Operating ¢@ffiof
Science Applications International Corporationeehinology and engineering company, from 1996 t@196rved
in the U.S. military from 1962 to 1996, holding iars key leadership positions, including Vice Chan of the
Joint Chiefs of Staff; currently a director of AHAvestors LP, Polycom, Inc., Viasystems Group, &rd Wipro
Limited; formerly a director of Unifrax Corporatiand Amerilink within the past five years; Chairmafthe
Board of Embarq prior to July 1, 2009.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
e Executive experience in the communicatiomthistry
»  Experience as a former chief executive dfligly-held companies
» Government relations expertise
* International business experience
» Director of other domestic and international pulg-held companie
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Harvey P. Perryage 69; a director since 1990; non-executive Vibai@nan of the Board of Directors of
CenturyLink since 2004, retired from CenturyLinkdA03; joined CenturyLink in 1984, serving as Stageand
General Counsel for approximately 20 years and &ikex Vice President and Chief Administrative O#fidor
almost five years; prior to then, worked as anratg in private practice for 15 years.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
»  Prior executive experience with, and his@arknowledge of, our company and its prior acdoiss
* Legal experience representing telecommuioicatcompanies

Glen F. Post, lll,age 61; a director since 1985; Chief Executived@ffiof CenturyLink since 1992, and President
since July 1, 2009 (and from 1990 to 2002); Chairmmithe Board of CenturyLink between 2002 and 2008e
Chairman of the Board of CenturyLink between 1988 2002; held various other positions at CenturgLin
between 1976 and 1993, most notably Treasurerf Emiancial Officer and Chief Operating Officer.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
»  Executive experience in the telecommunicetibusiness
»  Experience as our chief executive

Michael J. Robertsage 63; a director since April 1, 2011; Presidenat @hief Executive Officer and founder of
LYFE Kitchen, an emerging chain of lifestyle restmts, since February 2011; Chief Executive Offened
founder of Westside Holdings LLC, a marketing anainlol development company, from 2006 to 2013; seaged
President and Chief Operating Officer of McDonal@@rporation, a foodservice retailer, from 2002006;
served as Chief Executive Officer of McDonald’s UBéing 2004 and as President of McDonald’'s USAnfro
2001 to 2004, currently a director of W.W. Graindec.; formerly a director of Standard Parking fmation
within the past five years, and a director of Qwaradr to April 1, 2011.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
»  Experience as a chief executive
e Marketing and branding expertise
«  Director of other publicly-held companies
» Qualifies as ar*audit committee financial exp”

Laurie A. Siegelage 58; a director since July 1, 2009; a businedshaman resources consultant since 2012;
retired in September 2012 from Tyco International. | a diversified manufacturing and service comyparhere
she served as Senior Vice President of Human Res®@and Internal Communications since 2003; helidws
positions with Honeywell International Inc. from3®to 2002, including Vice President of Human Reses —
Specialty Materials; prior to then, was directogtdbal compensation at Avon Products and a pral@p Strategi
Compensation Associates; a director of Embarq poiduly 1, 2009.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski
»  Executive experience with a multi-nationahpany
* Human resources and executive compensatiperese

6
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Joseph R. Zimmelage 60; a director since 2003; a business anddialbbronsultant since 2002; Advisory Direc
of the Goldman Sachs Group from 2001 to 2002; MamgDirector of the Communications, Media &
Entertainment Group for the Americas in the invesitbanking division of Goldman, Sachs & Co. fro89Q to
2001, after acting as Managing Director and a cadhad the group from 1992 to 1999; Managing Direatcthe
mergers and acquisitions department of GoldmarhsS&dCo. from 1988 to 1992; currently a directofFafctSet
Research Systems Inc. and formerly a director gft&8 Inc. within the past five years.

Key Qualifications, Experiences and Ski

» Advisory experience in the communicationduistry
* Acquisition and investment banking expertise

e Qualifies as an “audit committee financigpert”

» Director of other publicl-owned companie

Executive Officers Who Are Not Directors:

Listed below is information on each of our execaitdfficers who are not directors. Unless otheninsicated, each person has been
engaged in the principal occupation shown for nibam the past five years.

William E. Cheek,a ge 58; President — Wholesale Operations singelJ@009; served as President —
Wholesale Markets for Embarg from 2006 to 2009yeeiin similar capacities at divisions or affiliatef Sprint
Nextel Corporation from 2004 to 20(C

David D. Cole age 56; Executive Vice President — Controller ape@tions Support since May 2013; served as
Senior Vice President — Controller and Operationg®rt from April 2011 to May 2013 and as Seniocé/i
President — Operations Support from 1999 to A2

R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.age 62; Executive Vice President, Chief Financiffic®r and Assistant Secretary.
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Stacey W. Goffage 48; Executive Vice President, General CounsglSecretary since July 2009; served as S
Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary fwritiren.

Maxine L. Moreau,age 52; Executive Vice President — Network Servigiase May 2013; served as Senior Vice
President — Network Services from May 2012 to M8¢2, as Senior Vice President, Integration and éa®c
Improvement from 2010 to May 2012, as Senior VicesRlent, Centralized Operations, from 2009 to 2@0hd as
Vice President of Operations from 2006 to 2009.

Karen A. Puckettage 53; Executive Vice President and Chief Opegdifficer since July 2009; served as
President and Chief Operating Officer from 20023uty 2009.

Scott A. Treziseage 45; Executive Vice President — Human Resougioes August 2013; served as Senior Vice
President — Human Resources for The Shaw Grougrimm. June 2010 until its acquisition by Chicagadge &
Iron Company N.V. in February 2013; served as Aoesident of Human Resources for Honeywell Intéonat

Inc. from 2005 to June 2010.

Jeffrey H. Von Deylenage 50; President — Data Hosting Operations sinag 2013; served as Senior Vice
President — Global Operations and Client Servicas fJuly 15, 2011 to May 2013; served as Chief iéra
Officer and a director of Savvis from 2003 to Juf; 2011.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Governance Guidelines

Our Board has adopted corporate governance guéglhmhich it reviews at least annually. For infotima on how you can obtain a
complete copy of our guidelines, see “— Accessiformation” below.

Among other things, our corporate governance gindglprovide as follows:

Director Qualifications

The Board of Directors will have a majority of indent directors. The Nominating and Corporatee@mnce Committee is
responsible for reviewing with the Board, on anwairbasis, the requisite skills and characteristfasew Board members as well
the composition of the Board as a wh

The Board expects directors who change the jolespansibility they held when they were electechtoBoard to volunteer to
resign from the Boarc

On the terms and subject to the conditions spekifieour bylaws, directors will be elected by a onéy vote of the shareholders
and any incumbent director failing to receive aanigy of votes cast must promptly tender his or lgsignation to the Boar

No director may serve on more than two other uliatféid public company boards, unless this prolohiis waived by the Boar

No director may be appointed or nominated to a tegm if he or she would be age 75 or older atithe bf the election ¢
appointment

Annually, the Board will determine affirmatively wah of our directors are independent for purposeomplying with our
corporate governance guidelines and the listingdstads of the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE.ikator will not be
independent for these purposes unless the Bodrthafively determines that the director does nibhes directly or indirectly
through the director’s affiliates or associatesieha material commercial, banking, consulting, legecounting, charitable, familial
or other relationship with the Company or its &fiés, other than as a direct

Director Responsibilities

The Board periodically reviews our Ic-term strategic plans, and annually holds a 1-day strategic planning sessit

Directors are required to hold confidential all furblic information obtained due to their directopsposition absent the express
permission of the Board to disclose such infornrat

Unless otherwise determined by the Board, whenmageament director retires or ceases to be an aatiygoyee for any other
reason, that director will be considered to hasigreed concurrently from the Boau

Chairman; Lead Outside Director

The Board elects a Chairman from among its membBées.Chairman may be a director who also has execrgsponsibilities,
including the CEO (an executive chair), or may he of the Company’s independent directors (a natetve chair). The Board
believes it is in the best interests of the Compfanyhe Board to remain flexible with respect thether to elect an executive chair
or a norexecutive chair so that the Board may provide fmcession planning and respond effectively to charig circumstance

9
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* The non-management directors meet in executivéoseasleast quarterly. The lead outside directected by the independent
directors may call additional meetings of the noamagement directors at any time. At all times dyvirich the Chairman is a
non-executive chair, all of the functions and rewsililities of the lead outside director shall lefprmed by the non-executive
chair.

CEOQO Evaluation and Management Succession

* The Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitbeelucts an annual review of the CEO’s performamekpovides a report
of its findings to the Boarc

* The Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitiperts periodically to the Board on successionrgfen

Recoupment of Compensation

« If the Board or any committee of the Board detemsithat any bonus, incentive payment, commissiguifyeaward or other
compensation awarded to or received by an execaffier was based on any financial or operatirgultethat was impacted by the
executive officer's knowing or intentional fraudateor illegal conduct, we may recover from the exae@ officer the compensation
the Board or any committee of the Board considpmapriate under the circumstanc

Stock Ownership Guidelines

*  We require our executive officers to beneficiallyroCenturyLink stock equal in market value to sfiedimultiples of their annual
base salary. All executive officers have three yéiam the date they first become subject to aqadar ownership level to attain
that target

»  We require our outside directors to beneficiallyno@enturyLink stock equal in market value to fiirads their annual cash retain
Outside directors have five years from their etatior appointment date to attain that tar

e For any year during which an executive or direckmes not meet his or her ownership target, theutixecor director is expected to
hold a specified percentage of the CenturyLinklstbat the executive or director acquires throughemuity compensation
programs, excluding shares sold to pay taxes asedcwith the acquisition there:

e The Compensation Committee administers the guidgliand may modify their terms and grant hardskéegtions in its discretio

e See “Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Stogkéship Guidelines” for information on the exeeatand director
ownership multiples and the holding percentageseatiy in effect.

Standards of Business Conduct and Ethics

« All of our directors, officers and employees arguieed to abide by our long-standing ethics andp@@nce policies and programs,
which include standards of business conc

« Any waiver of our policies, principles or guidelmeelating to business conduct or ethics for exeeutfficers or directors may be
made only by the Board or one of its duly authatizemmittees

Other
» Directors have full access to our officers and aygés

» Like most other NYSE-listed companies, (i) all bétBoard’s standing committees are comprised sofdlydependent directors,
(ii) we provide orientation for new directors, e maintain a continuing education program far divectors, and (iv) the Board
and each committee conducts annualreviews.
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Independence

Based on the information made available to it,Bbard of Directors has affirmatively determinedttbach of our non-management
directors qualifies as an independent director utitkestandards referred to above under “— Govem&uidelines,” with the exception of
Richard A. Gephardt, who is the Chief Executivei€ff and President, and a principal, of a congulffirm from which we have purchased
labor advisory services since 2011. In making tlieterminations, the Board, with assistance froomsel, evaluated responses to a
guestionnaire completed by each director regarditedionships and possible conflicts of interestits review of director independence, the
Board considered all known commercial, banking,scidting, legal, accounting, charitable, familialaiher relationships any director may have
with us.

Some of our directors are employed by or affiliatéth companies with which we do business in ttdir@ary course, either as a service
provider, a customer or both. As required undeNN&E listing standards and our corporate goveraguidelines, our Board examined the
amounts spent by us with those companies and Isgtbompanies with us. In all cases the amountd speler these transactions fell well
below the threshold established in the NYSE lisStandards and in our corporate governance guetelidonsequently, our Board concluded
that the amounts spent under these transactionmtlickeate a material relationship with us thatilddnterfere with the exercise of
independent judgment by any of these directorsrdattam Mr. Gephardt.

Committees of the Board
During 2013, the Board of Directors held ten megginncluding a three-day strategic planning sessio

During 2013, the Board’s Audit Committee held eigtgetings. The Audit Committee is currently compubsEfour independent
directors, all of whom the Board has determineda@udit committee financial experts, as definetdieuithe federal securities laws. The Audit
Committee’s functions are described further beladar “Audit Committee Report.”

The Board’s Compensation Committee met seven tangag 2013. The Compensation Committee is cuyerdmposed of five
directors, all of whom qualify as “non-employeeeditors” under Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the es1Exchange Act of 1934 and all of
whom, other than Harvey P. Perry, qualify as “aladiirectors” under Section 162(m) of the IntefRavenue Code. The Compensation
Committee is described further below under “Comp#ns Discussion and Analysis.”

The Board’s Nominating and Corporate Governance 1@iti@e (which we refer to below as the “Nominatidgmmittee”) met four times
during 2013. The Nominating Committee is resporsibf, among other things, (i) recommending toBlbard nominees to serve as directors
and officers, (i) monitoring the composition aridesof the Board and its committees, (iii) periadig reassessing our corporate governance
guidelines described above, (iv) leading the Baaiits annual review of the Board’s performancé,réwiewing shareholder proposals and
making recommendations to the Board regarding lmored$pond, (vi) conducting an intensive annualewwof the performance of our Chief
Executive Officer, including interviewing each afraother senior officers, and (vii) reporting t@tBoard on succession planning for senior
executive officers and appointing an interim CE@# Board does not make such an appointment withinours of the CEO dying or
becoming disabled. For information on the directomination process, see “— Director Nomination e3¢ below.

The Board also maintains a Risk Evaluation Commjttehich met four times during 2013. This Commiitedescribed further below
under the heading “— Risk Oversight.”

Each of the committees listed above is composeslysof independent directors under the standar@sresl to above under “—
Governance Guidelines.”
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The table below lists the Board’s standing comragtand their membership:

Nominating and

Corporate
Compensation Governance Risk Evaluation
Audit Committee Committee Committee Committee

Outside Director (1) Member Member () Member Member
Virginia Boulet v Chair
Peter C. Browt v v
W. Bruce Hank: Chair v
Gregory J. McCra 4 4
C. G. Melville, Jr. v Chair
Fred R. Nichols v v
William A. Owens v v
Harvey P. Perr v
Michael J. Robert v
Laurie A. Siege Chair
Joseph R. Zimme v

(1) Glen F. Post, Il does not serve on any boardnoittees, other than the Special Pricing Commitiescribed below. Richard A. Gephardt
does not serve on any board committ:

(2) The Compensation Committee maintains an Ineemtivards Subcommittee (the “Subcommitteedjnprised of Ms. Boulet, Mr. Nicho
Adm. Owens and Ms. Siegt

If you would like additional information on the pEmsibilities of the committees listed above, pteafer to the committees’ respective
charters, which can be obtained in the manner itestbelow under “— Access to Information.”

The Board has also established a Special Pricimgmiitiee that has authority to approve the termsaddfedting prices of any CenturyLir
securities sold pursuant to our outstanding slegjistration statement. Thésl hoccommittee is comprised of Peter C. Brown, W. Brhemks,
Glen F. Post, lll and Joseph R. Zimmel.

During 2013, all of our directors attended at |4 of the aggregate number of all board meetamglsall meetings of board committi
on which they served. In addition, each of ouratwes then in office attended the 2013 annual $twdders’ meeting.

Director Nomination Process

Nominations for the election of directors at ounaal shareholders’ meetings may be made by thedBo@on the receipt of
recommendations of the Nominating Committee) oaby shareholder of record who complies with ouatasd. Under our “advance notice”
bylaw, any shareholder of record interested in mga nomination generally must deliver written ocetio the Company’s Secretary not more
than 180 days and not less than 90 days in adwafribe first anniversary of the preceding year'awal shareholdersheeting. For the meetir
this year, the Board has nominated the 13 nomilitesl above under “Election of Directors” to stdndelection as directors, and no
shareholders submitted any nominations. For fuitifermation on deadlines for submitting nominatidor our 2015 annual shareholders’
meeting, see “Other Matters — Shareholder Nominatand Proposals for the 2015 Annual Meeting.”

The written notice required to be sent by any natiirg shareholder must include various informatinoluding, as to the shareholder
giving the notice and the beneficial owner, if aog,whose behalf the nomination is being madehé)name and address of such shareholder
any such beneficial owner, and any other partiiaséd, associated or acting in concert therew(iil their beneficial ownership interests in
our Voting Shares, including disclosure of arrangeta that might cause such person’s voting, investror
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economic interests in our Voting Shares to diffenf those of our other shareholders, (iii) certadditional information concerning such
parties required under the federal proxy ruleg,didescription of all agreements with respech®rtomination among the nominating
shareholder, any beneficial owner, any person @étirtoncert with them, each proposed nominee andio other persons, and (v) a
representation whether any such person intenddlitit groxies or votes in support of their propdseminees. With respect to each proposed
nominee, the written notice must also, among dtiags, (i) set forth biographical and other da&tquired under the federal proxy rules and a
description of various compensation or other areamgnts or relationships between each proposed eenaind the nominating shareholder anc
its affiliated parties and (ii) furnish both a coleied and duly executed questionnaire and a dudguged agreement designed to disclose
various aspects of the proposed nominee’s backdrayualifications and certain specified arrangemevrith other persons, as well as to
receive the proposed nominee’s commitment to atydeertain specified agreements and undertakingsmaly require a proposed nominee to
furnish other reasonable information or certifioai. Shareholders interested in bringing befoteasetiolders’ meeting any matter other than .
director nomination should consult our bylaws fdditional procedures governing such requests. Wedigzegard any nomination or
submission of any other matter that fails to compith these bylaw procedures.

The Nominating Committee will consider candidateminated by shareholders in accordance with ouavayl Upon receipt of any such
nominations, the Nominating Committee will revidre tsubmission for compliance with our bylaws, idahg determining if the proposed
nominee meets the bylaw qualifications for sergse director. These provisions disqualify any @ersho (i) fails to respond satisfactorily to
any inquiry for information to enable us to maketifieations required by the Federal Communicati@mnmission under the Anbrug Abuse
Act of 1988, (ii) has been arrested or convictedarfain specified drug offenses or engaged imastthat could lead to such an arrest or
conviction or (iii) fails to furnish any materiats agreements required to be provided by direaboninees under our bylaws, or makes false
statements or materially misleading statementsrassions in connection therewith.

In the past, the Nominating Committee has consildnector candidates suggested by Committee mesnbtrer directors, senior
management and shareholders. In connection witduyrl, 2009 merger with Embarq, we added to aarB seven directors who previously
served as directors of Embarq, four of whom comtitiuserve. Similarly, in connection with our Adtil2011 merger with Qwest, we added to
our Board four directors who previously served iasatiors of Qwest, one of whom continues to sebueing the several years preceding the
Embarg merger, the Nominating Committee retainadaroas-needed basis, national search firms toithefpify potential director candidates,
including three directors added to the Board betw2@03 and 2005. The Nominating Committee maymetaarch firms from time to time in
the future to help identify additional director déatates. With respect to this year’'s meeting, ithe nominees are incumbent directors with
several years of prior service on our Board ortbards of Embarq or Qwest.

Under our corporate governance guidelines, the Natimig Committee assesses director candidates bastaeir independence,
diversity, character, skills and experience indbatext of the needs of the Board. Although thelglimnes permit the Nominating Committee to
adopt additional selection guidelines or criteitiéias chosen not to do so. Instead, the Nomin&imgmittee annually assesses skills and
characteristics then required by the Board basdtsanembership and needs at the time ofdsessment. In evaluating the needs of the B
the Nominating Committee considers the qualifigaiof incumbent directors and consults with othemiers of the Board and senior
management. In addition, the Nominating Commiteeks candidates committed to representing theeisteof all shareholders and not any
particular constituency. The Nominating Committesidves this flexible approach enables it to resiponchanges caused by director
retirements and industry developments.

In connection with assessing the needs of the BélaedNominating Committee has sought individuat®wsossess skill and experience
in a diverse range of fields. The Nominating Conteeitalso has sought a mix of individuals from iesithd outside of the communications
industry. The table above listing biographical daaut our directors includes a listing of the kewlifications, experiences and skills that the
Nominating

13



Table of Contents

Committee and Board reviewed in connection with imatting or re-nominating them for service on theRb In light of our current business
and operations, we believe the following skills @xgerience are particularly important:

» senior leadership experien

» industry or technical expertit

» financial, accounting or capital markets exper

e public company board experien

* business combination or investment banking expee

e brand marketing experti

e government, labor or human resources expe

e international business experier

» legal expertise

In connection with determining the current comgosibf the Board, the Nominating Committee asse#isedliverse range of skills and

experience of our directors outlined above, coupléll the judgment that each has exhibited anckitmavledge of our operations that each ha:

acquired in connection with their service on theib Although it does not have a formal diversityigy, the Nominating Committee believes
that our directors possess a diverse range of bagkds, perspectives, skills and experiences.

Although we do not have a history of receiving diog nominations from shareholders, the Nomina@agnmittee envisions that it wot
evaluate any such candidate on the same termé@spbposed nominees, but would place a subst@némium on retaining incumbent
directors who are familiar with our management,rapens, business, industry, strategies and comeeposition, and who have previously
demonstrated a proven ability to provide valualoletdbutions to the Board and CenturyLink.

Please see “Proposal to Ratify a New Proxy AccegavB for a discussion of a proposal that, if rigtif at the meeting, could have a
substantial impact on our procedures outlined above

Compensation Setting Process

The Compensation Committee hires consulting fironadsist it in setting executive and director conspdion. In late 2010, the
Committee retained Hay Group, following a nationsvigbarch to replace PricewaterhouseCoopers LLE&hddvised the Committee for the
previous six years. For additional information ba processes used by the Committee to set exe@atimpensation, see “Compensation
Discussion and Analysis.”

Risk Oversight

Our Board oversees our Company'’s risk managemeuwtitin, which is a coordinated effort among ouribess units, our senior
leadership, our risk management personnel andnternial audit department. Our directors typicallsctiarge their risk oversight
responsibilities by having management provide meibriefing and information sessions. In some saseluding major new acquisitions,
capital expenditures or strategic investmentsfuldBoard participates in risk oversight. In masises involving recurring systemic risk, a
Board committee is primarily responsible for riskecsight. For many years, our Board has maintamnBisk Evaluation Committee, which is
responsible for assisting management to identifynitor, and manage recurring risks to our busingsmerties and employees. The Risk
Evaluation Committee regularly monitors our litigex, cybersecurity initiatives, insurance coveraged the status of our labor relations, ar
also responsible for overseeing our ethics
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and compliance program. The Board’s other comnstége responsible for overseeing specific riskdjquaarly the Audit Committee with
respect to financial, tax and accounting risks tiedCompensation Committee with respect to comgiemsasks. For a discussion of the
Compensation Committee’s risk analysis, see “Corsgion Discussion and Analysis — Our Compensatieniglon-Making Process — Risk
Assessment.” The Board regularly receives repoots feach of these committees, and periodicallyiveseenterprise risk management reports
from management.

Top Leadership Positions and Structure

Admiral William A. Owens serves as our non-exeaaifthairman and lead outside director. As explafoetier on our website, you may
contact Adm. Owens by writing a letter to the Chain and Lead Outside Director, c/o Post Office BO&1, Monroe, Louisiana 71211, or by
sending an email to boardinquiries@centurylink.cohs indicated above, the non-management directest in executive session at least
quarterly.

Adm. Owens was appointed as our Chairman and letside director on July 1, 2009, in connection wvaitht acquisition of Embarq. Pri
to July 1, 2009, Adm. Owens served as chairmamufd&tq, and, prior to that, as the chief executive communications equipment provider
and a satellite company. We believe Adm. Owengliseras our Chairman has facilitated the post-nrargegration of the management and
operations of CenturyLink and Embarq.

The Board believes that the separation of the @Gtairand CEO positions has functioned effectivelgrdalie past several years.
Separating these positions allows our CEO to hawveapy responsibility for the operational leadepsaind strategic direction of our business,
while allowing our Chairman to lead the Board mfitndamental role of providing guidance to ancepehdent oversight of management.
While our bylaws and corporate governance guidslah@not require our Chairman and CEO positiorixetseparate, the Board believes that
delegating responsibilities between Adm. Owen£ lzagirman, and Mr. Post, as CEO, is the appropléatgership structure for our Company
this time. Our Board, however, periodically revietgsleadership structure and may make such changhse future as it deems appropriate.
The Board believes that its programs for oversegsigwould be effective under a variety of topdeeship structures, and, accordingly, this
factor has not materially affected its current cleadf structure.

Waivers of Governance Requirements

Members of our Board are subject to our corporateemance guidelines, which, among other thingshipit a director from serving on
more than two additional unaffiliated public compdioards. In addition to serving on our Board, RichA. Gephardt and William A. Owens
serve on the board of directors of more than twaffiliated public companies. In connection with apying both of them to the Board, the
Board waived compliance by each of them with thevekllescribed service limitation, subject to the unt#erding that this waiver permits st
individuals to serve only on the boards of the filigled companies on which they were then servindess and until the individual is
permitted to accept a new directorship under ogpa@te governance guidelines then in effect dumtofuture reductions in the number of
individual's directorships, any future changesuktsguidelines, or any future additional waiverarged by the Board.

Access to Information
The following documents are posted on our webgitevav.centurylink.com

« Amended and restated articles of incorpora

 Bylaws

» Corporate governance guidelir

»  Charters of our Board committe

e Corporate ethics and compliance program documirdsiding the CenturyLink Code of Condu
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RATIFICATION OF THE SELECTION OF THE INDEPENDENT AU DITOR
(Item 2 on Proxy or Voting Instruction Card)

The Audit Committee of the Board has appointed KPM® as our independent auditor for the fiscal yaating December 31, 2014,
and we are submitting that appointment to our s$t@ders for ratification on an advisory basis &t theeting. Although shareholder ratificat
of KPMG'’s appointment is not legally required, we aubmitting this matter to the shareholderspabke past, as a matter of good corporate
practice.

If the shareholders fail to vote on an advisoryidasfavor of the appointment, the Audit Committedl reconsider whether to retain
KPMG LLP, and may appoint that firm or another with re-submitting the matter to the shareholdevenkf the shareholders ratify the
appointment, the Audit Committee may, in its disiore, select a different independent auditor at taimg during the year if it determines that
such a change would be in the Company’s best stteren connection with selecting the independeditar, the Audit Committee reviews the
auditor’s qualifications, geographic reach, conmacedures, cost, proposed staffing, prior peréoroe and other relevant factors.

In connection with the audit of the 2014 finanatdtements, we entered into an engagement lettiekdAMG LLP which sets forth the
terms by which KPMG will provide audit servicesus. Any future disputes between KPMG and us urttirlétter will be subject to certain
specified alternative dispute resolution procedures

The following table lists the aggregate fees arstscbilled to us by KPMG and its affiliates for th@12 and 2013 services identified
below:

Amount Billed

2012 2013
Audit Fees? $8,756,59. $ 9,310,00:
Audit-Related Fee 114,90: 340,43
Tax Fee® 499 ,86! 2,483,64.
Other® — 309,04
Total Fees $9,371,35! $12,443,12

(1) Includes the cost of (i) services renderedonnection with auditing our annual consolidate@ficial statements, (ii) auditing our internal
control over financial reporting in accordance withction 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2009, rgviewing our quarterly financial
statements, (iv) auditing the financial statemefitseveral of our subsidiaries, (v) services readén connection with reviewing our
registration statements and issuing related condtdrs, (vi) statutory audits for certain of dareign subsidiaries, and (vii) consultati
regarding accounting standar

(2) Includes the cost of prepari“agreed upon procedu” reports and providing general accounting consukinyices

(3) Includes costs associated with (i) assistang@éparing income tax returns and related mageengch were approximately $24,000 in
2012 and $99,000 in 2013), (ii) assistance withowes tax audits (which were approximately $16,00Q2012 and $0 in 2013), and
(iii) general tax planning, consultation and corapte (which were approximately $460,000 in 2012$2885,000 in 2013

(4) Reflects professional services provided in 2018onnection with a system assessment prc

The Audit Committee maintains written procedurest tiequire it to annually review and pre-approwegbope of all services to be
performed by our independent auditor. This revieelides an evaluation of whether the provisionaf-audit services by our independent
auditor is compatible with maintaining the audisoindependence in providing audit and audit-relatadices. The Committee’s procedures
prohibit the independent auditor from providing amon-audit services unless the service is permitteter applicable law and is pre-approved
by the Audit Committee or its Chairman. The Chainnsauthorized to pre-approve projects
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expected to cost no more than $100,000, providedatal cost of all projects pre-approved by thai@han during any fiscal quarter does not
exceed $150,000. The Audit Committee has pre-amgrtive Company’s independent auditor to provideou75,000 per quarter of
miscellaneous permitted tax services that do nestitoite discrete and separate projects. The Chaind the Chief Financial Officer are
required periodically to advise the full Committefethe scope and cost of services notgperoved by the full Committee. Although applice
regulations waive these pre-approval requirement®itain limited circumstances, the Audit Comneittid not use these waiver provisions in
either 2012 or 2013.

KPMG has advised us that one or more of its pastnéli be present at the meeting. We understantiiege representatives will be
available to respond to appropriate questions aldhawe an opportunity to make a statement if thegire to do so.

Ratification of KPMG'’s appointment as our indepemidguditor for 2014 will require the affirmative teoof the holders of at least a
majority of the Voting Shares present or represkatedhe meeting.

The Board unanimously recommends a vote FOR thisposal.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Management is responsible for our internal contaold financial reporting process. Our independaditar is responsible for performing
an independent audit of our consolidated finarati@lements and the effectiveness of our internatrobover financial reporting, and to issue
reports thereon. As more fully described in itsrtdrathe Audit Committee is responsible for agsgsthe Board in its general oversight of tr
processes, and for appointing the independent@udit

In this context, the Committee has met and heldudisions with management and our internal auditedsindependent auditor for 2013,
KPMG LLP. Management represented to the Commitiaedur consolidated financial statements weregragpin accordance with generally
accepted U.S. accounting principles. The Commhteereviewed and discussed with management and KiPklGonsolidated financial
statements, and management’s report and KPMG’strapd attestation on internal control over finahceporting in accordance with
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Thenmittee also discussed with KPMG matters requindae discussed by Auditing
Standard No. 182ommunications with Audit Committee&mong other matters, the Committee also:

» reviewed the scope of and overall plans for theuahaudit and the internal audit progre
» reviewed and discussed each quarterly and annuighga press releas
» received periodic reports from the director of intd audit, and met with other members of the makaudit staff

» received periodic reports pursuant to our poliaytfe submission and confidential treatment of camications from employees
and others about accounting, internal controlsarditing matters

» reviewed with management the scope and effectiweolesur disclosure controls and procedures;
» received an annual report with regard to any highfprmer employees of KPM(
KPMG also provided to the Committee the writterctisures required by the applicable requirementh@Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board regarding the independent audimtamunications with audit committees concernirdgpendence. The Committee

discussed with KPMG that firm’s independence, amus@ered the effects that the provision of nontaaatvices may have on KPMG's
independence.

Based on and in reliance upon the reviews and sisons referred to above, and subject to the ltroita on the role and responsibilities
of the Committee referred to in its charter, themBattee recommended that the Board of Directorkidethe audited consolidated financial
statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K ferykar ended December 31, 2013.
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If you would like additional information on the pemsibilities of the Audit Committee, please rdfeits charter, which you can obtain in
the manner described above under “Corporate Gomeena- Access to Information.”

Submitted by the Audit Committee of the Board céddors.

W. Bruce Hanks (Chai Peter C. Browr
Michael J. Robert Joseph R. Zimmu

PROPOSAL TO RATIFY A NEW PROXY ACCESS BYLAW
(Item 3 on Proxy or Voting Instruction Card)

For the reasons discussed below, in February 24 Bdoard adopted a new bylaw permitting sharehslttemclude shareholder-
nominated director candidates in our annual megdingy materials, along with Boambminated candidates. We are asking our sharetsaic
ratify this new bylaw at the meeting.

Terms of Proxy Access Bylaw

A summary of the proxy access bylaw amendment‘@hexy Access Bylaw”) is set forth below. This sulauy of the Proxy Access
Bylaw is qualified in its entirety by referencettee text of the Proxy Access Bylaw, which cons@tuSection 5.3 of Article IV of our Bylaws
and is fully set forth ilAppendix Aattached to this Proxy Statement.

Shareholder Eligibility to Nominate up to 20% of @WDirectors. If ratified by our shareholders, the Proxy AccBgtaw would permit
any shareholder, or group of up to ten sharehaladevsing 3% or more of our outstanding Common Shaostinuously for at least the
previous three years to include the number of threcominees specified below in our annual meepirgxy materials.

The maximum number of shareholder-nominated catelidalowed per annual meeting of shareholdersavibelequal to 20% of the
number of directors serving on the Board at thetilre belowdescribed notice is required to be submitted tdfuke 20% calculation does r
result in a whole number, the maximum number ofedalder-nominated candidates would be the clagkste number below 20%. Based on
our current Board size of 13 directors, the maximumber of shareholder-nominated candidates thateuegd be required to include in our
proxy materials for an annual meeting is two. Thenher of permitted candidates would include nomsreémitted under the Proxy Access
Bylaw that were either later withdrawn or that Beard subsequently decided to include in that wgaroxy materials as Board-nominated
candidates. If the number of shareholder-nominedediidates exceeds 20%, each nominating sharehwtded select one nominee for
inclusion in our proxy materials until the maximumumber is reached, selecting in order from thedstr¢p the smallest of such shareholders
based upon the number of Common Shares held byrescimating shareholder or group of shareholders.

Nominating Procedure Under the Proxy Access Bylaw, requests to incllidector nominees in our proxy materials woulddhtebe
received within the time period applicable to nesiof shareholder proposals made at annual meeatirgigmreholders pursuant to Rule 14a-8
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act 8418s amended.

Each shareholder or group of shareholders see&inglude a director nominee in our proxy matenadsild be required to provide
certain information and make certain representatard undertakings at the time of nomination, idiclg among others:
»  Proof that the nominating shareholder or grouphafsholders has held the required number of Confainames for the requisite
period;
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» A copy of sharehold’s notice on Schedule 14N required to be filed WithSEC;

» The written consent of the shareholder nomineestogonamed in our proxy materials as a nomineet@seérving as a director if
elected;

* The information required to be furnished by theatbe notice provisions of our bylav

* Representations regarding, among other thingsshhesholder's compliance with applicable laws,udadg compliance with proxy
solicitation rules, and the lack of an intent tawee or influence control of the Company;

» Undertakings to assume liability arising out of thiermation that the shareholder provides to u$tancomply with all other rules
and regulations applicable to any solicitation@mmection with the annual meeting of shareholc

Calculation of Ownership To ensure that the interests of shareholdersragpékinclude director nominees in our proxy migsrare
aligned with those of other shareholders, suchestedder would be considered to own only the shfmewhich the shareholder possesses the
full voting and investment rights and the full eoaric interest associated with the shares. UndePtbry Access Bylaw, borrowed or hedged
shares would not count as “owned” shares.

Supporting StatementShareholders would be permitted to include inproxy statement a 500-word statement in suppdiaif
nomineesprovided, howeverthat we may omit from our proxy materials anyommfiation or statement that we believe, in goodhfaitould be
materially false or misleading, omits a materiaitfar would violate any applicable law or regudati

Re-Nomination of Shareholder NomineesShareholder nominees who are included in ouryproaterials but subsequently withdraw
from, or become ineligible or unavailable for, ¢lec at the annual meeting of shareholders, or adv@ not received at least 25% of the votes
cast at the annual meeting of shareholders woulddigible to be a nominee at our next two anmaaétings of shareholders. In addition, we
would not be required to include any shareholdeninated candidates in our proxy materials for amyual meeting of shareholders for which
any shareholder nominates one or more directorsléation pursuant to the advance notice provistrair bylaws (which are also includec
Appendix Ato this Proxy Statement).

Qualifications of Shareholder NomineeswWe will not be required to include any nomine®imation in our proxy materials for any
director nominee submitted by shareholders whis ipt independent under the listing standardd@ftincipal U.S. exchange upon which
Common Shares are listed, any applicable ruleseoSEC, or any publicly-disclosed standards usethéyBoard in determining and disclosing
the independence of our directors, (ii) provided @fiormation to us or our shareholders that isamgurate, truthful and complete in all
material respects, or that otherwise contraveneainespecified agreements or representationy h@s been an officer or director of a
competitor, as defined in Section 8 of the Claydaritrust Act of 1914, within the past three yedig) is named a subject of a pending crim
proceeding (excluding traffic violations and otlh@nor offenses) or has been convicted in a crimimateeding within the past ten years, or
(v) is subject to certain specified orders, inchgdfinal orders of certain state and federal reiguéa SEC disciplinary orders, SEC cease-and-
desist orders and SEC stop orders.

Each director nominee would also be required t@atecand deliver, among other things, a writterstjoenaire and an agreement
designed to disclose various aspects of the norsiheekground, qualifications and certain speciiengements with other persons, as well
as to receive the nominee’s commitment to abidedntain specified agreements and undertakings.

Background of and Reasons for the Proposal

The proposal is a result of an ongoing review gpocate governance matters by the Board and itsihaiing and Corporate Governar
Committee. The Committee considered the advantaigéslisadvantages of providing proxy access righshareholders.
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The Committee considered the view of a substantiaiber of our shareholders who believe that pr@cess rights would increase
accountability of directors to shareholders and ligive shareholders a more meaningful voice itélg directors. The Committee in its
evaluation gave considerable weight to the appravalr 2013 annual meeting of a shareholder padpoging the Board to take steps
necessary to adopt a proxy access bylaw on terbsdatially similar to those contained in the Préxcess Bylaw recommended by our
Committee and approved by our Board and set farkppendix A

The Committee also considered the potential haahgloxy access rights could have on the Boardéct¥eness and ability to fulfill its
oversight responsibility to you as shareholdergp@ents of proxy access believe that this amendowend, among other things, lead to an
inexperienced, fragmented, and less effective Buoaitt directors who may pursue narrow special exes.

Certain Effects of Approval or Disapproval of the Roposal

If approved by the shareholders at the meetingPtay Access Bylaw would be effective immediatahd available for use at our next
annual shareholders’ meeting in 2015. If the Praggess Bylaw is not approved by our shareholdevsillinot take effect. In that event,
shareholders would continue to be permitted to sutlinector nominations under our existing advanogfication bylaw, subject to complying
with various notification and informational requinents summarized under “Corporate Governance —ciréomination Process,” but
would not have the right to require us to includ@imation with respect to any such qualifying noations in our proxy materials.

Vote Required

Since the Board has approved the Proxy Access Bgtalis presenting it to shareholders for ratif@atapproval of the Proxy Access
Bylaw will require the affirmative vote of holdeo$ at least a majority of the Voting Shares presenepresented at the meeting.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR thisyosal.

ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
(Item 4 on Proxy or Voting Instruction Card)

This year we are once again providing you withdpportunity to vote on a non-binding, advisory tason to approve the compensation
of our named executive officers as disclosed is finoxy statement pursuant to the rules of the SEC.

Under our executive compensation programs, our darecutive officers are rewarded for achievingc#jmeannual and long-term
goals, as well as increased shareholder value.&evk this structure aligns executive pay with fim@ncial performance and the creation of
sustainable shareholder value. The Compensatiom@tb@e of our Board continually reviews our exeeaittcompensation programs to ensure
they achieve the goals of aligning our compensatiith current market practices and your intereststareholders. For additional information
on our executive compensation, we urge you to tieadCompensation Discussion and Analysis” and ‘@ttiwe Compensation” sections of
this proxy statement.

At the meeting, we will ask you to vote, in an aawry manner, to approve the overall compensatiaupexecutive officers, as descrik
herein further below, including the CompensatioadDssion and Analysis, the Summary Compensatiote Eattal the other related tables and
disclosures. This proposal, commonly known as g-tsapay” proposal, gives you the opportunity t@ess your views. This advisory vote is
not intended to address any specific item of corsgéon, but rather the overall compensation pdieied practices with
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respect to our named executive officers as destiibthis proxy statement. Accordingly, your vot# wot directly affect or otherwise limit
any existing compensation or award arrangemenmybéour named executive officers. It is our catrgolicy to provide you this advisory
voting opportunity annually.

While this “say-on-pay” vote is advisory and withtrbe binding on our Company or the Board, it witbvide valuable information to our
Compensation Committee regarding shareholder sentiabout our executive compensation. Additionallg,invite shareholders who wish to
communicate with our Board on executive compensaiicany other matters to contact us as providel@utCorporate Governance — Top
Leadership Positions and Structure.”

Approval of this proposal will require the affirnnag vote of the holders of at least a majorityhe ¥/oting Shares present or represented
at the meeting.

The Board recommends that you vote FOR the ovecalnpensation of our named executive officers asalided in this proxy statement.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL
(Item 5 on Proxy or Voting Instruction Card)

We periodically receive suggestions from our shalddrs, some as formal shareholder proposals. Weagireful consideration to all
suggestions, and assess whether they promote shéohg-term interests of CenturyLink and its shatders.

The Board of Trustees of the International Brotberhof Electrical Workers Pension Fund, locatefi(ft Seventh Street, NW,
Washington D.C., 20001, has informed us that iefierally owns, and has beneficially owned for mtiran a year, at least $2,000 of our
Common Shares and that it intends to present fasideration at the meeting the following proposald has furnished the following statement
in support of the proposal). We take no resporigitfibr this proposal. Adoption of this proposatjtéres the affirmative vote of the holders of
at least a majority of the Voting Shares presemepresented at the meeting.

Shareholder Proposal: “RESOLVED: Shareholders oft@gLink (the “Company”) urge the Compensation Quittee of the Board of
Directors (the “Committee”) to adopt a policy redgpg that senior executives retain a significarrcpatage of shares acquired through equity
compensation programs until reaching normal retingnage or terminating employment with the Compd#iuy.the purpose of this policy,
normal retirement age shall be defined by the Cawpgagualified retirement plan that has the largasnber of plan participants. The
shareholders recommend that the Committee addydre setention percentage requirement of at l€apevcent of net after-tax shares. The
policy should prohibit hedging transactions forrglsasubject to this policy which are not salesrbdtice the risk of loss to the executive. This
policy shall supplement any other share ownerstgirements that have been established for sexémuéves, and should be implemented sc
as not to violate the Company'’s existing contralobidigations or the terms of any compensationendiit plan currently in effect.

Supporting Statement: Equity-based compensatian important component of senior executive comp@rsat our Company. While
we encourage the use of equity-based compensaticehior executives, we are concerned that ourgaogis senior executives are generally
free to sell shares received from our Company’stg@ompensation plans. In our opinion, the Compsuayrrent share ownership guidelines
for its senior executives do not go far enoughnsuee that the Company’s equity compensation ptansnue to build stock ownership by
senior executives over the long-term.

For example, our Company’s share ownership guidslrequire the Chief Executive Officer (the “CE@)hold an amount of shares
equivalent to six times his base salary, or appnakély 206,968 shares based on the
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current trading price. In comparison, the CEO auttyeowns more than a million shares. Whatsmor@0h2, our Company granted the CEO
58,843 time-vested stock awards and 58,844 perfarerbased stock awards based on target. In otheiswwo year’'s equity awards could
surpass the Company’s long-term share ownershitegines for the CEO.

Our proposal seeks to better link executive comgiém s with long-term performance by requiring a miegful share retention ratio for
shares received by senior executives from the Cagip@&quity compensation plans. Requiring seni@cexives to hold a significant
percentage of shares obtained through equity cosaien plans until they reach retirement age véttér align the interests of executives with
the interests of shareholders and the Company.08 2€port by the Conference Board Task Force oriitkee Compensation observed that
such hold-through-retirement requirements give attees ‘an ever growing incentive to focus on ldegn stock price performance as the
equity subject to the policy increases’ (availadtidittp://www.conference-board.org/pdf_free/Exec@ensation2009.pdf).

We believe that requiring senior executives to drdid shares equal to a set target loses effe@sseaver time. After satisfying these
target holding requirements, senior executivedraeeto sell all the additional shares they recé@imequity compensation.”

The Board recommends that you vote AGAINST this posal for the following reasons:

For the second consecutive year (and for the third in five years), you are being asked to votehismisame topic. Holders of less than
25% and 27%, respectively, of the voted sharesatgg nearly identical proposals at our 2010 ani3BZhnual shareholders’ meetings. For
the reasons discussed below, we continue to belteur existing compensation policies adequadbress the concerns addressed in this
proposal.

The Board agrees with the proponent that equityesship by executive officers serves to align thegkterm interests of our senior
executives and shareholders. We believe, howdvatr sensible stock ownership and compensation gnegybalance the importance of aligr
the long-term interests of executives and sharehmsidith the need to permit executives and shadensto prudently manage their personal
financial affairs. As described further below, B@ard believes that our stock ownership guideliirespnjunction with our performance-based
compensation plans and policies, successfullyesttiis balance effectively, making the adoptiothef current proposal unnecessary. By
contrast, the rigid anti-diversification mandatberent in this proposal could be harmful in sevegapects, and put us at a competitive
disadvantage for attracting and retaining executitieers.

Our executives are already subject to share owipersfuirements. Our stock ownership guidelinesi¢tviare discussed further in
“Corporate Governance — Governance Guidelines™@mnpensation Discussion and Analysis — Stock Owfmigr Guidelines”) mandate
significant stock ownership for all of our execetiv As noted in the proponent’s supporting staténtieese guidelines require our CEO to
beneficially own CenturyLink stock with a valueatfleast six times his annual base salary, antdurequire all other executive officers to
beneficially own CenturyLink stock with a valueatfleast three times their annual base salaryofAdur top executives own CenturyLink st
at levels well in excess of these requirements.iistance, our CEO currently holds stock valuedvatr 35 times his current salary. We believe
that our stock ownership guidelines accomplishptitogonent’s intended purpose of aligning execuding shareholder interests through at-risk
equity ownership.

Our compensation plans and policies further alignlong-term interests of our executives and studdehs. Our executive compensation
plans and policies are carefully designed to pmwadditional alignment of the long-term interedteur senior executives and shareholders.
Typically, a substantial majority of our annual exttve compensation consists of awards of timeegeand performandeased restricted stou
Our time-vested restricted stock typically vesteroa three-year period so that our executiveszedlill value from the grants only after
serving us for at least three years, while ourgrerhnce-based restricted stock vests
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only if we achieve our three-year threshold levidhogeted performance. As such, the value realigezh vesting of our restricted stock is
directly tied to our long-term performance and aéippreciation of our stock price over the vestingqek which benefits all shareholders. In
addition, we have implemented both anti-hedging amt@pledging policies to ensure that our exe@giliear the full economic risk and rewarc
of their stock ownership, and that their economteriests remain fully aligned with the economieiests of our other shareholders. We also
have implemented recoupment policies designedrtbduassure a linkage between our executive cosgpem and our long-term
performance. We believe our compensation plangalidies, coupled with our abowaescribed stock ownership guidelines, achieve ¢méral
objective of this shareholder proposal.

Adoption of the proponent’s proposal could be haitrirf several respects. While it is essential thatexecutive officers have a
meaningful equity stake in our Company, the Bodgd helieves that it is important that we do netcel undue hardships on our executive
officers and do not disable them from being ableegponsibly manage their personal financial affaihe adoption of this policy would limit
our executive officers’ abilities to engage in amsary and prudent estate planning, portfolio difieegion or charitable giving. Worse yet,
these onerous restrictions could create a stratentive for senior executives to resign in ordenei@ize the value of their prior service. We
believe that the type of retention policy describethis proposal is not common among our peerstlaaitthe adoption of this proposal would
put us at a competitive disadvantage relative topeers who do not have such restrictions.

Our guidelines, plans and policies are better lzaldrthan the proponent’s proposal. We believe amgznsation Committee of
independent directors is best suited to formulagzetive compensation principles and practicesdisziburage excessive risk-taking and
promote long-term, sustainable value creation,thatlit should have the flexibility to structurdesftive and competitive compensation policies
and programs. We believe that our current mix ohemship guidelines, compensation practices anaipslprovide for an appropriate balance
between aligning the long-term interests of managgerand the shareholders, while also permittingexecutives to prudently manage their
own affairs.

For all these reasons, our Board believes thisqealds unnecessary and undesirable, and contraryur best interests.
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OWNERSHIP OF OUR SECURITIES

Principal Shareholders

The following table sets forth information regamgliownership of our Common Shares by the persongikiio us to have beneficially

owned more than 5% of the outstanding Common Staaré&ecember 31, 2013, unless otherwise noted.

1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial Percent of
Ownership of Outstanding
Name and Address Common Shares?) Common Shareg?)
Capital Research Global Investors 72,406,171 12.4%

333 South Hope Street

Los Angeles, California 9007

Blackrock, Inc. 35,059,490 6.0%
40 East 52nd Street

New York, New York 1002:

State Street Corporation 34,401,53@ 5.9%
State Street Financial Center

One Lincoln Street

Boston, Massachusetts 021

Capital Income Builder 32,819,236) 5.6%
333 South Hope Street

Los Angeles, California 9007

The figures and percentages in the table ahave been determined in accordance with Rule 1803 SEC based upon information
furnished by the investors listed, except that weehcalculated the percentages in the table bas#fteaactual number of Common Shi
outstanding on December 31, 2013, as opposed @stieated percentages set forth in the repottiseoinvestors referred to below in
notes 2 through 5. In addition to Common Shareshawe outstanding Preferred Shares that vote tegetith the Common Shares as a
single class on all matters. One or more personsflogally own more than 5% of the Preferred Shanesvever, the percentage of total
voting power held by such persons is immateriat. detaitional information regarding the Preferrec®s, see “Questions and Answers
About the Meetin(— How many votes may | ca”

Based on information contained in a Schedulé/A3Report dated as of February 13, 2014 thatitivsstor filed with the SEC. In this
report, the investor indicated that, as of Decen3e2013, it held sole voting and dispositive powih respect to all of these shares in
its capacity as an investment adviser to variousdtment companies, including Capital Income Buijldénich has separately reported its
beneficial ownership interest in what we believééoa portion of these shares pursuant to the 8t#&8G Report described in note 5
below.

Based on information contained in a Schedul&/A3Report dated as of February 10, 2014 thatitivisstor filed with the SEC. In this
report, the investor indicated that, as of Decen3e2013, it held sole voting power with respec29,818,614 of the shares and sole
dispositive power with respect to all of these ke

Based on information contained in a Schedulé R&port dated as of February 3, 2014 that thisstor filed with the SEC. In this report,
the investor indicated that, as of December 3132@khared voting and dispositive power with exggo all of these shares with various
of its subsidiaries specified in such rep

Based on information contained in a Schedul® R&port dated as of February 14, 2014 that thissior filed with the SEC. In this
report, the investor indicated that, as of Decen3ieR013, it held sole voting power with respecali of these shares and sole
dispositive power with respect to none of theseeshan its capacity as an investment company ad\igeCapital Research Global
Investors, whose interest in what we believe ta pertion of these shares is described in noteotea
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Executive Officers and Directors

The following table sets forth information regamglithe beneficial ownership of Common Shares byesecutive officers and directors.
Except as otherwise noted, (i) all information ieypded as of the record date and (ii) all benafigiowned shares are held with sole voting
investment power and are not pledged to third @srti

Components of Total Shares Owne!

Options or
Unrestricted Exsigirjst:ble
Total
Shares Unvested Shares

Beneficially Restricted Within 60 Beneficially
Name Oowned %) Stock (@) Days @ Owned ¢
Executive Officers:
Glen F. Post, I 526,81« 531,34t 200,00 1,258,16;
Karen A. Pucket® 157,99! 181,77¢ 75,00( 414,77:
R. Stewart Ewing, Ji 128,56 128,02. 145,60( 402,19(
Stacey W. Gof 48,60: 99,66! 40,50( 188,76¢
William E. Cheek 38,75! 54,57¢ 11,43( 104,75
David D. Cole® 132,10t 93,91° 40,50( 266,52:
Maxine L. Moreat 12,28¢ 32,62¢ 10,00( 54,91¢
Jeffrey H. Von Deylet 24,99:. 60,29: — 85,28¢
Scott A. Trezise — 30,91 — 30,91:
Outside Directors:
Virginia Boulet(™ 15,371 3,871 — 19,24¢
Peter C. Browr 20,23¢ 3,871 — 24,10¢
Richard A. Gepharc 3,091 3,871 — 6,96:
W. Bruce Hanks 22,24¢ 3,871 — 26,11¢
Gregory J. McCra — 3,871 — 3,871
C.G. Melville, Jr. 1,067 3,871 — 4,93¢
Fred R. Nichols 6,131 3,871 — 10,00z
William A. Owens 12,53« 9,21: — 21,747
Harvey P. Perr® 74,57( 3,871 — 78,44
Michael J. Robert 10,84« 3,871 — 14,71
Laurie A. Siege 20,23t 3,871 — 24,10¢
Joseph R. Zimme 14,47¢ 3,871 — 18,34¢
All(g)lrectors and executive officers as a group ff2tsons) 1.270.92 1.264.93 523,03 3,058.88

(1) This column includes the following number ofiets allocated to the individual’'s account under ohour qualified 401(k) plans:
132,705 — Mr. Post; 3,724 — Ms. Puckett; 21,456 + EWwing; 5,116 — Mr. Goff; 874 — Mr. Cheek; 25,339 Mr. Cole; 1,915 —
Ms. Moreau; 0 — Mr. Von Deylen; and 0 — Mr. Trezi&articipants in these plans are entitled to tlittee voting of their plan shares, as
described in greater detail elsewhere hel

(2) Reflects (i) for all shares listed, unvestedrsi of restricted stock over which the personsstie voting power but no investment
power, and (ii) with respect to our performanceeaaestricted stock granted to our executive offiée 2012, 2013 and 2014, the
number of shares that will vest if we attain tarlgetls of performanct

(3) Reflects shares that the person has the igitcquire within 60 days of the record date purst@options granted under our incentive
compensation plans; does not include (i) sharastight be issued under restricted stock unitsiiferformance exceeds target levels,
(ii) options held by former spouses, or (iii) “ptiam units” held by Mr. Roberts that are payableash upon the termination of his
service as a director, as described further u“Director Compensatio— Other Benefit”

(4) None of the persons named in the table benefiomillgs more than 1% of the outstanding Common Shatesshares beneficial
owned by all directors and executive officers ggaup constituted 0.5% of tt
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(5)
(6)

(7)
(8)

(9)

outstanding Common Shares as of the record ddtzu(aged in accordance with rules of the SEC asagrthat all options listed in the
table have been exercised for Common Shares rdthinghe recipient)

Includes 202 shares held by Ms. Puckett as custddiahe benefit of her childre

Includes 7,752 plan shares beneficially heldvsyCole’s wife, one of our former employees, &rlaccounts under our qualified 401(k)
plan, as to which Mr. Cole disclaims beneficial @nghip.

Includes 955 shares held by Ms. Boulet as custddiathe benefit of her childre

Includes 709 shares beneficially held by Mrri?e spouse, as to which Mr. Perry disclaims bemfownership, and 15,997 shares held
by Mr. Perry through our dividend reinvestment plas of the most recent date practical

As described further in the notes above, inetuf) 8,461 shares held beneficially by the speuase¢hese individuals, as to which
beneficial ownership is disclaimed, (ii) 1,157 stsaheld as custodian for the benefit of childresuth individuals and (iii) 15,997 shares
held through our dividend reinvestment plan (athefmost recent date practicable), excluding 2s388es held through such plan by 1
of our executive officers who no longer participateuch plan

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In this CD&A, we first summarize our 2013 businassl executive compensation highlights, our commitne aligning executive pay

with performance and value creation, our generailpensation philosophy, and our compensation progaam benchmarking practices for
named executive officers in 2013. We then desdhiberarious elements of our compensation prograndgtail. Finally, we discuss our
compensation decision-making process and varidiex adompensation-related matters. Our named execofiicers for 2013 were:

* GlenF. Post, Il Chief Executive Officer and Preside

» Karen A. Pucket Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Off

* R. Stewart Ewing, J Executive Vice President, Chief Financial OfficedaAssistant Secreta
e Stacey W. Gof Executive Vice President, General Counsel and $agr

« David D. Cole Executive Vice Preside— Controller and Operations Suppc

Executive Summary

As described further below, the central goals afexecutive pay programs are to incentivize oucakiees to attain objectives that we

believe will create shareholder value, to rewandguenance that contributes to the execution oftmuginess strategies, and to attract and retai
the right executives for our business.

2013 Business HighlightsDuring 2013, we achieved several significant acd@hments, including the following:

« Improved our core revenue (which is the sum ofstiategic revenues and legacy revenues line itesns éur Consolidated
Statements of Operations) trend by 100 basis pdmis 1.3% decline in 2013 from 2.3% in 2012, espnting continued solid
progress toward revenue stability and anticipatedvth over time

» Generated strategic revenue growth of nearly $4llibm a 4.7% increase from 2012, and realized9®of our 2013 target gos
» Added approximately 140,000 hi-speed Internet (broadband) customers during the segaresenting 2.4% year over year grov
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Expanded availability of our facilities-based vidsmvices, marketed as Pristh TV, to approximat8y,@0 additional
households during 2013; achieved a record 64%aserén annual Prisi¥ TV customer growth, addingln&®,000 subscribers
during the yeat

Launched Managed Office, featuring uggendly, fully managed IT services and communigatsolutions bundles for businesse
all sizes that deliver a level of customer sertygecally available only to larger business custosn

Successfully completed over $2.5 billion of delfin@ncing transactions, which, coupled with othelated financing transactions,
(i) simplified our capital and public reportingstture and (ii) extended the average maturity ofauistanding deb

Completed our acquisitions of AppFog, Inc. and Beinc., further strengthening and enhancing canaged hosting and cloud
solutions infrastructure and capabiliti

Repurchased 46 million Common Shares for $1.5bhilluring 2013, representing 7.3% of shares outistg as of December 31,
2012,

2013 Executive Compensation Highlight®uring 2013, the Compensation Committee of our Bdaok various steps to (i) continue its
prior efforts to reduce the gap between the congiensof our named executive officers and theirpe other companies caused by the rapit
acquisition-driven growth in the size, territoriabch and complexity of the Company and (ii) sttkeg the linkage between executive pay an
our performance and strategic goals. Our recenekegutive compensation decisions and highligrdssammarized below.

In May 2013, we received the favorable vote of ®4% of our shareholders with regards to our an“say on pa” vote.

Our 2013 operating performance resulted in anmeartive bonus performance payouts of 102% for ehdur named executive
officers, other than our chief operating officehase 2013 performance merited a 107.1% pa

After increasing the base salaries of our nameduwiee officers in August 2012, the Compensatiom@uttee increased shodand
long-term incentive opportunities for our namedairive officers in May 2013 to address pay gapsrande compensation levels
closer to the 5@ percentile of market levels, axdeed further in “Summary of 2013 Compensatiandiar Named Executives —
Shortfall in Compensation Leve”

The Compensation Committee also modified the desigur short- and long-term incentive programstHer aligning executive
pay with business performance and strategies. 8#ef discussion of these changes below u“Pay for Performanc”

Pay for Performance

We believe that a significant portion of our exéaes’ compensation should be payable only when meriteglioyerformance. Current
all of the annual bonus compensation of each ofenior officers and half of their long-term equitgentive compensation is payable only if

we attain certain specified goals, thereby plaairsgibstantial portion of their compensation at.fidie remaining portion of our senior officers

long-term equity incentive compensation is curneptid in time-vested restricted stock, the valtieloich is dependent on our performance
over an extended vesting period. This pay elensedésigned to create additional incentives forexacutives to focus on sustainable, long-
term growth. We took the following steps in 2013ucdher strengthen the linkage between our exeeytay and our performance:

The above-described modifications of compensatiogams increased the portion of target total dicempensation that is
performanc-based from 52% to 53% for our CEO and on averawga #7% to 51% for our other named executi
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* The Compensation Committee increased, from 3099%, 3he portion of the annual bonus dependent ap@imment of strategic
revenue and strategic goals and increased the mambespecificity of the strategic goe

» The Compensation Committee awarded half of theopmidince-based restricted shares based upon a wemuestarget over a three
year performance period and the other half uporreative total shareholder return versus a neviocogpeer group over a thr
year performance perio

For further information on the performance goatslgiished by our Compensation Committee, see belevAnnual Incentive Bonuses”
and “— Long-Term Equity Incentive Compensation.t Rmore information on our recent financial performoe, seé\ppendix Bo this proxy
statement.

Realized Vesting of Performance-Based Restrictedc®Our past issuances of performance-based reststiges provide further
evidence of our “pay for performance” philosophy2010 and 2011, the Committee granted half of/ttlee of the executives’ long-term
awards in the form of performance-based restristedk measured against our total shareholder retlmtive to the S&P 500 index, with the
other half being in the form of time-vested reséitstock.

* The 2010 performandeased restricted shares had a performance peridgmhofiry 1, 2010 through December 31, 2012 antbtal
shareholder return was 35.29%, which ranked 2540471 (representing the number of S&P 500 indemanies remaining) or
the 46" percentile, which resulted in a 92% payaté.rUltimately, 92% of the target number of perfancebased restricted shal
granted for each of our officers vested in Marcti20vith all remaining shares being forfeit

e The 2011 performandeased restricted shares had a performance peridghafary 1, 2011 through December 31, 2013 antbtal
shareholder return was (14.42)%, which ranked 4816472 (representing the number of S&P 500 inctaxpanies remaining) or
the ninth percentile, which was below threshold eesililted in a 0% payout. In February 2014, the @mmsation Committee
confirmed that none of the target performebased restricted shares granted in 2011 will eaest,all shares were forfeite

Assessment of “Say on Pay” Voting Resuliis.May 2012 and 2013, over 96% and 94%, respegtivélthe votes cast by our
shareholders with respect to our “say on pay” psapwere favorable. In connection with making exiseucompensation decisions since May
2013, the Committee has taken note of this vote camcluded that shareholders are generally sdisfith the scope and structure of our
compensation programs. Nonetheless, the Commiteedntinued to change and refine these programms @ffort to further promote the go
of our executive compensation philosophy descrimdw.

Our Compensation Philosophy

We compensate our senior management through afrppograms designed to be market-competitive aschfly responsible. More
specifically, our executive compensation progranesdesigned to:

» provide performanc-based reward opportunities that support growthiandvation without encouraging excessive risk tgk

» reinforce our business strategies and our creafitong-term shareholder value by making substaatizounts of our executives’
compensation dependent upon attaining these ¢

» align the interests of executives and shareholoerroviding a majority of our executive compensatin the form of long-term
equity grants

» attract, retain and motivate key executives bydting compensation at the 50 percentile of marketls with an appropriate mix
of fixed and variable compensation, skterm and lon-term incentives, and cash and eg-based pay
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* recognize and support outstanding contributionsrasdlts, both on an individual basis and a commargivisional basis
* manage cost and share dilution, i

» promote internal equity by offering comparable reemative opportunities to executives whom we expeatake roughly
equivalent contributions, while differentiating extives compensation arrangements when appropi

Our Compensation Practices

To assist us in achieving our broad compensati@tsguutlined above, we apply the following pradi¢many of which are described
further elsewhere in this CD&A):

What We Do

» Adhere to various other executive compensationt‘pexctices,” including (i) a commitment to perfante-based compensation
weighted heavily towards long-term equity awardsy€quiring our executives to own a significami@unt of our stock,
(iii) reviewing annually our compensation prografmsvoid encouraging excessively risky behavia), §pnducting annual “say-
orn-pay’ votes and (v) maintaining a compensatclawbacl’ policy

* Annually review the continued appropriateness afpmer grouy
 Benchmark base salary and annual and-term incentive opportunities against 50th perceméer compensation leve

» Incorporate into our executive compensation deossibe results of intensive annual full-day perfance reviews of our senior
officers led by independent directors serving ondominating and Corporate Governance CommitteecamdCompensation
Committee

» Limit the number of performandeased restricted shares that will vest if our tetelreholder return over the applicable perform:
period is negative (regardless of how strong olatike performance is

* Require shareholders to approve any future severagicements valued at more than 2.99 times theigwe's target cash
compensatiol

» Require our executives to agree to compensatidaifaore covenants broader than those mandatedany

What We Don’t Do

» Enter into employment agreements with our incumlesgetutive:

* Maintain a supplemental executive retirement |

» Permit our directors or employees to hedge oukstarcour directors or senior officers to pledge siock

» Pay dividends on our executiv unvested restricted sto:

* Permit the Compensation Commif's current consultant to provide services to Cethfnky

» Pay, provide or permit (i) excessive perquisitésekcise tax “gross-up” payments, (iii) singlégger change of control equity
acceleration benefits or (iv) other comparableadisfed compensation practic
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Use of “Benchmarking” Data

With assistance from its compensation consulthetGompensation Committee assembles “peer grodmgher companies comparable
to CenturyLink in order to compare:

» thecompensationof our executives against individuals who workimitarly-situated positions at peer companies (“pemsation
benchmarkin”), and

» our relative compar-wide performance against the performance of other peer compa* performance benchmarki”).

We generally endeavor to perform this analysihfourth quarter of a year in order to determiogensation levels and pay actions, i
any, for the upcoming year. See the further disondselow in “— Our Compensation Decision-Makingp&&ss — Review Process.”

Compensation Benchmarkingdssuming targeted levels of performance are acHiewe strive to provide to each executive who has
demonstrated strong performance total compensaifiitim a range of the median of compensation lepalid by a designated group of peer
companies selected by our Compensation Committeeh&lieve that this practice allows us to attract eetain talented executives, while also
enabling us to maintain a competitive cost bash waspect to compensation expense.

Over the past year, the Compensation Committee theefbllowing data, based on input from its congation consultant, to benchmark
compensation levels for our executives againswviddals who work in similarly-situated positionscatmparable companies:

e general survey data compiled by the compensatioauwtant containing compensation information atzohtoad range of public
companies generally similar in size to us,

e compensation data publicly disclosed by compamielsided within the compensation peer group desdridatow.
Since our 2011 acquisitions of Qwest and Savvishawee made several refinements to our compensag¢inchmarking peer group to

match the increased size, complexity and diverdigur expanded operations. In August 2012, the i@ittee adopted the following 13-
company peer group for compensation benchmarkisgport of pay decisions for 2013:

Cablevision Systems Corporati Motorola Solutions, Inc
Charter Communications, In NIl Holdings, Inc.
Comcast Corporatio QUALCOMM Incorporatec
DIRECTV Sprint Nextel Corporatio
DISH Network Corporatiol Time Warner Cable Inc
Frontier Communications Corporati Viacom Inc.

Liberty Global, Inc.

In selecting these 13 peer companies, the Comnidteesed principally on cable and other communiceticompanies that are generally
comparable to us in terms of size, markets andatipais. The Committee elected to include two othlErcommunication companies (Sprint
and Frontier), but elected not to include Verizod&T, both of which are substantially larger thas, or any other telecommunication
companies, all of which are substantially smalhantus.

The Committee reviews its compensation benchmaniéeg group annually to ensure that it remains-autied for its intended purpos
In October 2013, in support of pay decisions fat£dhe Committee made changes to this peer grpuprboving Liberty Global, Inc. due to
its merger and removing Frontier Communicationsp@aation due to a decline in revenue size.
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For additional information about how we set payelsysee “— Our Compensation Decision-Making Pretes

Performance Benchmarkingln 2013, the Committee constructed an additional geoup in connection with its grant of performanc
based restricted stock to our senior officers oy @1 2013. As explained in greater detail undertthading “— Long-Term Equity Incentive
Compensation,” the Committee elected to base thtingeof half of the 2013 grants of performancedoiestricted shares on our relative total
shareholder return between January 1, 2013 andnilere31, 2015 compared to that of the 30-compadystry peer group described below.
In prior years, the Committee compared our totatsholder return to that of the S&P 500 index Farse purposes. In 2013, the Committee
determined that it could construct a broad indug&gr group with historical total shareholder nesuthat correlate more closely with our
historical total shareholder returns, when comp#&werbrrelations of our returns with the S&P 5086r and other readily-available indexes.
With the aid of its compensation consultant, then@ittee selected the following companies to conapitss 30-member peer group for

performance benchmarking:

Finisar Corporatiol

General Communication, In
IDT Corporation

Cogent Communications Group, Ir
JDS Uniphase Corporatic
Time Warner Cable Inc.
Motorola Solutions, Inc.
TW Telecom Inc

United States Cellular Col
AT&T Inc.

Sprint Nextel Corporation
Level 3 Communications, In
Verizon Communications Ini
Comcast Corporation
Multiband Corporatior

Windstream Corporatio
Consolidated Communications Holdings, |
DISH Network Corporation’
USA Mobility, Inc.

Virgin Media Inc.

Sirius XM Radio Inc

Ciena Corporatiol

NIl Holdings, Inc.*

Cablevision Systems Corporatio
Viacom Inc.*

LodgeNet Interactive Corporatic
Liberty Global, Inc.*

Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Telephone and Data Systems, |
Crown Castle International Cor

* Also included in the Committ’s abov-listed 1:-company peer group used for 2013 compensation bearging.

Overview of Elements and Amounts of Compensation

We believe the following elements of our compemsatirogram help us to realize our compensatioropbphy and objectives:

» Base SalaryBase salary provides a competitive and stable coemtaof income to our executives, as a majoritthefr total
compensation is variable and contingent on perfanadrom year to yea

« Annual Incentive BonuseThis element provides competitively based shoritgrcentive opportunities for our executives tanear
annual cash bonuses for achieving financial otegjia goals that are established by the Compems&ionmittee each fiscal year.
See"— Annual Incentive Bonus” for a description of how the Committee sets goats @etermines annual incentive bonu:

* LongTerm Incentive Compensatidrong-term incentive compensation ensures that eecwives’ interests are aligned with those
of our shareholders. During 2013, the Company &urgtrengthened the “pay-for-performance” compowéoir long-term
incentive compensation program by (i) adding a tireweyear revenue goal in addition to relative totalrshalder return measur:
over a three-year performance period and (ii) coctihg a new custom peer group. For further disicus see “— Long-Term

Equity Incentive Compensati” below.
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Other BenefitsWe believe our other benefit programs, which cosgd minimal portion of our executive officers’abannual
compensation, are in line with standard markettpes. For further discussion, s*— Other Benefit” below.

Change of Control and Severance Bene¥ile.do not have individual employment agreementsrdther have adopted change of
control agreements and an executive severancegmogifering customary severance benefits in omeetiain executives and
enhance their productivity by alleviating conceah®ut the economic impact of involuntary terminasi@f employment and, in the
case of a change of control, providing continuityranagement. We do not offer tax “gross-up” primris and have “double-
trigger” change of control provisions. For further discusseee*— Other Benefit” below.

Summary of 2013 Compensation for our Named ExecutéevOfficers

General. Two of the core principles of our compensation @olphy are to offer competitive compensation toramed executive
officers at the 5@ percentile of market levels vdthappropriate mix of fixed and variable compeangatOur 2013 annual incentive bonus
target percentages and the total fair value o263 equity grants for our executive officers wieased on these principles.

Annual Incentive Bonus Target Percenteln determining the bonus target percentage for saaior officer, the Committee
discussed each officer’s responsibilities, captddj performance and contributions both agairdividual goals and objectives as
well as in comparison to internal peers. The Cortemialso reviewed market data regarding annuahtiveecompensation paid to
comparable executives at peer companies reflentdtbibenchmarking data compiled by the compensatasultant

Long-Term Incentive Compensatidn.determining the size of each senior officerd2@rant, the Committee (i) discussed each
officer’s responsibilities, capabilities, perforne@nand contributions, (ii) reviewed market dataarding long-term incentive
compensation paid to comparable executives atqueepanies reflected in the benchmarking data cadfiy the compensation
consultant, and (iii) reviewed current equity ovsiep levels to ensure they are sufficient to adesiyancentivize our officers to
create sustainable lo-term shareholder value and to mitigate the risk@aged with competitor offer packag:

As discussed further below under “— Shortfall inngensation Levels,” the Committee’s compensatiorsuattant advised us in 2013
that our annual incentive bonus targets and long-tacentive compensation were both well below reedompetitive compensation levels of
peer companies. After assessing all of these facto2013 the Committee granted the increaseddsiatiustrated in the charts in the next
section below.
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Shortfall in Compensation Level®ver the past few years, our rapid growth througfugsitions has caused our total target compem
levels to fall well below market-competitive comgation levels. The Committee took a two-step apgrda address these pay gaps and mov
compensation levels closer to thet50 percentilmariket levels. The Committee increased named eixesusalaries in August 2012, as
reported in our 2013 proxy statement, and increéts@damed executives’ short- and long-term ingentpportunities in May 2013. These
changes to compensation are illustrated in thetsatow.

CEO Other NEOs

G - - I ase Salery S 100
Pri: August 305 Pogt 2042-K 3013
e Fo

Note: All market data reflected in the charts abm@resents target total direct compensation @aigfist 2012, which was the most
recent information available when the Committeetaction in May 2013.

Prior to our August 2012 base salary increasesPidst’s target total direct compensation was bel@e25 percentile of market
compensation levels and 51% of market median cosgtem levels. As a result of Mr. Post’s strongfgenance and his below market-
competitive level, in May 2013 the Committee tobk following actions, (i) increased his bonus tapgrcentage from 125% to 150% and
(ii) increased his targeted aggregate grant dateddue from $4,400,000 to $6,600,000, which mit2013 compensation increases at risk or
subject to the performance of our stock. Followtimgse compensation increases, Mr. Post’s targatdisect compensation was slightly above
the 25" percentile of market compensation levels7drid of market median compensation levels.

Prior to our August 2012 base salary increasesPJskett’s target total direct compensation wasvben the 2% and 50 percentile of
market compensation levels and 70% of market mezbampensation levels. In May 2013, the Committeecgased her bonus target percen
from 85% to 110% and increased her targeted aggregant date fair value from $1,920,000 to $2,288, which puts all 2013 compensation
increases at risk or subject to the performanaioftock. Following these compensation increddss Puckett’s target total direct
compensation was between the®25 anth50 percehtii@dket compensation levels and 85% of market emedompensation levels.

Prior to our August 2012 base salary increasespMing'’s target total direct compensation was belloa25" percentile of market
compensation levels and 84% of market median cosgtem levels. In May 2013, the Committee incredssdonus target percentage from
85% to 110% and increased his targeted aggregaite date fair value from $1,488,000 to $1,560,0@tich puts all 2013 compensation
increases at risk or subject to the performanaioftock. Following these compensation increddeskEwing’s total direct compensation was
slightly below the 5@ percentile of market compeiosalevels and 95% of market median compensatuals.

Prior to our August 2012 base salary increases@ff's target total direct compensation was betwihe 25" and 50 percentile of
market compensation levels and 73% of market mezbanpensation levels. In May 2013, the Committeedased his bonus target percentag
from 65% to 110% and increased his targeted agtegant date fair value from $1,104,000 to $1,200, which puts all 2013 compensation
increases at
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risk or subject to the performance of our stockldwing these compensation increases, Mr. Gofftgeatotal direct compensation was below
the 50" percentile of market compensation levels3¥d of market median compensation levels.

Prior to our August 2012 base salary increases(dle’s target total direct compensation was betwibe 25" and 50 percentile of
market compensation levels and 81% of market mezbampensation levels. In May 2013, the Committeedased his bonus target percentag
from 65% to 90% and increased his targeted aggeegant date fair value from $1,104,000 to $1,1d0,@vhich puts all 2013 compensation
increases at risk or subject to the performanaaoftock. Following these compensation increddesCole’s target total direct compensation
was below the 50 percentile of market compensd¢ioels and 91% of market median compensation levels

Each element of our 2013 compensation is discusstter below under the headings “— Salary,” “— AmhIncentive Bonuses” and
“— Long-Term Equity Incentive Compensation.” In Bazase, more information on how we determined fipguay levels is located under the
heading “— Our Compensation Decision-Making Process

Salary

General.In the first half of 2013, the Committee determirledt the named executives’ then-prevailing sadariere generally in
alignment with their targeted 3(percentile salary levels based on data compileitstisompensation consultant. Although several efrtamec
executives’ salaries were below mean levels, thei@ittee elected to make no changes to the nameaxiaxes’ salaries during 2013 in light
the Committee’s desire to emphasize incentive coisgiigon opportunities more than salary.

Recent Actionsin February 2014, the Committee increased Mr. Gafllary by 5% to $525,000. There were no othangks to our
remaining executive officers’ salaries.

Annual Incentive Bonuses

General.We design our annual cash bonus programs baseedrformpance objectives that, if attained, can reablynbe expected to
(i) promote our business and strategic objectivel(d) correspond to those paid to similarly-stethand comparably skilled executives at pee
companies. We currently offer annual incentive lsgsuto 100% of our non-union and non-sales empfoyee

The 2013 bonuses paid to our named executives cadrelated under a two-step process. In step beeCommittee determined that we
had attained during 2013 a 14.1% operating cashriéurn on average assets, which exceeded thet fakgl established by the Committee in
March 2013 under a program designed to qualify2@1r3 annual bonuses as performance-based commantatpurposes of Section 162(m)
of the Internal Revenue Code. By exceeding thigetaleach of our named executives qualified foeptil annual bonuses up to a fixed
maximum amount defined as a percentage of the &xet=u2013 salary.
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In step two, the Committee authorized actual basigséstantially lower than these maximum potebtisuses. The 2013 bonuses
actually paid to our named executives were detaxthby measuring the executives’ performance agtiastpecific objectives and targets
established by the Committee in 2013 and desctiedulv under the heading “— Performance ObjectivesBargets.” The actual amounts of
the named officers’ 2013 bonuses were calculatdd|iasvs:

Actual
Award
2013 Bonus Earned as % ol
Named Officel Salary x Targety x Performance 9 = Bonus® Salary
Glen F. Post, lll $1,100,00! 150% 102.0% $1,683,00! 153%
Chief Executive Officer and Presid:
Karen A. Puckett 725,00( 110% 107.1% 854,12: 118%
Executive Vice President and Chief Operatinfjcerf
R. Stewart Ewing, Jr. 650,00( 110% 102.0% 729,30( 112%
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Giffiand
Assistant Secretal
Stacey W. Goff 500,00( 110% 102.0% 561,00( 112%
Executive Vice President, General Counsel sarutedary
David D. Cole 475,00( 90% 102.0% 436,05( 92%
Executive Vice President —Controller and Opierat
Support

(1) Calculated as discussed below ur‘— 2013 Performance Resu”
(2) These bonus amounts are reflected in the Supn@ampensation Table appearing below under thenwoltNon-Equity Incentive Plan
Compensatiol”

Performance Objectives and Targetss noted above, in 2013 the Committee established:

» Atarget level of operating cash flow return onrage assets for purposes of fixing the maximum arnofipotential annual
bonuses for 2013 payable to our senior officei@cicordance with Section 162(m) of the Internal ReeeCode, an

” .

*  “minimum,” “target” and “maximum” threshold levets operating cash flow and strategic revenues,elsag certain strategic
initiative goals, for purposes of determining imlg2014 the actual amount of 2013 annual bonusé®tpaid to our senior officel
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For purposes of calculating the aggregate 2013$9payment to each of our named executive offichesfollowing goals were weighted
as follows:

Financial Performance Objectiv

Busines
Consolidate Consolidate Unit
Strategi
Operating Strategic Strategic
Named Officel Cash Flow Revenue Revenu Initiatives () Total
Glen F. Post, IlI 50% 30% — 20% 100%
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
Karen A. Puckett 50% 10% 20% 20% 100%
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Offf
R. Stewart Ewing, Jr. 50% 30% — 20% 100%
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Gffiand Assistant Secrete
Stacey W. Goff 50% 30% — 20% 100%
Executive Vice President, General Counsel aratedary
David D. Cole 50% 30% — 20% 100%

Executive Vice Preside— Controller and Operations Suppc

(1) Each named executiwepotential payout with respect to these strategfi@tives is dependent upon his or her respediivg&ness unit ar
area of responsibility. See further discussionwealader the headin* — 2013 Performance Resu”

The 2013 operating cash flow and strategic revéangets set by our Committee with respect to ounawofficers were as follows:

Performance Levels (in million:

Financial Performance Objectiv Minimum Target!) Maximum
Consolidated Operating Cash Fl&Ww $6,977.7" $7,345.0@ $7,712.2!
Consolidated Strategic Reven® 8,482.3! 8,790.0( 9,097.6!
Business Unit Strategic Reven®) 5,075.9( 5,260.0( 5,444 11

(1) Based upon the same forecasts used in connectthrowi publich-disclosed guidanci

(2) Represents operating income plus depreciation arwtezation expense

(3) Represents the midpoint of a target that ranges $8,308.275 million to $7,381.725 millic

(4) Represents revenue from providing the followdegvices: high speed internet, internet protogieMision (IPTV), data hosting, cloud
computing, private line/special access, Etherndtipratocol label switching (MPLS), satellite videmd voice over internet protocol
(VolP), all as reported in our publi-filed financial statement:

(5) Represents revenue derived from our businesg@msumer segments, all as reported in our pyHiileld financial statements; these
targets were applicable to Ms. Puckett for 2013hdifferent targets being applicable to otherasfs with responsibilities regarding
other operating segmen

Bonuses payable with respect to attainment of tisgiia initiatives” were based on the Compensatiom@ittee’s assessment of each
senior officer’s specific contributions regardirape or all of the following five strategic initias selected by the Committee in consultation
with management:

e attainment of growth goals for our facilit-based internet protocol television service (IPTiarketed as Prisi’™™M TV
» increases in the number of customers in our mapkatshasing our data services, which we refer tounglata penetration ra

36



Table of Contents

» the number of completed installations of fiber ot@bles linking our network to nearby wirelesseos
» simplification of our network designed to reducstscand improve our operatio
» attainment of hosting growth goa

Each of these five strategic initiatives was wetjbgually for Messrs. Post, Ewing, Goff and Cole@ming that 4% of their total bonus
was based on their attainment of each of thesesfiagegic initiatives). Ms. Puckedtstrategic bonus was based principally on IPTWwiincanc
increased data penetration, and secondarily onamktsimplification. Depending on their responstiiis, our other senior officers’ strategic
bonuses were based on their contributions towaffiseht combinations of these five goals.

Linkage of Performance Objectives with our Competisa Philosophy.The Committee selected the above-described 20183aset
because they correlate strongly with our compeoisathilosophy and financial and strategic objedtifar the following reasons:

e Strong operating cash flow is critical to our sigxbecause it enables us to, among other thindan@ strategic capital
investments designed to expand our business opyides) (ii) return cash to our shareholders thiodiyidends or share
repurchases, and (iii) meet our debt and pensitigations.

e Strategic revenue growth promotes our criticaltsjig objective of identifying new or growing rewensources designed to offset
anticipated decreases in our legacy revenues attiglécsify our earnings strean

» Attaining success with respect to each of the éibeve-listed strategic initiatives will help us exg and diversify our customer
base, reduce costs or otherwise improve our opesa

The Compensation Committee set the target levgiedbrmance described above based on assessm#msdifficulty of achieving
such levels and the potential impact of such aament on enhancing shareholder value. Based upogaoned performance levels for the |

three years, our chief executive officer receivedus payments equal to 96%, 135% and 102% of trgels for 2011, 2012 and 2013,
respectively.

2013 Performance Resultsn February 2014, the Compensation Committeeere®d management’s assessment of the Company’s
performance as compared to the targets establfsh@®13 with respect to each of our senior officthe Committee determined that the

aggregate earned performance for these perfornabjeetives and targets was 102.0% for Messrs. Eagt)g, Goff and Cole and 107.1% for
Ms. Puckett, as described further below.

During 2013, we achieved the financial results dbed below which, based on the financial objecpagout scale described below,
resulted in the following earned performance Idaekach financial objective:

» consolidated operating cash flow of $7.432 billiaich exceeded its target of $7.345 billion, tireesulting in earned
performance of 115.2% of the target level for eaamed executiv

» consolidated strategic revenue of $8.729 billiohicl was slightly under its target of $8.790 bifljghereby resulting in earned
performance of 90.1% of the target level for eaamed executiv

* Business and Consumer segment revenue of $5.28# bihich was slightly under its target of $5.26i0ion, thereby resulting in
earned performance of 98.1% of the target leveMsr Pucket

Financial Objective Payout Sce

Consolidate Consolidate Business
Unit Percentage
Operating Strategic Strategic of Earned
Performance Leve Cash Flow Revenue Revenue Performanc
Maximum > > >
105.0% 103.5% 103.5% 200%
Target 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100%
Threshold 95.0% 96.5% 96.5% 50%
Below Thresholc < 95.0% < 96.5% < 96.5% 0%
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With respect to the 20% of 2013 annual bonuseibatable to “strategic initiatives,” the Committesviewed with management in early
2014 the degree to which certain specific quantgagoals or benchmarks were met, as well as quigkt assessments of each senior officer's
performance. Based on these assessments, the Gemdetermined that earned performance for thestegic objectives was 87.0% for
Messrs. Post, Ewing, Goff and Cole and 104.4% fer Ruckett, based on the following results:

» we achieved growth goals for IPTV by initiatingsee in several new markets and met almost allusftarget goals for new
subscriber:

e we increased our data penetration rate, increasdrevenues and gained efficiencies by integratimge internal operations, but
did not meet all of our target goals for new custcs

» we exceeded our target goal of installations cdifitptic cable:

» we rolled out four multi-year projects to simplidyir network to reduce costs and improve our opmratiof which two are ahead of
schedule and two are slightly behind schedule witigation plans put into plac

« although we made progress towards increasing thebooation between our hosting and business setgynee fell short of
achieving our goals regarding increasing revenadsraproving our managed hosting and cloud platfc

Committee Discretion As noted above, we exceeded our target for oR(m)pobjectives which set the maximum 2013 bonpsgsble
to each of our senior officers. Although the Contedthad the discretion, subject to certain limidither increase or decrease the bonus
amounts determined on the basis of actual perfocmaarned for financial and strategic initiativeytas and goals, the Committee elected t
neither for our 2013 annual incentive bonus paysiemtany our named executive officers.

Recent ActionsThe Committee has not made any changes to the ltarget percentages for our executive officersesiay 2013;
however, the increase to Mr. Goff's base salaffyeébruary 2014 yielded an increase to his bonugtaigjlar amount.

Non-Executive BonusesCompared to our senior officers, the remaindexusfemployees have more diverse and individualized
performance goals. When an officer or manager ésgonsibility for a particular business unit, diesor region, the performance goals are
typically heavily weighted toward the operationatjermance of those units or areas. Other indiv&lo®y receive individual performance
goals. Depending on the level of seniority, theshviduals may also receive a portion of their bdbased on overall corporate performance.
As discussed below under the heading “— Our Comgiérs Decision-Making Process,” the CEO approvespirformance goals of
substantially all of the non-senior officers unttex general supervision of the Compensation Coramitt

Long-Term Equity Incentive Compensation

General. Our shareholder-approved long-term incentive aamgption programs authorize the Compensation Cdeertid grant stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock units @arious other stock-based incentives to keygrersl. We believe stock incentive awards
(i) encourage key personnel to focus on sustainahpterm performance, (ii) strengthen the relalip between compensation and growth ir
the market price of the Common Shares and therédny management’s financial interests with thosé¢hefshareholders and (iii) help attract
and retain talented personnel. In March 2014, vaatgd long-term equity incentive compensation awéochpproximately 2%, of our
employees.

2013 Executive GrantsDuring 2013, the Committee granted to our nanfédess the following number of (i) restricted skarthat will
vest over a three-year period principally in exdefor continued service (“time-vested restrictedrses”), (ii) performance-based restricted
shares that will vest in 2016 principally basedon
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relative total shareholder return (the “TSR perfante-based restricted shares”) and (iii) perforradrased restricted shares that will vest in
2016 principally based on our attainment of absotatzenue targets over the three year performagriedy(the “absolute revenue performance
based restricted shares”):

Performanc-Based Restricted Shar

No. of
- Performance-  Performance-
Based Based
No. of Restricted Restricted Total Fair
Named Officel Shares Fair Value() Share«?) Share:(?) Fair Value (1) Value @)
Glen F. Post, IlI 88,14t  $3,300,00! 44,07: 44,07 $3,300,000 $6,600,00!
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
Karen A. Puckett 30,50( 1,141,87! 15,25: 15,25( 1,141,87! 2,283,75!
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Off
R. Stewart Ewing, Jr. 20,83 780,00( 10,41¢ 10,417 780,00( 1,560,00!
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officada
Assistant Secretai
Stacey W. Goff 16,02¢ 600,00( 8,01« 8,01: 600,00( 1,200,00!
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary
David D. Cole 15,22 570,00( 7,61: 7,612 570,00( 1,140,00!
Executive Vice President — Controller and Operatis
Support

(1) For purposes of this table, we determine bintletvested and performance-based restricted shgréiwiding the total fair value granted
to the executive by the volume-weighted averagsitpprice of our Common Shares over a 15-tradmgpkriod ending five trading
days prior to the grant date. In the Summary Corsgigon Table, however, our 2013 grants of timeeaséstricted stock are valued
based on the closing stock price of our Commoné&&han the day of grant, and our 2013 grants obpadncebased restricted shares
valued as of the grant date based on probable metsoin each case in accordance with SEC discloaleg. See note 1 to the Summary
Compensation Table for more informatis

(2) Based on the number of restricted shares giant2013. As discussed further below, the actuahimer of shares that vests in the future
may be lower or highe

Linkage of Performance Objectives with our Competiesa Philosophy. We believe basing a portion of our executiveagkterm
compensation on our stock performance againstnalursiry peers is a powerful tool to incentivize executives’ performance. We further
believe that meeting our annual revenue targedstisal to our long-term company strategy andidhieved consistently and at superior levels
should maintain or increase shareholder value.é&fber in 2013, we redesigned our performance-beestdcted shares to further strengthen
the linkage between our performance objectives mithmost important long-term goals by implementing following design changes:

* Relative Total Shareholder Retuln 2013, the Committee, after discussions witltimpensation consultant and management,
changed the peer group benchmark used to measutetalushareholder return performance from the S&B index to a self-
selected 30-company industry peer group. See fudiseussion under “— Use of ‘Benchmarking’ DataRerformance
Benchmarking”
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An overview of our TSR performance-based restristeares granted in 2013 is outlined below.
» Performance Benchma: Our percentile rank versus the ab-described 3-company industry peer groi

» Performance Peric: January 1, 2013 through December 31, Z

» Performance VestingThe ultimate number of TSR performance-basedicéstl shares that vest will be based on our total
shareholder return during the above-described pednce period relative to the total shareholderrretf the 30-company peer
group over the same period, as illustrated in aletbelow; provided, however, that none of our eRormance-based restricted
shares will vest unless we attain a 6% operatist aw annual return on average assets duringéhi@rmance period (the “Cash

Flow Targe”):
Relative Total Shareholder Rett

Payout as % «

Target

Performance Leve Compan’s Percentile Rar Award (1)
Maximum > 75t Percentil 200%
Target 50t Percentil 100%
Threshold 25t Percentil 50%
Below Thresholc < 25t Percentil 0%

(1) Linear interpolation is used when our relafi@&R performance is between the threshold, targebhaaximum amounts to determine the
corresponding percentage of target award ea

» Absolute Revenue Targln 2013, the Committee introduced a new metric thgsancipally upon the attainment of absolute rex
targets over a three-year performance period. “Albssevenue” is defined as the sum of our conatdid legacy and strategic
revenue, in each case defined in the same mannexpeeed such amounts in our Annual Report on FIBAK for the year ended
December 31, 2012 filed with the SE

An overview of our absolute revenue performancestasstricted shares granted in 2013 is outlindaiibe

» Performance Benchmarkrhe sum of an absolute revenue target separatelylishied by the Subcommittee during the first tprar
of the years 2013, 2014, and 2(

e Performance Peric: January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2

» Performance VestingThe ultimate number of our absolute revenue perémce-based restricted shares that vest will becban
our achievement of the aggregate three-year alesmuvenue target, as illustrated in the table bepravided, however, none of our
absolute revenue performa-based restricted shares will vest unless we att@itCash Flow Targe

Absolute Revenu

Payout as % «

Companys
Perforgnanc Target
Performance Leve o _Award®@
Maximum >
103.5% 200%
Target 100.0% 100%
Threshold 96.5% 50%
Below Thresholc < 96.5% 0%

(1) Sum of absolute revenue actually attainedHenftears 2013, 2014 and 2015 divided by the suabsblute revenue target separately

established for each of the years 2013, 2014, 8a8
(2) Linear interpolation is used when our absotetenue performance is between the threshold, ttargemaximum amounts to determine

the corresponding percentage of target award ea
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For additional information on the above-describeghts, see “Executive Compensation — Incentive Gamsgtion and Other Awards.”

Types of Awards We strive to pay equity compensation in formg traate appropriate incentives to optimize pergéomoe at reasonable
cost, that minimize enterprise risk, that alignititerests of our officers and shareholders, tbstiefr our long-term financial and strategic
objectives and that are competitive with incentigéfered by other companies. Since 2008, the Cotamhas elected to issue all of our long-
term equity compensation grants in the form ofrietetd stock for a variety of reasons, including:

» the Committe’s recognition of the prevalent use of restricteglsby our peer:
» the Committe’s desire to minimize the dilution associated with @wards, an
» the retentive value of restricted stock under wvagynarket conditions

In an effort to increase the link between our penfance and executive compensation, since 2010dhan@ttee has issued at least hal
the value of our senior officers’ long-term awaishe form of performance-based restricted stadty the other half being in the form of
time-vested restricted stock. As described furttimve, the number of performance-based restrittacks that ultimately vest is dependent
solely upon our relative total shareholder retdanghe awards made between 2010 and 2012, arependlent upon both our relative total
shareholder returns and our attainment of certasolate performance targets for awards made in.2013

For additional information on the vesting and otteems of our equity awards (including certain vaary limits on the number of
performance-based restricted shares that vest total shareholder return over the performancegas negative and our intent to comply
with Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Coditf wespect to certain aspects our executive cosgiam, see “Executive Compensation —
Incentive Compensation and Other Awards.”

Dividends. Since 2011, all dividends paid with respect sinieted stock awards have been payable to thpiemtionly upon the vesting
of the award.

Recent ActionsAt its February 2014 meeting, the Committee graetgpaity awards to our senior officers on terms iargmounts
substantially similar to the awards granted to the@013. The Committee did, however, (i) incretmetargeted aggregate grant date fair v
of Mr. Post’s and Mr. Goff's awards from $6,600,00057,500,000 and from $1,200,000 to $1,260,08€pectively, and (ii) increased the
portion of each senior officer's equity awards sebjo performance conditions from 50% in 2013@&66n 2014.

Qwest Retention Grants

As contemplated under our merger agreement withawe implemented in mid-2010 a retention progdmsigned to ensure that over
200 of our top officers and managers had adeqona@ntives to remain employed with us through cotigiieof the Qwest acquisition and the
critical period of integration thereafter. All dfe grant date value of the CEO’s awards undeplhis and three-quarters of the grant date valu
of all other executives’ awards thereunder haven [peeviously reported as 2010 compensation in dor proxy statements. The remaining
one-quarter of the grant date value of these awzagable to the other executives (in the form dédded cash awards) is reported in equal
installments for 2011 and 2012 in the Summary Caragtion Table appearing below.

Other Benefits

As a final component of executive compensationpvexzide a broad array of benefits designed to lepatitive, in the aggregate, with
similar benefits provided by our peers. We sumnegttiese additional benefits below.

Retirement Plans We maintain one or more traditional qualifiedidel benefit retirement plans for most of our ergpls who meet
certain eligibility requirements, plus one or maitional qualified defined
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contribution 401(k) plans for a similar group ofr@mployees. With respect to these qualified plamsmaintain nonqualified plans that permit
our officers to receive or defer supplemental an@imexcess of federally-imposed caps that limét amount of benefits highly-compensated
employees are entitled to receive under qualifiadg Additional information regarding our retirem@lans is provided in the tables and
accompanying discussion included below under tlaeling “Executive Compensation.”

Change of Control ArrangementsWe have agreed to provide cash and other sevelmmefits to each of our executive officers who is
terminated under certain specified circumstancheviing a change of control of CenturyLink. If tggred, benefits under these change of
control agreements include payment of (i) a lumm sash severance payment equal to a multiple adffieer's annual cash compensation,
(ii) the officer’'s annual bonus, based on actuafggeiance and the portion of the year served, ¢@tain continued welfare benefits for a
limited period, and (iv) the value or benefit ofydangterm equity incentive compensation, if and to thieet that the exercisability, vesting
payment thereof is accelerated or otherwise enltmgen a change of control pursuant to the ternsgfapplicable long-term equity
incentive compensation plan or agreement.

Under these agreements, change of control bereéitpayable to our executive officers if withineatain specified period following a
change in control (referred to as the “protectetioplé) the officer is terminated without cause esigns with “good reason,” which is defined
to include a diminution of responsibilities, anigasent of inappropriate duties, and a transfehefofficer exceeding 50 miles. We have filed
with the SEC copies of our change of control agesesh

The table below shows (i) the length of the “prégeoperiod” afforded to officers following a changfecontrol and (ii) the multiple of
salary and bonus payment and years of welfare hemnefwhich officers will be entitled if change odntrol benefits become payable under ou
agreements and related policies:

Multiple of Years of

Protected Annual Cash Welfare

Period Compensatic Benefits

CEO 2 year: 3 time: 3 year:
Other Executive 1.5 year 2 time 2 year:
Other Officers 1yea 1 time 1yea

Effective January 1, 2011, we restructured thesagh of control agreements to reduce the benefitatpe thereunder, to eliminate tax
“gross-up” provisions, to eliminate “modified siedrigger” provisions, and to narrow the rightsesécutives to make claims for severance
benefits.

For more information on change of control arrangetsiapplicable to our executives, including ouiorale for providing these benefits,
see “Executive Compensation — Potential Terminaflagments — Payments Made Upon a Change of Cdrfi@l.information on change of
control severance benefits payable to our junificefs and managers, see “— Severance Benefits'eiditely below.

Severance Benefitsin August 2012, the Compensation Committee adbateexecutive severance plan that provides sevetzenefits
to our senior officers and other specified key emgpés. The plan provides cash severance paymamstegwo years of total targeted cash
compensation (defined as salary plus the targetexliat of annual incentive bonus) for our CEO or pear of total targeted cash
compensation for any other senior officer, payablely if the senior officer is involuntarily termated by us without cause in the absence of
change of control. Payments to senior officers teated in connection with a change of control aeasately governed by the change of
control arrangements discussed immediately aboslenthe heading “— Change of Control Arrangements.”

Under our executive severance plan, subject taiceconditions and exclusions, more junior officersnanagers receive certain
specified cash payments and other benefits if &reyeither (i) involuntarily terminated
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without cause in the absence of a change of coatr() involuntarily terminated without cause msign with good reason in connection wit
change of control. Our full-time namion employees not covered by our executive segerplan may, subject to certain conditions, béled
to certain specified cash severance in connectitinagrtain qualifying terminations.

In 2012, we adopted a policy requiring us to sdelcesholder approval of any future senior execuserverance agreements providing for
cash payments, perquisites and accelerated healblfare benefits with a value greater than 2i8f$ the sum of the executive’s base salary
plus target bonus.

Perquisites. Officers are entitled to be reimbursed for thstad an annual physical examination, plus relatadel expenses.

Our aircraft usage policy permits the CEO to useaigeraft for personal travel without reimbursing, and permits each other executive
officer to use our aircraft for up to $10,000 pernyin personal travel without reimbursing us.lIrsach cases, personal travel is permitted onl
if aircraft is available and not needed for supdirsg business purposes. For purposes of valuingepatting the use of our aircraft, we
determine the incremental cost of aircraft usagarohourly basis, calculated in accordance witHiegiple guidelines of the SEC. The
incremental cost of this usage, which may be sulisity different than the cost as determined uralarnative calculation methodologies, is
reported in the Summary Compensation Table appgagiow. Each year the Compensation Committeevese report on the personal ust
aircraft by senior management, and determines whethnot to alter our aircraft usage policy. Imeection with its recent election to retain
this policy, the Committee determined that the golivas (i) providing valuable and cost-effectivaéfits to our executives residing in a small
city with limited commercial airline service, (Bnabling our executives to travel in a manner Webelieve is more expeditious than
commercial airline service, and (iii) being implemted responsibly by the executives.

On behalf of our executive officers, we pay premsumn their respective supplemental life insurargeies in amounts sufficient to
provide the same death benefits available undelggessor agreements, and permit each executiverofti purchase additional pastiremen
coverage at their cost.

Most years, we organize one of our regular boardtimgs and related committee meetings as a “bedrdat” scheduled over a long
weekend. These retreats are typically held in aa ahere we conduct operations, and include siies\that enable our directors and senior
officers to meet with local personnel. The spousasur directors and executive officers are invitedttend these retreats, and we typically
schedule recreational activities for those whoadole and willing to participate.

For more information on the items under this hegdé®e the Summary Compensation Table appeariog/bel

Other Employee BenefitsWe maintain a stock purchase plan that enablesf@ioers and most of our other employees to paseh
Common Shares on attractive terms. We also maintabain broad-based employee welfare benefit glamghich the executive officers are
generally permitted to participate on terms thateither substantially similar to those provide@ltather participants or which provide our
executives with enhanced benefits upon their deathsability. We also maintain a supplemental kil plan designed to ensure disability
payments to our officers in the event paymentsiasailable from our disability insurer.

Our Compensation Decision-Making Process

Role of Compensation Committeérhe Compensation Committee of our Board estaddisbvaluates and monitors our executive
compensation programs, subject to the Board's gyersSpecifically, the Committee (or a subcomneitteereof) approves the compensation
payable to each executive officer, as well as ahgrasenior officer.
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As described further below, the Compensation Coterig compensation decision-making process reqaimseful balancing of a wide
range of factors, including:

» the group and individual performance and respolits#isi of our executives

» the competitive compensation practices of peer congs,

» the performance of our Company in relation to cegns and our internal goa
« the financial impact and risk characteristics of compensation programs, a
e our strategic and financial imperativ:

The Compensation Committee also establishes, imgrlesnadministers and monitors our director cashesuity compensation
programs. For more information, see “Director Congadion.”

Role of Compensation ConsultantsThe Committee engages the services of a compensainsultant to assist in the design and review
of executive compensation programs, to determinetingr the Committee’s philosophy and practiceseasonable and compatible with
prevailing practices, and to provide guidance at# compensation levels based on industry tremdspractices.

The Committee has used Hay Group as its compensatitsultant since September 2010. Throughout 2@pBesentatives of Hay
Group actively participated in the design and depelent of our executive compensation programs asgtetided all of the Committee’s
meetings. Hay Group provides no other servicesgédtompany, and, to our knowledge, has no priaticeiship with any of our named
executive officers. As required by SEC rules anavN@rk Stock Exchange listing standards, the Conmaihas assessed the independence c
Hay Group and concluded that its work has not cags®y conflicts of interest.

Review ProcessEach year, the Committee and its compensatiosuttamt use benchmarking data to determine mediaid of salary,
annual bonuses and equity compensation paid taiéxes comparable to ours. In determining how miwctompensate each officer, the
Committee also extensively reviews a wide rangetloér factors, typically including:

» the office’s individual performance in terms of both resuttd Aehaviors, industry experience and particulaotskills,

» the anticipated degree of difficulty of replacitg tofficer with someone of comparable experienakskill,

» the role the officer plays in maintaining a cohesiwanagement team and improving the performanothefs,

» the role the officer may have played in any re@xtitaordinary corporate achievemei

» the office’s pay and performance relative to other offices employees

» the office’s prior compensation in recent years and, to aduinilegree, his or her accumulated wealth undepmmgrams, an
» the recent and loi-term performance of CenturyLin

In assessing our performance, we typically review karious measures of our financial performantsedo amounts previously
projected by us or market participants, as wethasresults of peer telecommunications companiesalsdb assess operational benchmarks,
such as our access line losses or customer grow#iation to our competitors.

Each year, we compile lists of compensation dd#ding to each of our executives. These “tally séfeimclude the executive’s salary,
annual cash incentive award, equity-based compensgerquisites, pension
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benefit accruals and other compensation. Thesedhdets also contain performance highlights fehexd our executives. The Compensation
Committee uses these tally sheets to (i) reviewdts annual compensation of the executive officéir) assess the executive officers’
performance and (iii) assure that the Committeeahe@mprehensive understanding of all elementsioEompensation programs.

Annual Bonus Procedures With the assistance of management and its comaiensconsultant, the Compensation Committee smtsd
targets annually, and, under special circumstamaess frequently than annually. For several yeies Committee has administered our annue
bonus program substantially in the manner outlagalve under “ — Annual Incentive Bonuses,” altho@gi3 was the first year that we used
the two-step assessment process described in satibrs The Committee is responsible for approyorgeach year (i) the performance
objectives, (ii) the “minimum,” “target” and “maxiom” threshold levels of performance, (iii) the wielipg of the performance objectives,

(iv) the amount of bonus payable if the target l@fgerformance is attained and (v) the finallyedenined amount of the bonus payments.

Upon completion of the fiscal year, if necessary, actual operating results are adjusted in acomelavith the Committee’s long-
standing guidelines that are designed to elimitteeeffects of extraordinary or non-recurring tet®ns that were not known, anticipated or
guantifiable on the date the performance goals wstablished. The Committee intends to use these gaidelines to adjust as necessary, ou
actual revenues with respect to the absolute re/petformance-based restricted shares awardedlB ZBen the specific bonus payments ar
calculated for that fiscal year using the formwdasl other criteria approved the prior year by toen@ittee. After our Internal Audit
Department has reviewed these determinations dodlatons, they are provided in writing to the Quittee for its review and approval.

Under our annual bonus programs, the Committeepagythe annual bonuses in cash or stock. Since, 20@@ommittee has paid these
bonuses entirely in cash, principally to diversifyr compensation mix and prevent us from overainitj equity grants.

Annual Equity Grant Procedures As explained further above, annual grants oflsamards to executives are typically made durireg th
first quarter after we publicly release our earsirgjthough in some years, such as 2013, the Caeawmitay defer grants for a variety of
reasons, including to request additional informatio conduct further reviews of management’s pemntorce. Grants of stock awards to newly-
hired executive officers who are eligible to reeeiliem are made at the next regularly schedulech@bee meeting following their hire date.
We award our executives with a greater proportioeir total compensation in the form of equitggits compared to more junior officers.

Role of CEO and Management in Compensation Decisior\lthough the Compensation Committee is respoadit all executive
compensation decisions, each year it receives H@®@ €recommendations, particularly with respeceaior officers’ salaries. The Committee,
in particular, values the CEO'’s input and judgmegiarding:

« the relative strengths and weaknesses of the stimor officers and their recent performance im&eof both results and behavic
» the role these senior officers play in achieving @perational and strategic goe

» the potential of these senior officers to assurfferéint, additional or greater responsibilitieghe future,

» internal equity issues that could impact cohedieamwork or the overall viability of the executigeup, anc

» the relative criticality of retaining each senidfiaer, as well as such senior officer’s vulnerapito job solicitations from
competitors

The Committee considers the CEO’s recommendatismsa of the many factors it uses to establish emsgtion levels for each
executive.
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The CEO and the executive management team, in ltatiso with the Compensation Committee’s compensatonsultant, recommend
to the Compensation Committee business goals tsée in establishing incentive compensation perdmer targets for our senior officers. In
addition, our Executive Vice President, Human Reses; works closely with the Committee and its cengation consultant to ensure that the
Committee is provided with appropriate informattordischarge its responsibilities.

The CEO, in consultation with the executive managm@nteam, is responsible for approval of annuatitive targets and business goals
for our non-senior officers. Annual incentive threkls, targets, and maximum performance targetedonon-senior officers are the same as
the Committee approves for our senior officers #redgoals closely mirror those approved by the Catambut may have variations for
weightings, inclusion or exclusion of certain goaltiich may or may not be applicable to a particblasiness unit, group or individual. The
CEO is also responsible for approving any annuargancreases, typically referred to as merit @ages, earned annual bonus payout
percentages, and total bonus payments for our epiwoisofficers, as well as individual compensatievels for all of our vice presidents. The
CEO also approves all equity compensation awarttsetmon-senior officers, acting under authoritiedated by the Compensation Committee
in accordance with our shareholder approved long-tecentive plans. The Committee oversees theseepses and receives an annual report
from the CEO.

Risk AssessmentAs part of its duties, the Compensation Commistegesses risks arising out of our employee corafiengolicies an
practices. Based on its most recent assessmer@pothenittee does not believe that the risks arifiog our compensation policies and
practices are reasonably likely to materially adebr affect us. In reaching this determination,hage taken into account the risk exposures o
our operations and the following design elementsusfcompensation programs and policies:

» our balance of annual and lc-term compensation elements at the executive andgeament levels

» our use of a diverse mix of performance metrics th@ate incentives for management to attain gealkaligned with the
shareholde’ interests

» the multi-year vesting of equity awards, which potes focus on our long-term performance and meig#te risk of undue focus
on our sho-term results

» “clawbacl’ policies and award caps that provide safeguardsstgaappropriate behavior, a

» bonus arrangements that generally permit eitheCtiramittee (for compensation payable to senioceff) or senior management
(for compensation payable to other key employaes)ercise “negative discretion” to reduce the amofi certain incentive
awards.

We believe these features, as well as the stocleship requirements for our executive officersultei;g a compensation program that
aligns our executives’ interests with those of shareholders and does not promote excessive Kgkgtan the part of our executives or other
employees.

Forfeiture of Prior Compensation

For over 10 years, all recipients of our equity pemsation grants have been required to contragtagtee to forfeit certain of their
awards (and to return to us any cash, securitiesh@r assets received by them upon the sale oh@mnShares they acquired through certain
prior equity awards) if at any time during theirg@oyment with us or within 18 months after termionatof employment they engage in activ
contrary or harmful to our interests. The Compeansa€ommittee is authorized to waive these forfeitprovisions if it determines in its sole
discretion that such action is in our best intexedte have filed with the SEC copies of our forneqfity incentive agreements containing tl
forfeiture provisions. Our 2010 Executive Offic&kort-Term Incentive Plan contains substantialtyilsir forfeiture provisions.

Our corporate governance guidelines authorize therdBto recover, or “clawback,” compensation frameaecutive officer if the Board
determines that any bonus, incentive payment, yquwrard or other compensation received by the dikecwas based on any financial or
operating result that was impacted by the execistive
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knowing or intentional fraudulent or illegal conduCertain provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Ac2@®2 would require our CEO and CFO to
reimburse us for incentive compensation paid @it profits earned following the release of finahstatements that are subsequently res
due to material noncompliance with SEC reportirguireements caused by misconduct. In addition, gions of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, whighexpected to become effective upon the completioelated rulemaking, will require
all of our current or former executive officersnake similar reimbursement payments in connectiin @ertain financial statement
restatements, irrespective of whether such exessitivere involved with the mistake that caused ¢statement.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

Under our current stock ownership guidelines, tBGs required to beneficially own CenturyLink dtaqual in market value to at least
six times his annual base salary, and all othecwtkee officers are required to beneficially ownnigyLink stock valued at least three times
their annual base salary. Each executive officertheee years to attain these targets. Under oectdr stock ownership guidelines, each
outside director must beneficially own CenturyLstkck equal in market value to five times the ahiaah retainer payable to outside
directors. Each outside director has five yeamttain this target. For any year during which aecetive or outside director does not meet his
or her ownership target, the executive or direig@xpected to hold 65% of the CenturyLink stockt e or she acquires through our equity
compensation programs, excluding shares sold taglated taxes. For additional information on dock ownership guidelines, see
“Governance Guidelines.”

Use of Employment Agreements

We have a long-standing practice of not providimplyment agreements to our officers, and nonaiofang-standing executives has
been granted an employment agreement. In connegttbrour recent mergers, however, we have assuseegral employment agreements
formerly granted by Embarg, Qwest or Savvis tofficers, and in a couple of instances have extérmdeenewed these arrangements to retai
officers critical to our future plans.

Tax Gross-ups

We eliminated the use of tax “gross-up” benefiteum executives’ change of control agreements atiddollar insurance policies in
2010, and in our outside directors’ executive ptgisprogram in early 2012. Consequently, we comtittuprovide these tax benefits only to a
limited number of our officers under legacy empl@magreements that are expected to lapse oveettieouple of years. We do not inten
provide tax gross-up benefits in any new compeosgirograms.

Anti-Hedging and Anti-Pledging Policies
Under our insider trading policy, our employees dindctors may not:
» purchase or sell sh-term options with respect to CenturyLink sha
* engage ir‘short sale” of CenturyLink shares, ¢

* engage in hedging transactions involving Centurklshares which allow employees to fix the valu¢heir CenturyLink
shareholdings without all the risks of ownershigause them to no longer have the same interestgjectives as our other
shareholders

In addition, under our insider trading policy, aanior officers and directors are prohibited frooiding our securities in a margin
account or otherwise pledging our securities alathl.

We believe that all of our senior officers and diogs are currently in compliance with our anti-gied) and anti-pledging policies.
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Deductibility of Executive Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code (thed®C) limits the amount of compensation paid to 6&O and our other three most
highly compensated executive officers, other than@FO, that may be deducted by us for federalriretax purposes in any fiscal year to
$1,000,000. “Performance-based” compensation tmmbleen approved by our shareholders and othesafiséies the performance-based
requirements under Section 162(m) of the Code tisuloject to the Code’s $1,000,000 deduction likvhile the Compensation Committee
believes that it is important for compensation gaiduch covered employees to be tax deductibleruth@ Code, the Compensation Commi
also recognizes the need to retain flexibility tak& compensation decisions that may not meet dmglatds of Section 162(m) when necessar
to enable us to continue to attract, retain, reveardi motivate highly-qualified executives. Secti@2(m) is highly technical and complex, so
that even when we seek favorable tax treatmen¢timeler, we cannot assure you that our tax posaithprevail.

Impact of FASB ASC Topic 718

The accounting standards applicable to the varfiauss of long-term incentive plans under Finangiatounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topil8 (formerly FASB Statement 123R) constitute farmeor that we consider in the
design of long-term equity incentive programs. Wanitor FASB ASC Topic 718 expense to ensure thatrikéasonable, but expense will not
be the most important factor in making decisionsudtour long-term incentive plans.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and disdwsth management the report included above utigeneading “Compensation
Discussion and AnalysisBased on this review and discussion, the Compems&bmmittee recommended to the Board that the @asgtior
Discussion and Analysis report be included in fhisxy statement and incorporated into our Annugldreon Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

Submitted by the Compensation Committee of thedBafdDirectors.

Laurie A. Siegel (Chair Virginia Boulet
Fred R. Nichols William A. Owen:
Harvey P. Perry

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Overview

The following table sets forth certain informatimgarding the compensation of (i) our principal@xere and financial officers and
(ii) each of our three most highly compensated ettee officers other than our principal executiveldinancial officers. Following this table
additional information regarding incentive compditsg pension benefits, deferred compensation atelpial termination payments pertain
to the named officers. For additional informatianthe compensation summarized below and other ensde “Compensation Discussion anc
Analysis.”
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Summary Compensation Table

Restricted Non-Equity Change in

Name and Principal Stock Incentive Plan Pension All Other

Position Year Salary Awards ) Compensation(?) Value 3 Compensation 4) Total

Glen F. Post, Il 201: $1,100,000 $6,086,441 $ 1,683,000 $ — 3 123,80: $8,993,24
Chief Executive Officer 2012 1,047,60! 5,157,04! 1,767,83 649,15t 103,39: 8,725,041
and President 2011 1,020,80! 4,706,73! 1,224,96 383,28: 317,66 7,653,44!

Karen A. Pucket 201: 725,00( 2,106,06. 854,12: — 53,84¢ 3,739,02!
Executive Vice President 201z 684,56 2,250,33; 1,015,83 411,82: 42,83¢ 4,405,39
gr;fd Chief Operating 2011 663,87.  2,053,85: 772,02. 210,95 126,34:  3,827,04

icer

R. Stewart Ewing, Ji 201z 650,00( 1,438,62. 729,30( — 55,76¢ 2,873,69:
Executive Vice President, 2012 616,10! 1,744,03 914,69t 415,85! 38,59¢ 3,729,28i
Chief Financial Officer and 2011 598,76« 1,591,73 696,30t 259,68! 178,77¢ 3,325,26!
Assistant Secretal

Stacey W. Goff 201: 500,00( 1,106,63. 561,00( — 37,527 2,205,15!
Executive Vice President, 450,09¢ 526,33t 220,26 15,96¢
General Counsel and 2012 1,293,961 2,506,62!
Secretary

David D. Cole 201z 475,00( 1,051,28: 436,05( — 31,04¢ 1,993,38!
Executive Vice President — 201z 448,79( 1,293,96! 528,52! 359,47¢ 38,01: 2,668,77.
(Siontroller and Operations 2011 435,38  1,180,95. 406,38 202,59 86,80¢ 2,312,121

uppor

1)

(2)

(3)

The amounts shown in this column reflect thevalue of awards of restricted stock made inyea€13, 2012, and 2011 in connection
with our program of making annual long-term inceattompensation grants. The fair value of the as/prdsented in the table above ha
been determined in accordance with FASB ASC Tofi&: For purposes of this table, in accordance $E disclosure rules we
determined the fair value of shares

» time-vested restricted stock using the closingitggrice of our Common Shares on the day of gf@ntin 2012, the business day
immediately preceding the date of grant, which wé&®liday), except that in 2011 we determined tlee of time-vested restricted
shares using a -trading day volum-weighted average closing price of our Common Sk

» relative performance-based restricted stock (asel@telow) granted during each year indicatedf élseogrant date based on
probable outcomes using Monte Carlo simulationd;

» absolute performance-based restricted stock (asetEbelow) granted during 2013 based on probaltieomes (subject to future
adjustments based upon changes in the closingigqulice of our Common Shares at the end of egudrtiag period)

The aggregate value of the restricted stock awgraisted to these named executives in 2013, bas#tearant date closing trading price
of our Common Shares and assuming maximum paycdisafr her performance-based restricted sharegldvie as follows: Mr. Post,
$9,897,877, Ms. Puckett, $3,424,920, Mr. Ewing3$92,525, Mr. Goff, $1,799,634, and Mr. Cole, $1,681%. See Note 9 titled “Share-
based Compensation” of the notes to our auditexh@iiml statements included Appendix Bfor an explanation of material assumptions
that we used to calculate the fair value of thégeksawards.

The amounts shown in this column reflect (§fc@ayments made under our annual incentive bdaus for actual performance in the
respective years (which are described further ufidemcentive Compensation and Other Awards — 28%&rds”) and (ii) the portion
of Ms. Puckett’s, Mr. Ewing’s, Mr. Goff's and Mr.dlx’s August 2010 deferred cash award that wasipaido equal installments during
2011 and 2012 (which are described further u Compensation Discussion and Analy— Qwest Retention Grar”).

Reflects the net change during each of thesyestected in the present value of the named dxexsil accumulated benefits under the
defined benefit plans discussed under “— PensiareBs.” Each of our named executives experienaghtive changes in the value of
their pensions in 2013 (primarily due to increasethe discount rates used to value pension ligdsl. The present value of the
accumulatec
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benefits under these pension plans decreased d20i®)by $125,605 for Mr. Post, $195,547 for Mschadt, $91,118 for Mr. Ewing,
$118,903 for Mr. Goff and $158,184 for Mr. Cole.GHuiles dictate that such decreases be treate@@€hange in Pension Value for
purposes of calculating total compensat

(4) The amounts shown in this column are comprafed reimbursements for the cost of an annualgitgl examination, (i) personal use of
our aircraft, (iii) contributions or other allocatis to our defined contribution plans and (iv) plagment of premiums on life insurance
policies, in each case for and on behalf of theathaxecutives as follow

Life
Insuranct

Physica  Aircraft  Contribution:  Premium

Name Year Exam Use to Plans Paid Total
Mr. Post 201 $ 4,02¢ $17,92( $ 101,85 $ —  $123,80:
2012 2,62( 15,34: 85,43( — 103,39:
2011 3,201 20,84¢ 102,02: 191,59¢ 317,66
Ms. Pucket 201z — — 53,84¢ — 53,84¢
201z — — 42,83¢ — 42,83¢
2011 3,46¢ — 51,57: 71,30: 126,34.
Mr. Ewing 201: — 7,40( 48,36¢ — 55,76¢
2012 — — 38,59t — 38,59¢
2011 — — 47,43¢ 131,342 178,77¢
Mr. Goff 201z — 9,51( 28,01° — 37,52:
201z — 1,194 14,77 — 15,96
Mr. Cole 201< — — 31,04¢ — 31,04¢
2012 6,571 6,27 25,16: — 38,01:
2011 — — 29,98: 56,82¢ 86,80¢

In accordance with applicable SEC and accountifesruve have not reflected the accrual or paymedividends relating to unvested
restricted stock as compensation in the Summaryp@osation Table. In addition, the amounts showhénSummary Compensation Table do
not reflect any benefits associated with particigain recreational activities scheduled duringrdo@treats. For additional information, see
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Other Bignef Perquisites.”

Incentive Compensation and Other Awards
2013 Awards The table and discussion below summarize:

. the range of potential cash payouts under sharm-tecentive bonus awards that were granted to ranted officer on
March 14, 2013 with respect to performance duri®dg3 anc

. grants of long-term compensation awarded to eantedafficer on May 23, 2013, consisting of (i) thember of shares of
time-vested restricted stock awarded, (ii) the eaofjpotential share payouts under relative peréome-based restricted
stock awards and (iii) the range of potential shpgouts under absolute performance-based restistoek awards, which
for purposes of the table below are referred tthagime-vested awards, the relative performanca@dsvand the absolute
performance awards, respective
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Name
Glen F. Post, Il

Karen A. Pucket

R. Stewart Ewing, J

Stacey W. Gof

David D. Cole

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

All other
Range of Payouts Under 2013 N¢- Estimated Future Share Payouts Unde Grant
Equity Incentive Plan Awards (@) Equity Incentive Plan Awards () Stock Date
Awards: Fair
Unvestec Value
of Stock
Type of Award Threshold Target Maximum Threshold Target Maximum Shares Awards
and Grant Date () ($) $) $) (#) #) #) #H@ $)®
Annual Bonus $ 825,000 $1,650,000 $3,300,00! — — = — % =
Time-Vested Awarc — — — — — — 88,14 3,098,29
Relative Performance Awal — — — 22,037 44,07 88,14¢ — 1,584,42.
Absolute Performance Awe — — — 22,037 44,07 88,14¢ — 1,403,72!
Annual Bonus 398,75( 797,50( 1,595,501 — — — — —
Time-Vested Awarc — — — — — — 30,50( 1,072,07!
Relative Performance Awal — — — 7,62 15,25: 30,50: — 548,27:
Absolute Performance Awe — — — 7,62 15,25( 30,50( — 485,71:
Annual Bonus 357,50( 715,00( 1,430,00! — — — — —
Time-Vested Awarc — — — — — — 20,83 732,31}
Relative Performance Awal — — — 5,20¢ 10,41¢ 20,83¢ — 374,52
Absolute Performance Awe — — — 5,20¢ 10,417 20,83 — 331,78:
Annual Bonus 275,00( 550,00( 1,100,001 — — — — —
Time-Vested Awarc — — — — — — 16,02¢ 563,31«
Relative Performance Awal — — — 4,007 8,01« 16,02¢ — 288,10:
Absolute Performance Awe — — — 4,007 8,01: 16,02¢ — 255,21«
Annual Bonus 213,75( 427,50( 855,00( — — — — —
Time-Vested Awarc — — — — — — 15,22¢ 535,15¢
Relative Performance Awal — — — 3,801 7,618 15,22¢ — 273,68
Absolute Performance Awe — — — 3,80¢ 7,617 15,22« — 242,44;

(1) The timevested awards, the relative performance awardshendbsolute performance awards were all grantéddan23, 2013

(2) These columns provide information on the pa&tiionus payouts approved with respect to 201®paance. For information on the
actual amounts paid based on 2013 performanceiarisee the column of the Summary CompensatioteTabeled “Non-Equity
Incentive Plan Compensation.” As described furtiedow, the failure to meet the “threshold” levelparformance would result in no

annual bonus paymer

(3) Represents the relative performance awardsbsdlute performance awards granted on May 23, g0&ach named executive, as

described in greater detail belc
(4) Represents the tir-vested awards granted on May 23, 2013 to each nawemlitive, as described in greater detail be
(5) Calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718&immanner described in note 1 to the Summary @osgiion Table abov

Terms of 2013 Restricted Stock Award$e restricted stock issued to our executive offiae May 23, 2013 consisted of awards of:

» time-vested restricted stot

» performance-based restricted stock, the ultimayeytzof which will be based on our total shareholddurn relative to the peer
group referred to belov“relative performanc-based restricted stc”)

» performance-based restricted stock, the ultimayeytzof which will be based on our attainment af #bsolute financial goals
described below (“absolute performance-based céstristock” and, collectively with the relative figmance-based restricted
stock, the* performanc-based restricted stc”).

Vesting. For each named officer, the shares of time-vesstiicted stock awarded in 2013 will vest in thegjual installments on
May 23 of 2014, 2015 and 2016, subject to the naofiéckr’'s continued employment with us.
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For each named officer, the 2013 performance-beestdcted shares will, subject to the named offsceontinued employment, vest on
May 23, 2016, but only if we attain at least a 6pemating cash flow annual return on average aggetsCash Flow Target”) between
January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2015 (the “pedoce period”). Assuming we attain this target,abtial number of shares of relative
performance-based restricted stock and absoluferpence-based restricted stock that will vest dépend, respectively, on whether and to
what degree we attain during the performance peahedargeted levels of total shareholder retuchrenenues specified below.

In addition to the vesting described above, athefe time-vested restricted shares and perforrizassed restricted shares awarded in
2013 also vest upon the death or disability ofrthmed officer, and some or all of these sharesundegr certain circumstances vest or remain
subject to future vesting upon the retirement efritamed officer at his or her early or normal egtient age. In addition, upon certain
terminations of employment following a change afittol of the Company, the 2013 time-vested regdcthares will vest and the performance
based restricted shares will remain subject torfutsting, all as described in greater detailwalader “— Potential Termination Payments.”
Except as otherwise noted below under “— Outstanéiwards”, the vesting terms for our outstandingtnieted stock granted in earlier years
is the same as noted above.

Shares Issuable Under Performance-Based Restricakck.In the preceding “Grants of Plan-Based Awards”d@atiie number of
performance-based restricted shares listed undéetahget” column for each named executive offi@presents the number of shares actually
granted to that officer and that will vest if werfoem at the targeted performance level. Assumiegattain the Cash Flow Target specified
above, the actual number of shares of performaasesbrestricted stock that will vest will dependmmvhether our relative and absolute
performance over the performance period is legs, thgual to or more than the relative and absaértgets established by the Subcommittee ir
connection with granting these awards.

Assuming the Cash Flow Target is met, all of tHatiee performance-based restricted stock will veste perform at the “target”
performance level, which is attaining total shaftdbpreturn over the three-year performance pezipahl to the 5@ percentile of the total
shareholder return of the companies in a 30-compatystry peer group for the same three-year peBegh named executive officer will
receive a greater or lesser number of sharesativelperformance-based restricted stock deperahingur actual total shareholder return in
relation to that of the 30 peer companies, astititisd further below:

Relative Total Shareholder Return

Payout as % o

Performance Level Company's Percentile Rank Target Award
Maximum > 75t percentile 200%
Target 50t percentile 100%
Threshold 25t percentile 50%
Below Thresholc < 25thpercentile 0%

If our rank is between (i) the threshold and thgeaamounts or (ii) the target and the maximum wamtg we will prorate the number of shares
using linear interpolation. In no event, howeveitl more than 100% of the relative performance-llassstricted shares vest if our total
shareholder return for the three-year period isatieg.

Assuming the Cash Flow Target is met, all of theo#lite performance-based restricted stock will ifege attain the “target” amount of
our consolidated legacy and strategic revenuedfset! in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for theayended December 31, 2012) over the
three-year performance period. This target amofistich revenue over this three-year period willadqbe sum of (i) the amounts of targeted
legacy and strategic revenue for 2013 and 2014g&srdined by the Subcommittee in early 2013 andi 2@spectively, and (ii) the amount of
targeted legacy and strategic revenue for 201% tebermined by the Subcommittee in early 2015hEac
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named executive officer will receive a greateramskr number of shares of absolute performancetivasticted stock depending on our actua
absolute revenues over the performance perioduaséted further below:

Absolute Revenue

Company's Payout as % ol
Performance Level Performance Target Award
Maximum > 103.5% of Absolute Target 200%
Target 100.0% of Absolute Target 100%
Threshold 96.5% of Absolute Target 50%
Below Thresholc < 96.5% of Absolute Target 0%

If our absolute revenues are between (i) the tlldsdnd the target amounts or (i) the target diedmbaximum amounts, we will prorate the
number of shares using linear interpolation.

Any contingent right of a named executive offiaeréceive more than the number of shares actuediytgd are treated by us as restri
stock units under the terms of the CenturyLink 2&#tjuity Incentive Plan.

Other TermsAll dividends related to the above-described tinested and performance-based restricted sharebenihid to the holder
only upon the vesting of such shares. Unless atitfarfeited, these shares may be voted by theethexecutive officers.

All of these above-described restricted sharesagect to forfeiture if the officer competes with or engages in certain other activities
harmful to us, all as specified further in the ferof incentive agreements that we have filed Wwith$EC. See “— Potential Termination
Payments.”

For additional information about our grants of tinested restricted stock, relative performance-thasstricted stock (including the 30-
company peer group referred to above) and absp&rfermance-based restricted stock, see “CompemsBiscussion and Analysis — Long-
Term Equity Incentive Compensation.”

53



Table of Contents

Outstanding Awards The table below summarizes information on stquioms and unvested restricted stock outstanding at
December 31, 2013.

Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 2018)

Option Awards Stock Awards
Equity Incentive Plan Awards (3) All Other Stock Awards
'\élg::]t?ririeosf Market

Underlyi_ng é?(ztrlgige ) Market Unvestec Value of
Unexerciset Option Unvestec Value of Shares that

) ) Expiration Grant Unvested sf}%res Have Not

Name Options (@) Price Date Date Shares Shares 4 Vested
Glen F. Post, Il 200,00 $45.9C 2/26/201°  8/23/201! — % —  42,43¢ $1,351,68
5/31/201. 52,701 1,678,71 17,56¢ 559,57:
2/20/201: 58,84« 1,874,18  39,22¢ 1,249,44.
5/23/201.  88,14¢ 2,807,451  88,14¢ 2,807,41:
Karen A. Pucket 75,00( 45.9( 2/26/201 8/23/201! — — 12,76¢ 406,59’
5/31/201. 23,00( 732,55( 7,667 244,19:
2/20/201: 25,671 817,81: 17,11¢ 545,20¢
5/23/201:  30,50: 971,45  30,50( 971,42!
R. Stewart Ewing, Ji 20,60( 33.4C  2/17/201!  8/23/201! — — 11,51 366,72:
62,50( 35.4] 2/20/201t 5/31/201. 17,82¢ 567,72¢ 5,94: 189,25:
62,50( 45.9( 2/26/201 2/20/201. 19,90( 633,81! 13,267 422,55
5/23/201. 20,83t 663,59! 20,83 663,561
Stacey W. Gof 40,50( 45.9( 2/26/201 8/23/201( — — 7,282 231,93:
5/31/201. 13,22t 421,21¢ 4,40¢ 140,39!
2/20/201: 14,76¢ 470,26 9,84: 313,50(
5/23/201. 16,02° 510,46( 16,02¢ 510,42¢
David D. Cole 40,50( 4590 2/26/201°  8/23/201! 7,467 237,82«

5/31/201: 13,22t 421,21t 4,40¢ 140,39!
2/20/201: 14,76" 470,26 9,84: 313,50(
5/23/201.  15,22¢ 484,91¢  15,22¢ 484,91¢

(1) Allinformation on exercisability, vesting angarket value is solely as of December 31, 2013s Tdble does not reflect (i) exercises of
options, vesting of restricted stock or other clenig the equity awards since such date or (ii)additional equity grants since such d

(2) We have not granted options to executives sh¥; all of the options summarized under thisicol were exercisable as of
December 31, 201

(3) Represents performance-based restricted sgearted on May 31, 2011, February 20, 2012 and R8y2013. The table above assumes
that we will perform at “target” levels such thélterformance-based shares granted to each naxeedtese will vest fully. For
additional information on the vesting and othemgiof our most recent grant of performance-basstticted shares, see “— 2013
Awards” and“— Terms of 2013 Restricted Stock Awal”

(4) All shares listed under this column are shafdagne-vested restricted stock that generally atst rate of one-third per year during the
first three years after that grant date. For addél information on the vesting and other termewfmost recent grant of time-vested
restricted shares, s“— Terms of 2013 Restricted Stock Awa”
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2013 Exercises and Vestingrhe following table provides information on Comm®hares acquired by the named officers during 2013
connection with the exercise of options and theingf restricted stock.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

Option Awards Stock Awards

Number of
Number of Value Realizec Shares Value Realizec

Shares Acquired

Acquired on Vesting
Name on Exercise On Exercise @) on Vesting®
Glen F. Post, Il — $ — 155,23¢ $ 5,341,31
Karen A. Pucket — — 60,42¢ 2,076,65
R. Stewart Ewing, Ji — — 49,00 1,684,99
Stacey W. Gof — — 34,35! 1,180,56.
David D. Cole — — 34,531 1,187,04!

(1) Represents the vesting of (i) time-vested iestl shares granted in 2010 and (ii) performareset restricted shares granted in 2010, th
vesting of which is described “Compensation Discussion and Analy— Pay for Performanc”
(2) Based on the closing trading price of the Commoar&hon the applicable vesting d:

Pension Benefits

Amount of Benefits. The following table and discussion summarize manbkenefits payable to the named officers undesui legacy
retirement plan qualified under Internal Revenud&8ection 401(a), which permits eligible particifga(including officers) who have
completed at least five years of service to recaipension benefit upon attaining early or norratifement age, and (ii) our nonqualified
supplemental plan, which is designed to pay suppieah retirement benefits to certain officers inoamts equal to the benefits such officers
would otherwise forego due to federal limitatiomsammpensation and benefits under qualified plresrefer to these particular defined
benefit plans below as our “Qualified Plan” and tBupplemental Plan,” respectively, and as our ‘§h@mPlans,” collectively.

Number of
Present
Years of Value of Payments During
Credited Accumulated
Name Plan Name Service Benefit ) Last Fiscal Year
Glen F. Post, llI Quialified Plar 15 $1,603,03 —
Supplemental Pla 15 1,840,63. —
Karen A. Pucket Quialified Plar 14 911,65: —
Supplemental Pla 14 675,81 —
R. Stewart Ewing, Ji Qualified Plar 15 1,691,48 —
Supplemental Pla 15 757,01( —
Stacey W. Gof Qualified Plar 15 486,80t —
Supplemental Pla 15 273,49:. —
David D. Cole Qualified Plar 15 1,261,45; —
Supplemental Pla 15 344,28: —

(1) These figures represent accumulated benefibé Becember 31, 2013 based on several assumptimhgding the assumption that the
executive remains employed by us and begins reweigtirement benefits at the normal retirementa@gsb, with such accumulated
benefits being discounted from the normal retirenage to December 31, 2013 using discount rategrgetween 3.50% to 4.20%. No
adjustments have been made to reflect reductiansresl under any qualified domestic relations cgd8ee Note 8 titled “Employee
Benefite" of the notes to our audited financial statemerthiged inAppendix Efor additional information
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CenturyLink Pension Plans With limited exceptions specified in the Pendilans, we “froze” our Qualified Plan and Suppleraént
Plan as of December 31, 2010, which means thatidii@nal monthly pension benefits have accruedeusdch plans since that date (althoug!
service after that date continues to count towaedting and benefit eligibility and a limited trétienal benefit for eligible participants
continues to accrue through 2015).

Prior to this freezing of benefit accruals, thereggte amount of a participasitotal monthly pension benefit under the Qualifktdn an:
Supplemental Plan was equal to the participanéss/ef service since 1999 (up to a maximum of 30g)emultiplied by the sum of (i) 0.5% of
his final average pay plus (ii) 0.5% of his finakaage pay in excess of his compensation subjedbtial Security taxes, where “final average
pay” was defined as the participant’s average mpmbmpensation during the 60 consecutive montfodesithin his last ten years of
employment in which he received his highest comatms. Effective December 31, 2010, the Qualifi¢gehRand Supplemental Plan were
amended to cease all future benefit accruals uhéesibove formula (except where a collective baiggiagreement provides otherwise). In
lieu of additional accruals under the above-descriformula, each affected participant’'s accruecebeas of December 31, 2010 increases
4% per year, compounded annually through the eai®ecember 31, 2015 or the termination of theigipant's employment.

Under both of these CenturyLink retirement plarsiegrage monthly compensation” is determined baseati@participant’s salary plus
annual cash incentive bonus. Although the retirgrhenefits described above are provided throughrség plans, we have in the past
transferred benefits from the Supplemental PlahedcQualified Plan, and reserve the right to makther similar transfers to the extent alloy
under applicable law. The value of benefits tramsfitto the Qualified Plan, which directly offshetvalue of benefits in the Supplemental F
will be payable to the recipients in the form ohanced annuities or supplemental benefits. There@tbannuities are not part of the normal
retirement benefit and were not impacted by the fileeze.

The normal form of benefit payment under both ef Bension Plans is (i) in the case of unmarrietigigeints, a monthly annuity payat
for the life of the participant, and (ii) in theseaof married participants, an actuarially equinaieonthly annuity payable for the lifetime of the
participant and a survivor annuity payable forlifetime of the spouse upon the participant’s deBtrticipants may elect optional forms of
annuity benefits under each plan and, in the caeedQualified Plan, an annuity that guaranteasytars of benefits, all of which are
actuarially equivalent in value to the normal fosfrbenefit. The enhanced annuities described iptloe paragraph may be paid in the form of
a lump sum, at the participant’s election.

The normal retirement age is 65 under both of #resfon Plans. Participants may receive benefitgemubdth of these plans upon “early
retirement,”which is defined as attaining age 55 with five yeair service. Under both of these plans, the bepafiable upon early terminati
is calculated under formulas that pay between 60%0% of the base plan benefit and 48% to 92%eEekcess plan benefit, in each case
with the lowest percentage applying to early retieat at age 55 and proportionately higher percestagplying to early retirement after age
55. For additional information on early retirembphefits, please see the applicable early retireprewisions of the Pension Plans, copies of
which are filed with the SEC.

Glen F. Post, lll, R. Stewart Ewing, Jr. and DaDidCole are currently eligible for early retirememtder the Qualified Plan and
Supplemental Plan.
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Deferred Compensation

The following table and discussion provides infotimaon our Supplemental Dollars & Sense Plan, Wwiscdesigned to permit officers
to defer a portion of their salary in excess ofdh@unts that may be deferred under federal laveignivg qualified 401(k) plans.

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation

Aggregate
Aggregate Executive CenturyLink Aggregate Balance at
Balance at Contributions Contributions Withdrawals/ December 31
December 31 Aggregate
Earnings
Name 2012 in 2013 in 2013(@ in 2013 Distributions 2013
Glen F. Post, Il $2,342,211 $ 250,66¢ $ 93,87 $120,48t — $2,807,23
Karen A. Pucket 939,10¢ 87,28¢ 50,917 194,15( — 1,271,46.
R. Stewart Ewing, Ji 765,79¢ 66,66¢ 35,24« 122,79: — 990,501
Stacey W. Gof 802,82( 86,82¢ 25,32¢ 190,41! — 1,105,38
David D. Cole 616,19: 48,87¢ 21,312 72,214 — 758,59¢

(1) All of these amounts in this column reflect trdsutions by the officer of salary paid in 2013aeported as 2013 salary compensation ir
the Summary Compensation Tat

(2) This column includes our match of the officeztntribution under the terms of the plan. We haflected all of these amounts as 2013
compensation in the column of the Summary Compansagble labele All Other Compensatio”

(3) Aggregate earnings in 2013 include interestidéinds and distributions earned with respect ferded compensation invested by the
officers in the manner described in the text bel

Under our Supplemental Dollars & Sense Plan, aedfbur senior officers may defer up to 25% ofitisalary in excess of the federal
limit on annual contributions to a qualified 401fkan. For every dollar that participants contrébtd this plan up to 6% of their excess salary,
we add an amount equal to the total matching pé&agerthen in effect for matching contributions magleis under our qualified 401(k) plan
(which for 2013 equaled the sum of all of the aliti% contributed and half of the next 5% contrdal)t All amounts contributed under this
supplemental plan by the participants or us maybested by the participants in the same broad/afranoney market and mutual funds
offered under our qualified 401(k) plan. Particiflamay change their investments in these fundeyatime. We reserve the right to transfer
benefits from the Supplemental Dollars & Sense Rdasur qualified 401(k) or retirement plans to ehent allowed under Treasury regulati
and other guidance. The value of benefits transfietw our qualified plans directly offsets the abf benefits in the Supplemental Dollars &
Sense Plan. Participants in the Supplemental Ro#a8ense Plan normally receive payment of theioant balances in a lump sum once they
cease working full-time for us.

Potential Termination Payments

The materials below discuss payments and benkétsour officers are eligible to receive if theyrésign or retire, (ii) are terminated by
us, with or without cause, (iii) die or become disa or (iv) become entitled to termination bersefallowing a change of control of
CenturyLink.

Notwithstanding the information appearing below)yhould be aware that our officers have agreéolrteit their equity compensation
awards (and profits derived therefrom) if they cetepwith us or engage in other activity harmfubtw interests while employed with us or
within 18 months after termination. Certain othempensation might also be recoverable by us ureléain circumstances after termination of
employment. See “Compensation Discussion and ArsadysForfeiture of Prior Compensation” for moredmnhation.
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Payments Made Upon All TerminationsRegardless of the manner in which our employeegleyment terminates prior to a change of
control, they are entitled to receive amounts ehrheing their term of employment (subject to tlméemtial forfeitures discussed above). With
respect to each such terminated employee, suchrdmimelude his or her:

salary and earned but unused vacation pay thrdwgtdte of termination, payable immediately follogviermination in cas

annual incentive bonus, but only if such employewed for the entire bonus period or through the dach bonus is payable
(unless this service requirement is waiv

restricted stock that has ves

benefits accrued and vested under our qualifiedsapglemental defined benefit pension plans, wétyopits generally occurring at
early or normal retirement a

vested account balance held in our qualified ampglemental defined contribution plans, which thepkayee is generally free to
receive at the time of terminati

rights to continued health care benefits to thembtequired by lawn

Payments Made Upon Voluntary or Involuntary Termitians. In addition to benefits described under the heaidmgediately above,
employees involuntarily terminated by us withouts@ prior to a change of control are also entidetbject to certain conditions, to:

exercise all vested options within 190 days oftdrenination datt
accelerated vesting of all, or a portion of, unegdgime-vested restricted stock if approved by our Compms&ommittee

a cash severance payment in the amount descrilmiat t@ompensation Discussion and Analysis — OthemeBits — Severance
Benefits,” plus the receipt of any short-term inbemnbonus payable under their applicable bonus ptad outplacement assistance
benefits.

None of the benefits listed immediately above agaple if the employee resigns or is terminatectéarse, except that resigning employee:
entitled to exercise their vested options withi tdys and employees terminated for cause coulgestghe Compensation Committee to
accelerate their unvested time-vested restrictmekgtvhich is unlikely to be granted).

Payments Made Upon RetiremenEmployees who retire in conformity with our retiren plans and policies are entitled, subject to
certain conditions, to:

exercise all of their options, all of which accakerupon retirement, within three years of thelireenent date

accelerated vesting of all, or a portion of, uneddimevested restricted stock if approved by our Compéms&ommittee
payment of their annual incentive bonus (ro rataportion thereof, depending on their retirement

pos-retirement life, health and welfare bene

all of the benefits described under the hea”“— Payments Made Upon All Terminatio”

In addition, an employee who retires from the Conypaill continue to vest in his or her unvestedfpenance-based restricted stock for the
remainder of the applicable performance periothéfemployee takes early retirement, this continwesting opportunity only applies to a
reduced pro rata number of unvested shares, baste mumber of days he or she was employed dtmmgerformance period.
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Payments Made Upon Death or DisabilityJpon death or disability, officers (or their esgtare generally entitled to (without
duplication of benefits):

» payments under our disability or life insurancenglaas applicabl

» exercise all of their options, all of which accekerupon death or disability, within two ye.

» keep all of their tim-vested restricted stock, whether vested or unve

« payment of their annual incentive bonus pro rata portion thereof, depending on their date of deattisability

« continued rights to receive (i) life, health andfae benefits at early or normal retirement agehie event of disabilities of
employees with ten years of prior service, orl{@alth and welfare benefits payable to survivingilele dependents, in the event of
death of employees meeting certain age and semtigérement:

» all of the benefits described under the headingPayments Made Upon All TerminationgXcept that (i) upon death benefits ur
our retirement plans are generally available oalgurviving spouses and (ii) benefits payable totally disabled employees under
our nonqualified defined benefit retirement plaresyrbe paid prior to retirement ag

Payments Made Upon a Change of ConttdlVe have entered into agreements that entitle elobirexecutive officers who are
terminated without cause or resign under certa@tifipd circumstances within certain specified pésifollowing any change in control of
CenturyLink to (i) receive a lump sum cash sevezgrayment equal to a multiple of such officer's @adrcash compensation (defined as salar
plus the average annual incentive bonus over thethegee years), (ii) receive such officer's cuthepending bonus goro rataportion thereof,
depending on the date of termination, and (iii)teare to receive, subject to certain exceptiongage welfare benefits for certain specified
periods. See “Compensation Discussion and Analysidther Benefits — Change of Control Arrangemeifids’a description of the benefits
under our change of control agreements.

Under CenturyLink’s above-referenced agreemeritshange in control” of CenturyLink would be deentedccur upon (i) any person
(as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 13#@€oming the beneficial owner of 30% or more ef dtstanding Common Shares, (ii) a
majority of our directors being replaced, (iii) sammation of certain mergers, substantial asses salsimilar business combinations, or
(iv) approval by the shareholders of a liquidatiwrdissolution of CenturyLink.

The above-referenced agreements provide the bewefiicribed above if we terminate the officer’s lyipent without cause or the
officer resigns with “good reason,” which we deberfurther under the heading “Compensation Disonsand Analysis — Other Benefits —
Change of Control Arrangements.” We have filed espr forms of these agreements with the SEC.

Participants in our supplemental defined beneéinphose service is terminated within two yearthefchange in control of CenturyLink
will receive a cash payment equal to the presdoevef their plan benefits (after providing age aedvice credits of up to three years if the
participant is terminated by us without cause eigms with “good reason”), determined in accordanitk actuarial assumptions specified in
the plan. Certain account balances under our deehlitirement plans will also fully vest upon aobe of control of CenturyLink.

Under the terms of our 2011 Equity Incentive Plapentives granted thereunder will not vest, agetée become exercisable or be
deemed fully paid unless otherwise provided ingasste agreement, plan or instrument. None of quitgaward agreements since 2011 have
provided for any such accelerated recognition oiefies solely upon a change of control. Instead,courent award agreements provide that
holder of incentives who is terminated by us or sugcessor without cause or resigns with good refdlowing a
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change of control will be entitled to receive fudisting of his or her time-vested restricted sharescontinued rights under his or her
performance-based restricted shares (on the same &s if he or she had not been terminated).
We believe the above-described change of contrfits enhance shareholder value because:

» prior to a takeover, these protections help ugtouit and retain talented officers and to helpntan the productivity of our
workforce by alleviating concerns over economiausitg, and

« during or after a takeover, these protections€ip four personnel, when evaluating a possible legsicombination, to focus on the
best interests of CenturyLink and its shareholdzns, (i) reduce the risk that personnel will adgep offers from competitors
during takeover discussior

Estimated Potential Termination PaymenfEhe table below provides estimates of the valugagiments and benefits that would become
payable if our current named executives were teataohin the manner described below, in each casedlan various assumptions, the most
significant of which are described in the tableias.

Potential Termination Payments

Type of Termination of Employment %)

Type of
Termination Involuntary Termination
Termination Upon a

Payment Without Change of

Name ® Cause(®) Retirement () Disability Death Control ®)
Glen F. Post, IlI Annual Bonus $1,683,000 $ 1,683,000 $ 1,683,000 $ 1,683,000 $ 1,683,00!
Equity Awards® — 9,078,33: 12,328,45 12,328,45 12,328,45
Pension and Welfai® 36,60( — — — 240,05
Cash Severanc®) 5,500,001 — — — 8,250,001
$7,219,601 $10,761,33 $14,011,45 $14,011,45 $22,501,51
Karen A. Pucket Annual Bonus $ 854,120 $ — $ 854,120 $ 854,12 $ 854,12
Equity Awards® — — 4,689,24. 4,689,24.  4,689,24.
Pension and Welfai™ 28,00( — — — 46,20(
Cash Severan® 1,575,00I — — — 3,150,001
$2,457,12. $ — $5543,36° $ 5,543,36° $ 8,739,56
R. Stewart Ewing, Ji Annual Bonus $ 729,30( $ 729,30( $ 729,30( $ 729,30( $ 729,30(
Equity Awards®) — 2,598,63 3,507,211 3,507,211 3,507,221l
Pension and Welfai( 23,10( — — — 70,47¢
Cash Severan® 1,365,00I — — — 2,730,001
$2,117,400 $ 3,327,93 $ 4,236,511 $ 4,236,511 $ 7,036,99!
Stacey W. Gof Annual Bonus $ 561,000 $ — $ 561,000 $ 561,000 $ 561,00
Equity Awards®) — — 2,598,18! 2,598,18' 2,598,18!
Pension and Welfai" 30,30( — — — 50,60(
Cash Severan® 1,050,00! — — — 2,100,001
$1,641,300 $ — $ 3,159,18' $ 3,159,18' $ 5,309,78!
David D. Cole Annual Bonus $ 436,05( $ 436,05( $ 436,05( $ 436,05( $ 436,05
Equity Awards®) — 1,883,85! 2,553,02; 2,553,02; 2,553,02:
Pension and Welfai® 30,30( — — — 115,75t
Cash Severanc® 902,50( — — — 1,805,00!

$1,368,85( $ 2,319,90 $ 2,989,07. $ 2,989,07. $ 4,909,82!
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(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

(8)

All data in the table reflects estimates of ¥atue of payments and benefits assuming the naffieér was terminated on December 31,
2013. The closing price of the Common Shares oh date was $31.85. The table reflects only estimmat@amounts earned or payable
through or at such date based on various assunsptiatual amounts can be determined only at the dfrtermination. If a named offic
voluntarily resigns or is terminated with causephshe will not be entitled to any special or deed benefits, but will be entitled to
receive various payments or benefits that vestéal®¢he termination date. The table reflects pidiépayments based upon a physical
disability; additional benefits may be payablelia event of a mental disabilit

As further described above, upon terminatiorraployment, the named officers may become entitiedceive certain special,
accelerated or enhanced benefits, including, stibijezertain exceptions, the right to receive paynaé their annual cash incentive bor
an acceleration under certain circumstances oféléng of their outstanding equity awards, cur@mgnhanced pension and welfare
benefits, or cash severance payments. The tabled®sc(i) payments or benefits made under biwegkd plans or arrangements gene
available to all salaried full-time employees aiidhenefits, awards or amounts that the officeswatitled to receive prior to termination
of employment

The amounts listed in this column reflect pagteeo which the named officer would be entitleditmler our executive severance plan if
involuntarily terminated by us without cause ptioia change of control. The amounts listed in ¢cbisimn would not be payable if the
officer voluntarily resigns or is terminated foruse.

Of the named officers, only Messrs. Post, Ewdng Cole are eligible to retire early under Ceyitink’s defined benefit pension plans
described above under the heading “Executive Cosgigam — Pension Benefits.” The amounts reflecteden the “Retirement” column
do not reflect the amount of lifetime annuity payrsepayable upon early retirement. Assuming eatiyament as of December 31, 2C
Messrs. Post, Ewing and Cole would have been edtitt monthly annuity payments of approximately,$29, $16,557 and $9,666,
respectively, over their lifetimes, some of whiththe case of Mr. Ewing, may be payable to hisvie-under a qualified domestic
relations order. For further information, see tkigeo notes below

The information in this column assumes eachethofficer became entitled at December 31, 201Bddenefits under CenturyLink’s
agreements in existence on such date describee almaer “— Payments Made Upon a Change of Contiodih an involuntary
termination without cause or resignation with goedson. All amounts are based on several assumg

The information in this row (i) reflects thertsdit to the named officer arising out of the aecatled vesting of some or all of his or her
restricted stock caused by the termination of egmpknt based upon the intrinsic method of valuatfhassumes that the Compensatior
Committee would not approve the acceleration ofiidu@ed officer’s restricted stock in the eventmfravoluntary termination, and

(iii) assumes that the Compensation Committee waplfatove the acceleration of such restricted sitothe event of the early retirement
of Messrs. Post, Ewing or Co

The information in this row reflects only theeremental benefits that accrue upon an eventrwiin@tion, and excludes benefits that were
vested on December 31, 2013. For information orptesent value of the named officers’ accumulattkfits under our defined benefit
pension plans, see “— Pension Benefits,” and ffarmation on the aggregate balances of the nanfezisf non-qualified deferred
compensation, see “— Deferred Compensation.” Agatdd above, the named officer would also beledtio receive a distribution of
his or her 401(k) benefits and various other b-based benefit:

The information in this row excludes, in the cabdisability or death, payments made by insurarmemanies
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Overview

The Board believes that each director who is nqgileyed by us (whom we refer to as outside direabonson-management directors)

should be compensated through a mix of cash anitydspsed compensation, which most recently has lgeanted in the form of restricted
stock. The Compensation Committee, consisting @gtof independent directors, has primary respoalitgitbor periodically reviewing and
considering any revisions to director compensafidre Board reviews the Compensation Committee’smenendations and determines the
amount of director compensation. Since being rethiny the Compensation Committee in 2010, Hay Ghasassisted the Committee in
reviewing director compensation.

(1)

(2)

(3)

The table and the discussion below summarize howargpensated our outside directors in 2013.

2013 Compensation of Outside Directors

Fees Earned o

Stock All Other

Name Paid in Cash Awards (D2 Compensation®) Total

Virginia Boulet $ 128,00( $ 109,05¢ $ — $237,05¢
Peter C. Browr 117,00( 109,05¢ — 226,05¢
Richard A. Gepharc 89,00( 109,05¢ 86,78( 284,83¢
W. Bruce Hank: 142,00( 109,05¢ 5,20¢ 256,26¢
Gregory J. McCra 107,00( 109,05¢ — 216,05¢
C. G. Melville, Jr. 119,50( 109,05¢ — 228,55¢
Fred R. Nichol¢ 113,00( 109,05¢ — 222,05t
William A. Owens 111,00( 298,69° — 409,69°
Harvey P. Perr 203,00( 109,05¢ 3,56: 315,61¢
Michael J. Robert 101,00( 109,05¢ — 210,05¢
Laurie A. Siege 119,75( 109,05¢ — 228,80¢
Joseph R. Zimme 109,00( 109,05¢ — 218,05¢

For purposes of determining the number of iesil shares to grant to each outside directorCtirapensation Committee valued each of
these stock awards to equal $115,000 (or $315/0€tki case of Adm. Owens), based upon the volunightexl average closing price of
our Common Shares over a 15-day trading periochgngiior to the grant date. For purposes of repgttie fair value of these awards in
the table above, however, we valued each granthgsen the closing stock price of our Common Sharethe grant date in accordance
with FASB ASC Topic 718. These grants vest on May2D14 (subject to accelerated vesting in ceftaiited circumstances). See “—
Cash and Stock Paymer”

As of December 31, 2013, William A. Owens h@J813 unvested shares of restricted stock and&amtr other outside directors held
3,871 unvested shares of restricted stock, whidst@dated the only unvested equity-based awards nebur outside directors as of such
date (excluding equity awards granted to Micha&aberts prior to his commencement of service arboard following the Qwest
merger). For further information on our directatick ownership, see “Ownership of Our Securitie&xecutive Officers and

Directors” and for information on certain deferred fee arrangets pertaining to Mr. Roberts, <*— Other Benefit¢”

Represents (i) reimbursements for the costnbial physical examinations and related travelipin(the case of Richard A. Gephardt,
payment of consulting fees in connection with tbesulting services described under “Corporate Guuare — Independence.” Except
as otherwise noted in the prior sentence, the winb®e does not reflect (i) reimbursements foreraxpenses or (ii) any benefits
associated with participating in recreational atiég scheduled during board retreats (as descfilntiter under the heading
“Compensation Discussion and Analy— Other Benefit— Perquisite”).
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Cash and Stock Payments

Each outside director is paid an annual fee of (B85 plus $2,000 for attending each regular boaretimg, special board meeting
(including each day of the Board’s annual planrgagsion), committee meeting and separate diredtma¢ion program.

Currently, William A. Owens, in his capacity as ten-executive Chairman of the Board, receives lempgntal board fees at the rate of
$200,000 per year payable in shares of restrictmk §valued using the 15-trading day average ntpgrice specified in note 1 of the table
appearing above under “— Overview”). The restrictamtk issued to the Chairman during 2013 vestdlayn 23, 2014 (subject to accelerated
vesting in certain limited circumstances). The Bloanticipates making a similar grant to the ChairnmeMay 2014. The Chairman’s duties are
set forth in our corporate governance guidelineg ‘€orporate Governance.”

Currently, Harvey P. Perry, in his capacity as eaeeutive Vice Chairman of the Board, receives mpntal board fees at the rate of
$100,000 cash per year. The Board anticipates maksimilar payment to Mr. Perry in May 2014. Thiee/Chairmars current duties includ
among others, (i) assisting the Chairman by fatilig communications among the directors and mdnigdhe activities of the Board's
committees, (ii) serving at the Chairman’s requesthe board of any company in which we have aastment, (iii) monitoring our strategies
and (iv) performing certain executive successiorctions.

We also pay annual supplemental board fees tohthiescof each of our committees as follows: (i) ¢hair of the Audit Committee
receives $25,000, (ii) the chair of the CompensaGommittee receives $18,750, (iii) the chair & Nominating Committee receives $15,000
and (iv) the chair of the Risk Evaluation Committeeeives $12,500.

During 2013, the Compensation Committee authoreash outside director to receive shares of timéede®stricted stock valued at
$115,000 (valued using the 15-trading day averéggng price specified in note 1 of the table apjmepabove under “— Overview”) that vest
on May 23, 2014 (subject to accelerated vestirgentain limited circumstances). The Compensatiom@dtee currently expects to authorize
comparable equity grants in May 2014 to each oetditector serving on the day after our 2014 anmesting.

Other Benefits

Each outside director is entitled to be reimbur@efbr expenses incurred in attending board androittee meetings, (ii) for expenses
incurred in attending director education programd @ii) up to $5,000 per year for the cost of amaal physical examination, plus related
travel expenses.

In connection with our 2011 merger with Qwest, wsewamed the Qwest Deferred Compensation Plan forEoployee Directors. Under
this plan, Qwest outside directors could electdfedall or a portion of their cash directors’ feabich were then converted to a number of
“phantom units” based the value of a share of Qwistk, with credit for dividends paid to stockhexisl “reinvested” in additional phantom
units. Certain plan balances were distributed ttiggpants at the close of the merger, but plamibets attributable to amounts deferred on or
after January 1, 2005 by Qwest directors who joim@dBoard following the merger were converted elolasn the merger exchange ratio, to
phantom units based on the value of a share ofuBdrihk common stock. Other than the crediting amdnvestment” of dividends for
outstanding phantom units, CenturyLink does notereky contributions to, and no additional electieéerrals are permitted under, this plan.
Subject to the terms of the plan, each particigaatcount will be distributed as a lump sum in asboon as practicable following the end of
his or her service as a director. As of DecembefB13, Michael J. Roberts was the only remainiagigipant in this plan, with a balance of
4,513.24 phantom units with an aggregate valueld8§ 47 as of such date.

We supply company-owned tablets to most of ouridatdirectors for use in reviewing materials posted dedicated portal that permits
management to communicate with the Board.
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Our bylaws require us to indemnify our directord affficers so that they will be free from undue cem about personal liability in
connection with their service to CenturyLink. Wevbaigned agreements with each of those individemhsractually obligating us to provide
these indemnification rights. We also provide owectors with customary directors and officers iligpinsurance.

Directors may use our aircraft in connection witlnpanyrelated business. However, under our aircraft upafjey, neither directors n
their families may use our aircraft for persongddrexcept on terms generally available to atbaf employees in connection with a medical
emergency). We have arranged a charter servicetinatutside directors can use at their cost feir thersonal air travel needs. None of our
directors have used this charter service since.2007

Director Stock Ownership Guidelines

For information on our stock ownership guidelinesdutside directors, see “Corporate Governanceevethance Guidelines — Stock
Ownership Guidelines.”
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph below compares the cumulative total $tedgler return on the Common Shares with the cunvelaotal return of the S&P 500
Index and the S&P 500 Integrated Telecommunicadiervices Index for the period from December 31 82@0December 31, 2013, in each
case assuming (i) the investment of $100 on Jariua2Q09 at closing prices on December 31, 2008 (#reinvestment of dividends.

$250,00
= CanturyLink Inc
—8— Standard and Poors 00 $228.04
= S&F 500 Integrated Telecam Services (1) |
200,00 $198.80
$181.45
37229
F169.96
5150.00
5100.00
£100.00
$50.00
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
December 31
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
CenturyLink $100.0( $144.57 $198.8( $172.8¢ $195.5! $169.9¢
S&P 500 Inde» 100.0( 126.4¢ 145.5; 148.5¢ 172.2¢ 228.0¢
S&P 500 Integrated Telecom Services In®) 100.0( 108.9: 129.6: 137.8: 162.9¢ 181.4¢

@ The S&P 500 Integrated Telecommunication Servineex consists of AT&T Inc., CenturyLink, Frontieo@munications Corporation,
Verizon Communications and Windstream Corporafidre index is publicly availabls

65



Table of Contents

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTI CIPATION

During the last fiscal year, Laurie A. Siegel, Viirig Boulet, Fred R. Nichols, William A. Owens aHdrvey P. Perry served on our
Compensation Committee. Other than Mr. Perry, wérgedd as one of our officers until his retiremen2003, no member of the Compensa
Committee has served as an officer or employebeotdmpany or any of our subsidiaries prior to bilevserving on the Compensation
Committee. Mr. Perry’s son, H. Parnell Perry, Serves as an employee of ours, as further desdrimeediately below under “Transactions
With Related Parties — Recent Transactions.”

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Recent Transactions

During 2013, we paid H. Parnell Perry, Jr., whoresras Manager — Technology Management, total grasgpensation of
approximately $126,950, consisting of approxima#l®8,514 in salary and $18,436 in annual incerimeuses (excluding the value of broad
based benefits provided under our welfare and diéeefit plans). Mr. Perry is the son of HarveyBrry, one of our directors, and has bee
employee of ours since 1987.

We are one of the largest employers in Monroe, siana and in several of our other markets, anduels, employ personnel related by
birth or marriage throughout our organization. Salvef our executive officers or directors have figrmembers employed by us, although,
none of them (other than H. Parnell Perry, Jr.hedr2013 compensation in excess of the $120,0@8hbid that would require detailed
disclosures under the federal proxy rules.

Review Procedures

Early each year, our director of internal auditritisites to the Audit Committee a written repostiig our payments to vendors, includ
a list of transactions with our directors, officersemployees. This annual report permits the ieddpnt directors to assess and discuss our
related party transactions. Although we have nm&dwritten pre-approval procedure governing relgiarty transactions, our CEO typically
seeks approval of the board before engaging imamyrelated party transaction involving significanoms or risks.

SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLI ANCE

The Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires oecetive officers and directors, among others,leodéertain beneficial ownership
reports with the SEC. During 2013, (i) Maxine L. Mau filed late a Form 4 report in connection wiglsting of restricted shares in May 2012,
(ii) Fred R. Nichols filed late a Form 5 for 2012da(jii) Harvey P. Perry filed a Form 5, which wtamely filed for 2012 but included a 2011
transaction.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE MEETING

Quorum

Our bylaws provide that the presence at the megtingerson or by proxy, of a majority of the oataling Voting Shares constitutes a
guorum to organize the meeting.

Vote Required to Elect Directors

Our bylaws provide that each of the 13 director ime@s will be elected if the number of votes cadtivor of the director exceeds the
number of votes withheld with respect to the divec¥ou may vote “for"all director nominees or withhold your vote for amme or more of tk
director nominees. If any of the 13 directors falseceive a majority of the votes cast at thetingeour bylaws will require such director to
tender his or her resignation to the Board focdssideration.
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Vote Required to Adopt Other Proposals at the Meetig

With respect to all other items submitted to a \aitthe meeting, the affirmative vote of the hoddef at least a majority of the Voting
Shares present in person or represented by prakemtitled to vote at the meeting is required tprape each such item.

Effect of Abstentions

Shares as to which the proxy holders have beeruatst to abstain from voting with respect to aaytipular matter will be treated under
the Company’s bylaws as not being cast, presergpresented for purposes of such vote. Becauseadiérs must be approved by the holders
of a specified percentage of the votes cast omgdihares present or represented at the meetistgnsibns will not affect the outcome of any
such vote. Shareholders abstaining from voting bélicounted as present for purposes of constitatiqpgorum to organize the meeting.

Effect of Non-Voting

If you properly execute and return a proxy or vgtinstruction card, your shares will be voted ag gpecify. If you are a shareholder of
record and make no specifications on your validlyrsitted proxy card, your shares will be voted agaihe shareholder proposal and in favor
of all other items. If you are a beneficial ownésbares and do not give voting instructions tornjianoker, bank or nominee, they will be
entitled to vote your shares only to the extentijeel below.

Under the rules of the New York Stock Exchangekérs who hold shares in street name for customagsvote in their discretion on
matters considered to be “routine” when they haster@ceived voting instructions from beneficial @ Under these rules, brokers who do
not receive such instructions will be entitled tderin their discretion at the meeting with resgedhe ratification of the appointment of the
independent auditor, but will not be entitled tdevin their discretion with respect to any of thleey matters submitted to a vote. If brokers
do not receive voting instructions do not, or canemercise discretionary voting power (a “brokensvote”) with respect to any matter to be
considered at the meeting, shares that are nad wvatkbe treated as present for purposes of ctuistg a quorum to organize the meeting but
not present or cast with respect to considering) snatter. Because all matters to be considerdteaneeting must be approved by the holders
of a specified percentage of the votes cast omgdBhares present or represented at the meetkgrmonvotes will not affect the outcome
any such vote.

Revocations

Shareholders of record may revoke their proxy @nge their votes at any time before their proxyoied at the meeting by giving a
written revocation notice to our secretary, by tyrdelivering a proxy bearing a later date or byivg in person at the meeting. Beneficial
shareholders may revoke or change their votingunogons by contacting the broker, bank or nomithes holds their shares.

Voting by Participants in Our Benefit Plans

If you beneficially own any of our Common Sharesviiyue of participating in any retirement plan@énturyLink, then you will receive
a separate voting instruction card that will enafale to direct the voting of these shares. Thigngpinstruction card entitles you, on a
confidential basis, to instruct the trustees howdte the shares allocated to your plan accourd.plans require you to act as a “named
fiduciary,” which requires you to exercise youringtrights prudently and in the interests of allrpparticipants. Plan participants who wish to
vote should complete and return the voting instoumctard in accordance with its instructions. Ifigect not to vote the shares allocated to
your accounts, your shares will be voted in theespnoportion as voted shares regarding each dfahes submitted to a vote at the meet
Plan participants that wish to revoke their votimgtructions must contact the trustee and foll@pitocedures.

67



Table of Contents

Cost of Proxy Solicitation

We will pay all expenses of soliciting proxies the meeting. Proxies may be solicited personaiiymhil, by telephone or by facsimile
by our directors, officers and employees, who niit be additionally compensated therefor. We wilbaequest persons holding Voting Shi
in their names for others, such as brokers, banétther nominees, to forward materials to thdéimgypals and request authority for the
execution of proxies, and we will reimburse themtfeir expenses incurred in connection therewite.have retained Innisfree M&A
Incorporated, New York, New York, to assist in fwdicitation of proxies, for which we will pay Insfree fees anticipated to be $15,000 and
will reimburse Innisfree for certain of its out-pécket expenses.

Other Matters Considered at the Meeting

Management has not timely received any noticealsdtareholder desires to present any matter fammaat the meeting in accordance
with our bylaws (which are described below in “QtMatters — Shareholder Nominations and Proposalthe 2014 Annual Meeting —
Other Proposals and Nominations”) other than tlaeedfolder proposal described in this proxy staténeser is otherwise unaware of any
matter to be considered by shareholders at theimgeather than those matters specified in the apamying notice of the meeting. Our proxy
and voting instruction cards, however, will condiéscretionary voting authority with respect to artger matter that may properly come before
the meeting. It is the intention of the persons editerein to vote in accordance with their bedtjjuent on any such matter.

Conduct of the Meeting

The Chairman has broad responsibility and legdiaity to conduct the meeting in an orderly andeliyymanner. This authority includes
establishing rules for shareholders who wish taeskithe meeting. Copies of these rules will béabla at the meeting. The Chairman may
also exercise broad discretion in recognizing di@lders who wish to speak and in determining trere>of discussion on each item of
business. In light of the need to conduct all neagsbusiness and to conclude the meeting withé@asonable period of time, we cannot assur
that every shareholder who wishes to speak oreamdf business will be able to do so.

You will not be permitted to bring audio visual ggument, ampliphones or posters into the meeting r&gerve the right, to be exercised
in our discretion, to admit guests, such as lootitipians or the press, into the meeting.

Postponement or Adjournment of the Meeting

The Chairman may postpone or adjourn the meetiogr Yproxy will still be valid and may be voted hetpostponed or adjourned
meeting. You will still be able to change or revgkeir proxy until it is voted.

OTHER MATTERS

Shareholder Nominations and Proposals for the 201Annual Meeting

Proxy Statement Proposali order to be eligible for inclusion in our 201&8Ry materials pursuant to the federal proxy ruées;
shareholder proposal to take action at such meatimg} be received by our Secretary by Decembe2d®, and must comply with applicable
federal proxy rules.

In the event that our shareholders ratify our neaxi? Access Bylaw at the meeting, certain qualidyghareholders or shareholder gro
may be permitted to include shareholder-nominatezttbr candidates in our 2015 proxy materialsaBdesee “Proposal to Ratify a New Proxy
Access Bylaw” and\ppendix Aor more information.
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Other Proposals and Nomination$n addition, our bylaws require shareholders taishr timely written notice of their intent to noraie
a director or bring any other matter before a dhalders’ meeting, whether or not they wish to inguheir candidate or proposal in our proxy
materials. In general, notice must be receivedurySecretary between November 29, 2014 and FebA7arg015 and must contain specified
information concerning, among other things, thetaratto be brought before such meeting and conugthie shareholder proposing such
matters. (If the date of the 2015 annual meetingase than 30 days earlier or later than May 28520otice must be received by our Secre
within 15 days of the earlier of the date on whictiice of such meeting is first mailed to sharebddr public disclosure of the meeting da
made.) For additional information on these procedusee “Corporate Governance — Director Nomind®imtess.”

These advance notice bylaw provisions, which aeehéd ag\ppendix Ahereto, are in addition to, and separate fromre¢heirements
that a shareholder must meet in order to have didate or proposal included in our proxy materials.

Proxies granted by a shareholder will give disorery authority to the proxy holders to vote on amgtters introduced pursuant to the
above-described advance notice bylaw provisiortgestito applicable rules of the SEC.

You may obtain a full copy of our bylaws by reviegiour reports filed with the SEC, by accessingwelbsite at www.centurylink.com
or by contacting our Secretary in the manner sjgetielow.

Proxy Materials

Most shareholders will receive only a written netaf how to access our proxy materials, and willneceive printed copies of the proxy

materials unless requested. If you would like teree a paper copy of our proxy materials, you &héallow the instructions for requesting 1
materials in the notice.

The full set of our materials include:
» the notice and proxy statement for the meet
* aproxy or voting instruction card, a

* our 2013 annual report furnished in the followimgtparts: (1) our 2013 Financial Report, which d¢batesAppendix Bo this
proxy statement, and (2) our separately furnist®EBReview and CE's Message

Our 2013 annual report is not a part of our praxfjcgting materials.

Annual Financial Report

Appendix Bncludes our Annual Financial Report, which is apted from portions of our Annual Report on FormKL@r the year
ended December 31, 2013 that we filed with the 8EEebruary 27, 2014. In addition, we have proviged with a copy of or access to our
2013 Review and CEO’s Message. Neither of thesardeats is a part of our proxy soliciting materials.
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Appendix A
to Proxy Statemen

Proposed Amendments to Bylaws

If the proposed amendments described under “ProlpasBatify a New Proxy Access Bylaw” are ratifigtthe meeting, Section 5 of

Article IV of our Bylaws would be amended and riestaas follows; 1

ARTICLE IV
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

* k k k

Sectior5. Notice of Shareholder Nominations and Shareholdesirigss.

1

5.1 Annual Meetings of Shareholde.

(a) Nominations of persons for election to the Bloagir Directors and the proposal of other businedsetconsidered by the
shareholders may be made at an annual meetingadtstiders only if properly brought before such timee(i) pursuant to the
Corporation’s notice of meeting (or any supplentbeteto) given by or at the direction of the Boafdirectors, (ii) otherwise by or at
the direction of the Board of Directots d(ii) by any shareholder of the Corporation who @#s a shareholder of record at the time of
giving of notice provided for in this Section 5.Adaat the time of the annual meeting, (B) is egditio vote at the meeting and
(C) complies with the notice procedures set fantthis Section 5.1 as to such business or nomimato (iv) by any shareholder (or
group of shareholders) who meets the requirements and complies with all of the procedures set forthin Section 5.3 of this
Bylaw .

(b) Without qualification or limitation, subject ®ection 5.4(c) of this Bylaw, for any nominatiarsany other business to be
properly brought before an annual meeting by aedt@der pursuant to Section 5.1(a)(iii) of this 8yl the shareholder must have given
timely notice thereof in writing to the Secretafittoe Corporation and such other business mustitatgsa proper matter for shareholder
action. To be timely, a shareholder’s notice shaltielivered to the Secretary of the Corporatictheiprincipal executive office of the
Corporation not earlier than the close of busimesthe 180th day and not later than the close sifless on the 90th day prior to the first
anniversary of the preceding year's annual meepingyided, howeverthat in the event that the date of the annuatimgés more than
30 days before or more than 60 days after suclvarsary date, notice by the shareholder to be yinmelst be so delivered not earlier
than the close of business on the 180th day poitinég date of such annual meeting and not later i close of business on the later of
the 90th day prior to the date of such annual mgar, if the first public announcement of the daftsuch annual meeting is less than
100 days prior to the date of such annual meetitegg10th day following the day on which public annoement of the date of such
meeting is first made by the Corporation.

(c) To be in proper form and effective for purpobeseof, a shareholder’s notice (whether givenyamsto this Section 5.1(c) or
Section 5.2(c) of this Bylaw) furnished to the Sary of the Corporation must: (i) set forth, ashte shareholder giving the notice and
the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf tbenmation or proposal is made (A) the name andestdof such shareholder, as it
appears on the Corporation’s books, of such beiaébtiener, if any, of any of their respective affites and associates and of any others
acting in concert with any of the foregoing (withyasuch affiliates, associates or others beingihafter referred to as “associated
persons”), (B)(1) the class or series and numbshafes of the Corporation which are, directlynaliriectly, owned beneficially and of
record by such shareholder, any such beneficiakoyand any of their associated parties, (2) aipopwarrant, convertible security,
stock appreciation right, or similar right with arercise or conversion privilege or a settlemegtignt or

New language is shown in bold face type; removaduage is shown as being strick
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mechanism at a price related to any class or sefigisares of the Corporation or with a value degtiin whole or in part from the value
any class or series of shares of the Corporatioany derivative or synthetic arrangement havirgdharacteristics of a long position in
any class or series of shares of the Corporatioang contract, derivative, swap or other transactir series of transactions designed to
produce economic benefits and risks that corresgabdtantially to the ownership of any class oiesesf shares of the Corporation,
including due to the fact that the value of suchtiaxt, derivative, swap or other transaction oieseof transactions is determined by
reference to the price, value or volatility of aslgiss or series of shares of the Corporation, venathnot such instrument, contract or
right shall be subject to settlement in the undegyclass or series of shares of the Corporatlmough the delivery of cash or other
property, or otherwise, and without regard of wketsuch shareholder of record, the beneficial onifiany, or any of their associated
parties may have entered into transactions thagéned mitigate the economic effect of such instratpeontract or right or any other
direct or indirect opportunity to profit or sharedny profit derived from any increase or decreéagbke value of shares of the Corporatior
(any of the foregoing, a “Derivative Instrumentijettly or indirectly owned beneficially by suchaskholder, the beneficial owner, if
any, or any of their associated parties, (3) amxyrcontract, arrangement, understanding, oricglahip pursuant to which such
shareholder, any such beneficial owner or any eif fissociated parties has a right to vote anyeshafrany security of the Corporation,
(4) any agreement, arrangement, understandindiomthip or otherwise, including any repurchassimilar so-called “stock borrowing”
agreement or arrangement, engaged in, directlydiractly, by such shareholder, the beneficial awiie@ny, or any of their associated
parties, the purpose or effect of which is to naiteggloss to, reduce the economic risk (of ownershigtherwise) of any class or series of
the shares of the Corporation by, manage the fiskare price changes for, or increase or decrtbaseoting power of, such shareholder,
the beneficial owner, if any, or any of their asated parties with respect to any class or sefiéiseoshares of the Corporation, or which
provides, directly or indirectly, the opportunity profit or share in any profit derived from anycdeEase in the price or value of any class
or series of the shares of the Corporation (arth@foregoing, “Short Interests”), (5) any rightsdividends on the shares of the
Corporation owned beneficially by such shareholday, such beneficial owner or any of their assedatarties that are separated or
separable from the underlying shares of the Cotjwora(6) any proportionate interest in shareshef€orporation or Derivative
Instruments held, directly or indirectly, by a geader limited partnership in which such sharehglé@y such beneficial owner or any of
their associated parties is a general partnerir@gtty or indirectly, beneficially owns an intetés a general partner of such general or
limited partnership, (7) any performance-relatezsféother than an asset-based fee) that such sideghany such beneficial owner or
any of their associated parties is entitled to 8aseany increase or decrease in the value of sivduthe Corporation or Derivative
Instruments, if any, including without limitatiomy such interests held by immediate family memioésuch shareholder, any such
beneficial owner or any of their associated padiesring the same household, (8) any significanitgdnterests or any Derivative
Instruments or Short Interests in any principal petitor of the Corporation held by such sharehglther beneficial owner, if any, or any
of their associated parties, (9) any direct orrectiinterest of such shareholder, the benefisialar, if any, or any of their associated
parties in any contract with the Corporation, affjiate of the Corporation or any principal comjpet of the Corporation (including, in
any such case, any employment agreement, colldatikgaining agreement or consulting agreement) (Hbydany other agreement,
arrangement or understanding, whether or not sugthuiment or the rights conferred thereby are stilbjesettlement in underlying sha
of capital stock of the Corporation, the effectrdent of which is to mitigate loss to, manage wslbenefit of share price changes for, or
increase or decrease the voting power of, suclebbltter, any such beneficial owner or any of thesociated parties, with respect to
securities of the Corporation, (C) any other infation relating to such shareholder and beneficialar, if any, that would be required to
be disclosed in a proxy statement or other filireguired to be made in connection with solicitasiof proxies for, as applicable, the
proposal or for the election of directors in a ested election pursuant to Section 14 of the SeesifExchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act”), and the rules and regulatipr@mulgated thereunder, (D) a description of gtke@ments, arrangements and
understandings with respect to the nomination oppsal between or among such shareholder, sucliidiahewner, if any, or any of
their associated parties, including, in the
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case of a nomination, any nominee, his or her atiseaffiliates and associates, and any otheia@at concert with any of the
foregoing, and (E) a representation whether theefizdder, the beneficial owner, if any, or anylodit associated parties intends or is
of a group which intends (1) to deliver at its opast a proxy statement or form of proxy to hold=rat least the percentage of the
Corporation$ outstanding capital stock required to approvadmpt the proposal or elect any one or more ohtminees or (2) otherwi
to solicit proxies or votes from shareholders ippart of such proposal or nominees; (ii) if theio®trelates to any business other than a
nomination of a director or directors that the shatder proposes to bring before the meeting,a@stt {A) a brief description of the
business desired to be brought before the medtiageasons for conducting such business at théngesnd any material interest of si
shareholder, any such beneficial owner or any eif #fissociated parties in such business, and ettt of any resolutions proposed for
consideration and, if applicable, the text of anggosed additions, amendments or other changes/tdaument governing the internal
affairs of the Corporation; (iii) set forth, aséach person, if any, whom the shareholder propesesminate for election or reelection to
the Board of Directors (A) all information relating such person that would be required to be dieddn a proxy statement or other
filings required to be made in connection with sitditions of proxies for election of directors ik@ntested election pursuant to

Section 14 of the Exchange Act and the rules agdlations promulgated thereunder (including sualsq@®s written consent to being
named in the proxy statement as a nominee anditinges a Director if elected) and (B) a descoptof all direct and indirect
compensation and other material monetary agreerremggements and understandings during the Im&st years, and any other
material relationships, between or among such kbéder and beneficial owner, if any, or any of tresociated parties, on the one hanc
and each proposed nominee, his or her respecfiliata and associates, or any others acting inted with any of the foregoing, on the
other hand, including without limitation all infoation that would be required to be disclosed purst@altem 404 of Regulation S-K
promulgated under the federal securities lawsdfghareholder making the nomination and any beakfievner on whose behalf the
nomination is made, if any, any affiliate or assteithereof or any other person acting in concéht any of the foregoing were the
“registrant” for purposes of such item and the nweiwere a director or executive officer of suafisteant; (iv) with respect to each
nominee for election or reelection to the Boardakctors, include both a completed and duly exetwefuestionnaire and a duly exect
agreement, each as required by Section 5.4(djoBylaw; and (v) be corrected, updated, suppleatnt recertified if and to the extent
required under Section 5.4(f) of this Bylaw.

5.2 Special Meetings of Shareholdt.

(a) At any special meeting of the shareholders dalwened in accordance with these Bylaws, onlf usiness shall be
conducted or considered as shall have been properlight before the meeting pursuant to the Cotmora notice of meeting. To be
properly brought before a special meeting, promosalst be (i) specified in the Corporation’s notieneeting (or any supplement
thereto) given by or at the direction of the Boafdirectors or given by the Secretary of the Cogpion under La. R.S. 12:73B (or any
successor provision) and Article VI(B) of the Aléis of Incorporation or (ii) otherwise properly bght before the special meeting by or
at the direction of the Board of Directors.

(b) Nominations of persons for election to the Bbai Directors may be made at a special meetirghafeholders at which
directors are to be elected pursuant to the Cotipora notice of meeting (i) by or at the directiohthe Board of Directors or
(ii) provided that the Board of Directors has detigred that directors shall be elected at such mggehily any shareholder of the
Corporation who (A) is a shareholder of recorchattime of giving of notice provided for in this By and at the time of the special
meeting, (B) is entitled to vote at the meeting] &8) complies with the notice procedures set fort8ection 5.2(c) of this Bylaw as to
such nomination.

(c) Subject to Section 5.4(c) of this Bylaw, in #neent the Corporation calls a special meetindghafeholders for the purpose of
electing one or more directors to the Board of Eiwes, any such shareholder entitled to vote im&iection of directors may nominate a
person or persons (as the case may be) for eldctismch position(s) as specified in the Corporasimotice of meeting, if the
shareholder’s notice required by Section 5.1(khif Bylaw with respect to any nomination (incluglithe completed and
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signed questionnaire, representation and agreemguired by Section 5.4(d) of this Bylaw) shalldedivered to the Secretary of the
Corporation at the principal executive office of lBorporation not earlier than the close of busiresthe 120th day prior to the date of
such special meeting and not later than the clbbesiness on the later of the 90th day prior ®dhte of such special meeting or, if the
first public announcement of the date of such seneeting is less than 100 days prior to the dhsrich special meeting, the 10th day
following the day on which public announcementiistfmade of the date of the special meeting anti@hominees proposed by the
Board of Directors to be elected at such meeting.

53 RESERVED]
5.3 Proxy Access Rights.

(a) Whenever the Corporation solicits proxies withrespect to an election of directors at an annual nating, the Corporation
shall, subject to the terms and conditions of thiSection 5.3, (i) include in its proxy statement fothe annual meeting the name,
together with the Required Information (as definedbelow), of any person nominated for election (eacsuch person being
hereinafter referred to as a “Shareholder Nominee”}o the Board of Directors by a shareholder that stésfies, or by a group of no
more than ten shareholders that satisfy, the requaments of this Section 5.3 (such individual or grqu including as the context
requires each member thereof, being hereinafter refred to as the “Eligible Shareholder”) and all apgicable laws, and who
expressly elects at the time of providing the not&erequired by Section 5.3(g) of this Bylaw to havigs nominee or nominees
included in the Corporation’s proxy materials pursuant to this Section 5.3 and (ii) permit the Corporéon’s shareholders to vote
upon each such Shareholder Nominee, in addition tadividuals nhominated by the Board of Directors, inconnection with such
meeting. Such notice shall consist of a copy of Satule 14N duly filed with the U.S. Securities and ¥hange Commission in
accordance with Rule 14a-18 promulgated under theXthange Act and the information required to be deliered to the
Corporation by this Section 5.3 (all such informatbn collectively being hereinafter referred to as th “Section 5.3 Notice”), and
such notice shall be delivered to the Corporatiomi accordance with the procedures and during the tira period set forth in
Section 5.3(g) of this Bylaw.

(b) For purposes of Section 5.3(a) of this Bylawhe “Required Information” that the Corporation will include in its proxy
statement is (i) the information concerning the Shaholder Nominee and the Eligible Shareholder thais required to be disclosed
in the Corporation’s proxy statement by the regulaions promulgated under the Exchange Act, by theseyBaws, by the Articles of
Incorporation or by the Listing Standards (as defired below); and (ii) if the Eligible Shareholder s&lects, a Statement (as defined
below).

(c) The number of Shareholder Nominees (includingt®&reholder Nominees that were submitted by an Eliggle Shareholder
for inclusion in the Corporation’s proxy materials pursuant to this Section 5.3 but either are subseeauntly withdrawn or that the
Board of Directors decides to nominate as Board ddirector nominees) appearing in the Corporation’s poxy materials with
respect to an annual meeting shall not exceed 20% the number of directors in office as of the lastlay on which a Section 5.3
Notice of a nomination may be timely delivered purgant to Section 5.3(g) of this Bylaw, or if such aount is not a whole number,
the closest whole number below 20%. If for any reas one or more vacancies occur on the Board of Diceors after the date
referred to in the prior sentence but before the d&e of the annual meeting and the Board of Directorglects to reduce the size of
the Board of Directors in connection therewith, themaximum number of Shareholder Nominees eligible fanclusion in the
Corporation’s proxy materials pursuant to this Secton 5.3 shall be calculated based on the number directors in office as so
reduced. In the event that the number of ShareholdeNominees submitted by Eligible Shareholders pursant to this Section 5.3
exceeds this maximum number, each Eligible Sharehi#r will select one Shareholder Nominee for inclusi in the Corporation’s
proxy materials until the maximum number is reached selecting in order from the largest to the small& of such shareholders
based upon the number of shares of common stock ibie
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Corporation each Eligible Shareholder disclosed aswned in the Section 5.3 Notice submitted to the @uoration hereunder. If the
maximum number is not reached after each Eligible Bareholder has selected one Shareholder Nomineejgdlselection process will
continue as many times as necessary, following tsame order each time, until the maximum number iseached.

(d) In order to make a nomination pursuant to thisSection 5.3, an Eligible Shareholder must have owddas defined below)
3% or more of the Corporation’s outstanding commonstock continuously for at least three years (the “Bquired Shares”) as of
both the date the Section 5.3 Notice of the nominah is furnished in accordance with Section 5.3(g)f this Bylaw and the record
date for determining shareholders entitled to votet the annual meeting, and must continue to own thRequired Shares through
the applicable meeting date. To be in proper formiad effective for purposes of this Section 5.3, a &®n 5.3 Notice furnished to
the Secretary of the Corporation must: (i) set forh one or more written statements from the record hlgler of the shares (and from
each intermediary through which the shares are or &ve been held during the requisite three-year holdg period) verifying that,
as of a date within seven calendar days prior to thdate the Section 5.3 Notice is furnished, the Bible Shareholder owns, and has
owned continuously for the preceding three yearshe Required Shares, and the Eligible Shareholderagreement to provide,
within three business days after the record date fahe annual meeting, written statements from the ecord holder and such
intermediaries verifying the Eligible Shareholder'scontinuous ownership of the Required Shares througthe record date, along
with a written statement that the Eligible Sharehotler will continue to hold the Required Shares throgh the applicable meeting
date and intends to continue to hold the Requiredl&res for at least one additional year thereafter(ii) set forth the information
required to be included in a shareholder’s notice onomination pursuant to Section 5.1(c) of this Bdw (excluding item
(ii) thereof), together with the written consent ofeach Shareholder Nominee to be named in the Corpation’s proxy materials as ¢
nominee and to serving as a Director if elected;i{j include a representation (in the form providedby the Secretary of the
Corporation upon written request) that the Eligible Shareholder (A) acquired the Required Shares in th ordinary course of
business and not with the intent to change or inflence control at the Corporation, and that neither he Eligible Shareholder nor
the Shareholder Nominee or Shareholder Nominees & nominated thereby presently has such intent, (B)as not nominated and
will not nominate for election to the Board of Directors at the annual meeting any person other tharhe Shareholder Nominee or
Shareholder Nominees being nominated pursuant to th Section 5.3, (C) has not violated the proxy soitation rules promulgated
under the Exchange Act directly or indirectly in cannection with furnishing, or preparing to furnish, the Section 5.3 Notice, (D) h:
not engaged and will not engage in, and has not andll not be a “participant” in another person’s “solicitation” within the
meaning of Rule 14a-1(1) promulgated under the Ex@mge Act in support of the election of any individal as a Director at the
annual meeting other than its Shareholder Nomineerd&shareholder Nominees or a nominee of the Board @irectors, (E) will not
distribute to any shareholder any form of proxy forthe annual meeting other than the form distributedby the Corporation, and
(F) has provided and will continue to provide infomation in connection with the nomination hereundetthat is or will be true,
correct and complete in all material respects, andoes not and will not omit to state a material fachecessary in order to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances undevhich they were or will be made, not misleading(iv) include a written
undertaking (in the form provided by the Secretaryof the Corporation upon written request) that the Higible Shareholder agrees
to (A) assume all liability stemming from any legabr regulatory violation arising out of the communcations with shareholders of
the Corporation by the Eligible Shareholder, its afiliates and associates, or their respective agents representatives, either befort
or after the furnishing of the Section 5.3 Noticegr out of the information that the Eligible Sharehdder has provided or will
provide to the Corporation or filed or to be filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commissiomdluding an agreement to
indemnify the Corporation and its agents and represntatives in respect of any such liabilities, (B)amply with all other laws and
regulations applicable to any solicitation in connetion with the annual meeting, including without limitation Rule 14a-9
promulgated under the Exchange Act, and
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(C) promptly provide to the Corporation such additional information as requested pursuant to this Sein 5.3 or any other
subsection of this Section 5 of these Bylaws; and) (be corrected, updated, supplemented or recertéd if and to the extent
required under Section 5.4(f) of this Bylaw.

(e) Notwithstanding anything in these Bylaws to theontrary, the Corporation shall not be required toinclude, pursuant to
this Section 5.3, any nominee information in its prxy materials (i) with respect to any meeting of sreholders for which the
Secretary of the Corporation receives a notice thahe Eligible Shareholder or any other shareholdeof the Corporation has
nominated one or more persons for election to thedard of Directors pursuant to the advance notice rguirements set forth in
Section 5.1 of this Bylaw, (ii) concerning any Shaholder Nominee who (A) is not independent under thindependence Standards
(as defined below in Section 5.4(d) of this Bylawas determined in good faith by the Board of Direcirs or one or more of its
committees, (B) provides any information to the Cgporation or its shareholders required or requestecpursuant to any subsection
of this Section 5 of these Bylaws that is not accaite, truthful and complete in all material respectsor that otherwise contravenes
any of the agreements or representations made byeétShareholder Nominee in connection with the nomirin, (C) has been an
officer or director of a competitor, as defined inSection 8 of the Clayton Antitrust Act of 1914, wihin the past three years, (D) is a
named subject of a pending criminal proceeding (ekaeding traffic violations and other minor offenses)or has been convicted in
such a criminal proceeding within the past ten year or (E) is subject to any order of the type spedéd in Rule 506(d) of Regulatiol
D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, ammended, or (iii) with respect to any Eligible Shagholder who (A) provides
any information to the Corporation or its shareholders required or requested pursuant to any subsectioof this Section 5 of these
Bylaws that is not accurate, truthful and completen all material respects or (B) otherwise fails, omominates any Shareholder
Nominee who fails, to comply with its obligations prsuant to any subsection of this Section 5 of theBylaws.

(f) The Eligible Shareholder may, at its option, povide to the Secretary of the Corporation, at theiine the information
required by this Section 5.3 is provided, a writterstatement for inclusion in the Corporation’s proxystatement for the annual
meeting, not to exceed 500 words, in support of tighareholder Nominee’s candidacy (the “Statement”)Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained in this Sectiorb.3, the Corporation may omit from its proxy materials any information or
Statement that it, in good faith, believes is matéally false or misleading, omits to state any matéal fact, or would violate any
applicable law or regulation.

(9) Notwithstanding the procedures set forth in Seion 5.1 or 5.2 of this Bylaw, any Section 5.3 Nat, to be timely under this
Section 5.3, must be received by the Secretary ¢fet Corporation at the principal executive office othe Corporation within the
time period applicable to notices of shareholder mposals made at annual meetings pursuant to Rule 448 promulgated under the
Exchange Act.

(h) For purposes of this Section 5.3, an EligibleHareholder shall be deemed to “own” only those outanding shares of
common stock of the Corporation as to which the shaholder possesses both (i) the full voting and imstment rights pertaining to
the shares and (ii) the full economic interest inifcluding the opportunity for profit and risk of lo ss on) such shares; providethat
the number of shares calculated in accordance witblauses (i) and (ii) shall not include any sharex) sold by such shareholder or
any of its affiliates in any transaction that has ot been settled or closed, (y) borrowed by such stednolder or any of its affiliates
for any purposes or purchased by such shareholder any of its affiliates pursuant to an agreement tadesell or (z) subject to any
option, warrant, forward contract, swap, contract o sale, other derivative or similar agreement entezd into by such shareholder
or any of its affiliates, whether any such instrumat or agreement is to be settled with shares or witcash based on the notional
amount or value of shares of outstanding common stk of the Corporation, if, in any such case, suchstrument or agreement
has, or is intended to have, the purpose or effeof (1) reducing in any manner, to any extent or aany time in the future, such
shareholder’s or affiliates’ full right to vote or direct the voting of any such shares or (2) hedging
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offsetting or altering to any degree gain or lossrésing from the full economic ownership of such shaes by such shareholder or
affiliate. For purposes of this Section 5.3, a shaholder shall “own” shares held in the name of a mainee or other intermediary so
long as the shareholder retains the right to instrat how the shares are voted with respect to the elgon of directors and possesses
the full economic interest in the shares. A sharelider's ownership of shares shall be deemed to contie during any period in
which the shareholder has delegated any voting powby means of a proxy, power of attorney or othernstrument or arrangement
which is revocable at any time by the shareholdehe terms “owned,” “owning” and other variations of the word “own” shall

have correlative meanings. Whether outstanding shas of the common stock of the Corporation are “owré for these purposes
shall be determined in good faith by the Board of Dectors.

(i) Whenever the Eligible Shareholder consists of group of more than one shareholder, each provisioim this Section 5.3
that requires the Eligible Shareholder to provide ay written statements, representations, undertaking, agreements or other
instruments or to meet any other conditions shall & deemed to require each shareholder that is a membof such group to
provide such statements, representations, undertak@s, agreements or other instruments and to meet sl other conditions. No
person may be a member of more than one group of ns constituting an Eligible Shareholder with repect to any annual
meeting.

() Any Shareholder Nominee who is included in th&orporation’s proxy materials for a particular annu al meeting of
shareholders but either (i) withdraws from or becones ineligible or unavailable for election at the amual meeting or (ii) does not
receive at least 25% of the votes cast in favor ttie Shareholder Nominee’s election will be ineligile to be a Shareholder Nominee
pursuant to this Section 5.3 for the next two annuaneetings.

(k) This Section 5.3 provides the exclusive methddr shareholders to include nominees for Directorn the Corporation’s
proxy materials.

5.4 Other Related Provisior.

(a) Subject to Section 5.4(c) of this Bylaw, onlick persons who are nominated in accordance wétiptbcedures set forth in this
Section 5 of these Bylaws shall be eligible to leeted at a meeting of shareholders to serve afoirs and only such business shall be
conducted at a meeting of shareholders as shad Ibeen brought before the meeting in accordandethét procedures set forth in this
Section 5 of these Bylaws. Except as otherwiseigeavby law, the Articles of Incorporation or théddaws, the Chairman of the
meeting shall have the power and duty (i) to deteenvhether a nomination or any business propasée brought before the meeting
was made or proposed, as the case may be, in acweardvith the procedures set forth in this Sedioh these Bylaws (including witho
limitation whether (A) the shareholder or beneficaner, if any, on whose behalf the nominatioprposal is made solicited (or is part
of a group which solicited) or did not so soliei§ the case may be, proxies or votes in suppsuaf shareholder’'s nominee or proposal
in compliance with such shareholder’s represemdtionished pursuant to Section 5.1(c)(i)(E) o§tBylaw and (B) such shareholder,
any such beneficial owner, and any such nominealysand timely furnished all information or agneents required to be furnished
under this Section 5 of these Bylaws and compligh all undertakings, representations or commitmeassociated therewith) and (i) if
any proposed nomination or business is not in c@npé with this Section 5 of these Bylaws, to decthat such defective proposal or
nomination shall be disregarded.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions ofstiection 5 of these Bylaws, a shareholder stedl @mply with all applicable
requirements of the Exchange Act and the rulesragdlations promulgated thereunder with respetiieamatters set forth in this
Section 5provided, howeverthat any references in these Bylaws to the Exghdct or the rules promulgated thereunder are not
intended to and shall not limit the requirementgliapble to nominations or proposals as to anyrdblisiness to be considered pursuant
to Section 5.1(a)(iii) e+Section 5.2(b)(iipr Section 5.3of this Bylaw.
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(c) Except for proposals properly made in accordamith Rule 14a-8 promulgated under the ExchangeaAd included in the
notice of meeting duly given by or at the directafrthe Board of Directors under this Section 5ha&fse Bylaws, compliance with
Section 5.1(a)(iii} eretSection 5.2(b)(ijand Section 5.3%hall be the exclusive means for a shareholderig Inatters before an annual
meeting of shareholders or a special meeting aklwdders, respectively. Nothing in this Bylaw s$te deemed to affect any rights (i)
shareholders to request inclusion of proposallénCorporation’s proxy statement pursuant to Rdk-8 under the Exchange Act or
(ii) of the holders of any series of Preferred &tid@nd to the extent provided for under law, Aéicles of Incorporation or these Byla
Except as otherwise expressly provided to the eonin Rule 14a-&r Section 5.3, nothing in these Bylaws shall be construed toniter
any shareholder, or give any shareholder the rtghhclude or have disseminated or describedén@bmpany’s proxy statement any
director nominations or any other proposal.

(d) To be eligible to be a nominee for electiomemlection as a Director of the Corporation, a @ersominated by any shareholder
must deliver (in accordance with the time periodsspribed for delivery of notice under the applleadubsection of this Section 5 of
these Bylaws) to the Secretary of the Corporatidheprincipal executive office of the Corporat@mvritten questionnaire with respect
to the background and qualification of such persad the background of any other person or entitwloose behalf the nomination is
being made (which questionnaire shall be providethb Secretary of the Corporation upon writterues) and a written agreement (in
the form provided by the Secretary of the Corporatipon written request) that such person (i) tsamal will not become a party to
(A) any agreement, arrangement or understandirty, aitd has not given any commitment or assuran@foperson or entity as to how
such person, if elected as a Director of the Cafpam, will act or vote on any issue or questiofiating Commitment”) that has not
been fully disclosed in writing to the Board of &dtors or (B) any Voting Commitment that could limi interfere with such person’s
ability to comply, if elected as a Director of t@erporation, with such person’s fiduciary dutieslenapplicable Louisiana law, (ii) is not
and will not become a party to any agreement, gearent or understanding with any person or entltgrothan the Corporation with
respect to any direct or indirect compensatiombeirsement or indemnification in connection witkelsperson’s candidacy, service or
action as a Director that has not been fully disetbin writing to the Board of Directors, (iii) such person’s individual capacity and on
behalf of any person or entity on whose behalfrtbmination is being made, would be in compliantelgcted as a Director of the
Corporation, and will comply with all applicablelgicly-disclosed corporate governance, conflicindérest, ethics, confidentiality, stock
ownership and trading policies and guidelines ef@worporation, (iv) acknowledges that, if electecddirector of the Corporation, such
person will owe a fiduciary duty, under applicabtauisiana law, to the Corporation and its sharetidd(v) represents that all of the
information that such person has provided andpvdlide is or will be true, correct and completalihmaterial respects, and does not
and will not omit to state a material fact necegsaworder to make the statements made, in lighhefcircumstances under which they
were or will be made, not misleading, (vi) meets] avill continue to meet, all qualifications to geras a Director of the Corporation
specified in Section 11 of Article 1l of these Bwisior Article IV(F) of the Articles of Incorporatip and is otherwise in all respects
eligible, and will continue to be eligible, to seras a Director without causing the Corporatiobedn violation of these Bylaws, the
Articles of Incorporation, the Listing Standards (kefined below), or any other applicable statfederal law or regulation and (vii) will
abide by the requirements of Section 8.3 of Artldef these Bylaws. The Corporation may requirg proposed nominee to furnish
such other information (i) as may reasonably beiested by the Corporation to determine whethebihector would be independent
under the Listing Standards, any applicable rufehe®U.S. Securities and Exchange Commissionngipablicly-disclosed standards
used by the Board of Directors in determining aistldsing the independence of the Corporation’®&rs (collectively, the
“Independence Standards”), (ii) that could be nialéo a reasonable shareholder’s understandirnigeoindependence, or lack thereof, of
such nominee or (iii) that may reasonably be reqglifo determine the eligibility of such nominees¢msve as a Director of the Corporat

(e) The right of any shareholder to make any notigna or proposals under any subsection of thisi@eé of these Bylaws is
subject to the condition that the shareholder obre deliver (in accordance
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with the time limits prescribed for delivery of i under the applicable subsection of this Sediohthese Bylaws) to the Secretary of
the Corporation at the principal executive offiéghe Corporation a written representation thdtesitsuch record shareholder or the
beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the naation or proposal is being made intends to attBedapplicable meeting of
shareholders to address any questions regardingpthaation or proposal and, in the event of anmimation or proposal made pursuant
to Section 5.1 or 5.2 of these Bylaws, to propassh sction at the meeting.

(H Any notice or information furnished under anybsection of this Section 5 of these Bylaws shalptomptly corrected if the
party furnishing it becomes aware of a materiadgmeficiency or change in circumstances. In aaldjtany party providing any notice or
information under any subsection of Section 5 ekthBylaws must deliver to the Secretary of thep@ation at the principal executive
office of the Corporation, not later than threeibass days after the record date for the meetidgtmee business days after the date tha
is ten business days prior to the meeting or ajguadment or postponement thereof, (A) any sucliteniupdates and supplements
necessary to ensure that the notice or informatiemiously provided or required to be provided Bhaltrue and correct as of both such
dates or (B) a written certification that no sugdates or supplements are necessary and thattioe npinformation previously provid
remains true and correct as of both such dates.

(g) For purposes of this Section 5 of these Bylgisaffiliate” and “associate” shall each havetrespective meanings ascribed to
them in Rule 405 promulgated under the Securitietsof 1933, as amendepkovided, howeverthat with respect to any investment
company (as defined in the Investment Company A&Bd0, as amended, whether or not exempt fronstiegion thereunder), “affiliate”
shall also include all other investment companiasaged by the same investment adviser or any affitiates, (ii) “public
announcement” shall mean disclosure in a presageleeported by a national news service or in amdeat publicly filed by the
Corporation with the U.S. Securities and Exchangmfission pursuant to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) efEkchange Act and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder, and (iii) “ingtStandards” shall mean the rules and listingdsiads of the principal U.S. securities
exchange upon which the Corporation’s common si®tikted.

(h) In no event shall any adjournment or postpon#rogéan annual or special meeting or the annouecetimereof commence a
new time period (or extend any time period) for ginéng of any notice required under any subseatibthis Section 5 of these Bylaws.
In no event shall a shareholder be permitted toaghany person nominated to serve as a Directaruam/ subsection of this Section 5
of these Bylaws after the end of the last day efdpplicable notice period, even if the proposeadinee dies, is incapacitated, is
disqualified for any reason (including failure teet or to continue to meet any requirements impasee@r any subsection of this
Section 5 of these Bylaws), resigns or is otherwiseilling or unable to serve for any other reason.

(i) The Board of Directors or a committee thereafynadopt such rules or guidelines for applyinggt®risions of this Section 5 of
these Bylaws as it determines are appropriate.€Taobsidered duly furnished or delivered hereurai®y,notice, undertaking,
guestionnaire, agreement or other instrument reduo be provided under any subsection of thisi@eé&t of these Bylaws must be
furnished or delivered in a form reasonably satigfiy to the Board of Directors or one or moretsfaommittees.
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL ANNUAL REPORT
December 31, 2013

The materials included in this Appendix B are egtat from Items 5, 6, 7 and 8 of our Annual ReporForm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013, which we filed with the Seasiéind Exchange Commission on February 27, 20b&selsee the Form -K for
additional information about our business and offienas.

Information On Our Trading Price And Dividen B-3
Selected Financial Da B-4
Managemer's Discussion And Analysis Of Financial ConditiondAResults Of Operatior B-6
Consolidated Financial Statements And Supplemematg B-40
Report of Managemel B-40
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm B-41
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfding B-42
Consolidated Statements of Operati B-43
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Losg)ie B-44
Consolidated Balance She B-45
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl¢ B-46
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity B-47
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statem:e B-48

* All references t¢‘Note¢” in this Appendix B refer to these Not
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INFORMATION ON OUR TRADING PRICE AND DIVIDENDS

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stockliange (“NYSE”) and the Berlin Stock Exchange anttaded under the symbol
CTL and CYT, respectively. The following table stgh the high and low reported sales prices @NN SE along with the quarterly
dividends, for each of the quarters indicated.

Sales Price Dividend per

Common
High Low Share

2013

First quarte! $42.01 32.0¢ 0.54(
Second quarte 38.4( 33.8¢ 0.54(
Third quartel 36.4¢ 31.21 0.54(
Fourth quarte 34.1¢ 29.9: 0.54(
2012

First quartel $40.5¢ 36.2¢ 0.72¢
Second quarte 39.8¢ 36.91 0.72¢
Third quartel 43.4: 38.9¢ 0.72¢
Fourth quarte 40.4¢ 36.52 0.72¢

Common stock dividends during 2013 and 2012 weie gech quarter. On February 24, 2014, our Boafdifctors declared a common
stock dividend of $0.54 per share.

As described in greater detail in Item 1A of oumiial Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decer8he2013, the declaration and
payment of dividends is at the discretion of ounbof Directors, and will depend upon our finahoésults, cash requirements, future
prospects and other factors deemed relevant bi3oard of Directors.

At February 18, 2014, there were approximately Q80 stockholders of record although there wereifsigimtly more beneficial holders
of our common stock. At February 18, 2014, theinlpstock price of our common stock was $30.95.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables of selected consolidated firiahdata should be read in conjunction with, arelqualified by reference to, our
consolidated financial statements and notes thérdtem 8 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K foetpear ended December 31, 2013 and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations” in Item 7 of &nnual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2013.

The tables of selected financial data shown bel@ndarived from our audited consolidated finanstatements. These historical results
are not necessarily indicative of results that gan expect for any future period.

The results of operations include Savvis for pesiafter July 15, 2011, Qwest for periods after Apr2011 and Embarq for periods after
July 1, 2009.

Selected financial information from the consolidhstatements of operations data is as follows:

Years Ended December 31(1)
2013() 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions, except per share amount:
and shares in thousands)

Operating revenue $ 18,09¢ 18,37¢ 15,35 7,04z 4,97¢
Operating expense 16,64: 15,66: 13,32¢ 4,982 3,741
Operating incom $ 1,45:% 2,718 2,02¢ 2,06( 1,23¢
Income before income tax exper 224 1,25( 94¢ 1,531 813
Net (loss) incomi (239) 777 573 94¢ 647
Basic (loss) earnings per common sk (0.40 1.2 1.07 3.13 3.2t
Diluted (loss) earnings per common sh (0.40 1.2t 1.07 3.13 3.2¢
Dividends declared per common sh 2.1¢ 2.9C 2.9C 2.9C 2.8C
Weighted average basic common shares outstal 600,89: 620,20! 532,78( 300,61¢ 198,81
Weighted average diluted common shares outstar 600,89: 622,28! 534,12: 301,29° 199,05°

(1) See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis n&fcial Condition and Results of Operations—ResiflQperations” in Item 7 of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmem31, 2013 for a discussion of unusual itemsctffg the results for the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2

(2) We recorded a non-cash, non-tax-deductible gdbinpairment charge of $1.092 billion for goodiattributed to our data hosting
segment and a litigation settlement charge of $8B%on recorded in 2012

Selected financial information from the consolidbb@lance sheets is as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)
Net property, plant and equipme®) $18,64¢ 18,90¢ 19,36: 8,75¢ 9,09
Goodwill @@®) 20,67 21,627 21,627 10,26. 10,25:
Total asset 51,78° 53,94( 55,96¢ 22,03¢ 22,56
Total lon¢-term deb® 20,96¢ 20,60t 21,83¢ 7,32¢ 7,754
Total stockholder equity® 17,19: 19,28¢ 20,821 9,64 9,46

(1) We have reclassified certain prior year balasteeet amounts presented in our Annual Report om BO-K for the year ended
December 31, 2012 to conform to the current pegpi@dentation. Specifically, we have reclassified3tillion and $83 million in
software development costs, net of $30 million $8dnillion in accumulated amortization, from praogyeplant and equipment to other
intangible assets on our consolida
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balance sheet as of December 31, 2012, and 2GHeatvely. We have also reclassified $28 milliod $8 million from depreciation
expense to amortization expense in our statemémisavations for the years ended December 31, 2682011, respectively. The
correction of the error did not have an effect an@nsolidated statements of operations or ous@afated statements of cash flows for
the years ended December 31, 2012 and

(2) We recorded a non-cash, non-tax-deductible gdbinpairment charge of $1.092 billion during 2Dfor goodwill attributed to our data
hosting segmen

(3) During the year ended December 31, 2013, werded a correction of an error related to an oaéestent of our net deferred tax liability
recorded in connection with the purchase accourfri§avvis and Qwest in 2011. Therefore, we recaghia $105 million decrease in
our net deferred tax liability and a $105 millieeduction to goodwill on our consolidated balanceett as of December 31, 2012 and
2011. The correction of the error did not have f&ce on our consolidated statements of operatarsur consolidated statements of ¢
flows for the years ended December 31, 2012 and.

(4) Total long-term debt is the sum of current miéis of long-term debt and long-term debt on comsolidated balance sheets. For total
obligations, see “Management’s Discussion and Asialgf Financial Condition and Results of Operatiet-uture Contractual
Obligation? in Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Selected financial information from the consolidbs¢atements of cash flows is as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 5,55¢ 6,06¢ 4,201 2,04¢ 1,57¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (3,149 (2,690 (3,64 (859) (679
Net cash used in financing activiti (2,459 (3,299 (577 (1,175 (97¢€)
Payments for property, plant and equipment andali@g®d software (3,049 (2,919 (2,41) (869) (755)

The following table presents certain selected clissi®@d operating data as of the following dates:

Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands except for data centers, which ar

actuals)
Total broadband subscribe® 5,991 5,851 5,658 2,34¢ 2,18¢
Total access line® 13,00: 13,75 14,58° 6,48¢ 7,02
Total data centei® 55 54 51 — —

(1) Broadband subscribers are customers that psedhigh-speed Internet connection service throligin éxisting telephone lines and fiber-
optic cables, and access lines are lines reaching the custome’ premises to a connection with the public netw

(2) The prior year numbers have been adjustedctade the operational metrics of our wholly ownebsidiary, El Paso County Telephone
Company, which had been previously excluded. Theegmse (in thousands) related to including El Rzmanty Telephone Company’s
broadband subscribers and access lines, in the adlolve, is approximately 3 and 3, respecti

(3) Data centers are located throughout North AmeEcaiope and Asic

B-5



Table of Contents

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Certain statements in this Appendix B constitutesdod-looking statements. See “Special Note RegaydHorward-Looking Statements
and Related Matters” in Item 1 of our Annual RepamtForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, Z6d 8ctors relating to these
statements and “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of our AahReport on Form 16 for the year ended December 31, 2013 for a disionsof certair
risk factors applicable to our business, finanaahdition and results of operations.

OVERVIEW

We are an integrated communications company engag@erily in providing an array of communicatioservices to our residential,
business, governmental and wholesale customersc@umunications services include local and longadise, broadband, private line
(including special access), Multi-Protocol Labelighing (“MLPS”), data integration, managed host{including cloud hosting), colocation,
Ethernet, network access, public access, wirelédso services and other ancillary services. Wegesto maintain our customer relationships
by, among other things, bundling our service offfgsi to provide our customers with a complete affgof integrated communications servic

At December 31, 2013, we operated approximatel§ @8llion access lines in 37 states, served apprately 6.0 million broadband
subscribers, and operated 55 data centers throtilooth America, Europe and Asia. Our methodolagydounting access lines may not be
comparable to those of other companies.

Our consolidated financial statements include ttemants of CenturyLink, Inc. (“CenturyLink”) andsitajority-owned subsidiaries.
These subsidiaries include SAVVIS, Inc. (“Savvisiijce July 15, 2011 and Qwest Communications laternal Inc. (“Qwest”) since April 1,
2011. See Note 2—Acquisitions to our consolidatedrfcial statements in Item 8 of our Annual Reporf-orm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013. We discuss below, under “Restilperations—Segment Results”, certain trendswiieabelieve are significant, even if
they are not necessarily material to the combirsedpany.

In the discussion that follows, we refer to ther@mental business activities that we now operaterasult of the Savvis acquisition and
the Qwest acquisition as “Legacy Savvis” and “Lgg@evest”, respectively. References to “Legacy Ceyitink”, when used in reference to a
comparison of our consolidated results for the yemded December 31, 2011, mean the business wegegperior to the Qwest and Savvis
acquisitions. Due to the magnitude of our recequasitions in relation to Legacy CenturyLink opéras, in the combined company variance
discussions below for 2012 and 2011 we have sepanatflected the impacts of both the Legacy Qveest Legacy Savvis operations for
enhanced visibility, although we actively manage¢bmbined company through our four segments,sasised further below.

B-6



Table of Contents

We have incurred certain non-recurring operatingeases related to our acquisitions of Savvis iy 20IL1, Qwest in April 2011 and
Embarq in July 2009. These expenses are reflestedst of services and products and selling, géaachadministrative expenses in our
consolidated statements of operations, as summniabigiew.

Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Cost of services and produc

Integration and other expenses associated withigitiqns $ 15 22 43
Severance expenses, accelerated recognition af-blased awards and retention

compensation associated with acquisiti — — 24
Total $ 15 22 67

Selling, general and administrati\

Expenses incurred to effect acquisitic $ — — 79
Integration and other expenses associated withigitiqns 28 25 172
Severance expenses, accelerated recognition af-blased awards and retention

compensation associated with acquisiti 10 36 14¢
Total $ 38 61 40C

This table does not include costs incurred by QweS&avvis prior to being acquired by us. Basedument plans and information, we
estimate, in relation to our Qwest acquisitionakattegration, severance and retention expensies lietween $630 million to $654 million
(which includes approximately $511 million of curative expenses incurred through December 31, 281@pur capital expenditures
associated with integration activities will appnmeite $200 million (which includes approximately $Iillion of cumulative capital
expenditures incurred through December 31, 2018 aWicipate that the amount of our integrationtcosfuture years will vary substantially
based on integration activities conducted durirggé¢hperiods and could in certain cases be higherttiose incurred by us during the year
ended December 31, 2013.

During the first quarter of 2013, we announcedaganization of our operating segments. Consequarinow report the following for
segments in our consolidated financial statemeatssumer, business, wholesale and data hostingprithary purpose of the reorganization
was to strengthen our focus on the business mahiét continuing our commitment to our wholesalesting and consumer customers. The
reorganization combined business sales and opesdtimctions that formerly resided in the entemrigarkets-network segment and the
regional markets segment into the new unified lssrsegment. The remaining customers formerly by the regional markets segment
became the new consumer segment. Each of the tsagments are described further below:

. Consumer.Consists generally of providing strategic and ¢ggaroducts and services to residential consun@us strategic
products and services offered to these customelsda our broadband, wireless and video servicetyding our Prism TV
services. Our legacy services offered to theseomests include local and lo-distance service

. Business Consists generally of providing strategic and éggaroducts and services to commercial, enterpgiedal and
governmental customers. Our strategic productssandces offered to these customers include ouafiline, broadband,
Ethernet, Multiprotocol Label Switching (“MPLS"),0fce over Internet Protocol (“VolP”), and networlanagement services. Our
legacy services offered to these customers indlhuci and lon-distance service

. Wholesale.Consists generally of providing strategic and éggaroducts and services to other communicatioogigers. Our
strategic products and services offered to thestomers are mainly private line (including speeaiatess), dedicated internet acc
digital subscriber line (“DSL") and MPLS. Our legaservices offered to these customers includedhale of our services, the sale
of
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unbundled network elements (“UNEs”) which allow eurolesale customers to use our network or a coatibim of our network
and their own networks to provide voice and datgises to their customers, long-distance and swiichccess services and other

services, including billing and collection, polental, floor space and database servi

. Data hosting Consists primarily of providing colocation, manddesting and cloud hosting services to commereiztkrprise,

global and governmental custome

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table summarizes the results of camsolidated operations for the years ended DeceBih&t013, 2012 and 2011. Our
operating results include operations of Savvigiiods after July 15, 2011 and Qwest for peridtes @pril 1, 2011.

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions except
per share amounts)

Operating revenue $18,09¢ 18,37¢ 15,351
Operating expense 16,64: 15,66: 13,32¢
Operating incom 1,45: 2,71z 2,02¢
Other income (expens (1,229 (1,469 (1,077
Income tax expens 463 478 37E
Net (loss) incom $ (239 777 572

Basic (loss) earnings per common sk $ (0.40 1.2 1.07

Diluted (loss) earnings per common sh $ (0.40 1.2 1.07

Due to our acquisitions of Qwest on April 1, 20kt &avvis on July 15, 2011, our 2013 and 2012 dipgreesults reflect a full year of
Qwest’'s and Savvis’ results, as compared to oufl 2@Erating results, which reflect only nine month®wests operating results and five a

a half months of Savvis’ operating results.

The change from net income of $777 million in 2842 net loss of $239 million in 2013 is primarilye to a goodwill impairment
charge of $1.092 billion and a charge of $235 onillin connection with a litigation settlement restenl in 2013. The increase in net income of
$204 million in 2012 was primarily due to the 2Qd&¥iod containing a full year of Qwest’'s operatiegults compared to the 2011 period only
containing nine months and a significant decreas®a 2011 in the amount of acquisition, severanckiategration expenses resulting from
recent acquisitions, as presented in the tablerthde'Overview” section above. The post-acquisitiperations of Legacy Savvis and Legacy
Qwest, which included substantial severance amdjiation expenses and significant acquisition acting adjustments to depreciation and
amortization expense, did not contribute signiftbato our consolidated net income in 2011. SeeeNbt-Acquisitions and Note 3—Goodwiill,
Customer Relationships and Other Intangible Agsetair consolidated financial statements in Iteof 8ur Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2013. In additiondseliactors, growth in strategic services revefbih we describe further below) over the
past couple of years did not fully offset lowereaues from other services and products, which gldognward pressures on our revenues.

Diluted (loss) earnings per common share in 2018 lwaer than 2012 primarily due to the above-désdrigoodwill impairment charge
of $1.092 bhillion and a litigation settlement chevaf $235 million recorded in 2013. Diluted earrsiqmer common share in 2012 was higher

than 2011 as a result of increased net incomeddg 2
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The following table summarizes our broadband suibsis, access lines, data centers and number dbgegs:

As of December 31
2013 2012() 20116
(in thousands except for datz
centers, which are actuals

Operational metrics

Total broadband subscribe®) 5,991 5,851 5,65t
Total access line® 13,00: 13,75: 14,587
Total data centei® 55 54 51
Total employee 46.€ 47.C 49.2

(1) Broadband subscribers are customers that psedhigh-speed Internet connection service throligin éxisting telephone lines and fiber-
optic cables, and access lines are lines reaching the custome’ premises to a connection with the public netw

(2) The prior year numbers have been adjustedctade the operational metrics of our wholly ownebsidiary, El Paso County Telephone
Company, which had been previously excluded. Theegse (in thousands) related to including El Rzmanty Telephone Company’s
broadband subscribers and access lines, in the adlolve, is approximately 3 and 3, respecti\

(3) Data centers are located throughout North AmeEcaiope and Asic

During the last several years, we have experiereeghue decline (excluding the impact of acquisgjgprimarily due to declines in
access lines, intrastate access rates and minutise.oTo mitigate these declines, we remain fodwseefforts to, among other things:

promote lon-term relationships with our customers through bungdbf integrated service

provide new services, such as video, cloud hostiranaged hosting, colocation and other additiosalises that may become
available in the future due to, among other thigtvances in technology or improvements in ouastfiucture

provide our broadband and premium services to lagnigercentage of our custome
pursue acquisitions of additional assets if avéglal attractive price:

increase usage of our networks; i

market our products and services to new custor

Operating Revenues

We currently categorize our products, servicesramdnues among the following four categories:

Strategic serviceswhich include primarily broadband, private lirlec{uding special access, which we market to whredkeand
business customers), MPLS (which is a data netwgrtéchnology that can deliver the quality of seeviequired to support real-
time voice and video), hosting (including cloud firoag and managed hosting), colocation, Ethernéewi(including our facilities-
based video services, which we now offer in tweharkets, and our resold satellite service), Vol& darizon Wireless service

Legacy service, which include primarily local, long-distance, sefied access, Integrated Services Digital Netwd&ON")
(which uses regular telephone lines to supportejoitdeo and data applications), and traditionaenarea network (“WAN")
services (which allows a local communications nekwo link to networks in remote location:

Data integration, which includes the sale of telecommunicationsmgent located on customers’ premises and relatefggsional
services, such as network management, installatidnmaintenance of data equipment and buildingagnetary fiber-optic
broadband networks for our governmental and busioestomers; ar

B-9



Table of Contents

. Other revenuesyhich consists primarily of USF revenue and surgbar Unlike the first three revenue categoriesrotevenues
are not included in our segment reveni

The following table summarizes our operating revsnunder our current revenue categorization:

Years Ended

December 31 Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Strategic service $ 8,827 8,421 39t 5%
Legacy service 7,617 8,221 (604) (M%
Data integratior 65€ 672 (16) (2)%
Other 1,00(¢ 1,05¢ (56) 5)%
Total operating revenut $18,09¢ 18,37¢ (281) (2)%

The following table summarizes our operating rewssnunder our current revenue categorization, wiigihesented in a manner that we
believe is useful for understanding the impachef Qwest and Savvis acquisitions:

Years Ended

December 31 Increase / (Decrease
2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwest Savvis Total
(Dollars in millions)
Strategic service $ 8,421 6,31 322 1,207 58t 2,11«
Legacy service 8,221 7,621 (64€) 1,24¢ — 60C
Data integratior 672 537 19 11€ — 13t
Other 1,05¢ 88C 44 132 — 17€
Total operating revenut $18,37¢  15,35! (265) 2,708 585  3,02¢

Operating revenues attributable to certain bundéslices were revised from legacy services toegifatservices. Specifically, the
revision resulted in a reduction of revenues fregaky services of $104 million and $51 million adorresponding increase in revenues fron
strategic services for the periods ended Decemhe2@®L2 and 2011, respectively. The revision waggponse to over-allocating discounts to
broadband services revenues and under-allocatsoguints to local and long-distance services reveennder bundled services arrangements,
which resulted in strategic services revenues beimtprstated and legacy services revenues beingtatesl.

Operating revenues attributable to certain CLE@ises were revised from strategic services to lggaevices. Specifically, the revision
resulted in a reduction of revenue from strategiwises of $38 million and a corresponding increéasevenue from legacy services for the
period ended December 31, 2012. The revision wassiponse to recording certain legacy servicesweggenerated through CLEC services
arrangements as strategic services revenues, wdsaltied in strategic services revenues being tatersand legacy services revenues being
understated. Due to system limitations, we haverdehed that it is impracticable to revise 2011rapieg revenues attributable to certain
CLEC services to conform to our current revenuegatization.

Our operating revenues decreased by $281 millioapproximately 2%, during the year ended DecerBtheP013 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2012. The decrease inuesénprimarily due to declines to legacy serviesgnues, which decreased by $
million, or 7%, and which reflect the continuing#oof access lines and loss of access revenuesaedowith internet and wireless substitu
in our markets. At December 31, 2013, we had apprately 13.0 million access lines, (about 59% ofakitare located in Legacy Qwest's
markets), or approximately 5.4% less than the nurabaccess lines we operated at December 31, 20&Zdelieve the decline in the number
of access lines was primarily due to the displaggroétraditional wireline telephone services blietcompetitive products and services. We
estimate that our access
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lines loss will be between 5.2% and 5.7% in 201¢at&gic services revenues increased by $395 mjlbo 5%, for the year ended

December 31, 2013 as compared to the year endeshiber 31, 2012 primarily from increased demanaitorMPLS, Ethernet, broadband,
facilities-based video and data hosting servicéschvwere partially offset by a decline in privéitees services. Data integration decreased by
$16 million, or 2%, for the year ended December281l,3 as compared to the year ended December 32,20narily due to declines in
governmental sales and professional services, whék partially offset by an increase in maintemeservices. Other revenue decreased by
$56 million, or 5%, for the year ended December281l,3 as compared to the year ended December 32,[20narily due to rate reductions
the federal universal service charges.

Our operating revenues increased by $3.025 bilbor20%, during the year ended December 31, 20tdmpared to the year ended
December 31, 2011. The increase in revenues isaphindue to our acquisitions of Qwest on April2D11 and Sawvis on July 15, 2011. As
reflected in the table above, our acquisitions we& and Savvis contributed incremental operagvgmues (net of intercompany eliminatio
of $2.7 billion and $585 million, respectively,aar 2012 revenues. Legacy CenturyLink operatingmees decreased $263 million, in 2012.
This decrease was primarily attributable to a decin legacy services revenues, which reflectectiminuing loss of access lines in our
markets. At December 31, 2012, we had 13.751 mibliccess lines, of which 8.058 million were in Leg@west’'s markets. Access lines in
our Legacy CenturyLink markets declined to 5.698iom at December 31, 2012 from 6.051 million atd@mber 31, 2011, a decrease of 5.9%
during 2012. We believe the decline in the numbercaess lines was primarily due to the displacamétraditional wireline telephone
services by other competitive products and servioes legacy services revenues were also negatimgdgcted in 2012 by the continued
reduction in access revenues and continued migraficustomers to bundled service offerings at logftective rates. The decrease in our
legacy services revenues was partially offset gy revenues from strategic services revenuesriigh) MPLS, Internet Protocol Television
(“IPTV"), VolP and broadband services accountedaanajority of the growth in strategic servicesenewes.

We are aggressively marketing our strategic sesviceluding our data hosting services) to offeet¢ontinuing declines in our legacy
services revenues. We believe our recent acquisisonce 2011 will strengthen our ability to acleidiris goal.

Further analysis of our operating revenues by segmerovided below in “Segment Results.”

Operating Expenses
Our current definitions of operating expenses arfobows:

. Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptieti and amortizationgre expenses incurred in providing products andcses
to our customers. These expenses include: empl®yated expenses directly attributable to operadimdy maintaining our network
(such as salaries, wages, benefits and profesdiess); facilities expenses (which include thirdtpaelecommunications expenses
we incur for using other carriers’ networks to pdevservices to our customers); rents and utilggsenses; equipment sales
expenses (such as data integration and modem eg)enssts for universal service funds (“USF”) (g¥hare federal and state
funds that are established to promote the avaitiploif telecommunications services to all consunaneasonable and affordable
rates, among other things, and to which we arenaftquired to contribute); litigation expenses a&ded with our operations; and
other expenses directly related to our networkteosting operation:

. Selling, general and administrative expenaescorporate overhead and other operating expefisese expenses include:
employee-related expenses (such as salaries, watgraal commissions, benefits and professiorneg)eirectly attributable to
selling products or services and employee-relaxpgreses for administrative functions; marketing addertising; property and
other operating taxes and fees; external commissglitigation expenses associated with generalargtbad debt expense; and
other selling, general and administrative exper
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These expense classifications may not be compat@aliese of other companies.

Total operating expenses increased by $979 milbo%, for the year ended December 31, 2013 apared to the year ended
December 31, 2012 and operating expenses incregsi2l 337 billion, or 18%, for the year ended DebenB1, 2012 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2011.

The following tables summarize our operating expens

Years Ended

December 31, Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptiri and amortizatior $ 7,50 7,63¢ (132) (2)%
Selling, general and administrati 3,50z 3,24¢ 25¢ 8%
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,541 4,78( (239) (B5)%
Impairment of goodwil 1,092 — 1,092 100%
Total operating expens: $16,64: 15,66 97¢ 6%
Years Ended
December 31 Increase / (Decrease
2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwest Savvis Total
(Dollars in millions)
Cost of services and products (exclusive of depteei and amortizatior $ 7,63¢ 6,32¢ (v3) 1,08: 30t 1,31«
Selling, general and administrati 3,24¢ 2,97¢ (367) 48% 152 26¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,78( 4,02¢ (149) 741 162 754
Total operating expens $15,66¢  13,32¢ (589  2,30¢ 62C 2,33

The increase in total operating expenses of $9Mbmfor fiscal 2013 over fiscal 2012 was subsialht impacted by a goodwill
impairment charge of $1.092 billion and a charg$285 million in connection with a litigation setthent recorded in 2013. Excluding the
effects of the goodwill impairment charge and &tign charge, total operating expenses for the geded December 31, 2013 decreased by
$348 million, or 2%, as compared to the year eridecember 31, 2012. The decrease was primarilyatable to lower depreciation and
amortization expense and lower employee relatets cbad debt expense and customer premise equipns¢gitation and maintenance costs,
which were partially offset by increases in fagilitosts, network expense and real estate and pmsés.

The acquisitions of Qwest and Savvis largely cboted to the increase in total operating expeng82.837 billion in 2012. Excluding
the effects of Legacy Qwest and Legacy Savvis esggrtotal operating expenses for the year endedrblger 31, 2012 decreased $589
million, due primarily to decreases in employeetedl expenses, severance and integration expeiasg to our recent acquisitions and
depreciation and amortization expense. As discuisstiet “Overview” section, our operating expene2013, 2012, and 2011 included
substantial severance and integration costs retatdtk Qwest, Savvis and Embarq acquisitions dlsagesignificant acquisition accounting
adjustments to depreciation and amortization expedse Note 2—Acquisitions and Note 3—Goodwill, ©8oeer Relationships and Other
Intangible Assets to our consolidated financialesteents in Iltem 8 of our Annual Report on Form 18Kthe year ended December 31, 2013.

Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptiri and amortization) decreased by $132 mill@mr2%, for the year ended
December 31, 2013 as compared to the year endeshiber 31, 2012 primarily due to decreases in psajaal fees, customer premise
equipment installation and maintenance costs amlm@me related costs. These decreases were padffdet by increases in facility costs,
network expenses and real estate
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and power. Cost of services and products (exclusfieiepreciation and amortization) increased b@$4 billion, or 21%, for the year months
ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the yead &etember 31, 2011 primarily due to the acquisitiof Qwest and Savvis. For the y
ended December 31, 2012, Legacy CenturyLink’s ebservices and products (exclusive of depreciadioth amortization) were slightly lower
as compared to 2011. During 2012, we experiencerkdses in severance, salaries and wages andireéatefits, which were partially offset
by increases in customer premise equipment andtem&nce costs, network expense, and contractas. cost

Selling, general and administrative expenses isettéy $258 million, or 8%, for the year ended Datwer 31, 2013 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2012 primarily due to egehaf $235 million in connection with a litigaticettlement. The increase was &
attributed to increases in employee related cpstdessional fees and external commissions, whietewpartially offset by a decrease in bad
debt expense. Selling, general and administratipereses increased by $269 million, or 9%, for tearyended December 31, 2012 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 piyrdae to the acquisition of Qwest and Savvis. a®&gCenturyLink selling, general and
administrative expenses decreased $367 millionthyear ended December 31, 2012 as compared {e#dr ended December 31, 2011. The
decrease in 2012 was primarily due to a decreasevierance and integration expenses relating toegent acquisitions, as well as a decrease
in salaries, wages, and employee benefits dueedwction in headcount. For all periods preserdgadexpenses include the transaction,
severance and integration expenses related touwlestQSavvis and Embarq acquisitions (summarizeéldnable in “Overview” above).

Depreciation and amortization expenses decreas8&23§ million or 5%, for the year ended December2Bil3 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2012. This decrease in depogc@atpense is primarily due to depreciation rét@nges of certain telecommunications
equipment. The rate changes were the result chged investment in plant becoming fully depreciatetketired at a faster rate than the
addition of new plant. The decrease in amortizatigpense is primarily due to the use of acceleratedrtization for a portion of the customer
relationship assets and due to our software invastsrbecoming fully amortized faster than new safeawas acquired.

Depreciation and amortization increased by $754anilor 19%, for the year ended December 31, 2&@ompared to the year ended
December 31, 2011 primarily due to the acquisitb@west and Savvis. Excluding the effects of tbguasitions of Qwest and Savvis,
depreciation and amortization expense for Legaay@glLink decreased $149 million, or 4%, due towalrupdates of our depreciation rates
for capitalized assets and an out-of-period acéngradjustment related to an overstatement of aégiien expense in prior years, partially
offset by net growth in capital assets. See Notdasis of Presentation and Summary of Significartodniting Policies to our consolidated
financial statements in Item 8 of our Annual Remort-orm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 20dadditional information on the out-
of-period accounting adjustment.

Effective January 1, 2012, we changed our ratespitalized labor as we transitioned certain of @gdegacy systems to our historical
company systems. This transition resulted in ameséd $40 million to $55 million increase in the@unt of labor capitalized as an asset
compared to the amount that would have been ciggithif Qwest had continued to use its legacy systand a corresponding estimated
$40 million to $55 million decrease in operatingperses for the year ended December 31, 2012. Toetien in expenses described above
of tax, increased net income approximately $25iomlto $34 million, or $0.04 to $0.05 per basic aildted common share, for the year ende
December 31, 2012.

Further analysis of our operating expenses by segim@rovided below in “Segment Results.”

Goodwill Impairment

As of September 30, 2013, we assessed our repaniitgy which are our four operating segments (eoves, business, wholesale and
hosting). Based on our assessment performed, wedutted that our goodwill for the consumer, wholesad business segments was not
impaired as of that date, but that our goodwilltfee data hosting segment was impaired as of Ségied®, 2013. The data hosting segment i
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experiencing slower than previously-projected reneand margin growth and greater than anticipabatpetitive pressures. As a result of this
data hosting impairment, we recorded during 20h8racash, non-tax-deductible goodwill impairmerargfe of $1.092 billion for goodwill
assigned to our data hosting segment.

As of September 30, 2013, based on our assessmdatrped with respect to our four reporting unite estimated fair value of our
equity exceeded our carrying value of equity for cansumer, business and wholesale segments by@&%and 150%, respectively. After the
impairment charge described above, the estimatedde of our equity equals the carrying valuesqtiity for our data hosting segment.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we elected targe the date of our annual assessment of goddvpdlirment from September 30 to
October 31. This is a change in method of applgin@ccounting principle which management beliesespreferable alternative as the new
date of the assessment is more closely alignedawittstrategic planning process. The change im$sessment date did not delay, accelere
avoid a potential impairment charge in 2013. Wdqgrared our annual goodwill impairment assessmeBeatember 30, 2013, prior to the
change in our annual assessment date. We thempeda qualitative assessment of our goodwill &Saibber 31 and concluded that our
goodwill for consumer, wholesale and business tempunits was not impaired and our goodwill fotalaosting reporting unit was not further
impaired as of that date.

We may be required to assess our goodwill for impant before our next required testing date of Bet@1, 2014 under certain
circumstances, including any failure to meet ouedasted future operating results or any significareases in our weighted average cost of
capital. In addition, we cannot assure that adveoselitions will not trigger future goodwill impairent testing or an impairment charge. A
number of factors, many of which we have no abtlitgontrol, could affect our financial conditiarperating results and business prospect:
could cause our actual results to differ from teineates and assumptions we employed in our gobomplirment assessment. These factors
include, but are not limited to, (i) further weak®@in the overall economy; (ii) a significant diee in our stock price and resulting market
capitalization; (iii) changes in the discount rate use in our testing; (iv) successful efforts by competitors to gain market share in our
markets; (v) adverse changes as a result of regylat legislative actions; (vi) a significant adse change in legal factors or in the overall
business climate; and (vii) recognition of a godtlimpairment loss in the financial statements slubsidiary that is a component of our
segments. For additional information on the chaogeur goodwill impairment assessment date andiskeassociated with intangible assets,
see “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates—@aill, Customer Relationships and Other Intangitfissets” below and “Risk Factors” in
Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for theay ended December 31, 2013. We will continue taitnocertain events that impact our
operations to determine if an interim assessmegbotiwill impairment should be performed prior ke hext required assessment date of
October 31, 2014.

Further analysis of our operating expenses by segim@rovided below in “Segment Results.”

Other Consolidated Results
The following tables summarize our total other imeo(expense) and income tax expense:

Years Ended

December 31, Increase / %
2013 2012 Decrease Change
(Dollars in millions)
Interest expens $(1,29¢) (1,319 (21) (2)%
Net gain (loss) on early retirement of d 10 (179 18¢ 106 %
Other income (expens 59 35 24 69 %
Total other income (expens $(1,22¢)  (1,467) (239 (16)%
Income tax expens $ 462 473 (20 2)%
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Years Ended

December 31 Increase / (Decrease
2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwes Sawvis  Total
(Dollars in millions)
Interest expens $(1,319 (1,079 62 16¢ 1€ 247
Net loss on early retirement of de 79 (8 17¢ (8) — 171
Other income (expens 35 3 32 @ 1 32
Total other income (expens $(1,469)  (1,077%) 278 16( 17  38¢
Income tax expens $ 478 37¢ nm nm nm 98

nm—Attributing changes in income tax expense taabguisitions of Savvis and Qwest is consideredhmadningful.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $21 million, or 2%hfeyear ended December 31, 2013 as compared yed#nended December 31, 2012
primarily due to a lower amount of average debstutding along with lower interest rates, whicheveartially offset by a reduction in the
amortization of debt premiums. Interest expenseeamed by $247 million, or 23%, for the year enDedember 31, 2012 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2011 primarily due to @& Deriod containing a full year of Qwest inter@gbense compared to the 2011 pe
containing only nine months. Interest expense fgdcy CenturyLink increased $62 million, for theyended December 31, 2012 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 .ntheaise in 2012 is substantially due to interesiwr$2 billion aggregate principal
amount of senior notes issued in June 2011 to dmame Savvis acquisition. The 2012 increase igatigose notes being outstanding for a full
year versus only a portion of 2011. See N«—Long-term Debt and Credit Facilities to our condated financial statements in Item 8 of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddman31, 2013 and “Liquidity and Capital Resourdestow for additional information
about those transactions.

Net Gain or Loss on Early Retirement of Debt

In the fourth quarter of 2013, QCII (Qwest Commaatiicns International Inc. on a stand-alone basidgemed their outstanding debt
securities, which resulted in a gain of $10 million

In the second quarter of 2012, our subsidiaries&mbhnd QC completed premium-priced cash tenderofbr the purchase of certain of
their respective outstanding debt securities, teguin an aggregate loss of $190 million. Alsdtie second quarter of 2012, our subsidiaries
Embarqg and QCII redeemed certain of their respedivtstanding debt securities which resulted ietdass of $9 million.

During 2012, QCIl and QC redeemed certain of thatstanding debt securities, which resulted inggregate gain of $20 million.

In the fourth quarter and second quarter of 2011 r€deemed certain of its outstanding debt seeanitihich resulted in a total net loss
$8 million.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) reflects certain items ivettly related to our core operations, including share of income from our 49%
interest in a cellular partnership, interest incpgens and losses from non-operating asset digpusiand foreign currency gains and losses.
Other income was greater for the year ended DeceBihe@013 as compared to 2012 primarily due t82illion gain on the sale of wireless
spectrum in January 2013, which was larger thamg#ie on sale of auction rate securities recognizeé®12. Other income for Legacy
CenturyLink was greater for the year ended DecerBbeR012 as compared to 2011 due to gains orathe ef our auction rate securities and
the recognition in 2011 of $16 million in transactiexpenses incurred
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in connection with terminating an unused bridgenliaancing commitment related to the Savvis adtiois See Note 2—Acquisitions to our
consolidated financial statements in Iltem 8 of Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddpem31, 2013.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased by $10 million foyé&ae ended December 31, 2013 as compared to #negded December 31, 2012.
Our income tax expense for the year ended DeceB81hed012 increased $98 million from the amountstiercomparable prior year. Our
increase in 2012 was primarily due to a $302 millior 32%, increase in income before income taxergp as compared to 2011. For the year
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, our efteicicome tax rate was 206.7%, 37.8% and 39.6%entisely. The 2013 effective tax
rate reflects the net impacts of the $1.092 billimm-deductible goodwill impairment and of an umable accounting adjustment of $17
million related to non-deductible life insurancests The 2013 tax expense also includes the impéet$avorable settlement with the Internal
Revenue Service of $33 million and a favorable stdjent of $22 million related to the reversal abllities for uncertain tax positions. The
2012 effective tax rate reflects the $16 milliomersal of a valuation allowance related to the ianatate securities we sold in 2012, a
$12 million benefit related to state NOLs net ofuedion allowance, and a $6 million expense assediwith reversing a receivable related to
periods that have been effectively settled withlB®. See Note 12—Income Taxes to our consoliditedicial statements in Item 8 of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddman31, 2013 and “Income Taxes” below for additlantormation.
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Segment Results

As described further above under the heading “Mamamnt’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cdodiand Results of Operations
Overview,” we revised our segment structure in 2848 restated previously reported segment reulthé years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011 to conform to our 2013 segment presentalioe following table summarizes our segment tegal the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 under our segment categornizatiDecember 31, 2013.

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Total segment revenu $17,09¢ 17,32( 14,47:
Total segment expens 8,24¢ 8,24¢ 6,62:
Total segment incomr $ 8,84¢ 9,07¢ 7,84¢
Total margin percentag 52% 52% 54%
Consumer
Revenue! $ 6,00« 6,16- 5,38¢
Expense! 2,231 2,291 1,972
Income $ 3,77: 3,871 3,412
Margin percentag 63% 63% 63%
Business
Revenue: $ 6,13¢ 6,13: 5,15(
Expense! 3,76¢ 3,74 3,06¢
Income $ 2,360 2,39( 2,08
Margin percentag 3% 3% 40%
Wholesale
Revenue! $ 3,67¢ 3,72t 3,31«
Expense! 1,15¢ 1,23( 1,13
Income $ 2,421 2,49¢ 2,17
Margin percentag 68% 67% 66%
Data hosting
Revenue! $ 1,37¢ 1,30( 623
Expense! 1,091 98( 44¢€
Income $ 28t 32C 177
Margin percentag 21% 25% 28%
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The following table reconciles our total segmenreraies and total segment income presented ab@petating revenues and operating
income reported in our consolidated statementgpefations.

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Total segment revenu $17,09¢ 17,32( 14,47
Other operating revenu 1,00(¢ 1,05¢ 88(
Operating revenues reported in our consolidatadrsients of operatior $18,09¢ 18,37¢ 15,35!
Total segment incorr $ 8,84¢ 9,07¢ 7,84¢
Other operating revenu 1,00(¢ 1,05¢ 88(
Depreciation and amortizatic (4,54)) (4,780 (4,026
Impairment of goodwill (Note 3 (1,099 — —
Other unassigned operating exper (2,760 (2,639 (2,677
Operating income reported in our consolidated state of operation $ 1,45: 2,718 2,02¢

Our segment revenues include all revenues fronstategic and legacy services and data integrasaescribed in more detail above.
Segment revenues are based upon each customasgickion to an individual segment. We report segment revenues based upon all
services provided to that segment’s customers.affert our segment expenses for our four segmeritdlas's:

. Direct expensewhich primarily are specific expenses incurred d&ect result of providing services and produotsegment
customers, along with selling, general and adnratis®e expenses that are directly associated ypigltciic segment customers or
activities; anc

. Allocated expensewhich include network expenses, facilities expersesother expenses such as fleet and real egfzases

We do not assign depreciation and amortization esg@er impairments to our segments, as the retetsets and capital expenditures are
centrally managed and are not monitored by or tegdo the chief operating decision maker (“CODMY)segment. Similarly, severance
expenses, restructuring expenses and, subjectarcaption for our data hosting segment, certairtradly managed administrative functions
(such as finance, information technology, legal huthan resources) are not assigned to our segnhatietest expense is also excluded from
segment results because we manage our financiagaal company basis and have not allocated assdebt to specific segments. Other
income (expense) is not monitored as a part oegment operations and is therefore excluded fransegment results. For additional
information about our segments, see Note 13—Segmfmrmation to our consolidated financial statetsan Item 8 of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Consumer
The operations of our consumer segment have beagcbed by several significant trends, includingsthdescribed below:

. Strategic servicedn order to remain competitive and attract addaiaesidential broadband subscribers, we belieigiiportant
to continually increase our broadband network’spscand connection speeds. As a result, we contniunwest in our broadband
network, which allows for the delivery of higheregl broadband services to a greater number ofroasto We compete in a
maturing broadband market in which most consumlees@dy have broadband services and growth ratesvinsubscribers have
slowed. Moreover, as described further in Itemad BA of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31,
2013, demand for our broadband services could bersely affected by competitors providing serviaehigher broadband speed
than ours or using advanced wireless data techieso@/e also continue to expand our strategic prodiferings,
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including facilities-based video services. The exgdan of our facilities-based video service infrasture requires us to incur start-
up expenses in advance of the revenue that thiceds expected to generate. Although, over twe expect that our revenue for
facilities-based video services will offset the empes incurred, the timing of this revenue growthiricertain. We believe these
efforts will improve our ability to compete and iease our strategic revenu

Legacy service: Our voice revenues have been, and we expect thiegontinue to be, adversely affected by accass losses.
Intense competition and product substitution cargito drive our access line losses. For examplayrmansumers are substituting

cable and wireless voice services and electronit; teating and social networking non-voice sergder traditional voice
telecommunications services. We expect that theesters will continue to negatively impact our besis. As a result of the
expected loss of revenues associated with aceess live continue to offer our customers servicallog and other product
promotions to help mitigate this trend, as describelow;

. Service bundling and product promotiona/e offer our customers the ability to bundle npléiproducts and services. These
customers can bundle local services with otheriseswsuch as broadband, video, long-distance aredess. While we believe our
bundled service offerings can help retain custontkey also tend to lower our profit margins in tesumer segment; a

. Operating efficienciesWe continue to evaluate our operating structucefaous. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwityrovements and changes in industry, competite@hnological and

regulatory conditions

The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our consumer segment:

Segment revenue
Strategic service
Legacy service
Data integratior

Total revenue:

Segment expense
Direct
Allocated

Total expense
Segment incom
Segment margin percenta

Consumer Segmen

Years Ended

December 31 Increase /
2013 2012 Decrease % Change
(Dollars in millions)
$2,65( 2,47¢ 17¢€ 7%
3,34¢ 3,681 (332) (9)%
5 7 (2) (29)%
6,002 6,162 (15¢€) (3)%
1,75¢ 1,79¢ (39) (2)%
47% 49t (22) (4%
2,231 2,291 (60) (3)%
$3,77¢ 3,871 (98) (3)%
63% 63%
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Consumer Segmen

Years Ended
December 31 Increase / (Decrease
2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwes! Total
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenue

Strategic service $2,47¢ 1,92¢ 19C 35€ 54¢
Legacy service 3,681 3,44¢ (259) 48t 232
Data integratior 7 7 — — e
Total revenue: 6,162 5,384 (63) 841 T7E
Segment expense
Direct 1,79¢ 1,54z 25 22¢ 254
Allocated 49t 43C (12 77 _ 65
Total expense 2,291 1,972 13 30€ 31¢
Segment incom $3,871 3,41 (76) 53t 45¢
Segment margin percenta 63% 63%

Segment Revenues

Consumer revenues decreased $158 million, or 3f4efar ended December 31, 2013 as compared teetireepded December 31, 2012.
Growth in strategic services revenues were morne dfffset by the decline in legacy services reveniiBe increase in strategic services
revenues is due primarily to volume increases infacilities-based video services and increas¢sémumber of broadband subscribers, as
well as from price increases on various servicegalcy services revenues decreased primarily ddedmes in local and long-distance
services associated with access line losses mgtditbm the competitive and technological changescdbed above. Consumer revenues
increased by $778 million, or 15%, for the yearesh®ecember 31, 2012 as compared to the year éwimber 31, 2011. The increase in
revenue is primarily due to our acquisition of Qtyveghich contributed $841 million in revenue. Legd&enturyLink’s revenue decreased by
$63 million primarily due to a decline in legacyeaues, partially offset by growth in strategicvéges revenues. Legacy services revenues
decreased primarily due to declines in local amg) Idistance services associated with access lasesoresulting from the competitive press
and product substitution previously described. Ghow strategic services revenues was primarily tduen increase in the number of
broadband subscribers.

Segment Expenses

Consumer expenses decreased by $60 million, of@%he year ended December 31, 2013 as compatbe tear ended December 31,
2012 primarily due to decreases in bad debt expesasaries and wages, facility costs and allocatguknses, partially offset by increases in
professional fees and external commissions. Theedee in allocated expenses for the year endedhiiere31, 2013 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2012 was primarily due to réshein network salaries and wages and professieral Consumer expenses increase
$319 million, or 16%, for the year ended Decemier2®12 as compared to the year ended Decemb@031,primarily due to the acquisition
of Qwest, which contributed $306 million in totadpenses. Legacy CenturyLink’s segment expensesased by $13 million during the same
period primarily due to increases in external cossioins, maintenance costs and marketing and asingrtiosts.

Segment Income

Consumer income decreased by $98 million, or 3%thfe year ended December 31, 2013 as comparéé yeear ended December 31,
2012 primarily due to a decline in total revenuenS€umer income increased by $459 million, or 1386ttie year ended December 31, 2012 a
compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 piyrdae to the acquisition of Qwest, which contitibdl $535 million in segment income.
Legacy CenturyLinks segment income decreased $76 million for the gmeried primarily due to a decline in total revenag discussed abo
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Business
The operations of our business segment have bgeacted by several significant trends, includingsthdescribed below:

. Strategic servicesOur mix of total segment revenues continues taatégfrom legacy services to strategic servicesuas
commercial, enterprise, global and governmentaiocnsrs increasingly demand customized and intedjddiéa, Internet and voice
services. We offer diverse combinations of emerg@uipnology products and services such as prirs@e MPLS, and VolP
services. We believe these services afford ouoousts more flexibility in managing their communioas needs and improve the
effectiveness and efficiency of their operationkhdugh we are experiencing price compression arstrategic services due to
competition, we expect strategic revenues fromealsesvices to continue to grow during 20

. Legacy service: We face intense competition with respect to ogady services and continue to see customers migratvay fron
these services and into strategic services. Irtiaddbur legacy services revenues have been, angkpect they will continue to t
adversely affected by access line losses and poicgression

. Data integration. We expect both data integration revenue and thagedecosts will fluctuate from quarter to quasdsrthis offering
tends to be more sensitive than others to chamgi&ieconomy and in spending trends of our fedstatle and local governmental
customers, many of whom have recently experienabdtantial budget cuts with the possibility of ddudfial future budget cuts; al

. Operating efficienciesWe continue to evaluate our operating structucefanous. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwifgrovements and changes in industry, competitaghnological and
regulatory conditions, while achieving operatioetiiciencies and improving our processes througbraation. We also expect our
business segment to benefit indirectly from efficies in our compar-wide network operation:

The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our business segment:

Business Segmer

Years Ended
December 31, Increase /
2013 2012 Decrease % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenue

Strategic service $2,50¢ 2,35¢ 158 6 %
Legacy service 2,97¢ 3,112 (13€) (4)%
Data integratior 651 665 (14) (2)%
Total revenue: 6,13¢ 6,13% 3 —%
Segment expense
Direct 3,32¢ 3,28t 44 1%
Allocated 44( 45¢ (18) (4)%
Total expense 3,76¢ 3,74: 26 1%
Segment incom $2,367 2,39( (23 D)%
Segment margin percenta 3% 3%
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Business Segmer

Years Ended
December 31 Increase / (Decrease
2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwest Savvis Total
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenue

Strategic service $2,35¢ 1,84z 44 45¢ 11 514
Legacy service 3,112 2,77¢ (181) 514 — 33¢
Data integratior 665 52¢ 2C 11¢ —  13¢
Total revenue: 6,13: 5,15( (1279) 1,08¢ 11 98¢
Segment expense
Direct 3,28¢ 2,751 77) 611 — 534
Allocated 45¢ 317 62 75 4 141
Total expense 3,74 3,06¢ (15) 68€ 4 67E
Segment incom $2,39( 2,082 (102) 403 7 30¢
Segment margin percenta 3% 40%

Segment Revenues

Business revenues increased by $3 million for e ¥nded December 31, 2013 as compared to theydad December 31, 2012.
Strategic services revenues increased $153 milliohwas substantially offset by a decline in Isgservices revenue of $136 million and a
decline of $14 million in data integration serviewenue. The increase in strategic services reveame from increases in MPLS, VolIP, and
Ethernet services., which were partially offsetdeglines in private line services. Business revemuereased by $983 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the yead &wktember 31, 2011. The increase in businesauevs primarily due to the
acquisition of Qwest, which contributed $1.089ibiilin revenue. Legacy CenturyLink’s segment reeedeclined by $117 million primarily
due to a decline in legacy services revenue, figrtéset by growth in strategic services revenuegacy services revenues decreased
primarily due to declines in local and long-distarservices associated principally with accessltias resulting from competitive pressures an
product substitution. Growth in strategic servioegenues was primarily due to increases in VolReEtet and MPLS services.

Segment Expenses

Business expenses increased by $26 million, orféfthe year ended December 31, 2013 as comparbe tgear ended December 31,
2012 primarily due to increases in salaries andesagrofessional fees and facility costs, partiaffget by decreases in equipment and
maintenance costs and allocated expenses. Alloeapehses decreased for the year ended Decemt201B.as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to decreases iwarétsalaries and wages and professional fees hwhére partially offset by an increase in
real estate and power costs. Business expenseasedt for the year ended December 31, 2012 as cednoathe year ended December 31,
2011 primarily due to the acquisition of Qwest, @thcontributed $686 million in segment expensegakg CenturyLink’s expenses decrease
by $15 million during the same period primarily doedecreases in direct expense, partially offgehbrease in allocated expenses. Direct
expenses decreased due to decreases in emplogtess rekpenses and marketing costs, which werafhpuifset by increases in customer
premise equipment maintenance and installatiors@sd facility costs. Allocated expense increasedarily due to more fully allocating
network and building rent and related power expgnse

Segment Income

Business income decreased by $23 million, or 1%sthfe year ended December 31, 2013 as comparée tear ended December 31,
2012 primarily due to an increase in direct expenBasiness income increased by
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$308 million, or 15%, for the year ended Decemier2®12 as compared to the year ended Decemb@031,primarily due to the acquisition
of Qwest, which contributed $403 million in segmarmome. Legacy CenturyLink’s segment income desgddy $102 million for the same
period primarily due to a decline in total revenag discussed above.

Wholesale

The operations of our wholesale segment have lmpadted by several significant trends, includingsthdescribed below:

Strategic servicesDemand for our private line services (including@pl access) has begun to decline due to ourmessd
optimization of their networks, industry consolidatand technological migration. While we expedéttthese factors will continue
to negatively impact our wholesale segment, weelielthe demand for our fiber-based special acegsiss provided to wireless
carriers for backhaul will partially offset the diee in copper-based special access services mdvmwireless carriers as they
migrate to Ethernet services, although the timingd magnitude of this technological migration is emain;

Legacy services Our access, local services and long-distance tmeshave been and we expect will continue to beradly
affected by customer migration to more technoldgicdvanced services, declining demand for trad#i voice services, industry
consolidation and price compression caused by atigul and rate reductions. For example, wholesatswmers are substituting
cable, wireless and VolIP services for traditionzite telecommunications services, resulting in iougd access revenue loss. Our
switched access revenues have been and will centinbe impacted by changes related to the Comyreetica and Intercarrier
Compensation Reform order (“CAF order”) adoptedhsy Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) ona®er 27, 2011 that
we believe will substantially increase the paceediuctions in the amount of switched access rexewaereceive in our wholesale
segment. Conversely, the FCC instituted an acesswery charge that we believe will allow us tooresr the majority of these lost
revenues directly from end users in our consumeraisiness segments. We expect these factorsomifinuie to adversely impact
our wholesale segment; a

Operating efficienciesWe continue to evaluate our operating structucefaous. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwityrovements and changes in industry, competita@hnological and
regulatory conditions. We also expect our wholesafgment to benefit indirectly from enhanced edficies in our company-wide
network operations
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The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our wholesale segment:

Wholesale Segmen

Years Ended
December 31, Increase /
2013 2012 Decrease % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenue

Strategic service $2,281 2,29i (10 —%
Legacy service 1,292 1,42¢ (13€) (10)%
Total revenue: 3,57¢ 3,72¢ (14¢€) (GAL
Segment expense
Direct 16¢ 16¢ — —%
Allocated 98¢ 1,061 (72 (7)%
Total expense 1,15¢ 1,23( (72 (6)%
Segment incom $2,421 2,49¢ (74) 3)%
Segment margin percenta 68% 67%

Wholesale Segmen

Years Ended
December 31, Increase / (Decrease
2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwest Savvis Total
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenue

Strategic service $2,297 1,92( 32 341 4 377
Legacy service 1,42¢ 1,39: (219 24¢ — 35
Data integratior — 1 (1) — — )
Total revenue: 3,72¢ 3,314 (189) 59C 4 411
Segment expense
Direct 16¢ 174 (198) 13 — (5)
Allocated 1,061 962 (77 17¢ — 98
Total expense 1,23( 1,137 (95) 18¢ — | &8
Segment incom $2,49¢ 2,17 (88) 402 4 31¢
Segment margin percenta 67% 66%

Segment Revenues

Wholesale revenues decreased by $146 million, qrfdfthe year ended December 31, 2013 as compauthe year ended
December 31, 2012. These decreases reflect lowenues from both legacy and strategic services.dBoesase in legacy services revenues
reflects a continuing declines in access, longadis¢ and local services volumes and revenues dhe gubstitution of cable, wireless and
VolP services for traditional voice telecommunioas services. The decline in strategic servicesmees was due to decreases in our private
line and special access services revenues, paiiitiet by an increase in Ethernet revenues. \adderevenues increased by $411 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared yednended December 31, 2011 primarily due td@est acquisition, which contributed
$590 million to total revenue. Legacy CenturyLink&venue declined by $183 million during this sgyadod primarily due to declines in
legacy services, partially offset by growth in reue from strategic services. Strategic servicesmags increased primarily due to growth in
Ethernet and broadband services. The decreasgdnyleservices revenues was driven by continuingjrdein access, long-distance and local
services volumes, and the implementation of the GAter, as well as the substitution of cable, wiss| VolP and other services for traditional
voice telecommunication services.
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Segment Expenses

Wholesale expenses decreased by $72 million, of@%the year ended December 31, 2013 as compaurthe tyear ended December 31,
2012 primarily due to a decrease in allocated esgenTotal direct expenses remained relatively amgéd from 2012 to 2013. Allocated
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013wgzaced to the year ended December 31, 2012 dedrpasearily due to decreases in
salaries and wages and facility costs. Wholesgberses increased by $93 million for the year erfidgszember 31, 2012 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2011 primarily due to th@iaition of Qwest, which contributed $188 milliansegment expenses. Leg:
Centurylink’s expenses declined by $95 million dgrthis same period primarily due to lower allooatof fleet and network real estate
expenses and to reduction in employee related sggen

Segment Income

Declines in both strategic and legacy servicesmees largely contributed to a decrease in our véatdesegment income for the year
ended December 31, 2013 as compared to the yead &etember 31, 2012. Decreases in segment exgaresash period did not fully offset
the declines in segment revenues. Wholesale segnoambe increased by $318 million for the year eéhBecember 31, 2012 as compared to
the year ended December 31, 2011 primarily dubddwest acquisition. Segment income for our LedaenturyLink operations decreasec
$88 million for the same period primarily due tdecline in total revenue, as discussed above.

Data Hosting
The operations of our data hosting segment have ingeacted by several significant trends, includimgse described below:

. Colocation. Colocation is designed for clients seeking datderespace and power for their server and netwgr&guipment need
Our data centers provide our clients around thddweith a secure, high-powered, purpdseh location for their IT equipment. W
anticipate continued pricing pressure for theseises as wholesale vendors continue to expand éméérprise colocation
operations; however, we believe that our data cepansion strategy may help mitigate these gyicimllenges

. Managed hostinc Managed hosting services provide a fully managédatisn for a customer’s IT infrastructure and netlwneeds,
and include dedicated and cloud hosting serviddiywand computing storage, consulting and masggcurity services. We
believe that competitive cloud computing offeriigave led to increased pricing pressure and incteseice disconnections by
our customers, and expect those trends to contithomever, we remain focused on expanding our mahhgsting business,
specifically in our cloud service offerings, whiake believe is a key to growth. We believe that &eehcontinued to strengthen our
cloud offering by adding differentiating featuresaur cloud products

. Network services Network services are comprised of our hosting astaork products supporting colocation and mandmesting
service offerings. Network services also includenaged VPN and bandwidth services. Segment inconthése services has been
relatively flat due to pricing pressures on VPN &addwidth services, offset by increases in hosdireg network services; a

. Operating efficienciesWe continue to evaluate our operating structucefanous. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwifgrovements and changes in industry, competitaghnological and
regulatory conditions
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The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our data hosting segment, which areattgorized as strategic services:

Data Hosting Segmen

Years Ended

December 31, Increase /
2013 2012 Decrease % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Segment revenue $1,37¢ 1,30(C 76 6 %
Segment expense 1,091 98(C 111 11%
Segment incom $ 28t 32C (35 (11)%
Segment margin percenta 21% 25%

Data Hosting Segmen

Years Ended

December 31, Increase / (Decrease
2012 2011 CenturyLink Qwes Savvis Total
(Dollars in millions)
Segment revenue $1,30( 622 56 51 57C 677
Segment expense 98C 44¢ 57 23 454 534
Segment incom $ 32 $177 (1) 28 11€ 14z
Segment margin percenta 25% 28%

Segment Revenues

Data hosting revenues increased by $76 millio5%r for the year ended December 31, 2013 as compatée year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to the impact @Eneies contributed from the recent acquisitionsyelbas increases in colocation and
managed hosting revenues. These increases weialparffset by a decline in data hosting netwogkenues. Segment revenue increased by
$677 million for the year ended December 31, 2012anpared to the year ended December 31, 201 hpiyrdue to the Savvis and Qwest
acquisitions, which contributed segment revenu#5a10 million and $51 million, respectively.

Segment Expenses

Data hosting expenses increased by $111 milliod 186, for the year ended December 31, 2013 as aemhpa the year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to increases inleyag related costs resulting from our recent aitions and added headcount, profess
fees, network expenses, real estate and poweradtnarketing and advertising, which were paytiaffset by a decrease in external
commissions. Segment expenses increased by $5Bdmfdr the year ended December 31, 2012 as cozdparthe year ended December 31,
2011 primarily due to the Savvis and Qwest acdaisst which contributed segment expenses of $48{bmand $23 million, respectively.

Segment Income

Segment income decreased by $35 million, or 11%thf year ended December 31, 2013 as comparée teetrr ended December 31,
2012. The decline in segment income was primatily t revenues growing at a slower rate than exgseihe revenues generated from the
recent acquisitions in 2012 and 2013 were substhntiffset by their respective expenses. Segnrarume increased by $143 million for the
year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to theydad December 31, 2011 primarily due to the Baanvd Qwest acquisitions, whi
contributed segment income of $116 million and B&ion respectively.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles that ameegally accepted in the United
States. The preparation of these consolidated dinhstatements requires management to make es8raat assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenundsexpenses. We have identified certain policiesestimates as critical to our business
operations and the understanding of our past aeptaesults of operations related to (i) busimessbinations; (i) goodwill, customer
relationships and other intangible assets; (iigparty, plant and equipment; (iv) pension and pestement benefits; (v) loss contingencies
litigation reserves; and (vi) income taxes. Theslcfes and estimates are considered critical bez#luey had a material impact, or they have
the potential to have a material impact, on oursotidated financial statements and because theyreesjgnificant judgments, assumptions or
estimates. We believe that the estimates, judgnamtsissumptions made when accounting for the itkrssribed below are reasonable, base
on information available at the time they are madimvever, there can be no assurance that actudtgesll not differ from those estimates.

Business Combination

We have accounted for our recent acquisitionsudfinly our acquisition of Qwest on April 1, 2011 &wavvis on July 15, 2011, under the
acquisition method of accounting, whereby the thleghnd separately identifiable intangible assetgimed and liabilities assumed are
recognized at their estimated fair values at tlgpigition date. The portion of the purchase pncedcess of the estimated fair value of the net
tangible and separately identifiable intangiblesgsscquired represents goodwill. The estimatéaiofalue and resulting assignment of the
purchase price related to our acquisitions of Quast Savvis involved significant estimates and judgts by our management. In arriving at
the fair values of assets acquired and liabilitissumed, we considered the following generally gteckvaluation approaches: the cost
approach, income approach and market approache€diunates also included assumptions about projegtegth rates, cost of capital,
effective tax rates, tax amortization periods, tetbgy life cycles, the regulatory and legal enmir@ent and industry and economic trends.

Gooduwill, Customer Relationships and Other IntanggbAssets

We amortize customer relationships primarily oueeatimated life of 10 years to 15 years, usingeeithe sum-of-the-years-digits or the
straight-line methods, depending on the type ofarusr. We amortize capitalized software using th&ight-line method over estimated lives
ranging up to seven years, except for approxim&287 million of our capitalized software costs,iethrepresents costs to develop an
integrated billing and customer care system whiclimortized using the straight-line method oved ge&ar period. We annually review the
estimated lives and methods used to amortize dwer adtangible assets. The amount of future anmatitin expense may differ materially from
current amounts, depending on the results of onualreviews.

Our goodwill was derived from numerous acquisitiaigere the purchase price exceeded the fair vditlemet assets acquired. For
more information on our recent acquisitions andiltewy fair values, see Note 2—Acquisitions to eansolidated financial statements in
Item 8 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for theyended December 31, 2013.

We are required to reassign goodwill to reportingsueach time we reorganize our internal reporsingcture which causes a change in
our operating segments. Goodwill is reassignetieaeporting units using a relative fair value agh. We utilize the trailing twelve months
earnings before interest, tax and depreciatioruasitocation methodology as it represents a reaslerproxy for the fair value of the
operations being reorganized. The use of otherv&dire assignment methods could result in matgrdifferent results. For additional
information on the first quarter 2013 reorganizati$ our segments, see Note 8—Segment Informati@ut consolidated financial statements
in Item 8 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for §year ended December 31, 2013.

B-27



Table of Contents

We have assigned our goodwill balance to our setgrarDecember 31, 2013 as follows:

(Dollars in

millions)
Consume $10,34¢
Business 6,36:
Wholesale 3,27¢
Data hostin¢ 68¢
Total goodwill $20,67¢

We are required to assess goodwill for impairméigast annually, or more frequently if events @hange in circumstances indicate |
an impairment may have occurred. We are requiredite-down the value of goodwill in periods in whithe recorded amount of goodwiill
exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill. Ouragmg units, which we refer to as our segments,rant discrete legal entities with discrete
financial statements. Our assets and liabilitiesesmployed in and relate to the operations of ipleltieporting units. Therefore, the equity
carrying value and future cash flows must be edghaach time a goodwill impairment analysis idqrened on a reporting unit. As a result,
our assets, liabilities and cash flows are assignedporting units using reasonable and consistémtation methodologies. Certain estimates,
judgments and assumptions are required to perfoesetassignments. We believe these estimates, gndgmnd assumptions to be reason:
but changes in many of these can significantlycféach reporting unit's equity carrying value dudire cash flows utilized for our goodwill
impairment test. Our annual assessment date fimgeggoodwill impairment was September 30.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we elected targde the date of our annual assessment of goddvpdlirment from September 30 to
October 31. This is a change in method of applgin@ccounting principle which management beliesespreferable alternative as the new
date of the assessment is more closely alignedawittstrategic planning process. The change im$sessment date did not delay, accelere
avoid a potential impairment charge in 2013. Wdqgrared our annual goodwill impairment assessmeBeatember 30, 2013, prior to the
change in our annual assessment date. We thempeda qualitative assessment of our goodwill &8aibber 31 and concluded that our
goodwill for consumer, wholesale and business tempunits was not impaired and our goodwill fotalaosting reporting unit was not further
impaired as of that date.

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Property, plant and equipment acquired in connrctiith our acquisitions was recorded based onstisnated fair value as of its
acquisition date. Purchased and constructed psop#ent and equipment is recorded at cost, plastimated value of any associated legally
or contractually required asset retirement obl@atRenewals and betterments of plant and equiparertapitalized while repairs, as well as
renewals of minor items, are charged to operatikpggrese. Depreciation of property, plant and equigrigeprovided on the straiglibe methor
using class or overall group rates. The group ntephrovides for the recognition of the remaining ineestment, less anticipated net salvage
value, over the remaining useful life of the assEbés method requires the periodic revision ofréefation rates.

Normal retirements of property, plant and equipnesatcharged against accumulated depreciation,naitliain or loss recognized. Other
types of property, plant and equipment are statedst and, when sold or retired, a gain or lossé®gnized. We depreciate such property on
the straight-line method over estimated serviceslikanging from 3 to 45 years.

We perform annual internal reviews to evaluateréasonableness of the depreciable lives for oyepty, plant and equipment. Our
reviews utilize models that take into account daiisage, physical wear and tear, replacement fistssumptions about technology evolution
and, in certain instances, actuarially determinedb@bilities to estimate the remaining life of asiset base.
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Due to rapid changes in technology and the conipegnvironment, determining the estimated econdifi@®f telecommunications
plant, equipment and software requires a signifieamount of judgment. We regularly review data @hization of equipment, asset retireme
and salvage values to determine adjustments tdeqneciation rates. The effect of a hypothetica wear increase or decrease in the estimate
remaining useful lives of our property, plant amdigment would have decreased depreciation by appetely $430 million or increased
depreciation by approximately $610 million, respesy.

Pension and Po:-retirement Benefits

We sponsor several noncontributory defined bepefitsion plans (referred to as our pension plamsy fubstantial portion of our
employees. In addition to these tax qualified pemgilans, we also maintain several non-qualifieaspen plans for certain eligible highly
compensated employees. We also maintain postiretitebenefit plans that provide health care amditiSurance benefits for certain eligible
retirees.

In 2013 approximately 33% of the January 1, 20I&jmn plans’ net actuarial loss balance of $2.2B®M was subject to amortization
as a component of net periodic expense over thegeagemaining service period of participating emgpes expected to receive benefits, w
ranges from 8 to 12 years for the plans. The difiét of the beginning pension plans’ net actuadss Ibalance was treated as indefinitely
deferred during 2013. The entire beginning netar@lloss of $446 million for the post-retiremérenefit plans was treated as indefinitely
deferred during 2013.

In computing the pension and post-retirement healtlk and life insurance benefits obligations,niust significant assumption we make
is the discount rate. In computing the periodicgi@m and post-retirement benefits expense, the sigsificant assumptions we make are the
discount rate and the expected rate of return an assets.

The discount rate is the rate at which we belieeecauld effectively settle the benefit obligati@ssof the end of the year. We selected
the discount rate based on a cash flow matchinlysisaising hypothetical yield curves from U.S.manate bonds rated high quality and
projections of the future benefit payments thatstibute the projected benefit obligation for thand. This process establishes the uniform
discount rate that produces the same present vélhe estimated future benefit payments as is rgeee by discounting each year’s benefit
payments by a spot rate applicable to that yeaz.spot rates used in this process are derived drgrald curve created from yields on the
60th to 90th percentile of U.S. high quality bonds.

The expected rate of return on plan assets iotigterm rate of return we expect to earn on thaglassets in the future. The rate of
return is determined by the strategic allocatioplah assets and the long-term risk and returrcéstefor each asset class. The forecasts for
each asset class are generated primarily from alysas of the long-term expectations of variousdlgarty investment management
organizations. The expected rate of return on ptsets is reviewed annually and revised, as nagessaeflect changes in the financial
markets and our investment strategy.

To compute the expected return on pension andrptisément benefit plan assets, we apply an exgeete of return to the fair value of
the pension plan assets and to the fair valueeoptst-retirement benefit plan assets adjusteddotribution timing and for projected benefit
payments to be made from the plan assets. Annuddetzolatility for these assets is reflected ia tiet actuarial losses.

Changes in any of the above factors could signifigampact operating expenses in the consolidatatements of operations and other
comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidate@stants of comprehensive income (loss) as wehasalue of the liability and accumulat
other comprehensive loss of stockholders’ equitponconsolidated balance sheets. The expectedhretuplan assets is reflected as a
reduction to our pension and post-retirement béegpiense. If our assumed expected rates of r&du2013 were 100 basis points lower, our
qualified pension and post-retirement benefit egperwould have increased by $124 million. If owuased discount rates for 2013 were 100
basis points lower, our qualified pension and pestement benefit expenses would have decreas&24ynillion and our projected benefit
obligation would have increased by approximately3$illion.
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Loss Contingencies and Litigation Reserv

We are involved in several material legal procegsliras described in more detail in “Legal Procegsfiin Item 3 of our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2048assess potential losses in relation to theseted pending or threatened tax and
legal matters. For matters not related to incorredaif a loss is considered probable and the atrmambe reasonably estimated, we recogniz
an expense for the estimated loss. To the extesethstimates are more or less than the actudityiabsulting from the resolution of these
matters, our earnings will be increased or decrkaseordingly. If the differences are material, cansolidated financial statements could be
materially impacted.

For matters related to income taxes, if we deteertfiat the impact of an uncertain tax position agerlikely than not to be sustained
upon audit by the relevant taxing authority, themrecognize in our financial statements a benefitife largest amount that is more likely thar
not to be sustained. No portion of an uncertainp@sition will be recognized if the position hasdehan a 50% likelihood of being sustained.
Though the validity of any tax position is a matétax law, the body of statutory, regulatory amigrpretive guidance on the application of
law is complex and often ambiguous. Because of #tiether a tax position will ultimately be sustdmrmay be uncertain. The overall tax
liability recorded for uncertain tax positions dgte successor dates of December 31, 2013, 201 2@, considers the anticipated utilizatior
of any applicable tax credits and net operatingdesy“NOLS").

Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes includes amountddarconsequences deferred to future periods. \BEdedeferred income tax assets
and liabilities reflecting future tax consequenatsbutable to tax net operating losses, or NQ&s credit carryforwards and differences
between the financial statement carrying valuesséts and liabilities and the tax bases of thosetaand liabilities. Deferred taxes are
computed using enacted tax rates expected to apfie year in which the differences are expeateaffect taxable income. The effect on
deferred income tax assets and liabilities of angban tax rate is recognized in earnings in théogehat includes the enactment date.

The measurement of deferred taxes often involvegxiercise of considerable judgment related toghkzation of tax basis. Our defer
tax assets and liabilities reflect our assessniatttax positions taken in filed tax returns anel bsulting tax basis, are more likely than not to
be sustained if they are audited by taxing autiesritAlso, assessing tax rates that we expectgly amd determining the years when the
temporary differences are expected to affect taxatmome requires judgment about the future apparient of our income among the states i
which we operate. Any changes in our practicesidginents involved in the measurement of defernedsaets and liabilities could materially
impact our financial condition or results of opéras.

We record deferred income tax assets and lialsildedescribed above. Valuation allowances arblestad when necessary to reduce
deferred income tax assets to amounts that wevieadiee more likely than not to be recovered. Wduata our deferred tax assets quarterly to
determine whether adjustments to our valuationalce are appropriate in light of changes in factsircumstances, such as changes in tax
law, interactions with taxing authorities and deyghents in case law. In making this evaluationye&lg on our recent history of pre-tax
earnings, estimated timing of future deductions lagwkfits represented by the deferred tax assdtewarforecasts of future earnings, the latter
two of which involve the exercise of significantgment. At December 31, 2013, we established atiatuallowance of $435 million,
primarily related to state NOLs, as it is more ljkthan not that this amount will not be utilizedqy to expiration. If forecasts of future
earnings and the nature and estimated timing aféueductions and benefits change in the futueemay determine that a valuation allowe
for certain deferred tax assets is appropriatechvbould materially impact our financial conditionresults of operations. See Note 12—
Income Taxes to our consolidated financial stataémienitem 8 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2013 for
additional information.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview

At December 31, 2013, we held cash and cash egmigabf $168 million and we had $1.275 billion dafale under our $2.0 billion
revolving credit facility (referred to as our “Ciie&acility”, which is described further below). At December&113, cash and cash equivali
of $95 million were held in foreign bank accourds the purpose of funding our foreign operationge@o various factors, our access to for
cash is generally much more restricted than ouesscto domestic cash.

We and our Board of Directors monitor our use afhctioroughout the year, but with enhanced scrgany each year in connection with
the review of annual budgets. In connection withlmudgeting process in early 2013, our executifiea®s and our Board of Directors
reviewed our sources and potential uses of cashtbeeext several years and elected to reducquanterly dividend rate beginning in 2013
and to implement a share repurchase program. Inemion with our budgeting process in early 2014,executive officers and our Board of
Directors reviewed our sources and potential ueash over the next several years, including anaihgr things the previously-disclosed
effect of the anticipated depletion of our federal operating loss carryforwards by 2015.

Based on the current capital allocation objectidesing 2014 we anticipate expending approxima$@y0 billion of cash for capital
investment in property, plant and equipment antbufil.26 billion for dividends on our common stobksed on the current annual common
stock dividend rate of $2.16 and the current nunab@utstanding common shares. We have debt miatof approximately $630 million,
scheduled debt principal payments of $22 milliard acheduled capital lease and other obligatiomgays of $133 million due during 2014.
We also anticipate expending cash for repurchasimgmon stock, but the amount will largely dependrarket conditions.

We will continue to monitor our future sources arsgs of cash, and anticipate that we will makestdjants to our capital allocation
strategies when, as and if determined by our Bo&Rirectors. We may also draw on our revolvingdiréacility as a source of liquidity for
operating activities and to give us additional ittty to finance, among other things, our capitalestments, repayments of debt, pension
contributions, dividends, litigation settlement pagnts, or stock repurchases.

We currently expect to continue our current pract€paying quarterly cash dividends in respeduwfcommon stock, subject to our
board’s discretion to modify or terminate this giee at any time and for any reason.

Capital Expenditures

We incur capital expenditures on an ongoing bas@der to enhance and modernize our networks, etergiffectively in our markets
and expand our service offerings. We evaluate gagxpenditure projects based on a variety of faciacluding expected strategic impacts
(such as forecasted impacts on revenue growthpuptivity, expenses, service levels and customentitn) and our expected return on
investment. The amount of capital investment ikigriced by, among other things, demand for ouriges\and products, cash flow generated
by operating activities, cash required for othemppses and regulatory considerations. We estimatéotal 2014 capital expenditures to be
approximately $3.0 billion.

Our capital expenditures continue to be focusedwrstrategic services such as video, broadbandraméged hosting services. In
particular, we expect to continue to focus on safendevelopment and expanding our fiber infrastmastincluding installations of “fiber to the
tower,” which is a type of telecommunications netkvoonsisting of fiber-optic cables that run frorwimeless carrier's mobile telephone
switching office to cellular towers to enable thdigery of higher bandwidth services supporting itetechnologies than would otherwise
generally be available through a more traditiomgdper-based telecommunications network. For mdogrimation on capital spending, see
Items 1 and 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfee year ended December 31, 2013.
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In 2012 and early 2013, we accepted approximat@byriillion from Round 1 of Phase 1 of the FCC’s @ect America Fund (“CAF”)
established by Congress to help telecommunicatiangers defray the cost of providing broadbandeasdo remote customers. We intend to
use the funds to deploy broadband service for bt000 homes in unserved rural areas principali@dolorado, Minnesota, New Mexico,
Virginia and Washington. In 2013, the FCC annourexesther round of CAF funding and we initially aggleto accept approximately $54
million from Round 2 of Phase 1 of the FCC’s CAFbting broadband services to more than 92,000 hoades and businesses in unserved
high-cost areas. Due to challenges from other ctingpéelecommunications carriers on the unserveal mareas, the final amount offered to us
by the FCC, which we accepted in late 2013, wasaqamately $40 million.

Debt and Other Financing Arrangements

Approximately $30 million of Embarq 7.46% noteslwilature on April 1, 2014 and $600 million of ou€@.50% senior notes will
mature on October 1, 2014. Subject to market cmdif we expect to continue to issue debt secsifitem time to time in the future to
refinance a substantial portion of our maturingtdetzluding issuing QC debt securities to refinaits maturing debt. The availability, interest
rate and other terms of any new borrowings willetepon the ratings assigned to us and QC by awilig agencies, among other factors.

As of the date of our Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfee year ended December 31, 2013, the creditgsfior the senior unsecured debt
of CenturyLink, Inc. and Qwest Corporation werdakbws:

Agency CenturyLink, Inc. Qwest Corporation
Standard & Poor’s BB BBB-
Moody's Investors Service, In Ba2 Baa3
Fitch Ratings BB+ BBB-

In early 2013, CenturyLink’s senior unsecured dalihgs were downgraded from “investment grade’htan-investment grade” by two
of the rating agencies, which we believe increasedorrowing costs. Any additional downgrades ehtiryLink's senior unsecured debt
ratings could under certain circumstances increallgrincrease the cost of our borrowing under thed@ Facility. In addition, any additional
downgrades of CenturyLink’s or QC’s senior unsedutebt ratings could impact our access to debtalagi further raise our borrowing costs.
See “Risk Factors—Risks Affecting our Liquidity a@dpital Resources” in Iltem 1A of our Annual RepantForm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

Dividends

We currently expect to continue our current pract€paying quarterly cash dividends in respe@uwfcommon stock subject to our
Board of Directors discretion to modify or terminate this practit@may time and for any reason. In early 2013, comr8 of Directors approwvi
a 25.5% reduction in our quarterly common stockddind rate to $0.54 per share, which we believeltex$in a dividend payout rate that is
more sustainable over the long-term, and theretxyeased our flexibility to balance our multiple etjves of managing our business, paying
our fixed commitments and returning cash to ouretthalders. Assuming continued payment at thisab®0.54 per share, our total dividends
paid each quarter would be approximately $315 omillbased on our current number of outstanding shareich does not reflect shares tha
might repurchase or issue in future periods). $ask' Factors—Risks Affecting Our Business” in Itém of our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2013 and the dimeusf our stock repurchase program below.

Stock Repurchase Program

In February 2013, our Board of Directors authorimedo repurchase up to $2 billion of our outstagdiommon stock. As of
December 31, 2013, we had approximately $433 miliiostock remaining available for repurchase urtiderStock Repurchase Program
(includes common shares that, as of December 3B, 2@ had
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agreed to purchase under the program for $29 millidransactions that settled early in the finsaer of 2014). As of December 31, 2013, w
had repurchased 45.7 million common shares folggnegate market price of $1.567 billion and an agerpurchase price of $34.26 per share
The repurchased common stock has been retiredt Psbouary 20, 2014, we had repurchased 51.8 mililzares for $1.75 billion, or an
average purchase price of $33.78 per share. Wesetgeontinue executing this share repurchaserpnogrimarily in open market
transactions, subject to market conditions andrddwtors. For additional information on repurclasede during the quarter ended
December 31, 2013, see Item 5 of Part Il of ouruwaiiReport on Form 10-K for the year ended DecerBthep013.

In late February 2014, our board authorized a 2#ttprogram to repurchase up to an aggregate 6fl$llion of our outstanding
common stock. This new program will take effect iethiately upon the completion of our current repasghprogram, which we expect to
deplete during the second quarter of 2014 basexiioant market conditions. We expect to execute ghare repurchase program in open
market transactions, subject to market conditiok@her factors, and expect to complete the n@gram within 18 to 24 months from its
effective date.

Settlement Payment

In February 2014, Qwest, KPN, the individual defems and the trustees reached a definitive agreesedtiing the litigation. The
settlement terms include Qwest's payment, which made in February 2014, of approximately €171 onillfor approximately $235 million
based on the exchange rate on December 31, 2018 ®PNQwest bankruptcy estate pursuant to itsrimafication obligations, discussed in
Note 1&—Commitments and Contingencies to our consolidfitedhcial statements in Item 8 of our Annual Report~orm 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2013.

Credit Facilities

We have access to up to $2 billion aggregate grai@mount of revolving credit under an amendedrasthted revolving credit facility
that matures in April 2017. The Credit FacilitygttCredit Facility”) has 18 lenders, with commitntemanging from $2.5 million to $181
million and allows us to obtain revolving loans d@ndssue up to $400 million of letters of credrhich upon issuance reduce the amount
available for other extensions of credit. Inteisstssessed on borrowings using either the LIBOR@base rate (each as defined in the Credi
Facility) plus an applicable margin between 1.25% 2.25% per annum for LIBOR loans and 0.25% a@8%.per annum for base rate loans
depending on our then current senior unsecuredtemg debt rating. Our obligations under the Créditility are guaranteed by three of our
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Embarg, QCIl and Saviis,, one of QCII's wholly-owned subsidiaries amk of Savvis, Inc.’s wholly-owned
subsidiaries. At December 31, 2013, we had $72bomiin borrowings and no amounts of letters ofdireutstanding under the Credit Facil

Under the Credit Facility, we, and our indirect sidiiary, Qwest Corporation, must maintain a detEBdTDA (earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization, as definalimCredit Facility) ratio of not more than 4.@%&nd 2.85:1.0, respectively, as of the last da
of each fiscal quarter for the four quarters thedeel. The Credit Facility also contains a neggtieelge covenant, which generally requires us
to secure equally and ratably any advances undeCtédit Facility if we pledge assets or permiidi®n our property for the benefit of other
debtholders. The Credit Facility also has a cr@gsment default provision, and the Credit Facilitglaertain of our debt securities also have
cross acceleration provisions. When present, thesasions could have a wider impact on liquiditah might otherwise arise from a defaul
acceleration of a single debt instrument. To thembthat our EBITDA (as defined in our Credit Hiyg) is reduced by cash settlements or
judgments, including in respect of any of the nrattéiscussed in Note —Commitments and Contingencies to our consolidéiteohcial
statements in Item 8 of our Annual Report on FofrKl1for the year ended December 31, 2013, our tieBBITDA ratios under certain debt
agreements will be adversely affected. This coettice our financing flexibility due to potentiatections on incurring additional debt under
certain provisions of our debt agreements or, itage circumstances, could result in a default urggtain provisions of such agreements.
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In April 2011, we entered into a $160 million unawitted revolving letter of credit facility which ahles us to provide letters of credit

under terms that may be more favorable than thondenthe Credit Facility. At December 31, 2013 26d2, our outstanding letters of credit
totaled $132 million and $120 million, respectivalyder this facility.

Future Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our estimated futtostractual obligations as of December 31, 2013:

2019 and
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 thereafter Total
(Dollars in millions)

Long-term debt, including current maturities angital lease

obligations (excluding unamortized premiums, distewand

other, net. $ 78t 565 1,49  2,21¢ 24¢€ 15,73¢ 21,04
Interest on lon-term debt and capital leas® 1,37: 1,31¢ 1,24¢ 1,131 1,08¢ 15,40« 21,55¢
Operating lease 297 274 252 232 20¢ 1,391 2,65¢
Purchase commitmen® 221 162 86 58 22 79 62¢
Pos-retirement benefit obligatio®) 73 72 70 68 111 997 1,38¢
Non-qualified pension obligatior®) 5 5 5 5 5 21 46
Unrecognized tax benefi® — — — — — 44 44
Other 7 7 7 11 7 12¢ 164
Total future contractual obligatiol® $2,761 2,401 3,157 3,72¢ 1,68¢ 33,79: 47,52

(1)
(2)

(3)
(4)

()

Actual principal and interest paid in all yearay differ due to future refinancing of attribugidebt or issuance of new debt. Interest on
our floating rate debt was calculated for all yasig the rates effective at December 31, 2

We have various long-term, non-cancelable paselfcommitments for advertising and promotion sesyjiincluding advertising and
marketing at sports arenas and other venues amtiseWge also have service related commitments wétious vendors for data
processing, technical and software support servidgtsire payments under certain service contraittsavy depending on our actual
usage. In the table above we estimated paymentadee service contracts based on the level ofcesrwe expect to receiv

Reflects only the portion of total obligation thisicontractual in nature; see Note 5 bel

Represents the amount of tax and interest wddymay for our unrecognized tax benefits. The Bddion is composed of unrecognized
tax benefits of $14 million and related estimatatgiest and penalties of $30 million, which wouddult in future cash payments if our
tax positions were not upheld. See Note 12—Incomee$ to our consolidated financial statementseim I8 of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 201adaiitional information. The timing of any paymeftsour unrecognized tax
benefits cannot be predicted with certainty; themefsuch amount is reflected in 2019 and thereaft” column in the above tabl

The table is limited to contractual obligationsyoahd does not includ

. contingent liabilities

. our open purchase orders as of December 31, 20iE3eTpurchase orders are generally issued atdlaie vand are generally
cancelable without penalt

. other long-term liabilities, such as accruals &gdl matters and other taxes that are not conabehligations by nature. We cannot
determine with any degree of reliability the yeiarsvhich these liabilities might ultimately sett

. cash funding requirements for qualified pensiondfiéspayable to certain eligible current and fattetirees. Benefits paid by our
qualified pension plans are paid through trustshGanding requirements for these trusts are raudted in this table as we are not
able to reliably estimate required contributionshi® trusts. Our funding projections are discudadtier below;
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. certain post-retirement benefits payable to cegégible current and future retirees. Not all of postretirement benefit obligatic
amount is a contractual obligation and only thdiparthat we believe is a contractual obligationmeiported in the table. See
additional information on our benefits plans in 8l8—Employee Benefits to our consolidated finansiatements in Item 8 of our
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

. contract termination fees. These fees are non4iegupayments, the timing and payment of whickany, is uncertain. In the
ordinary course of business and to optimize out stpscture, we enter into contracts with termsatgethan one year to use the
network facilities of other carriers and to purahasher goods and services. Our contracts to U oarriers’ network facilities
generally have no minimum volume requirements ardased on an interrelationship of volumes ancbdisted rates. Assuming
we terminate these contracts in 2014, the conteactination fees would be approximately $170 milinder the same
assumption, termination fees for these contracggitohase goods and services would be $166 milliothe normal course of
business, we do not believe payment of these $eldeely; and

. potential indemnification obligations to countertes in certain agreements entered into in the aboourse of business. The nal
and terms of these arrangements vary. Historicakéyhave not incurred significant costs relatedddormance under these type:
arrangements

Pension and Post-retirement Benefit Obligations

We are subject to material obligations under ousting defined benefit pension plans and other-petitement benefit plans. The
accounting unfunded status as of December 31, @0&8r defined benefit pension plans and other-petitement benefit obligations were
$1.055 hillion and $3.153 billion, respectively eSd¢ote 8—Employee Benefits to our consolidatedrfaia statements in Item 8 of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembefB13 for additional information about our penssomd other post-retirement benefit
arrangements.

Benefits paid by our qualified pension plans aré flarough a trust that holds all plan assets. Véda@rcash contributions of
approximately $146 million in 2013 to our qualifipdnsion plans. Based on current laws and circurosta we expect that our required
contributions to these plans for 2014 will be $128ion.

Certain of our post-retirement health care andififirance benefits plans are unfunded. Sevemskthold assets that are used to help
cover the health care costs of certain retireefA3ecember 31, 2013, the fair value of these asets was $535 million; however, a portion
of these assets is comprised of investments wittniceed liquidity. We estimate that the more lidjaissets in the trust will be adequate to
provide continuing reimbursements for covered pestement health care costs for approximatelydtyears. Thereafter, covered benefits will
be paid either directly by us or from the trustéhesremaining assets become liquid. This projettieee year period could be substantially
shorter or longer depending on returns on plantgshe timing of maturities of illiquid plan asseind future changes in benefits.

Our estimated annual long-term rate of return engiension plans trust assets is 7.5% and for therptirement plans trust assets is 7.
based on the assets currently held; however, acttiahs could vary widely in any given year.

For additional information on factors that coulfluence our funding commitments under these andrgitans, see “Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimates—Pension and Post-RetireBemefits” in this Item 7 and “Risk Factors—Risksfédting our Liquidity and Capital
Resources—Increases in costs for pension and basgdthenefits for our active and retired employeg neduce our profitability and increase
our funding commitments” in Item 1A of our Annuagport on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRB13.
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Net Operating Loss Carryforwards

We are currently using federal NOLs to offset atiporof our federal taxable income. We expect tplele a significant portion of these
NOLs and certain other deferred tax attributeshieyand of 2014, and substantially all of thesebxefits by 2015. Once our NOLs are fi
utilized, we expect that the amounts of our casgWvdl dedicated to the payment of federal taxesimglease substantially. The amounts of tf
payments will depend upon many factors, includingife earnings, tax law changes and future taxigistances. For additional information,
see “Risk Factors—Risks Affecting our Liquidity a@dpital Resources” in Item 1A of our Annual RepmrtForm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

Historical Information

The following table summarizes our consolidatechdbsn activities (which include cash flows from\&és and Qwest after their
respective acquisition dates):

Years Ended

December 31 Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease

(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 5,55¢ $ 6,06t (50€)
Net cash used in investing activiti (3,149 (2,690 45¢
Net cash used in financing activiti (2,459 (3,295 (841)

Years Ended

December 31 Increase /
2012 2011 (Decrease

(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 6,06t $ 4,201 1,86¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (2,690 (3,647 (957)
Net cash used in financing activiti (3,29 (577) 2,71¢

Net cash provided by operating activities decredse®s06 million for the year ended December 31,28s compared to the year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to a decreasetifloss) income adjusted for non-cash items, aedeser in the loss on early retirement of
debt, a decrease in the change in the retiremetfiteand a decrease in the change in other nmerdurssets and liabilities, which were
partially offset by an increase in the change lreoturrent assets and other current liabilities, Net cash provided by operating activities
increased by $1.864 billion for the year ended Demer 31, 2012 as compared to the year ended Decé&@hpR011 primarily attributable to
the acquisitions of Qwest and Savvis, which conteld net cash provided by operating activitiespgraximately $3.4 billion in 2012 and
$2.2 billion in 2011. Our consolidated financiatsiments in Item 8 of our Annual Report on FormKlf@r the year ended December 31, 2017
provide information about the components of nebime and differences between net income and netprasfded by operating activities. For
additional information about our operating resudte “Results of Operations” above.

Net cash used in investing activities increase@4%8 million for the year end December 31, 2018ampared to the year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to amounts paicgéguisitions in 2013, increased payments for paseh of property, plant and equipment
and less proceeds from the sale of property amaahgible assets. Net cash used in investing deatdys8957 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012 as compared to the year endeshiber 31, 2011 primarily due to less net cash fmegcquisitions and an increase in
proceeds from sale of property and intangible assétich were partially offset by an increase igrpants for purchases of property, plant and
equipment. Activities in 2012 included paymentsgarchases of property, plant and equipment aniat@pd software of $2.9 billion,
including $1.9 billion for Qwest and Savvis’ capiéxpenditures.
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Net cash used in financing activities decreasefi@i million for the year ended December 31, 201 8ampared to the year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to a significardraie from net debt paydowns (including early retzat costs) in 2012 to net proceeds in
2013. Additionally, there was a decrease in divittepaid due to our recently announced reductia@uirper share common stock dividend 1
These items were partially offset by a significaucrease in stock repurchases (due to our buybagcgam announced in February 2013). Net
cash used in financing activities increased by B2 fillion for the year ended December 31, 2012cespared to the year ended December 31
2011 primarily due to net debt paydowns in 201Zusmet debt issuances in 2011. This differencepnasrily due to the $2 billion senior
notes issued in June 2011 to finance the Savvisisitiqn. Also contributing was a $255 million imarse in dividends paid attributable to an
increase in the average number of shares outstandin

On December 27, 2013, QCII redeemed $186 millioitsof.125% Notes due 2018 for $196 million inchglpremium, fees and accrued
interest, which resulted in a $3 million gain.

On November 27, 2013, QCII completed a cash teoffer with respect to its $800 million of 7.125% tde due 2018. QClII received a
accepted tenders of approximately $614 million aggte principal amount of these notes, or 77%$&d6 million including premium, fees
and accrued interest, which resulted in a $7 milain.

On November 27, 2013, CenturyLink issued $750 amillaggregate principal amount of 6.75% Notes d@&32d exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsexpenses, of approximately $742 million. The Natee unsecured obligations and may b
redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time at &mgution price equal to the greater of par or a “erakole” rate specified in the Notes, plus
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption ttateddition, at any time on or prior to DecembgQ16, we may redeem up to 35% of the
principal amount of the Notes at a redemption peigeal to 106.75% of the principal amount therphfs accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date, with the net cash proceeds adiceeqjuity offerings. Under certain circumstanees will be required to make an offer to
repurchase the Notes at a price of 101% of thejrexgate principal amount plus accrued and unpaéddst to the repurchase date.

On August 15, 2013, a subsidiary of Embarg Corpamat Embarq”) paid at maturity the $50 million pdipal amount of its 6.75%
Notes.

On July 15, 2013, a subsidiary of Embarq paid aunitg the $59 million principal amount of its 6.8% Notes.
On June 17, 2013, QC paid at maturity the $750anilprincipal amount of its floating rate Notes.

On May 23, 2013, QC issued $775 million aggregaiecjpal amount of 6.125% Notes due 2053, includb2® million principal amount
that was sold pursuant to an over-allotment opgi@mted to the underwriters for the offering, icleange for net proceeds, after deducting
underwriting discounts and expenses, of $752 millithe Notes are unsecured obligations and magdeemed, in whole or in part, on or a
June 1, 2018 at a redemption price equal to 100#teoprincipal amount redeemed plus accrued andidmpterest to the redemption date.

On April 1, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. paid at matyrthe $176 million principal amount of its 5.50% t¥s.

On March 21, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. issued $lidmllaggregate principal amount of 5.625% Notes2020 in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsexpenses, of approximately $988 million. The Natee unsecured obligations and may b
redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time at &mgution price equal to the greater of par or a “erakole” rate specified in the Notes, plus
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption tfateddition, at any time on or prior to April 1026, we may redeem up to 35% of the
principal amount of the Notes at a redemption peigeal to 105.625% of the principal amount therphfs accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date, with the net cash proceeds adiceeqjuity offerings. Under certain circumstanees will be required to make an offer to
repurchase the Notes at a price of 101% of thejrexgate principal amount plus accrued and unpaéddst to the repurchase date.
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During the year ended December 31, 2013, we repesth45.7 million shares of the company’s outstapdommon stock in the open
market. These shares were repurchased for an aggnegrket price of $1.567 billion, or an averagechase price of $34.26 per share. The
repurchased common stock has been retired. Foti@ualiinformation, see “Liquidity and Capital Resoes—Stock Repurchase Program”
above.

Certain Matters Related to Acquisitions

Qwest’s post-closing debt obligations consistechprily of debt securities issued by QCII and twdtefubsidiaries while Savvis’ post-
closing long-term debt obligations consisted prilgaf capital leases, the remaining amounts ofalitare now included in our consolidated
debt balances. The indentures governing Qwest'sirény debt securities contain customary covendnatisrestrict the ability of Qwest or its
subsidiaries from making certain payments and imvests, granting liens and selling or transferasgets. Based on current circumstances
do not anticipate that these covenants will sigaifitly restrict our ability to manage cash balamrasansfer cash between entities within our
consolidated group of companies as needed.

In accounting for the Qwest acquisition, we recdr@avests debt securities at their estimated fair valudscivtotaled $12.292 billion ¢
of April 1, 2011. Our acquisition date fair valugtismates were based primarily on quoted marketpric active markets and other observable
inputs where quoted market prices were not avalalihe fair value of Qwest’s debt securities exeddatieir stated principal balances on the
acquisition date by $693 million, which we recordeda premium.

The table below summarizes the portions of thisniuen recognized as a reduction to interest expenstinguished during the periods
indicated:

Years Ended

December 31, Total Since
2013 2012 2011 Acquisition

(Dollars in millions)
Amortized $ 62 86 154 30z
Extinguishec® _4 77 58 27¢€
Total premiums recognize $108 268 212 57¢

(1) See"Debt and Other Financing Arrangem¢’ for more informatior

The remaining premium of $115 million as of Decembk, 2013 will reduce interest expense in futiegquls, unless otherwise
extinguished.

Other Matters

CenturyLink has cash management arrangements eiithi of its principal subsidiaries, in which stargial portions of the subsidiaries’
cash is regularly advanced to CenturyLink. In adaace with generally accepted accounting princjplesse advances are eliminated as
intercompany transactions. Although CenturyLinkipaically repays these advances to fund the sudr$édi’ cash requirements throughout the
year, at any given point in time we may owe a sl sum to our subsidiaries under these advamgdgsh are eliminated in consolidati
and therefore not recognized on our consolidatémhba sheets.

We also are involved in various legal proceedimgs tould have a material adverse effect on oanfiral position. See Note 15—
Commitment and Contingencies to our consolidatedrftial statements in Item 8 of our Annual ReparForm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013 for the current status of sugal leroceedings.
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MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from changes inaesterates on our variable rate long-term debt akithgs and fluctuations in certain
foreign currencies. We seek to maintain a favoratileof fixed and variable rate debt in an effarfimit interest costs and cash flow volatility
resulting from changes in rates.

Management periodically reviews our exposure terggt rate fluctuations and periodically implemesttategies tonanage the exposul
From time to time, we have used derivative instmi®¢o (i) lockin or swap our exposure to changing or variableratt rates for fixed inter
rates or (ii) to swap obligations to pay fixed ne&t rates for variable interest rates. As of Ddmam31, 2013, we had no such instruments
outstanding. We have established policies and pires for risk assessment and the approval, regoatid monitoring of derivative
instrument activities. We do not hold or issue e financial instruments for trading or spetiviapurposes.

We do not believe that there were any material ghato market risks arising from changes in intawges for the year ended
December 31, 2013 when compared to the discloguossded in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fremr ended December 31, 2012.

At December 31, 2013, we had approximately $2dI®bi(excluding capital lease and other obligatiavith a carrying amount of $619
million) of long-term debt outstanding, 94.0% ofialihbears interest at fixed rates and is therefioteexposed to interest rate risk. At
December 31, 2013 we had $1.1 billion floating debt exposed to changes in the London InterBafdér&f Rate (LIBOR). A hypothetical
increase of 100 basis points in LIBOR relativehis debt would decrease our annual pre-tax earfipgil million.

With our acquisition of Savvis in July 2011, we bBdecome exposed to the risk of fluctuations infélneign currencies in which its
international operations are denominated, primadhié/Euro, the British Pound, the Canadian Dottee,Japanese Yen and the Singapore
Dollar. The percentages of our consolidated revemmel costs that are denominated in these curseeaemmaterial. We use a sensitivity
analysis to estimate our exposure to this foreigmency risk, measuring the change in financiaitposarising from hypothetical 10% change
in the exchange rates of these currencies, reltittee U.S. Dollar with all other variables helthstant. The aggregate potential change in the
fair value of financial assets resulting from a dtyetical 10% change in these exchange rates whm$kon at December 31, 2013.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methoahalysis presented in the computation of exposoresarket risks. Actual values may
differ materially from those presented above if keficonditions vary from the assumptions used énahalyses performed. These analyses
incorporate the risk exposures that existed at Dbee 31, 2013.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have no special purpose or limited purposeiestihat provide off-balance sheet financing, lifii, or market or credit risk support
and we do not engage in leasing, hedging, or atingtar activities that expose us to any significkabilities that are not (i) reflected on the
face of the consolidated financial statementsd{gglosed in Note 15—Commitments and Contingencierir consolidated financial
statements in Item 8 of our Annual Report on FofrKifor the year ended December 31, 2013, or irFiltere Contractual Obligations table
included in this Item 7 above or (iii) discussedlenthe heading “Market Risk” above.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

The Shareholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

Management has prepared and is responsible fantéagrity and objectivity of our consolidated fir@al statements. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in accoedaith accounting principles generally acceptetheUnited States of America and
necessarily include amounts determined using ostrjnpdgments and estimates.

Our consolidated financial statements have beeitealidy KPMG LLP, an independent registered puéticounting firm, who have
expressed their opinion with respect to the fasrafghe consolidated financial statements. Thadlitavas conducted in accordance with
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States).

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financiglaring, a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabflfinancial reporting and the preparation ofancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfesz Under the supervision and with the partitgraof management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financ@ficer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemtiess of our internal control over financial
reporting based on the frameworkiimiernal Control— Integrated Framework (1992issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatad
the Treadway Commission (“COSQ”). Based on ouruwatidn under the framework of COSO, managementladed that our internal control
over financial reporting was effective at Decembgr2013. The effectiveness of our internal condrar financial reporting at December 31,
2013 has been audited by KPMG LLP, as stated in téport which is included herein.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors ismgmsed of independent directors who are not ofioeremployees. The Committee
meets periodically with the external auditors, ing¢ auditors and management. The Committee carssile independence of the external
auditors and the audit scope and discusses inteonélol, financial and reporting matters. Both éx¢éernal and internal auditors have free
access to the Committee.

/sl R. Stewart Ewing, J

R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial OfficadaAssistant Secretary
February 27, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of CenturyLink, Inc. and subsidiaries @ompany) as of December 31,
2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statsrmé&operations, comprehensive income (loss)) lasis, and stockholders’ equity for
each of the years in the three-year period endegmber 31, 2013. These consolidated financialrstaés are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these consolidated financiastants based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digs in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenenelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, anc:$hts of their operations and their cash flowsefach of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity Wwit8. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2013, based on criteria estadiininternal Control— Integrated
Framework (1992 issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regeed
February 27, 2014 expressed an unqualified opioiothe effectiveness of the Company’s internal mmtver financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Shreveport, Louisiana
February 27, 2014

B-41



Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

We have audited CenturyLink, Inc. and subsidiarffe® Company) internal control over financial repg as of December 31, 2013,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control— Integrated Framework (1992ssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s manageisieasponsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness offriateeontrol over financial reporting, includedtire accompanyingeport of Management
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on@unpany’s internal control over financial reportigsed on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d@/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operafiiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfaggreuch other procedures as we considered necesghgycircumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablesaesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteatfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of December 31,
2013, based on criteria establishedniternal Control— Integrated Framework (1992jssued by the COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of the Company asad#rleer 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consatiddiatements of operations,
comprehensive income (loss), cash flows, and stddkins’ equity for each of the years in the threasyperiod ended December 31, 2013, anc
our report dated February 27, 2014 expressed amalifigd opinion on those consolidated financialtsments.

/sl KPMG LLP

Shreveport, Louisiana
February 27, 2014
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions, except per share
amounts and shares in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES $ 18,09t 18,37¢ 15,35!
OPERATING EXPENSE:!
Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptiei and amortizatior 7,507 7,63¢ 6,32¢
Selling, general and administrati 3,50z 3,24¢ 2,97t
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,541 4,78( 4,02¢
Impairment of goodwill (Note 3 1,092 —
Total operating expens: 16,64 15,66 13,32¢
OPERATING INCOME 1,45: 2,71 2,02t
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE
Interest expens (1,299 (1,319 (1,072
Net gain (loss) on early retirement of d 10 (179 (8
Other income 59 35 3
Total other income (expens (1,229) (1,467) (1,077%)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSI 224 1,25( 94¢
Income tax expens 463 478 37k
NET (LOSS) INCOME $ (239 777 572
BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS) EARNINGS PER COMMON SHAR
BASIC $ (0.40 1.2t 1.07
DILUTED $ (0.40 1.2t 1.07
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDINC(
BASIC 600,89: 620,20! 532,78
DILUTED 600,89: 622,28! 534,12:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LS35)

NET (LOSS) INCOME
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS
Items related to employee benefit pla
Change in net actuarial gain (loss), net of $(68832 and $508 tz
Change in net prior service credit, net of $52afid $23 ta;
Auction rate securities marked to market, net—, $(1) and $2 ta:
Auction rate securities settlements reclassifiedgbincome, net of—, $(1) and — tax
Foreign currency translation adjustment and othetrof $—, $— and $2 ta
Other comprehensive income (lo
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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Years Ended December 31

2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
$ (239 777
981 (694)
(84) (6)
— 2
— 3
2 6
89¢ (68S)
$ 66( 88

2011

BrE

(812)
(37)
(4)

87
29

28
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $155 and!
Income tax receivabl
Deferred income taxes, n
Other
Total current asse

NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN
Property, plant and equipme
Accumulated depreciatic

Net property, plant and equipme

GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill
Customer relationships, n
Other intangible assets, r
Other, ne

Total goodwill and other asse

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERES EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturities of lor-term debt
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Salaries and benefi
Income and other taxt
Interest
Other
Advance billings and customer depo:
Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM DEBT

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Deferred income taxes, n
Benefit plan obligations, ni
Other

Total deferred credits and other liabiliti

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 1£
STOCKHOLDER? EQUITY

Preferred stock—noredeemable, $25.00 par value, authorized 2,00@shasued and outstanding 7

7 share

Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 1,600z0@01,600,000 shares, issued and outstanding

583,637 and 625,658 shal
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive |
Retained earning

Total stockholder equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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December 31

2013

2012

(Dollars in millions
and shares in thousands)

$ 16€
1,977
1,16t
597
3,907

34,30°

(15,66
18,64¢

20,67«
5,93t
1,80z

8232
29,23¢

$ 78t
1,111

65C
33¢
278
514
737
4,40¢
20,18

4,75¢
4,04¢
1,20
10,00¢

584
17,34
(802)

66
17,19

$ 51,78

211
1,915
42
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net (loss) incom $ (239 771 57:
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to reshcprovided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,541 4,78( 4,02¢
Impairment of goodwill (Note 3 1,092 — —
Deferred income taxe 391 394 39t
Provision for uncollectible accour 152 187 158
Gain on sale of intangible ass (32 — —
Long-term debt (premium) discount amortizat| (57 (88) (14¢)
Net (gain) loss on early retirement of d (20 17¢ 8
Changes in current assets and current liabili
Accounts receivabl (212 (1549 (102
Accounts payabl (76) (72) (58)
Accrued income and other tax 28 (14 31
Other current assets and other current liabilities 263 1€ (7€)
Retirement benefit (342 (169) (68¢)
Changes in other noncurrent assets and liabi 19 161 (6)
Other, ne’ 41 68 93
Net cash provided by operating activit 5,55¢ 6,06¢ 4,201
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment andal@g®d software (3,049 (2,919 (2,41))
Cash paid for Savvis acquisition, net of $61 casjuaed — (1,67))
Cash acquired in Qwest acquisition, net of $5 qast — — 41¢
Cash paid for other acquisitio (160 — —
Proceeds from sale of property and intangible a: 80 191 —
Other, ne’ (20 38 1€
Net cash used in investing activiti (3,149 (2,690 (3,64)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issuance of I-term debt 2,481 3,36% 4,102
Payments of lor-term debi (2,010 (5,119 (2,989
Net (payments) borrowings on credit facil (95) 543 (88)
Early retirement of debt cos (31 (34€) (119
Dividends paic (2,309 (1,81)) (1,55¢)
Net proceeds from issuance of common s 73 11C 102
Repurchase of common sta (1,586¢) (37) (32
Other, ne 15 2 (9)
Net cash used in financing activiti (2,459 (3,29%) (577)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casba&ts — 3 (22
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (43 83 (45)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 211 12¢ 178
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 16¢ $ 211 $ 12t
Supplemental cash flow informatic
Income taxes (paid) refunded, | $ (48 $ (82 11¢€
Interest (paid) (net of capitalized interest of $843 and $25 $(1,337) $(1,40%) (1,225

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

COMMON STOCK (represents dollars and sha
Balance at beginning of peric
Issuance of common stock to acquire Qwest, inclyidirares issued in connection with share-bas
compensation awar(

Years Ended December 31

Issuance of common stock to acquire Savvis, inolydhares issued in connection with share-based

compensation awar(
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestirincentive and benefit pla
Repurchase of common stc
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdir
Balance at end of peric
ADDITIONAL PAID -IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of peric
Issuance of common stock to acquire Qwest, inclydssumption of share-based compensation
awards
Issuance of common stock to acquire Savvis, inolydissumption of share-based compensation
awards
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestiincentive and benefit pla
Repurchase of common stc
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdir
Sharebased compensation and other,
Dividends Declare:
Balance at end of peric
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOS:
Balance at beginning of peric
Other comprehensive income (lo
Balance at end of peric
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of peric
Net (loss) incomi
Dividends declare
Balance at end of peric
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgtsients.
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2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

$ 62€ 61¢ 30t
— — 294
— — 14
4 8 6
(46) — —
I (1) —
584 62€ 61¢
19,07¢ 18,90: 6,181
— — 11,97
— — 601
69 10z 97
(1,55)) — —
(18) 39 (30
85 11C 78
(321) — —
17,34 19,07¢ 18,90:
(1,70) (1,012 (141)
89¢ (68S) (871)
(802) (1,701 (1,019
1,28t 2,31¢ 3,30z
(239 777 572
(980) (1,811 (1,556
66 1,28¢ 2,31¢
$17,19: 19,28¢ 20,82’
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unless the context requires otherwise, referencalsase Notes to “CenturyLink,” “we,” “us” and “out refer to CenturyLink, Inc. and
its consolidated subsidiaries, including SAVVIS, bnd its consolidated subsidiaries (referred $3'3avvis”) for periods on or after July 15,
2011 and Qwest Communications International Ina &s consolidated subsidiaries (referred to as “€3t/) for periods on or after April 1,
2011.

(1) Basis of Presentation and Summary of SignificarAccounting Policies
Basis of Presentatiol

We are an integrated communications company engag@arily in providing an array of communicatioservices to our residential,
business, governmental and wholesale customersc@dumunications services include local and longadise, broadband, private line
(including special access), MPLS, broadband, da&gration, managed hosting (including cloud hggtinolocation, Ethernet, network access
public access, wireless, video services and othalary services.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade our accounts and the accounts of our sigvigd over which we exercise
control. These subsidiaries include our acquisitibBAVVIS, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiarf&avvis”) on July 15, 2011 and Qwest
Communications International Inc. and its consdaédasubsidiaries (“Qwest”) on April 1, 2011. Seeg®&@d—Acquisitions for additional
information. All intercompany amounts and transatdi with our consolidated subsidiaries have beemreted.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we redadmrrection of an error related to an overstatarof our net deferred tax liability
recorded in connection with the purchase accourfri§avvis and Qwest in 2011. Therefore, we recaghia $105 million decrease in our net
deferred tax liability and a $105 million reductitmgoodwill on our consolidated balance sheetf@egember 31, 2012. The correction of the
error did not have an effect on our consolidatetestents of operations or our consolidated statentdrcash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

We reclassified certain prior year balance she@ients presented in our annual report on Form 16¢Khe year ended December 31,
2012 and 2011 to conform to the current periodgaregtion. Specifically, we reclassified $123 mifliand $83 million in software developmi
costs, net of $30 million and $8 million in accummeld amortization, from property, plant and equiptte other intangible assets on our
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,8@l2011, respectively. We also reclassified $28om and $8 million from depreciation
expense to amortization expense in our statemémigsevations for the years ended December 31, 20®2011, respectively. The correction
of the error did not have an effect on our constéd statements of operations or our consolidastdrents of cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

In January 2013, we sold $43 million of our wiralepectrum assets held for sale. The sale resolgedain of $32 million, which is
recorded as other income on our consolidated stattnof operations. During the quarter ended JOn2@L3, we reclassified our remaining
$53 million of wireless spectrum assets from heldsale to other intangible assets on our congelitihalance sheet. Although we continue to
pursue selling our remaining spectrum assets, werger expect to reach agreements with purchag#n the coming twelve months.

Effective January 1, 2012, we changed our ratespitalized labor as we transitioned certain of €gdegacy systems to our historical
company systems. This transition resulted in ameséd $40 million to $55 million increase in the@unt of labor capitalized as an asset
compared to the amount that would have been
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capitalized if Qwest had continued to use its lggastems and a corresponding estimated $40 miics5 million decrease in operating
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2012e@hetion in expenses described above, net ofieaseased net income approximately $2°
million to $34 million, or $0.04 to $0.05 per basicd diluted common share, for the year ended DeeeBi, 2012.

Effective January 1, 2012, we changed our estinaftdse remaining useful lives and net salvage e&tu certain telecommunications
equipment. These changes resulted in additionakdegion expense of approximately $26 million tioe year ended December 31, 2012. Thi
additional depreciation expense, net of tax, redued income by approximately $16 million, or $0@8 basic and diluted common share, for
the year ended December 31, 2012.

Effective January 2014, we will change the estimatethe remaining economic lives of certain swictd circuit network equipment. V
estimate this will result in a net increase in éef@tion expense in our consolidated statememp@fations of $78 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014.

To simplify the overall presentation of our condatied financial statements, we report immateriadamts attributable to noncontrolling
interests in certain of our subsidiaries as follof§sncome attributable to noncontrolling intete other income (expense), (ii) equity
attributable to noncontrolling interests in additib paid-in capital and (jii) cash flows attribukato noncontrolling interests in other, net
financing activities.

We also reclassified certain other prior period antse to conform to the current period presentaiiociuding the categorization of our
revenues and our segment reporting. See Note 13m&eagdnformation for additional information. Thedeanges had no impact on total
revenues, total operating expenses or net incomanfpperiod.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policie
Use of Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with U.S. generally accepted accogigiinciples. These accounting
principles require us to make certain estimatefgniuents and assumptions. We believe that the @smjadgments and assumptions we mak
when accounting for items and matters such asydtutmited to, investments, long-term contractsstomer retention patterns, allowance for
doubtful accounts, depreciation, amortization, tgakiations, internal labor capitalization rates;overability of assets (including deferred tax
assets), impairment assessments, pension, pastanetit and other post-employment benefits, taxataia liabilities and other provisions and
contingencies are reasonable, based on informatiaitable at the time they were made. These estsnatdgments and assumptions can a
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities andpmmants of stockholders’ equity as of the datebefconsolidated balance sheets, as well as
the reported amounts of revenue, expenses and camizoof cash flows during the periods presentemliirconsolidated statements of
operations, our consolidated statements of comps#eincome (loss) and our consolidated statenedridash flows. We also make estimates
in our assessments of potential losses in relatidhreatened or pending tax and legal matters N&¢e 12—Income Taxes and Note 15—
Commitments and Contingencies for additional infation.

For matters not related to income taxes, if a i®g®nsidered probable and the amount can be rebloestimated, we recognize an
expense for the estimated loss. If we have thenpiatdo recover a portion of the estimated lossrfra third party, we make a separate
assessment of recoverability and reduce the egtihiass if recovery is also deemed probable.

For matters related to income taxes, if the impéein uncertain tax position is more likely than twbe sustained upon audit by the
relevant taxing authority, then we recognize a Eefo the largest amount that is more likely thaot to be sustained. No portion of an
uncertain tax position will be recognized if thesjiion has less than a 50% likelihood of beinganstd. Interest is recognized on the amou
unrecognized benefit from uncertain tax positions.
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For all of these and other matters, actual resoltdd differ from our estimates.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue for services when the reledces are provided. Recognition of certain paysesceived in advance of servi
being provided is deferred until the service isvided. These advance payments include activatidrrastallation charges, which we recogr
as revenue over the expected customer relatiopahipd, which ranges from eighteen months to oseryears depending on the service. We
also defer costs for customer activations and liasians. The deferral of customer activation anstallation costs is limited to the amount of
revenue deferred on advance payments. Costs iseré@dvance payments are recorded as expertse petiod such costs are incurred.
Expected customer relationship periods are estinaging historical experience. Termination feestber fees on existing contracts that are
negotiated in conjunction with new contracts areded and recognized over the new contract term.

We offer bundle discounts to our customers whoivecgertain groupings of services. These bundleadists are recognized concurrel
with the associated revenues and are allocatdtbtodrious services in the bundled offering basethe estimated selling price of services
included in each bundled combination.

Customer arrangements that include both equipmehsarvices are evaluated to determine whethezléments are separable. If the
elements are deemed separable and separate egrrongsses exist, the revenue associated withudteroer arrangement is allocated to eact
element based on the relative estimated sellirgppoi the separate elements. We have estimatextHiveg prices of each element by reference
to vendor-specific objective evidence of sellingces when the elements are sold separately. Thmuevassociated with each element is then
recognized as earned. For example, if we receivadaance payment when we sell equipment and cangraservice together, we immediately
recognize as revenue the amount allocated to thipmgnt as long as all the conditions for reveragagnition have been satisfied. The por
of the advance payment allocated to the servicedbagon its relative selling price is recognizedioly over the longer of the contractual
period or the expected customer relationship period

We periodically transfer optical capacity asset®onnetwork to other telecommunications serviaeiess. These transactions are
structured as indefeasible rights of use, commuaefigrred to as IRUs, which are the exclusive righise a specified amount of capacity or
fiber for a specified term, typically 20 years. \&tzount for the cash consideration received orsteas of optical capacity assets and on all of
the other elements deliverable under an IRU, asme® ratably over the term of the agreement. We havrecognized revenue on any
contemporaneous exchanges of our optical capassgtafor other optical capacity assets.

In connection with offering products and servicesviled by third-party vendors, we review the rielaship between us, the vendor and
the end customer to assess whether revenue sheudghbrted on a gross or net basis. In assessiatherihrevenue should be reported on a
gross or net basis, we consider whether we acpageipal in the transaction, take title to thegucts, have risk and rewards of ownership or
act as an agent or broker. Based on our agreem@ht®IRECTV and Verizon Wireless, we offer thesewsces through sales agency
relationships which are reported on a net basis.

For our data hosting operations, we have servigg Eommitments pursuant to contracts with certdiaur clients. To the extent that
such service levels are not achieved or are otlerdisputed due to performance or service issuether service interruptions or conditions,
we will estimate the amount of credits to be issaed record a reduction to revenue, with a cornegdipg increase in the credit reserve.

USF, Gross Receipts Taxes and Other Surcharges

In determining whether to include in our revenud arpenses the taxes and surcharges collecteccfrstomers and remitted to
government authorities, including USF charges,ssaise, value added and some
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excise taxes, we assess, among other things, whe¢hare the primary obligor or principal taxpaj@rthe taxes assessed in each jurisdiction
where we do business. In jurisdictions where wermeine that we are the principal taxpayer, we réthe surcharges on a gross basis and
include them in our revenue and costs of servindgpaoducts. In jurisdictions where we determirs thie are merely a collection agent for the
government authority, we record the taxes on dasis and do not include them in our revenue astsaf services and products.

Advertising Costs

Costs related to advertising are expensed as edtamd included in selling, general and adminiseagxpenses in our consolidated
statements of operations. For the years ended Omedd, 2013, 2012 and 2011, our advertising expeares $210 million, $189 million and
$275 million, respectively.

Legal Costs

In the normal course of our business, we incursctushire and retain external legal counsel tosaluis on regulatory, litigation and other
matters. We expense these costs as the relatddeseave received.

Income Taxes

We file a consolidated federal income tax returthwiur eligible subsidiaries. The provision forange taxes consists of an amount for
taxes currently payable, an amount for tax consecpsedeferred to future periods, adjustments tdiabitities for uncertain tax positions and
amortization of investment tax credits. We recagfedred income tax assets and liabilities reflegcfiture tax consequences attributable to tay
net operating losses (“NOLSs"), tax credit carryfards and differences between the financial statenarying value of assets and liabilities
and the tax bases of those assets and liabildieferred taxes are computed using enacted taxeapescted to apply in the year in which the
differences are expected to affect taxable incdrhe.effect on deferred income tax assets andiligisilof a change in tax rate is recognized in
earnings in the period that includes the enactrdatg.

We establish valuation allowances when necessawdiace deferred income tax assets to the amcuattsve believe are more likely tt
not to be recovered. A significant portion of oet deferred tax assets relate to tax benefitbatable to NOLs. Each quarter we evaluate the
need to retain all or a portion of the valuatioleahnce on our deferred tax assets. See Note 126mad axes for additional information.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquicgiments that are readily convertible into cashagdot subject to significant risk
from fluctuations in interest rates. As a restilg value at which cash and cash equivalents aogtegbin our consolidated financial statements
approximates their fair value. In evaluating inneshts for classification as cash equivalents, weire that individual securities have original
maturities of ninety days or less and that indiaildavestment funds have dollar-weighted averageiritizs of ninety days or less. To preserve
capital and maintain liquidity, we invest with fimeial institutions we deem to be of sound financ@dition and in high quality and relatively
risk-free investment products. Our cash investrpefity limits the concentration of investments wafecific financial institutions or among
certain products and includes criteria relatedréalit worthiness of any particular financial ingtion.

Book overdrafts occur when checks have been issuebave not been presented to our controlled dislooent bank accounts for
payment. Disbursement bank accounts allow us @ydehding of issued checks until the checks aesgmted for payment. Until the issued
checks are presented for payment, the book ovésdaed included in accounts payable on our corsigilbalance sheet. This activity is
included in the operating activities section in oansolidated statements of cash flows.
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Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acamts

Accounts receivable are recognized based uponmtioeiat due from customers for the services proviateat cost for purchased and ot
receivables less an allowance for doubtful accourite allowance for doubtful accounts receivabflects our best estimate of probable losse:
inherent in our receivable portfolio determinedtloa basis of historical experience, specific alloees for known troubled accounts and other
currently available evidence. We generally consaleraccounts past due if they are outstanding 80efays. Our collection process varies by
the customer segment, amount of the receivablepandvaluation of the customer’s credit risk. @ast due accounts are written off against
our allowance for doubtful accounts when colleci®moonsidered to be not probable. Any recoverfescoounts previously written off are
generally recognized as a reduction in bad deb¢mesgin the period received. The carrying valuacobunts receivable net of the allowance
for doubtful accounts approximates fair value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment acquired in conneatiith our acquisitions was recorded based onsiisnated fair value as of its
acquisition date plus the estimated value of aspeiated legally or contractually required retiretnebligations. Purchased and constructed
property, plant and equipment is recorded at qbss the estimated value of any associated legalgontractually required retirement
obligations. Property, plant and equipment is deipted primarily using the straight-line group nathUnder the straight-line group method,
assets dedicated to providing telecommunicationsces (which comprise the majority of our propemilant and equipment) that have similar
physical characteristics, use and expected useéd hre categorized in the year acquired on tkes lod equal life groups for purposes of
depreciation and tracking. Generally, under thaigiit-line group method, when an asset is soletired in the course of normal business
activities, the cost is deducted from propertynpknd equipment and charged to accumulated depicctiwithout recognition of a gain or lo
A gain or loss is recognized in our consolidatedeshents of operations only if a disposal is abmbion unusual. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the shorter of the useful liveshef dssets or the expected lease term. Expendituregintenance and repairs are expensed a
incurred. Interest is capitalized during the candtion phase of network and other internal-usetabprojects. Employee-related costs for
construction of network and other internal use @@sae also capitalized during the constructiorsph®roperty, plant and equipment supplies
used internally are carried at average cost, eXoegignificant individual items for which costligmsed on specific identification.

We perform annual internal reviews to evaluaterdasonableness of the depreciable lives for oypepty, plant and equipment. Our
reviews utilize models that take into account daisage, physical wear and tear, replacement fistssumptions about technology evolution
and, in certain instances, actuarially determinetb@bilities to estimate the remaining life of asset base.

We have asset retirement obligations associatddtit legally or contractually required removabdimited group of property, plant a
equipment assets from leased properties and thesiibof certain hazardous materials present iroamned properties. When an asset
retirement obligation is identified, usually in asgtion with the acquisition of the asset, we rddbe fair value of the obligation as a liability.
The fair value of the obligation is also capitatizs property, plant and equipment and then anegroxer the estimated remaining useful life
of the associated asset. Where the removal oldigaginot legally binding, the net cost to remosseds is expensed in the period in which the
costs are actually incurred.

We review long-lived tangible assets for impairmehtnever facts and circumstances indicate thatalmying amounts of the assets
may not be recoverable. For assessment purposeslied assets are grouped with other assetsiabitlitles at the lowest level for which
identifiable cash flows are largely independenthef cash flows of other assets and liabilitieseaba material change in operations. An
impairment loss is recognized only if the carryargount of the asset group is not recoverable aoéess its fair value. Recoverability of the
asset group to be held and used is assessed bydomfhe carrying amount of the asset
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group to the estimated undiscounted future net flagls expected to be generated by the asset gtbune asset group’s carrying value is not
recoverable, an impairment charge is recognizethimamount by which the carrying amount of theebgsoup exceeds its fair value. We
determine fair values by using a combination of parable market values and discounted cash flonsppopriate.

Goodwill, Customer Relationships and Other Intangilbe Assets

Intangible assets arising from business combinatisach as goodwill, customer relationships, chp#td software, trademarks and trade
names, are initially recorded at estimated faiugaWe amortize customer relationships primarilgroan estimated life of 10 years to 15, using
either the sum-of-the-years-digits or the straigtg-methods, depending on the type of customeraWiertize capitalized software using the
straight-line method over estimated lives rangipgaiseven years, except for approximately $23%Wanibf our capitalized software costs,
which represents costs to develop an integratéiddind customer care system which is amortizéabue straight-line method over a 20
year period. We amortize our other intangible aspetdominantly using the si-of-the-years-digits method over an estimateddiféour
years. Other intangible assets not arising fronin@ss combinations are initially recorded at c@#tere there are no legal, regulatc
contractual or other factors that would reasonébiit the useful life of an intangible asset, wassify the intangible asset as indefinite-lived
and such intangible assets are not amortized.

Internally used software, whether purchased orldgee by us, is capitalized and amortized usingstheght-line method over its
estimated useful life. We have capitalized certaists associated with software such as costs ologess devoting time to the projects and
external direct costs for materials and servicest€associated with software to be used for iatgrarposes are expensed until the point at
which the project has reached the development sfagesequent additions, modifications or upgradéstérnal-use software are capitalized
only to the extent that they allow the softwarg@ésform a task it previously did not perform. Scite maintenance, data conversion and
training costs are expensed in the period in wiiely are incurred. We review the remaining econdiwés of our capitalized software
annually. Capitalized software is included in ottitangible assets, net, in our consolidated baaheets.

Our long-lived intangible assets, other than godidwith indefinite lives are assessed for impainmnhannually, or, under certain
circumstances, more frequently, such as when ewemtiscumstances indicate there may be an impaitnidese assets are carried at the
estimated fair value at the time of acquisition asdets not acquired in acquisitions are recortibs@rical cost. However, if their estimated
fair value is less than the carrying amount, otheefinitedived intangible assets are reduced to their egéichfair value through an impairme
charge to our consolidated statements of operations

We annually review the estimated lives and methsgsl to amortize our other intangible assets. Theahamounts of amortization
expense may differ materially from our estimategpeahding on the results of our annual review.

We are required to assess goodwill for impairmetaast annually, or more frequently if events @hange in circumstances indicate 1
an impairment may have occurred. We are requiredite-down the value of goodwill in periods in whithe recorded amount of goodwill
exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill. Ouragmg units, which we refer to as our segments,rant discrete legal entities with discrete
financial statements. Our assets and liabilitiesesmployed in and relate to the operations of ipleltieporting units. Therefore, the equity
carrying value and future cash flows must be edgthaach time a goodwill impairment assessmergrpned on a reporting unit. As a
result, our assets, liabilities and cash flowsamsigned to reporting units using reasonable ansistent allocation methodologies. Certain
estimates, judgments and assumptions are requineerform these assignments. We believe theseastinjudgments and assumptions to be
reasonable, but changes in many of these can isigmilfy affect each reporting urstequity carrying value and future cash flows zeiti for ou
goodwill impairment assessment. As of SeptembeRB03, our annual assessment date, we assessedilijémdmpairment of our reporting
units,
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which are our four operating segments (consumesiness, wholesale and data hosting) and we recerded-cash, non-tax-deductible
goodwill impairment charge of $1.092 billion forapwill assigned to our data hosting segment.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we elected targe the date of our annual assessment of goddvpdlirment from September 30 to
October 31. This is a change in method of applgin@ccounting principle which management beliesespreferable alternative as the new
date of the assessment is more closely alignedawittstrategic planning process. The change im$sessment date did not delay, accelere
avoid a potential impairment charge in 2013. Wdqgrared our annual goodwill impairment assessmeBeatember 30, 2013, prior to the
change in our annual assessment date. We thempeda qualitative assessment of our goodwill &8aibber 31 and concluded that our
goodwill for consumer, wholesale and business tempunits was not impaired and our goodwill fotalaosting reporting unit was not further
impaired as of that date.

We are required to reassign goodwill to reportingsueach time we reorganize our internal reporsimgcture which causes a change in
our operating segments. Goodwill is reassignefieaeporting units using a relative fair value agzh. We utilize the earnings before interes
tax and depreciation as our allocation methodoksyit represents a reasonable proxy for the fairevaf the operations being reorganized.

See Note 3—Goodwill, Customer Relationships anceOitangible Assets for additional information.

Pension and Post-Retirement Benefits

We recognize the underfunded status of our deflieeekfit and post-retirement plans as an asseliability on our balance sheet. Each
yeals actuarial gains or losses are a component obthar comprehensive income (loss), which is tinetuded in our accumulated other
comprehensive loss. Pension and post-retirememfibvexpenses are recognized over the period ichvtiie employee renders service and
becomes eligible to receive benefits. We make Baamit assumptions (including the discount ratgested rate of return on plan assets and
health care trend rates) in computing the pensimhpast-retirement benefits expense and obligati®ae Note 8—Employee Benefits for
additional information.

Foreign Currency

Our results of operations include foreign subsidi&rwhich are translated from the applicable fiometl currency to the United States
Dollar using the average exchange rates duringegherting period, while assets and liabilities @amslated at the reporting date. Resulting
gains or losses from translating foreign curremeyaacomponent of our other comprehensive incooss)] which is then included in our
accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Common Stock

At December 31, 2013, we had unissued shares dliGgink common stock reserved of 31 million shafi@sincentive compensation,
4 million shares for acquisitions, 1 million shafesour dividend reinvestment plan and 1 millidrages for our employee stock purchase plar
(“ESPP").

Preferred stock

Holders of outstanding CenturyLink preferred stack entitled to receive cumulative dividends, reegireferential distributions equal to
$25 per share plus unpaid dividends upon Centukytiiiquidation and vote as a single class withtloéders of common stock.
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Out-of-Period Adjustments

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we disedvend corrected an error that resulted in anstatment of depreciation expense
in 2011. We evaluated the error considering bo#mtjtative and qualitative factors and concluded the error was immaterial to our
previously issued and current period consolidaieahial statements. Therefore, we recognized anfiBidn reduction in depreciation exper
during the year ended December 31, 2012. The damnecf the error resulted in an increase in nebme of $19 million, or approximately
$0.03 per basic and diluted common share, for #ze gnded December 31, 2012.

(2) Acquisitions
Acquisition of Savvis

On July 15, 2011, we acquired all of the outstagadiommon stock of Savvis, a provider of cloud hagtinanaged hosting, colocation
and network services in domestic and foreign mark&ke believe this acquisition enhances our altiitge an information technology partner
with our existing business customers and strengtben opportunities to attract new business custeinghe future. Each share of Savvis
common stock outstanding immediately prior to tbguasition converted into the right to receive $20 share in cash and 0.2479 shares of
CenturyLink common stock. The aggregate considaraif $2.382 billion consisted of:

. cash payments of $1.732 billic

. the 14.313 million shares of CenturyLink commorcktssued to consummate the acquisit

. the closing stock price of CenturyLink common statiuly 14, 2011 of $38.54; a

. the estimated net value of the pre-combinationigof certain share-based compensation awardsnesshy CenturyLink of $98
million, of which $33 million was paid in cas

Upon completing the acquisition, we also paid $64lfion to retire certain pre-existing Savvis delotd accrued interest, and paid relatec
transaction expenses totaling $15 million. The gasjments required on or about the closing date feerded using existing cash balances,
which included the net proceeds from the June 2€dliance of senior notes with an aggregate prihaipaunt of $2 billion. See Note 4—
Long-term Debt and Credit Facilities, for additibmdormation about our senior notes.

The aggregate consideration paid by us exceedeaahjtiregate estimated fair value of the assets mxtjand liabilities assumed by $1..
billion, which we recognized as goodwill. This gedlli is attributable to strategic benefits, incladienhanced financial and operational scale,
and product and market diversification that we expe realize. None of the goodwill associated wiitis acquisition is deductible for income
tax purposes.

The following was our assignment of the aggregatesideration:

July 15, 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Cash, accounts receivable and other current as $ 214
Property, plant and equipme 1,367
Identifiable intangible asse
Customer relationshir 73¢
Other 51
Other noncurrent asse 27
Current liabilities, excluding current maturitieslong-term debi (129
Current maturities of lor-term deb (38)
Long-term debi (840
Deferred credits and other liabiliti (344)
Goodwill 1,33t
Aggregate consideratic $ 2,38
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* Includes estimated fair value of $90 million faccounts receivable which had gross contractuakved $101 million on July 15, 2011. The
$11 million difference between the gross contrdoratue and the estimated fair value assigned semts our best estimate as of July 15,
2011 of contractual cash flows that would not biéected.

Acquisition of Qwes

On April 1, 2011, we acquired all of the outstamdaommon stock of Qwest, a provider of data, Iregmideo and voice services
nationwide and globally. We entered into this asijigin, among other things, to realize certaintsgi benefits, including enhanced financial
and operational scale, market diversification anettaged combined networks. As of the acquisitie dQwest served approximately
9.0 million access lines and approximately 3.0ionllbroadband subscribers across 14 states. Each shQwest common stock outstanding
immediately prior to the acquisition converted ittte right to receive 0.1664 shares of Centuryldoknmon stock, with cash paid in lieu of
fractional shares. The aggregate consideratiord&a273 billion based on:

. the 294 million shares of CenturyLink common st@sued to consummate the acquisiti
. the closing stock price of CenturyLink common statiarch 31, 2011 of $41.5

. the estimated net value of the pre-combinationipof share-based compensation awards assumedriyr@Link of $52 million
(excluding the value of restricted stock includedhie number of issued shares specified above)

. cash paid in lieu of the issuance of fractionarebaf $5 million.
We assumed approximately $12.7 billion of long-tefat in connection with our acquisition of Qwest.

The aggregate consideration exceeded the aggresfateated fair value of the assets acquired abilitias assumed by $10.032 billion,
which we recognized as goodwill. This goodwill ttridutable to strategic benefits, including entethéinancial and operational scale, market
diversification and leveraged combined networks tieexpect to realize. None of the goodwill asate with this acquisition is deductible
income tax purposes.

The following was our assignment of the aggregatesiteration:

April 1, 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Cash, accounts receivable and other current as $ 2,121
Property, plant and equipme 9,52¢
Identifiable intangible asse
Customer relationshir 7,55¢
Capitalized softwar 1,70z
Other 18¢
Other noncurrent asse 39C
Current liabilities, excluding current maturitielong-term debt (2,426
Current maturities of lor-term deb (2,427)
Long-term debt (10,259
Deferred credits and other liabiliti (4,147
Goodwill 10,03:
Aggregate consideratic $ 12,27:

* Includes estimated fair value of $1.194 billiar ficcounts receivable which had gross contrastlak of $1.274 billion on April 1, 2011.
The $80 million difference between the gross caitral value and the estimated fair value assigaptesents our best estimate as of
April 1, 2011 of contractual cash flows that woulat be collectec
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On the acquisition date, we assumed Qwest’s coetticigs. For more information on our contingencseg, Note 15—Commitments and
Contingencies.

Other Acquisitions

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we adafjaitef the outstanding stock of two companiestétal cash consideration of $160
million, of which $139 million was attributed to gdwill and the remainder to various other assetsliabilities. The valuation for one of the
acquisitions is still preliminary and subject taolye during the measurement period, which endoireiber of 2014. The acquisitions were
consummated to expand the product offerings ofdata hosting segment and therefore the goodwilbleags assigned to that segment. The
goodwill is primarily attributable to expected futlincreases in data hosting segment revenue fieraale of new products to existing
customers as well as the acquisition of new custsithee to the products acquired. The goodwill isdealuctible for tax purposes.

The acquisitions did not materially impact the 2@b8solidated results of operations from the datéke acquisitions and would not
materially impact pro forma results of operations.

Acquisition-Related Expenses

We have incurred operating expenses related taaguisition of Savvis in July 2011, Qwest in A@@11 and Embarq in July 2009. The
table below summarizes our expenses related taaguisitions, which consist primarily of integratiand severance expenses:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Acquisitior-related expense $ 53 83 467

The total amounts of these expenses are recogimzrd cost of services and products and selliegegal and administrative expenses.
In addition to these acquisition-related operagrgenses for the year ended December 31, 201$atrtion expenses in the amount of $16
million were incurred in connection with terminagian unused loan financing commitment related toSavvis acquisition. This amount was
not considered an operating activity and therefarteincluded as an operating expense.

At December 31, 2013, we had incurred cumulativugsition related expenses, consisting primarilynéégration and severance related
expenses, of $62 million for Savvis and $511 millfor Qwest.

Qwest incurred cumulative pre-acquisition relateplemses of $71 million, including $36 million inreds prior to being acquired and
$35 million on the date of acquisition. Savvis irred cumulative pre-acquisition related expense&2@ million, including $3 million in
periods prior to being acquired and $19 milliontba date of acquisition. These amounts are notidsd in our results of operations.

References to Acquired Business

In the discussion that follows, we refer to ther@mental business activities that we now operaterasult of the Savvis acquisition and
the Qwest acquisition as “Legacy Savvis” and “Legg@evest”, respectively. References to “Legacy Ceyitimk”, when used to a comparison
of our consolidated results for the years endecebser 31, 2012 and 2011, mean the business weteggnador to the Qwest and Savvis
acquisitions.
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Combined Pro Forma Operating Results (Unaudited)

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortizan presents the combined results of CenturyLsif the Qwest and Savvis
acquisitions had been consummated as of Janua2gi1,

Year Ended December 31, 20:
(Dollars in millions)

Operating revenue $ 18,69:
Net income 601
Basic earnings per common sh 0.97
Diluted earnings per common shi 0.97

This pro forma information reflects certain adjustits to previously reported operating results, isting of primarily:

decreased operating revenues and expenses duedlinimation of deferred revenues and deferre&esgs associated with
installation activities and capacity leases thatensssigned no value at the acquisition date améltmination of transactions
among CenturyLink, Qwest and Savvis that are ndvjest to intercompany eliminatio

increased amortization expense related to idehtdimtangible assets, net of decreased depretiatipense to reflect the fair value
of property, plant and equipme

decreased recognition of retiree benefit experme@Wwest due to the elimination of unrecognizediacal losses

decreased interest expense primarily due to thetamaton of an adjustment to reflect the increafédvalue of long-term debt of
Qwest recognized on the acquisition date;

the related income tax effec

The pro forma information does not necessarilyetfthe actual results of operations had the Qams$tSavvis acquisitions been
consummated at January 1, 2011, nor is it necésgadicative of future operating results. The ffwoma information does not adjust for
integration costs incurred by us, Qwest and Sadwigng 2011 (which are further described abovéig hote) or integration costs incurred by
us in future periods. In addition, the pro formBbimation does not give effect to any potentialerave enhancements, cost synergies or other
operating efficiencies that could result from tlcguisitions (other than those realized in our histd consolidated financial statements after
respective acquisition dates).

(3) Goodwill, Customer Relationships and Other Intagible Assets
Goodwill, customer relationships and other intafeydssets consisted of the following:

December 31 December 31
2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)

Goodwill $ 20,67 21,62

Customer relationships, less accumulated amortizatf $3,641 and $2,52 5,93t 7,052

Indefinite-life intangible asset 321 26¢
Other intangible assets subject to amortiza

Capitalized software, less accumulated amortizaifo$il,193 and $84 1,41¢ 1,522

Trade names and patents, less accumulated amionizdi$208 and $14 66 12¢

Total other intangible assets, 1 $ 1,80: 1,91¢
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Total amortization expense for intangible assets$tfe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and284 $1.589 billion, $1.710 billion
and $1.433 billion, respectively.

We estimate that total amortization expense famgible assets for the years ending December 34, @bough 2018 will be as follows:

(Dollars in millions)

2014 $ 1,39(
2015 1,24¢
2016 1,13¢
2017 1,025
2018 904

Our goodwill was derived from numerous acquisitiaigere the purchase price exceeded the fair vdltlemet assets acquired. For
more information on our recent acquisitions andilte®y fair values, see Note 2—Acquisitions.

During the first quarter of 2013, we reorganized @perating segments to support our new operathugtsire. As a result, we reassigned
goodwill to our segments using a relative fair eadllocation approach. As of January 3, 2013, w@aed our aggregate goodwill balance to
our four segments as follows.

As of
January 3, 2013
(Dollars in millions)

Consume $ 10,34¢
Business 6,36:
Wholesale 3,274
Data hosting 1,64
Total goodwiill $ 21,62:

We assess our goodwill and other indefinite-livetingible assets for impairment annually, or, urtéetain circumstances, more
frequently, such as when events or circumstanahsadte there may be impairment. We are requiredri@ down the value of goodwill only
when our assessment determines the recorded ammogobdwill exceeds the fair value. Our annual geildmpairment assessment date was
September 30, at which date we assessed our mggpartits, which are our four operating segmentagumer, business, wholesale and data
hosting). See Note 1—Basis of Presentation and Samnof Significant Accounting Policies, for infortian about the change in our goodwiill
impairment assessment date. Our annual impairnssesament date for indefinite-lived intangible tsether than goodwill is December 31.

Our reporting units, which we refer to as our segtsieare not discrete legal entities with discfietancial statements. Our assets and
liabilities are employed in and relate to the ofierss of multiple reporting units. For each segmer compare its estimated fair value of
equity to its carrying value of equity that we gssio the segment. If the estimated fair valuehefdegment is greater than the carrying value,
we conclude that no impairment exists. If the eatéd fair value of the segment is less than theyicay value, a second calculation is required
in which the implied fair value of goodwill is coraped to the carrying value of goodwill that we gasid to the segment. If the implied fair
value of goodwill is less than its carrying valgepdwill must be written down to its implied faialae.

At September 30, 2013, as a result of the Janu@tg hternal reorganization of our four segments did not have a baseline valuation
upon which to perform a qualitative assessment.ithaghlly, our stock price and total company forgtea cash flows declined since our
previous quantitative assessment. Therefore, vima&isd the fair value of our consumer, businessvemalesale segments by considering both
a market
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approach and a discounted cash flow method andaiarhosting segment by considering only a dise@slinash flow method, which resulted
in a level 3 fair value measurement. The market@ggh method includes the use of comparable megtipf publicly traded companies whose
services are comparable to ours. The discountdudfttag method is based on the present value optef cash flows and a terminal value,
which represents the expected normalized cash ftdwse segments beyond the cash flows from therelis projection period. We discounted
the estimated cash flows for our consumer, whodesatl business segments using a rate that repgesenteighted average cost of capital,
which we determined to be approximately 6.0% abefassessment date (which was comprised of antakeost of debt of 3.4% and a cost
of equity of 8.3%). We discounted the estimatedhdbmsvs of our data hosting segment using a radérpresents its estimated weighted
average cost of capital, which we determined taggroximately 11.0% as of the measurement datecbwhias comprised of an after-tax cost
of debt of 3.4% and a cost of equity of 11.9%). &&o reconciled the estimated fair values of tlggrents to our market capitalization as of
September 30, 2013 and concluded that the indigatelied control premium of approximately 18.4% waasonable based on recent
transactions in the market place.

As of September 30, 2013, based on our assessmdotped with respect to these segments as dedailteve, we concluded that our
goodwill for consumer, wholesale and business satgngas not impaired as of that date, but thagoadwill for the data hosting segment
was impaired as of September 30, 2013. The datmbasegment is experiencing slower than previopsbjected revenue and margin growth
and greater than anticipated competitive pressiétethie time we issued our third quarter 2013 FAG¥Q, we had not finalized our impairme
estimate for the data hosting segment due to mhitelil time period from the assessment date toilihg fiate for our report, as well as the time
required to finalize our strategic planning procasd estimate the fair values of certain assetdiabitities for this segment. Although our
assessment was incomplete, we recorded our besaésof a non-cash, non-tax-deductible goodwip@ainment charge of $1.1 billion during
the third quarter of 2013 for goodwill assignedts data hosting segment. We completed our goodwihirment assessment during the
fourth quarter of 2013 and recorded an adjustnedetrease the estimated goodwill impairment chiygg8 million, which resulted in a net
non-cash, non-tax-deductible goodwill impairmerarge of $1.092 billion for goodwill assigned to @ata hosting segment.

The following table shows the rollforward of goodiveissigned to our operating segments from theakgn®, 2013 reorganization throu
December 31, 2013.

JanuaArsx gf 201! Acquisitions Impairment Decemﬁzfgl, 201

(Dollars in millions)
Consume $ 10,34¢ — — 10,34¢
Busines: 6,36: — — 6,36:
Wholesale 3,27¢ — — 3,27¢
Data hostin¢ 1,642 13¢ (1,097) 68¢
Total goodwill $ 21,62 $ 13¢ (1,099 20,67«

For additional information on the reorganizatioroaf segments, acquisitions and correction of eor see Note 13—Segment
Information, Note 2—Acquisitions and Note 1—Basi$cesentation and Summary of Significant Accountholicies, respectively.

We completed our qualitative assessment of ouffimitxlived intangible assets other than goodwdlof December 31, 2013 and
concluded it is not more likely than not that cudléfinitelived intangible assets are impaired; thus, no impent charge was recorded in 2C
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(4) Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities

Long-term debt, including unamortized discounts preimiums, at December 31, 2013 and 2012 consi$tedrrowings by
CenturyLink, Inc. and certain of its subsidiariesluding Qwest and Embarqg Corporation (“Embar@?y follows:

December 31
Interest Rates Maturities 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)

CenturyLink, Inc.

Senior note: 5.000%- 7.650% 2015- 2042 $ 7,82¢ 6,25(
Credit facility @ 2.179%- 4.250% 2017 72t 82(C
Term loan 2.420% 2019 40z 424
Subsidiaries
Qwest
Senior note: 6.125%- 8.375% 2014- 2053 8,39z 9,16¢
Embarq
Senior note: 7.082%- 7.995% 2016- 2036 2,66¢ 2,66¢
First mortgage bonc 7.125%- 8.770% 2014- 2025 262 322
Other 9.000% 2019 15C 20C
Capital lease and other obligatic Various Various 61¢ 734
Unamortized (discounts) premiums and other, (78) 18
Total lon¢-term debt 20,96¢ 20,60¢
Less current maturitie (785) (1,20%)
Long-term debt, excluding current maturiti $20,18: 19,40(

» The outstanding amounts of our Credit Facility baings at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $72tom#ind $820 million, respective
with weighted average interest rates of 2.176%2480%, respectively. These amounts change onuardogsis

New Issuance:
2013

On November 27, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. issued $Tfillon aggregate principal amount of 6.75% Nafeg 2023, in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsexpenses, of approximately $742 million. The Natee unsecured obligations and may b
redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time at &mgution price equal to the greater of par or a “erakole” rate specified in the Notes, plus
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption ttateddition, at any time on or prior to DecembgQ16, we may redeem up to 35% of the
principal amount of the Notes at a redemption peigeal to 106.75% of the principal amount therphfs accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date, with the net cash proceeds adiceeqjuity offerings. Under certain circumstanees will be required to make an offer to
repurchase the Notes at a price of 101% of thejrexgate principal amount plus accrued and unpaéddst to the repurchase date.

On May 23, 2013, Qwest Corporation (“QC") issued%illion aggregate principal amount of 6.125% é@sotlue 2053, including $25
million principal amount that was sold pursuanatoover-allotment option granted to the underwsifer the offering, in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsetpenses, of approximately $752 million. The Naee unsecured obligations and may b
redeemed, in whole or in part, on or after Jun2018 at a redemption price equal to 100% of thecpal amount redeemed plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the redemption date.

On March 21, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. issued $lidnllaggregate principal amount of 5.625% Notes2i20 in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsepenses, of approximately $988
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million. The Notes are unsecured obligations ang brearedeemed, in whole or in part, at any time edemption price equal to the greater of
par or a “make-whole” rate specified in the Nofss accrued and unpaid interest to the redempid®. In addition, at any time on or prior to
April 1, 2016, we may redeem up to 35% of the ppatamount of the Notes at a redemption price egut05.625% of the principal amount
thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to themption date, with the net cash proceeds of ceegiity offerings. Under certain
circumstances, we will be required to make an dffeepurchase the Notes at a price of 101% of #ggiregate principal amount plus accrued
and unpaid interest to the repurchase date.

2012

On June 25, 2012, QC issued $400 million aggregateipal amount of 7.00% Notes due 2052 in excledig net proceeds, after
deducting underwriting discounts and expenses387 $nillion. The Notes are unsecured obligatiors may be redeemed, in whole or in part
on or after July 1, 2017 at a redemption price Etua00% of the principal amount redeemed pluswset interest.

On April 18, 2012, CenturyLink, Inc. entered intteam loan in the amount of $440 million with ColBeand several other Farm Credit
System banks. This term loan is payable in 29 cartae quarterly installments of $5.5 million inipeipal plus interest through April 18,
2019, when the balance will be due. We have thimopf paying monthly interest based upon eithendan Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR") or the base rate (as defined in the ctedjreement) plus an applicable margin between 162:60% per annum for LIBOR loans
and 0.5% to 1.50% per annum for base rate loansnditpy on our then current senior unsecured long-tkebt rating. Our term loan is
guaranteed by three of our wholly-owned subsidsafiembarg, QCII (Qwest Communications Internatidnel on a stand-alone basis) and
Sawvis, Inc. (on a stand-alone basis), one of @G@¥holly-owned subsidiaries and one of Savvis, sneholly owned subsidiaries. The
remaining terms and conditions of our term loansatestantially similar to those set forth in ouedit Facility, described in this Note below
under “Credit Facilities.”

On April 2, 2012, QC issued $525 million aggregaiecipal amount of 7.00% Notes due 2052 in excledog net proceeds, after
deducting underwriting discounts and expenses5083$nillion. The Notes are unsecured obligatiors may be redeemed, in whole or in part
on or after April 1, 2017 at a redemption priceado 100% of the principal amount redeemed plusued interest.

On March 12, 2012, CenturyLink, Inc. issued (i) 866illion aggregate principal amount of 7.65% SeiNotes due 2042 in exchange
net proceeds, after deducting underwriting disceuitapproximately $644 million and (ii) $1.4 mt aggregate principal amount of 5.80%
Senior Notes due 2022 in exchange for net proceéts,deducting underwriting discounts, of appnaxiely $1.389 billion. The Notes are
unsecured obligations and may be redeemed atmeyan the terms and conditions specified therein.

Repayment:

2013

On December 27, 2013, QCII redeemed $186 millioitsof.125% Notes due 2018 for $196 million inchglpremium, fees and accrued
interest, which resulted in a $3 million gain.

On November 27, 2013, QCII completed a cash teoffer with respect to its $800 million of 7.125% tde due 2018. QClII received a
accepted tenders of approximately $614 million aggte principal amount of these notes, or 77%$&d6 million including premium, fees
and accrued interest, which resulted in a $7 mmilain.

On August 15, 2013, a subsidiary of Embarq paitiaturity the $50 million principal amount of its76% Notes.
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On July 15, 2013, a subsidiary of Embarq paid aunitg the $59 million principal amount of its 6.8% Notes.
On June 17, 2013, QC paid at maturity the $75Ganilbrincipal amount of its floating rate Notes.
On April 1, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. paid at matyrihe $176 million principal amount of its 5.50% t¥s.

2012
On October 26, 2012, QCII redeemed all $550 milbbits 8.00% Notes due 2015, which resulted iram @f $15 million.

On August 29, 2012, certain subsidiaries of Cemnfim/paid $29 million and $30 million, respectively retire its outstanding Rural
Utilities Service and Rural Telephone Bank debt.

On August 15, 2012, CenturyLink paid at maturity $818 million principal amount of its 7.875% Notes

On July 20, 2012, QC redeemed all $484 milliont®f7.50% Notes due 2023, which resulted in an irenmedtloss.

On May 17, 2012, QCII redeemed $500 million of7itS0% Notes due 2014, which resulted in an immealtgain.

On April 23, 2012, Embarq redeemed the remainir@p3$8illion of its 6.738% Notes due 2013, which fesiin an immaterial loss.

On April 18, 2012, QC completed a cash tender dffgrurchase a portion of its $811 million of 8.37Blotes due 2016 and its $400
million of 7.625% Notes due 2015. With respectt$08.375% Notes due 2016, QC received and accémteldrs of approximately $575 milli
aggregate principal amount of these notes, or T&#4722 million including a premium, fees and amat interest. With respect to its 7.625%
Notes due 2015, QC received and accepted tendeygpodximately $308 million aggregate principal amioof these notes, or 77%, for $
million including a premium, fees and accrued ies¢r The completion of this tender offer resulted ioss of $46 million.

On April 2, 2012, Embarg completed a cash tendfer &b purchase a portion of its $528 million o7 3% Notes due 2013 and its $2.0
billion of 7.082% Notes due 2016. With respectt$06.738% Notes due 2013, Embarq received and taxtggnders of approximately $328
million aggregate principal amount of these note$2%, for $360 million including a premium, fessd accrued interest. With respect to its
7.082% Notes due 2016, Embarq received and accegriddrs of approximately $816 million aggregatagipal amount of these notes, or
41%, for $944 million including a premium, fees amtrued interest. The completion of these tenffersoresulted in a loss of $144 million.

On March 1, 2012, QCII redeemed $800 million of7itS0% Notes due 2014, which resulted in an imnedtgain.

Credit Facilities

We have access to up to $2 billion aggregate grai@mount of revolving credit under an amendedrasthted revolving credit facility
that matures in April 2017. The Credit FacilitygttCredit Facility”) has 18 lenders, with commitntemanging from $2.5 million to $181
million and allows us to obtain revolving loans d@ndssue up to $400 million of letters of credrhich upon issuance reduce the amount
available for other extensions of credit. Inteisstssessed on borrowings using either the LIBOR@base rate (each as defined
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in the Credit Facility) plus an applicable margetween 1.25% and 2.25% per annum for LIBOR loamstaP5% and 1.25% per annum for
base rate loans depending on our then currentrsemsecured longerm debt rating. Our obligations under the Créditility are guaranteed
three of our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Embarq, (@id Savvis, Inc., one of QCII's wholly-owned sigigries and one of Sawvis, Inc.’s
wholly-owned subsidiaries.

In April 2011, we entered into a $160 million unawitted revolving letter of credit facility which ahles us to provide letters of credit
under terms that may be more favorable than thondenthe Credit Facility. At December 31, 2013 26d2, our outstanding letters of credit
totaled $132 million and $120 million, respectivalyder this facility.

Aggregate Maturities of Lon-Term Debt
Aggregate maturities of our long-term debt (exahgdiinamortized premiums, discounts and other, net):

(Dollars in_millions) )

2014 $ 78t
2015 56E
2016 1,49:
2017 2,21¢
2018 24¢€
2019 and thereaftt 15,73¢
Total lon¢-term deb: $ 21,04«

(1) Actual principal paid in all years may differ duethe possible future refinancing of outstandintd® the issuance of new de

Interest Expenst

Interest expense includes interest on long-tern. ddte following table presents the amount of giiogsrest expense, net of capitalized
interest:

Years Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Interest expenst

Gross interest expen $1,33¢ 1,362 1,097
Capitalized interes (41) (43 (25)
Total interest expens $1,29¢ 1,31¢ 1,072

Covenants

Certain of our loan agreements contain variousio#isins, as described more fully below. We beliéve covenants currently in place
result in no significant restriction to the tramsé® funds from our consolidated subsidiaries toQeyLink.

The senior notes of CenturyLink were issued unddndenture dated March 31, 1994. This indentuessdmt contain any financial
covenants, but does include restrictions that lonit ability to (i) incur, issue or create liensonpour property and (ii) consolidate with or
merge into, or transfer or lease all or substdgtél of our assets to any other party. The indemtloes not contain any provisions that are
impacted by our credit ratings or that restrictigsaiance of new securities in the event of a niat@dverse change to us.
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Embarg’s senior notes were issued pursuant todentnre dated as of May 17, 2006. While Embareiegally prohibited from creating
liens on its property unless its senior notes aceiied equally and ratably, Embarqg can create berits property without equally and ratably
securing its senior notes so long as the sum dfiddbtedness so secured does not exceed 15% afrE:loonsolidated net tangible assets.
The indenture contains customary events of defaatie of which are impacted by Embarq’s credingtiThe indenture does not contain any
financial covenants or restrictions on the abiidyssue new securities in accordance with thegarhthe indenture.

Several of our Embarq subsidiaries have outstarfifisignortgage bonds. Each issue of these firgtgage bonds is secured by
substantially all of the property, plant and equéomof the issuing subsidiary. Approximately 12%oaof net property, plant and equipment is
pledged to secure the long-term debt of subsidiarie

Under the Credit Facility, we, and our indirect sidiiary, Qwest Corporation, must maintain a detEBdTDA (earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization, as definexlinCredit Facility) ratio of not more than 4.@%&nd 2.85:1.0, respectively, as of the last da
of each fiscal quarter for the four quarters thedesl. The Credit Facility also contains a neggtieglge covenant, which generally requires us
to secure equally and ratably any advances undeCtedit Facility if we pledge assets or permiidi®n our property for the benefit of other
debtholders. The Credit Facility also has a cr@gsment default provision, and the Credit Facilitglaertain of our debt securities also have
cross acceleration provisions. When present, themsgsions could have a wider impact on liquiditah might otherwise arise from a defaul
acceleration of a single debt instrument. To ther¢hat our EBITDA (as defined in our Credit Riag) is reduced by cash settlements or
judgments, including in respect of any of the nrattiiscussed in Note —Commitments and Contingencies, our debt to EBITa#os under
certain debt agreements will be adversely affectéis could reduce our financing flexibility due gotential restrictions on incurring additio
debt under certain provisions of our debt agreementin certain circumstances, could result irfadlt under certain provisions of such
agreements.

At December 31, 2013, we believe were in compliamitle all of the provisions and covenants contaiimedur Credit Facility and other
debt agreements.

(5) Accounts Receivable
The following table presents details of our acceurteivable balances:

December 31

2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Trade and purchased receivak $1,86: 1,782
Earned and unbilled receivabl 252 274
Other 18 19
Total accounts receivab 2,132 2,07t
Less: allowance for doubtful accoul (15%) (15¢)
Accounts receivable, less allowar $1,97 1,917

We are exposed to concentrations of credit risknfresidential and business customers within owallservice area, business customers
outside of our local service area and from othlectammunications service providers. We generallyadorequire collateral to secure our
receivable balances. We have agreements with t#lemommunications service providers whereby weeagp bill and collect on their behalf
for services rendered by those providers to outoowsrs within our local service area. We purchaseants receivable from other
telecommunications service providers primarily aie@ourse basis and include these amounts in couats receivable balance. We have not
experienced any significant loss associated wiisaélpurchased receivables.
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The following table presents details of our allowerfor doubtful accounts:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance

(Dollars in millions)
2013 $ 15¢ 152 (15%) 15&
2012 $ 14t 187 (174 15¢€
2011 $ 60 15Z (68) 14¢&

(6) Property, Plant and Equipment
Net property, plant and equipment is composed ®faHowing:

Depreciable December 31
Lives 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Land N/A $ 58 57¢
Fiber, conduit and other outside pl 15-45 14,18: 13,03(
Central office and other network electron® 3-1C 12,17¢ 11,24
Support asse® 3-30 6,42( 6,23¢
Construction in progres® N/A 937 847
Gross property, plant and equipm 34,30% 31,93:
Accumulated depreciatic (15,667 (13,029
Net property, plant and equipme $ 18,64¢ 18,90¢

(1) Fiber, conduit and other outside plant consistbef and metallic cable, conduit, poles and othgrporting structure:
(2) Central office and other network electronicagists of circuit and packet switches, routergigmaission electronics and electronics

providing service to customel

(3) Support assets consist of buildings, computersotimel administrative and support equipm

(4) Construction in progress includes inventory heldcfanstruction and property of the aforementionsggories that has not been place
service as it is still under constructic

We recorded depreciation expense of $2.952 bil31070 billion and $2.593 billion for the yearsled December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

On April 2, 2012, our subsidiary, Qwest Corporatft@C”), sold an office building for net proceeds%i33 million. As part of the
transaction, QC agreed to lease a portion of tlildibg from the new owner. As a result, the $16lianl gain from the sale was deferred and
will be recognized as a reduction to rent expenaz the 10 year lease term.

Asset Retirement Obligatior

At December 31, 2013, our asset retirement obbgatbalance was primarily related to estimatedréutwsts of removing equipment
from leased properties and estimated future cdgtsoperly disposing of asbestos and other hazardwaterials upon remodeling or
demolishing buildings. Asset retirement obligatians included in other long-term liabilities on @mansolidated balance sheets.
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The following table provides asset retirement cdtiign activity:

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Balance at beginning of ye $10€ 10¢ 41
Accretion expens 7 7 9
Liabilities incurred — 1 —
Liabilities assumed in Qwest and Savvis acquis# — — 124
Liabilities settled and othe 4 D 3
Change in estimai (3 (10 (62
Balance at end of ye. $10€ 10€ 10¢

During 2013, 2012 and 2011 we revised our estinfarethe cost of removal of network equipment, asbe remediation, and other
obligations by $3 million, $10 million and $62 nilh, respectively. These revisions resulted inducton of the asset retirement obligation
offsetting reduction to gross property, plant agdipment.

(7) Severance and Leased Real Estate

Periodically, we have reductions in our workforoel @ave accrued liabilities for related severarustsc These workforce reductions
resulted primarily from the progression or completof our integration plans, increased competitikessures and reduced workload demands
due to the loss of access lines.

We report severance liabilities within accrued exgas and other liabilities-salaries and benefitsuinconsolidated balance sheets and
report severance expenses in cost of servicesraddqts and selling, general and administrativeeagps in our consolidated statements of
operations. We have not allocated any severanaensgpto our consumer, business and wholesale madginents.

In periods prior to our acquisition of Qwest, Qwleatl ceased using certain real estate that iteessrlg under lonterm operating lease
As of the April 1, 2011 acquisition date, we reciagd liabilities to reflect our estimates of th& faalues of the existing lease obligations for
real estate for which we had ceased using, nettohated sublease rentals. Our fair value estimaggs determined using discounted cash
methods. We recognize expense to reflect accrefitime discounted liabilities and periodically, agjust the expense when our actual
experience differs from our initial estimates. Véeart the current portion of liabilities for ceaagsk real estate leases in accrued expenses a
other liabilities-other and report the noncurreaitipn in deferred credits and other liabilitiesoar consolidated balance sheets. We report the
related expenses in selling, general and admitiisraxpenses in our consolidated statements aftipas. At December 31, 2013, the curren
and noncurrent portions of our leased real estatrial were $17 million and $96 million, respeclivél he remaining lease terms range from
0.1to 12 years, with a weighted average of 9 years

Changes in our accrued liabilities for severanqeazges and leased real estate were as follows:

Severanci Real Estate
(Dollars in millions)

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 37 158
Accrued to expens 96 2
Payments, ne (119 (24
Reversals and adjustme! (3 —
Balance at December 31, 20 17 131
Accrued to expens 31 —
Payments, ne (32) (16)
Reversals and adjustme! — (2)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 17 112
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(8) Employee Benefits
Pension, Pos-Retirement and Other Post-Employment Benefits

We sponsor several defined benefit pension plahighwin the aggregate cover a substantial portfauo employees including separate
plans for Legacy CenturyLink, Legacy Qwest and loygambarq employees. Until such time as we eletitegrate the Qwest and Embarq
benefit plans with ours, we plan to continue torapeethese plans independently. Pension benefisafticipants of these plans who are
represented by a collective bargaining agreemenbased on negotiated schedules. All other paatitf) pension benefits are based on each
individual participant’'s years of service and comgaion. We use a December 31 measurement daa#l éar plans. In addition to these tax
qualified pension plans, we also maintain non-djigalipension plans for certain current and formghly compensated employees. We
maintain post-retirement benefit plans that providalth care and life insurance benefits for certdigible retirees. We also provide other pos
employment benefits for eligible former employees.

Pension Benefits

In connection with the acquisition of Qwest on Agri2011, we assumed defined benefit pension poasored by Qwest for its
employees. Based on a valuation analysis, we réepegiia $490 million net liability at April 1, 20%r the unfunded status of the Qwest
pension plans, reflecting projected benefit oblmyzg of $8.3 billion in excess of the $7.8 billitair value of plan assets.

Current funding laws require a company with a @hartfall to fund the annual cost of benefits edrimeaddition to a seven-year
amortization of the shortfall. Our funding poliayrfthe pension plans is to make contributions withobjective of accumulating sufficient
assets to pay all qualified pension benefits whenwhder the terms of the plans. The accountingnd#d status of our qualified pension plan:
was $995 million as of December 31, 2013.

In 2013, we made cash contributions of approxinye#@¥6 million in to our qualified pension plangdgraid approximately $5 million of
benefits directly to participants of our non-quiakf pension plans. Based on current laws and cstamees, our required contributions to our
qualified pension plans for 2014 is $123 milliondave estimate that we will pay approximately $8ion of benefits to participants of our
non-qualified pension plans.

Post-Retirement Benefits

Our post-retirement health care plans provide petatement benefits to qualified retirees. The pesitement health care plans we
assumed as part of our acquisitions of Qwest andaEgqprovide post-retirement benefits to qualifietirees and allow (i) eligible employees
retiring before certain dates to receive benefitsoeor reduced cost and (i) eligible employedsing after certain dates to receive benefits on
a shared cost basis. The post-retirement healéhptans are primarily funded by us and we expecbtidinue funding these post-retirement
obligations as benefits are paid.

In connection with the acquisition of Qwest on Adri2011, we assumed post-retirement benefit pdaossored by Qwest for certain of
its employees. At April 1, 2011, we recognized &3dllion liability for the unfunded status of Qutés post-retirement benefit plans, reflecting
estimated accumulated post-retirement benefit abbgs of $3.3 billion in excess of the $762 mitlifair value of the plan assets.

No contributions were made to the post-retiremersts in 2013, and we do not expect to make a ibanion in 2014. However, in 2013
we paid approximately $157 million of benefits (oéparticipant contributions and direct subsidigg)t were not payable by the trusts, and w
estimate that in 2014 we will pay approximately $18illion of benefits (net of participant contriflms and direct subsidies) that are not
payable by the trusts.
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A change of 100 basis points in the assumed ifiigalth care cost trend rate would have had theviolg effects in 2013:

100 Basis
Points Change
Increase (Decrease)
(Dollars in millions)

Effect on the aggregate of the service and intexesitcomponents of net periodic post-
retirement benefit expense (consolidated stateoferperations $ 3 3
Effect on benefit obligation (consolidated balasbeet) 87 (80)

We expect our health care cost trend rate to dsereyn 0.25% per year from 6.50% in 2014 to an altewate of 4.50% in 2022. Our
post-retirement health care expense, for cert&iibéd Legacy Qwest retirees and certain eligibdgécy CenturyLink retirees, is capped at a
set dollar amount. Therefore, those health carefiievbligations are not subject to increasing tieehre trends after the effective date of the
caps.

Expected Cash Flow

The qualified pension, non-qualified pension anstgetirement health care benefit payments and ipresand life insurance premium
payments are paid by us or distributed from plaetss The estimated benefit payments provided batevibased on actuarial assumptions
using the demographics of the employee and repiopalations and have been reduced by estimateitipartt contributions.

Medicare

Part D

Post-Retirement Subsidy

Pension Plan Benefit Plans Receipts

(Dollars in millions)
Estimated future benefit paymen

2014 $ 1,03¢ 352 (13
2015 1,00: 341 (10)
2016 99C 32¢ (10)
2017 977 31¢ (10)
2018 962 30¢ (10)
2019- 2023 4,55¢ 1,36¢ (40)

Net Periodic Benefit Expens

The actuarial assumptions used to compute theenitdic benefit expense for our qualified pensiwon-qualified pension and post-
retirement benefit plans are based upon informatiailable as of the beginning of the year, asqmesl in the following table.

Pension Plans Pos-Retirement Benefit Plans
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

Actuarial assumptions at beginning of

year:
Discount rate 3.50%- 4.20% 4.25%- 5.10% 5.00%- 5.50% 3.60% 4.60%- 4.80% 5.30%
Rate of compensation incree 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% N/A N/A N/A
Expected long-term rate of return on plan

asset: 7.50% 7.50%  7.50%- 8.00% 7.30% 6.00%- 7.50% 7.25%
Initial health care cost trend re N/A N/A N/A 6.50%- 7.00% 8.00% 8.50%
Ultimate health care cost trend ri N/A N/A N/A 4.50% 5.00% 5.00%
Year ultimate trend rate is react N/A N/A N/A 2022 2018 2018

N/A—Not applicable
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(1) This column does not consider Qwestttuarial assumptions for its pension plan deebeginning of the year due to the acquisitioe
of April 1, 2011. Qwest had the following actuamasumptions as of April 1, 2011: discount rat6.d0%,; expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets 7.50%; and a rate of compensacrease of 3.50%

(2) This column does not consider Qwest’s actuasalumptions for its post-retirement benefit plawfathe beginning of the year due to the
acquisition date of April 1, 2011. Qwest had thkofeing actuarial assumptions as of April 1, 20diiscount rate of 5.30%; expected
long-term rate of return on plan assets of 7.50ftial health care cost trend rate of 7.50% anitnalte health care trend rate of 5.00% to
be reached in 201

Net periodic pension benefit (income) expense, Wwhicludes the effects of the Qwest acquisitionsegjient to April 1, 2011, included
the following components:

Pension Plans
Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 20110
(Dollars in millions)
Service cos $ 91 87 70
Interest cos 544 62° 56C
Expected return on plan ass (89¢) (847) (709
Settlement: — — 1
Amortization of unrecognized prior service ¢ 5 4 2
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial Ic 84 35 13
Net periodic pension benefit (income) expe $(172) (96) (63)

(1) Includes $58 million of income related to the Qwglains subsequent to the April 1, 2011 acquisidate.

Net periodic post-retirement benefit expense (inegmwhich includes the effects of the Qwest actjoisisubsequent to April 1, 2011,
included the following components:

Post+Retirement Plans
Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 20111
(Dollars in millions)
Service cos $ 24 22 18
Interest cos 14C 17z 152
Expected return on plan ass (39 (45) (42)
Amortization of unrecognized prior service ¢ — — 2
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial Ic 4 — —
Net periodic posretirement benefit expense (incon $12¢ 15C 127

(1) Includes $92 million related to the Qwest plansssgjuent to the April 1, 2011 acquisition di
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Benefit Obligations

The actuarial assumptions used to compute the tusi@us for the plans are based upon informatiaiiable as of December 31, 2013
and 2012 and are as follows:

Pension Plans Pos-Retirement Benefit Plans
December 31 December 31
2013 2012 2013 2012
Actuarial assumptions at end of ye

Discount rate 4.20%- 5.10% 3.25%- 4.20% 4.50% 3.60%
Rate of compensation incree 3.25% 3.25% N/A N/A
Initial health care cost trend re N/A N/A 6.50% / 7.00¢ 6.75% / 7.50¢
Ultimate health care cost trend r: N/A N/A 4.50% 4.50%
Year ultimate trend rate is react N/A N/A 2022 /2024 2022/ 2024

N/A—Not applicable
The following table summarizes the change in theebeobligations for the pension and post-retiratrzenefit plans:

Pension Plans
Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Change in benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $14,88: 13,59¢ 4,53¢
Service cos 91 87 70
Interest cos 544 62t 56C
Plan amendmen — 14 12
Acquisitions — — 8,261
Actuarial (gain) los: (1,179 1,56¢ 93C
Benefits paid by compar (5) (5) (16)
Benefits paid from plan asse¢ (931) (1,007) (767)

Benefit obligation at end of ye $13,40: 14,88: 13,59¢

Pos-Retirement Benefit Plans
Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in millions)

Change in benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $4,07¢ 3,93( 55¢
Service cos 24 22 18
Interest cos 14C 17z 152
Participant contribution 96 86 64
Plan amendmen 141 — 31
Acquisitions — — 3,28¢
Direct subsidy receipt 13 19 22
Actuarial (gain) los: (399 26( 158
Benefits paid by compar (26€) (26%) (219
Benefits paid from plan asse¢ (136) (147 (139

Benefit obligation at end of ye $3,68¢ 4,07¢ 3,93(

Our aggregate benefit obligation as of Decembe813, 2012 and 2011 was $17.089 billion, $18.98&M and $17.499 billion,
respectively.
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Plan Assets

We maintain plan assets for our qualified pensikamgpand certain post-retirement benefit plans. Jlrdified pension plan assets are
used for the payment of pension benefits and ceeiggible plan expenses. The post-retirement liepkein’s assets are used to pay health car
benefits and premiums on behalf of eligible resraad to pay certain eligible plan expenses. Tipe&®d rate of return on plan assets is the
long-term rate of return we expect to earn on theg assets. The rate of return is determinedbystrategic allocation of plan assets and the
long-term risk and return forecast for each aslssisc The forecasts for each asset class are geth@ramarily from an analysis of the long-
term expectations of various third party investmeanagement organizations. The expected ratewfren plan assets is reviewed annually
and revised, as necessary, to reflect changeg ifinhncial markets and our investment strategge folowing tables summarize the change in
the fair value of plan assets for the pension argd-petirement benefit plans:

Pension Plans
Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $12,32: 11,81« 3,73
Return on plan asse 81C 1,47¢ 47¢
Acquisitions — — 7,77
Employer contribution 14¢€ 32 587
Benefits paid from plan asse¢ (937) (1,000 (767)
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $12,34¢ 12,32: 11,81«

Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $ 62€ 69:< 54
Actual gain on plan asse 45 8C 4
Acquisitions — — 76€
Benefits paid from plan asse¢ (13¢6) (147) (139
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 53¢ 62€ 693

Pension Plans:Our investment objective for the pension plan @siseto achieve an attractive risk-adjusted retwer time that will
provide for the payment of benefits and minimize tisk of large losses. Our pension plan investrarategy is designed to meet this objec
by broadly diversifying plan assets across numestragegies with differing expected returns, vditegs and correlations. The pension plan
assets have target allocations of 55.5% to inteatstsensitive investments and 44.5% to investsn@ggigned to provide higher expected
returns than the interest rate sensitive investménterest rate sensitive investments include 86fan assets targeted primarily to long-
duration investment grade bonds, 13.5% targetéibtoyield, emerging market bonds and convertiloleds and 6% targeted to diversified
strategies, which primarily have exposures to dlgbaernment, corporate and inflation-linked boraiswell as some exposures to global
stocks and commodities. Assets expected to pradvgieer returns than the interest rate sensitivetassclude broadly diversified equity
investments with targets of approximately 14% t8.Lstocks and 14% to developed and emerging madket).S. stocks. Approximately
11.5% is allocated to other private markets investis including funds primarily invested in privatguity, private debt and hedge funds. Real
estate investments are targeted at 5% of plansagstehe beginning of 2014, our expected annuag{term rate of return on pension assets is
assumed to be 7.5%.
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Post-Retirement Benefit Plan®ur investment objective for the post-retiremesmdfit plan assets is to achieve an attractiveadjkstec
return and minimize the risk of large losses oherdxpected life of the assets. Investment riskdeaged by broadly diversifying assets acros
numerous strategies with differing expected retuvofatilities and correlations. Our investmenatgy is designed to be consistent with the
investment objective, with particular focus on pding liquidity for the reimbursement of our unioepresented employees post-retirement
health care costs. The post-retirement benefit ptaets have target allocations of 37% to equatiels63% to non-equity investments. Specific
target allocations within these broad categoriesadiowed to vary to provide liquidity in order teeet reimbursement requirements. Equity
investments are broadly diversified with exposarpublicly traded U.S., non-U.S. and emerging miaskecks and private equity. While no
new private equity investments have been madecienteyears, the percent allocation to existinggig\equity investments is expected to
increase as liquid, publicly traded stocks are dradewn for the reimbursement of health care cdsie.63% non-equity allocation includes
investment grade bonds, high yield bonds, converibnds, emerging market debt, real estate, hiegigis, private debt and diversified
strategies. At the beginning of 2014, our expeetuaual long-term rate of return on post-retirentetefit plan assets is assumed to be 7.3%.

Permitted investmentsPlan assets are managed consistent with thectests set forth by the Employee Retirement Inc&weurity Act
of 1974, as amended, which requires diversificatibassets and also generally prohibits definecfieand welfare plans from investing more
than 10% of their assets in securities issued éyponsor company. At December 31, 2013 and 2B&%ednsion and post-retirement benefit
plans did not directly own any shares of our commstmek or any of our debt.

Derivative instrumentsDerivative instruments are used to reduce riskelsas provide return. The pension and post-netiet benefit
plans use exchange traded futures to gain expts@guity and Treasury markets consistent withebagset allocations. Interest rate swap
used in the pension plans to reduce risk relabwad¢asurement of the benefit obligation, whicheissitive to interest rate changes. Foreign
exchange forward contracts are used to managencyrexposures. Credit default swaps are used t@geacredit risk exposures in a cost
effective and targeted manner relative to transgatiith physical corporate fixed income securiti@ptions are currently used to manage
interest rate exposure taking into account theigdplolatility and current pricing of the specifiaderlying market instrument. Some deriva
instruments subject the plans to counterparty fitle external investment managers, along with Rlanagement, monitor counterparty
exposure and mitigate this risk by diversifying thgposure among multiple high credit quality coupaeties, requiring collateral and limiting
exposure by periodically settling contracts.

The gross notional exposure of the derivative umatgnts directly held by the plans is shown beloke Motional amount of the
derivatives corresponds to market exposure but doegepresent an actual cash investment.

Gross Notional Exposure
Pos-Retirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans
Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2013 2012

(Dollars in millions)
Derivative instruments

Exchang-traded U.S. equity future $ 95 30z 16 30
Exchang-traded no-U.S. equity future: — 1 — —
Exchang-traded Treasury future 3,011 1,76: — —
Interest rate sway 55€ 1,471 — —
Credit default swap 253 49t — —
Foreign exchange forwart 93¢ 72€ 29 21
Options 261 76¢ — —
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Fair Value Measurementd-air value is defined as the price that woulddiived to sell an asset or paid to transfer ditiain an
orderly transaction between independent and knayelable parties who are willing and able to tran8arcan asset or liability at the
measurement date. We use valuation techniquesiidpdimize the use of observable inputs and minirttizeuse of unobservable inputs when
determining fair value and then we rank the esttha@lues based on the reliability of the inputsdu®llowing the fair value hierarchy set
forth by the FASB. For additional information oretfair value hierarchy, see Note 11—Fair Value Disare.

At December 31, 2013, we used the following vahratechniques to measure fair value for assetselere no changes to these
methodologies during 2013:
» Level 1—Assets were valued using the closing price repdrtéke active market in which the individual setguwas traded

» Level 2—Assets were valued using quoted pricesdrkets that are not active, broker dealer quotafinat asset value of shares
held by the plans and other methods by which gfiiitant input were observable at the measuremate.

* Level 3—Assets were valued using unobservable smipuivhich little or no market data exists as réga by the respective
institutions at the measurement d:

The tables below presents the fair value of plaetssby category and the input levels used to méterthose fair values at December 31
2013. It is important to note that the asset atiooa do not include market exposures that areeghivith derivatives.

Fair Value of Pension Plan Assets ¢
December 31, 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in millions)
Investment grade bon(@ $ 81z 1,50« — $ 2,317
High yield bonds®) — 1,26t 26 1,291
Emerging market bonc® 19¢ 367 — 563
Convertible bond® — 38¢ — 38¢
Diversified strategie®) — 723 — 723
U.S. stock«d 1,40¢ 92 — 1,50(
Non-U.S. stock«® 1,15¢ 29¢ — 1,45¢
Emerging market stock® 11C — 11C
Private equity® — — 721 721
Private deb® — — 43€ 43¢
Market neutral hedge fun — 867 99 96¢€
Directional hedge fund® — 582 32 614
Real estat® — 30€ 26& 571
Derivativesm — (34) — (39
Cash equivalents and st-term investment(® — 721 — 721
Total investment $3,57¢ 7,191 1,57¢ 12,34¢
Accrued expense —
Total pension plan asse $12,34¢
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Fair Value of Pos-Retirement Plan Assets a
December 31, 201

Level 1 Level 2 Level & Total
(Dollars in millions)
Investment grade bon(@ $ 21 56 — $ 77
High yield bonds«® — 56 — 56
Emerging market bonc® — 37 — 37
Diversified strategie®) — 86 — 86
U.S. stock«d 56 — — 56
Non-U.S. stock«@ 58 — — 58
Emerging market stock® — 12 — 12
Private equity® — — 4C 40
Private deb® — — 5 5
Market neutral hedge fun — 35 — 35
Directional hedge fund® — 14 — 14
Real estat® — 22 12 34
Cash equivalents and st-term investment(® — 24 — 24
Total investment $ 13t 34z 57 534
Contribution Receivabl 1
Total pos-retirement plan asse $ 53t

The tables below presents the fair value of plaetasby category and the input levels used to méterthose fair values at December 31
2012. It is important to note that the asset atiooa do not include market exposures that areeghivith derivatives. Investments include
dividend and interest receivable, pending tradasies payable and accrued expenses.

Fair Value of Pension Plan Assets ¢
December 31, 201,

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in millions)
Investment grade bon(@ $ 83C 1,55¢ — $ 2,38t
High yield bonds®) — 1,30: 59 1,36:
Emerging market bonc® 19¢ 39¢ — 59¢
Convertible bond® — 374 — 374
Diversified strategie©) — 65E — 655
U.S. stock«d 1,22¢ 11¢ — 1,34«
Non-U.S. stock«®) 1,212 17¢ — 1,39(
Emerging market stock® 111 19z — 304
Private equity® — — 711 711
Private deb® — — 465 46~
Market neutral hedge fun — 90¢€ — 90¢
Directional hedge fund® — 34C 194 534
Real estat(® — 22¢ 337 56(
Derivativesm (5) 3 — 2
Cash equivalents and st-term investment(® 75C — 75(
Total investment $3,57: 6,99¢ 1,76¢ 12,33
Accrued expense (12
Total pension plan asse $12,32:
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Fair Value of Pos-Retirement Plan Assets a
December 31, 201,

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in millions)
Investment grade bon(@ $ 22 86 — $ 10¢
High yield bonds«® — 90 — 9C
Emerging market bonc® — 40 — 4C
Convertible bond@ — 2 — 2
Diversified strategie®) — 72 — 72
U.S. stock<h 55 — — 58
Non-U.S. stock«@ 58 1 — 59
Emerging market stock® — 20 — 2C
Private equity® — — 45 45
Private deb® — — 6 6
Market neutral hedge fun — 41 — 41
Directional hedge fund® — 24 — 24
Real estat® — 21 28 49
Cash equivalents and st-term investment(® 5 21 — 26
Total investment $ 14C 41€ 79 637
Accrued expense (1)
Reimbursement accru (10
Total pos-retirement plan asse $ 62¢€

The plans’ assets are invested in various assega@aes utilizing multiple strategies and investim@anagers. For several of the
investments in the tables above and discussed b#tevplans own units in commingled funds and Eahipartnerships that invest in various
types of assets. Interests in commingled fundvalteed using the net asset value (“NASr unit of each fund. The NAV reported by the 1
manager is based on the market value of the uridgrigvestments owned by each fund, minus its liiéds, divided by the number of shares
outstanding. Commingled funds held by the plans¢ha be redeemed at NAV within a year of the faialnstatement date are generally
classified as Level 2. Investments in limited parghips represent long-term commitments with adfimaturity date, typically ten years.
Valuation inputs for these limited partnership metts are generally based on assumptions andiofbenation not observable in the market
and are classified as Level 3 investments. Thenagsons and valuation methodologies of the priairgdors, account managers, fund
managers and partnerships are monitored and egdlémtreasonableness. Below is an overview ohfset categories, the underlying
strategies and valuation inputs used to value $Beta in the preceding tables:

(a) Investment grade bondspresent investments in fixed income securitiewalsas commingled bond funds comprised of U.S.
Treasury securities, agencies, corporate bondggage-backed securities, asset-backed securittesanmercial mortgage-backed securities.
Treasury securities are valued at the bid pricemtep in the active market in which the securityrégled and are classified as Level 1. The
valuation inputs of other investment grade bondsgrily utilize observable market information ane dased on a spread to U.S. Treasury
securities and consider yields available on coniparsecurities of issuers with similar credit rggnThe primary observable inputs include
references to the new issue market for similar is&es, the secondary trading markets and dealetegu Option adjusted spread models are
utilized to evaluate securities such as asset lbsfeurities that have early redemption featurbes@& securities are classified as Level 2. The
commingled funds are valued at NAV based on the&kataralue of the underlying fixed income securitisgng the same valuation inputs
described above. The commingled funds can be reek@NAV within a year of the financial statemdate and are classified as Level 2.

(b) High yield bondsepresent investments in below investment gradalfincome securities as well as commingled highdyenc
funds. The valuation inputs for the securities arity utilize observable market
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information and are based on a spread to U.S. tingagcurities and consider yields available ongarable securities of issuers with similar
credit ratings. These securities are classifiedea®l 2. The commingled funds are valued at NAVdobsn the market value of the underlying
high yield instruments using the same valuatiowigglescribed above. Commingled funds that camrdeemed at NAV within a year of the
financial statement date are classified as Lev€ldnmingled funds that cannot be redeemed at NANatrcannot be redeemed at NAV
within a year of the financial statement date dasgified as Level 3.

(c) Emerging market bondgpresent investments in securities issued by govents and other entities located in developing
countries as well as registered mutual funds amthziogled emerging market bond funds. The valuatiputs for the securities utilize
observable market information and are primarilyelaen dealer quotes or a spread relative to the mmvernment bonds. These securities are
classified as Level 2. The commingled funds aree@lat NAV based on the market value of the undeglgmerging market bonds using the
same valuation inputs described above. The comeriniginds can be redeemed at NAV within a year efithancial statement date and are
classified as Level 2. The registered mutual funade at the daily NAV, as determined by the mavigdtie of the underlying investments, and
are classified as Level 1.

(d) Convertible bondgrimarily represent investments in corporate debusties that have features that allow the debieto
converted into equity securities under certainwirstances. The valuation inputs for the individraivertible bonds primarily utilize
observable market information including a spread 8. Treasuries and the value and volatility ef timderlying equity security. Convertible
bonds are classified as Level 2.

(e) Diversified strategiesepresent an investment in a commingled fund thatagyily has exposures to global government, cats
and inflation linked bonds, global stocks and cordities. The commingled fund is valued at NAV basadhe market value of the underlying
investments. The valuation inputs utilize obsergahbrket information including published prices éachange traded securities, bid prices fol
government bonds, and spreads and yields avallabtmmparable fixed income securities with simieedit ratings. This fund can be
redeemed at NAV within a year of the financial staént date and is classified as Level 2.

(H U.S. stocksepresent investments in stocks of U.S. based coiepas well as commingled U.S. stock funds. Theat@n input:
for U.S. stocks are based on the last publishexd paported on the major stock market on whictstwurities are traded and are classified as
Level 1. The commingled funds are valued at NAVeobsn the market value of the underlying investmesing the same valuation inputs
described above. These commingled funds can bemsteat NAV within a year of the financial statetngsite and are classified as Level 2.

(g) Non-U.S. stockeepresent investments in stocks of companies bas#glveloped countries outside the U.S. as well as
commingled funds. The valuation inputs for non-Wt®cks are based on the last published price tegbon the major stock market on which
the securities are traded and are classified aslllevihe commingled funds are valued at NAV basethe market value of the underlying
investments using the same valuation inputs destrébove. These commingled funds can be redeend\atvithin a year of the financial
statement date and are classified as Level 2.

(h) Emerging market stockspresent investments in a registered mutual fuxddcammingled funds comprised of stocks of
companies located in developing markets. Registenedial funds trade at the daily NAV, as determibgdhe market value of the underlying
investments, and are classified as Level 1. Thentiogied funds are valued at NAV based on the mariikete of the underlying investments
using the same valuation inputs described prewdiaslindividual stocks. These commingled funds barredeemed at NAV within a year of
the financial statement date and are classifiddceas| 2.

(i) Private equityrepresents non-public investments in domestic areign buy out and venture capital funds. Privapaity funds
are structured as limited partnerships and aresdahiccording to the valuation policy of each paghip, subject to prevailing accounting and
other regulatory guidelines. The partnerships use

B-77



Table of Contents

valuation methodologies that give consideratioa tange of factors, including but not limited te {brice at which investments were acquired,
the nature of the investments, market conditiaasling values on comparable public securities,exurand projected operating performance,
and financing transactions subsequent to the atiquisf the investments. These valuation methogiel® involve a significant degree of
judgment. Private equity investments are classidietievel 3

(j) Private debtepresents non-public investments in distressedezzanine debt funds. Mezzanine debt instrumeptdeint
instruments that are subordinated to other debesand may include embedded equity instruments asigvarrants. Private debt funds are
structured as limited partnerships and are valgedrding to the valuation policy of each partnguskubject to prevailing accounting and of
regulatory guidelines. The valuation of underlyfagd investments are based on factors includingsthiger’s current and projected credit
worthiness, the security’s terms, reference tcstrmurities of comparable companies, and other méaktors. These valuation methodologies
involve a significant degree of judgment. Privagbtinvestments are classified as Level 3.

(k) Market neutral hedge fund®ld investments in a diversified mix of instrumettiat are intended in combination to exhibit low
correlations to market fluctuations. These investimare typically combined with futures to achieweorrelated excess returns over various
markets Directional hedge funds-This asset category represents investments thaertabit somewhat higher correlations to market
fluctuations than the market neutral hedge furrdgedtments in hedge funds include both direct iimrests and investments in diversified
funds of funds. Hedge Funds are valued at NAV basetthe market value of the underlying investmevtigch include publicly traded equity
and fixed income securities and privately negotiatebt securities. The hedge funds are valuedily plarty administrators using the same
valuation inputs previously described. Hedge fuihds$ can be redeemed at NAV within a year of tharicial statement date are classified as
Level 2. Hedge fund investments that cannot beeméel at NAV or that cannot be redeemed at NAV withyear of the financial statement
date are classified as Level 3.

() Real estateepresents investments in commingled funds anddohpartnerships that invest in a diversified mitfof real estat
properties. These investments are valued at NAVGralang to the valuation policy of each fund or parship, subject to prevailing accounting
and other regulatory guidelines. The valuation tefi the underlying properties are generally basethird-party appraisals that use
comparable sales or a projection of future cashidlto determine fair value. Real estate investmiinatiscan be redeemed at NAV within a'y
of the financial statement date are classifiedagl 2. Real estate investments that cannot beneeie at NAV or that cannot be redeemed at
NAV within a year of the financial statement date elassified as Level .

(m) Derivativesinclude the market value of exchange traded futooesracts which are classified as Level 1, as agrivately
negotiated over-the-counter swaps and optionsteavalued based on the change in interest ra@specific market index and classified as
Level 2. The market values represent gains or o occur due to fluctuations in interest rafi@gign currency exchange rates, security
prices, or other factors.

(n) Cash equivalents and short-term investmegpsesent investments that are used in conjunetitnderivatives positions or are
used to provide liquidity for the payment of beteér other purposes. U.S. Treasury Bills are \hhtethe bid price reported in the active
market in which the security is traded and aresifiesl as Level 1. The valuation inputs of otheswséies are based on a spread to U.S.
Treasury Bills, the Federal Funds Rate, or Londdearbank Offered Rate and consider yields availahleomparable securities of issuers with
similar credit ratings and are classified as L&/élhe commingled funds are valued at NAV basethemmarket value of the underlying
investments using the same valuation inputs destrébove. These commingled funds can be redeend\atvithin a year of the financial
statement date and are classified as Level 2.

Concentrations of Riskinvestments, in general, are exposed to variaks rsuch as significant world events, intere®, ratedit, foreign
currency and overall market volatility risk. Thessks are managed by broadly diversifying assetssscnumerous asset classes and strategie
with differing expected returns,
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volatilities and correlations. Risk is also broadlyersified across numerous market sectors andithehl companies. Financial instruments
that potentially subject the plans to concentratiohcounterparty risk consist principally of intreent contracts with high quality financial
institutions. These investment contracts are tylyicallateralized obligations and/or are activelanaged, limiting the amount of counterparty
exposure to any one financial institution. Althoubk investments are well diversified, the valuglah assets could change materially
depending upon the overall market volatility, whaduld affect the funded status of the plans.

The table below presents a rollforward of the pemgilan assets valued using Level 3 inputs:

Pension Plan Assets Valued Using Level 3 Inpu

Market
High Neutral Directional
Yield Private Private Hedge Hedge Real
Bonds Equity Debt Fund Funds Estate Total
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 79 791 461 18¢ 18< 53t  2,23i
Net transfer: (12 — — (18¢) — (109 (305)
Acquisitions 1 70 12C — — 18 20¢
Dispositions (1) (209  (102) — — (121 (343
Actual return on plan asse
Gains relating to assets sold during the » — 3 1 — — — 4
Gains (losses) relating to assets still held at-end 2 (44) (15) — 11 1C (36)
Balance at December 31, 20 59 711 465 — 194 337 1,76¢
Net transfer: — — — — (165) — (165)
Acquisitions 5 82 71 10C — 9 267
Dispositions 43 (a79 (149 — @ 97) (469
Actual return on plan asse
Gains relating to assets sold during the » 12 68 18 — — 11 10¢
(Losses) gains relating to assets still held at-end ()] 39 26 (D 4 5 66
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 26 721 43€ 99 32 265 1,57¢

The table below presents a rollforward of the petitement plan assets valued using Level 3 inputs:

Pos-Retirement Plan Assets Value(
Using Level 3 Inputs

Private Private Real
Equity Debt Estate Total
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 60 8 26 94
Acquisitions 1 — — 1
Dispositions (15 (©)] (@0} (19
Actual return on plan asse
Gains (losses) relating to assets sold during ¢ae 4 2 (2) 5
(Losses) gains relating to assets still held at-end (5) (1) 4 (2
Balance at December 31, 20 45 6 28 79
Acquisitions 1 — — 1
Dispositions (11 D (18 (30)
Actual return on plan asse
Gains (losses) relating to assets sold during ¢ae 4 — (@0} 3
Gains relating to assets still held at vend 1 — 3 4
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 40 5 12 57
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Certain gains and losses are allocated betweetsassd during the year and assets still held at-gad based on transactions and
changes in valuations that occurred during the.yHagse allocations also impact our calculationeifacquisitions and dispositions.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the investonegram produced actual gains on qualified penaind post-retirement plan assets
of $855 million as compared to the expected retofr&935 million for a difference of $80 millionoFthe year ended December 31, 2012, the
investment program produced actual gains on perssidmpost-retirement plan assets of $1.556 billiecompared to the expected returns of
$892 million for a difference of $664 million. Tishort-term annual returns on plan assets will atralvgays be different from the expected
long-term returns and the plans could experientgaias or losses, due primarily to the volatibigcurring in the financial markets during any
given year.

Unfunded Status
The following table presents the unfunded statub®fpensions and post-retirement benefit plans:

Post-Retirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

Years Ended Years Ended

December 31 December 31

2013 2012 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)

Benefit obligatior $(13,40)) (14,88, (3,68¢) (4,075
Fair value of plan asse 12,34¢ 12,32: 53E 62€
Unfunded statu (1,05%) (2,560 (3,159 (3,449)
Current portion of unfunded stat $ (5) (6) (1549 (160)
Non-current portion of unfunded stat $ (1,050 (2,559 (2,999 (3,289

The current portion of our post-retirement bengffiigations is recorded on our consolidated balahests in accrued expenses and otht
current liabilities-salaries and benefits.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive L«-Recognition and Deferrals

The following tables present cumulative items mmognized as a component of net periodic benefjisrese as of December 31, 2012,
items recognized as a component of net periodiefiitsrexpense in 2013, additional items deferreihg2013 and cumulative items not
recognized as a component of net periodic benefipense as of December 31, 2013. The items nogméxed as a component of net periodic
benefits expense have been recorded on our coasadithalance sheets in accumulated other compiigbdass:

As of and for the Years Ended December 3.

Recognitior
of Net Net
Periodic Change
Benefits in
2012 Expense Deferrals AOCI 2013

(Dollars in millions)
Accumulated other comprehensive Ic
Pension plans

Net actuarial (loss) gali $(2,23€) 84 1,09¢ 1,17¢ (1,05¢)
Prior service (cost) bene (39 5 — 5 (33
Deferred income tax benefit (expen 87¢ (39 (419 (459) 422
Total pension plan (1,399 55 67¢ 73C (669)
Pos-retirement benefit plan:

Net actuarial (loss) gai (44¢) 4 40~ 40¢ (37
Prior service (cost) bene (22 — (147 (147) (169)
Deferred income tax benefit (expen 17¢ (1) (100 (107) 78
Total pos-retirement benefit plar (28€) 3 164 167 (122)
Total accumulated other comprehensive $(1,68%) 58 83¢ 897 (797

The following table presents estimated items todoegnized in 2014 as a component of net periogliefit expense of the pension, non-
qualified pension and post-retirement benefit plans

Pos*-
Pensior Retirement
Plans Plans

(Dollars in millions)
Estimated recognition of net periodic benefit exgem 2014

Net actuarial los $ (17) —
Prior service cos 5) 17
Deferred income tax bene 8 6
Estimated net periodic benefit expense to be rexbimd 2014 as a component of other comprehensogeria
(loss) $ (19 (11

Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modemaition Act of 200:

We sponsor post-retirement health care plans wikersl benefit options that provide prescriptiongdbenefits that we deem actuarially
equivalent to or exceeding Medicare Part D. We gate the impact of the federal subsidy receivedkeuthe Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 in thizahkation of our post-retirement benefit obligatiand net periodic post-retirement benefit
expense.

Other Benefit Plans
Health Care and Life Insurance

We provide health care and life insurance bentfitsssentially all of our active employees. Welargely self-funded for the cost of the
health care plan. Our health care benefit expeiasesirrent employees was
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$362 million, $360 million and $377 million for thears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201 Ekatasgy. Union-represented employee
benefits are based on negotiated collective baimgegreements. Employees contributed $117 miliri,3 million and $90 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ctaghe. Our group life insurance plans are fulhgired and the premiums are paid by

401(k) Plan

We sponsor qualified defined contribution benefitng covering substantially all of our employeesdér these plans, employees may
contribute a percentage of their annual compensafioto certain maximums, as defined by the plaushy the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS"). Currently, we match a percentage of empl®ygontributions in cash. At December 31, 2013@Reckmber 31, 2012, the assets of the
plans included approximately 9 million and 10 moitlishares of our common stock, respectively, @saltrof the combination of previous
employer match and participant directed contrimgidNVe recognized expenses related to these pl&&9anillion, $76 million and $70
million and for the years ended December 31, 20032 and 2011, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plans

We sponsored non-qualified unfunded deferred cosgttéan plans for various groups that included @eéour current and former
highly compensated employees. The value of asadtfabilities related to these plans was not sigait.

(9) Share-based Compensatiot

We maintain equity programs that allow our Boardogctors (through its Compensation Committeewar @hief Executive Officer as
its delegate) to grant incentives to certain emgésyand our outside directors in any one or a aweibn of several forms, including incentive
and non-qualified stock options, stock appreciatights, restricted stock awards, restricted stouks and market and performance shares.
Stock options generally expire ten years from thte @f grant. We also offer an ESPP, which alloligglde employees to purchase our
common stock at a 15% discount based on the lofwiedoeginning or ending stock price during reuyisix month offering periods.

Stock Options
The following table summarizes activity involvintpsk option awards for the year ended Decembe2@13:

Weighted-
Average
Number of Exercise

Options Price

(in thousands

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 6,73¢ $ 34.2¢
Exercisec (1,147 $ 27.01
Forfeited/Expirec (26€) $ 30.51
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 5,32¢ $ 35.9¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 5,32¢ $ 35.9¢

The aggregate intrinsic value of our options ouditag and exercisable at December 31, 2013 wasrfilidn. The weighted average
remaining contractual term for such options wasy@ars.

During 2013, we received net cash proceeds of $ilibmin connection with our option exercises. Tiag benefit realized from these
exercises was $4 million. The total intrinsic vatfeoptions exercised for the years ended Decel@ibe2013, 2012 and 2011 was $11 million,
$49 million and $47 million, respectively.
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Restricted Stock Award

For awards that contain only service conditionsviesting, we calculate the award fair value basethe closing stock price on the
accounting grant date. For restricted stock awtralscontain market conditions, the award fair gakicalculated through Monte-Carlo
simulations.

During the second quarter of 2013, we granted agymiately 335 thousand shares of restricted stodettain executive-level employees
as part of our long-term incentive program, of vihé@proximately 223 thousand contained only sersralitions and will vest on a straight-
line basis on May 23, 2014, 2015 and 2016. The iringpawards contain market and service conditam will vest on May 23, 2016. These
shares, with market and service conditions, repitasaly the target for the award as each recigiastthe opportunity to ultimately receive
between 0% and 200% of the target restricted shi@ckd depending on, our total shareholder retursugethat of selected peer companies for
2013, 2014 and 2015.

In addition, during the first and second quarte2®13, we granted approximately 1.2 million shdcesertain key employees as part of
our annual equity compensation program. The remgiawards granted throughout the year to certéiardtey employees and our outside
directors were made as part of our equity comp@rsand retention programs. These awards requisesemnvice conditions for vesting and
typically vest equally over a three year period.

During the first quarter of 2012, we granted apprately 402 thousand shares of restricted stodettain executive-level employees as
part of our long-term incentive program, of whigipeoximately 201 thousand contained only servicggd@@mns and will vest on a straight-line
basis on February 20, 2013, 2014 and 2015. Theingmaawards contain market and service conditemms will vest on February 20, 2015.
These shares, with market and service conditi@msesent only the target for the award as eachiemtihas the opportunity to ultimately
receive between 0% and 200% of the target restristizck award depending on our total shareholdarirdor 2012, 2013 and 2014 in relation
to that of the S&P 500 Index.

In addition, during the first quarter of 2012, waugted restricted stock to certain key employeqsatsof our annual equity compensat
program. These awards contained only service donditApproximately 519 thousand shares of awaitls@st on a straight-line basis on
January 9, 2013, 2014 and 2015. Approximately 8684and shares of awards will vest on a straigletitiasis on March 15, 2013, 2014 and
2015. The remaining awards granted throughout ¢fae §0 certain other key employees and our outidetors were made as part of our
equity compensation and retention programs. Theseds require only service conditions for vesting #ypically vest an equal portion
annually over a three year period.

The following table summarizes activity involvingstricted stock and restricted stock unit awardsHe year ended December 31, 2013:

Weighted-
Average
Grant Date
Number of
Shares Fair Value
(in thousands’

Non-vested at December 31, 20 3,52¢ $ 38.4:
Grantec 1,88¢ $ 35.6%
Vested (1,499 $ 37.0¢
Forfeited (299 $ 36.2¢

Non-vested at December 31, 20 3,62¢ $ 37.3¢

During 2012, we granted 2.1 million shares of ifettd stock at a weighted-average price of $3D18ing 2011, we granted 1.3 million
shares of restricted stock at a weighted-averaige pf $36.15, excluding the 1.9 million sharesiegxbin connection with our acquisitions of
Qwest and Savvis. The total fair value of restdcitock that vested during 2013, 2012 and 2011$882smillion, $102 million and $72 millior
respectively.
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Compensation Expense and Tax Benefit

We recognize compensation expense related to otketn@nd performance share-based awards with gnaeltthg that only have a
service condition on a straight-line basis overrdwuisite service period for the entire award alobmpensation expense for all share-based
payment arrangements for the years ended Decertb@033, 2012 and 2011 was $63 million, $78 millzmd $65 million, respectively. The
amounts included $12 million in compensation exparesognized in 2011 for the acceleration of cergavards resulting from the
consummation of the Qwest acquisition. Our tax berecognized in the income statements for ourstimsed payment arrangements for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 veanifibn, $31 million and $25 million, respectiyelAt December 31, 2013, there w
$89 million of total unrecognized compensation egeerelated to our share-based payment arrangemdrith we expect to recognize over a
weighted-average period of 1.7 years.

(10) (Loss) Earnings Per Common Shar
Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per common sfoarthe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 antl ®@de calculated as follows:

Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions, except per share
amounts, shares in thousands

(Loss) Income (Numeratotr

Net (loss) incom $ (239 777 57z
Earnings applicable to n-vested restricted sto« — (1) 2
Net (loss) income applicable to common stock fanpating basic earnings per comn

share (239 77€ 571
Net (loss) income as adjusted for purposes of caimgpudiluted earnings per comm:

share $ (239 77€ 571

Shares (Denominatot
Weighted average number of shal

Outstanding during peric 604,40: 622,13¢ 534,32(
Non-vested restricted stoc (3,517 (2,796 (2,209
Non-vested restricted stock un — 862 66¢
Weighted average shares outstanding for computs@floss) earnings per common
share 600,89: 620,20! 532,78
Incremental common shares attributable to dilusieeurities
Shares issuable under convertible secur — 12 13
Shares issuable under incentive compensation — 2,06¢ 1,32¢
Number of shares as adjusted for purposes of congpdiluted earnings per comm:
share 600,89: 622,28! 534,12:
Basic (loss) earnings per common st $ (0.40 $ 1.2F $ 1.0
Diluted (loss) earnings per common sh®) $ (0.40 $ 1.2% $ 1.0

(1) For the year ended December 31, 2013, we eadlfrdm the calculation of diluted loss per shaBeniillion shares potentially issuable
under incentive compensation plans or convertiblisties, as their effect, if included, would hdeen an-dilutive.

Our calculations of diluted earnings per commonelexclude shares of common stock that are issugdale exercise of stock options
when the exercise price is greater than the avaregket price of our common stock during the perfgch potentially issuable shares totaled
2.7 million, 2.2 million and 2.4 million for 2012012 and 2011, respectively.
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(11) Fair Value Disclosure

Our financial instruments consist of cash and eaghivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payaindongterm debt, excluding capi
lease obligations. Due to their short-term nattire carrying amounts of our cash and cash equitsalancounts receivable and accounts
payable approximate their fair values.

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeired to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitglin an orderly transaction between
independent and knowledgeable parties who arengillind able to transact for an asset or liabilittha measurement date. We use valuation
techniques that maximize the use of observabletsngud minimize the use of unobservable inputs valetarmining fair value and then we
rank the estimated values based on the relialufithe inputs used following the fair value hietarset forth by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”).

We determined the fair values of our loregm debt, including the current portion, basedjooted market prices where available or, if
available, based on discounted future cash flowsgusurrent market interest rates.

The three input levels in the hierarchy of fairummeasurements are defined by the FASB geneaflyllaws:

Input Level Description of Input

Level 1 Observable inputs such as quoted market pricestiveamarkets

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices in active markweds are either directly or indirectly observat
Level 3 Unobservable inputs in which little or no marketadexists

The following table presents the carrying amounts @stimated fair values of our investment se@sitivhich are reported in noncurrent
other assets, and long-term debt, excluding calgitale obligations, as well as the input levelslusedetermine the fair values:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201,
Input Carrying
Carrying Fair Fair
Level Amount Value Amount Value
(Dollars in millions)
Liabilities-Long-term debt excluding capital lease obligatir 2 $20,347 20,41 19,87 21,45

(12) Income Taxes

Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Income tax expense was as folloy

Federa
Current $ 1 57 (49)
Deferred _402 361 401
State
Current 62 15 25
Deferred (8 _ 3 _(®
Foreign
Current 9 7 4
Deferred G — —
Total income tax expent $465 478 Sz
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Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)

Income tax expense was allocated as follc
Income tax expense in the consolidated statemémgerations
Attributable to income $463 472 37k
Stockholder' equity:
Compensation expense for tax purposes in excemniofints recognized for financial
reporting purpose (14 (18) (13
Tax effect of the change in accumulated other ceimgnsive los 554 (4349 (535)

The following is a reconciliation from the statutdederal income tax rate to our effective incowme riate:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Percentage of pr-tax income)
Statutory federal income tax re 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal income tax lie 2.8% 2.5% 1.3%
Impairment of goodwil 188.5% —% —%
Reversal of liability for unrecognized tax positi (24.5% —% —%
Foreign income taxe 2.1% 0.2% 0.4%
Nondeductible accounting adjustment for life ins1oe 3.1% —% —%
Release state valuation allowar (2.9% —% —%
Other, ne 1.4% =% 2.5%
Effective income tax rat 206.1% 37.&% 39.%

The 2013 effective tax rate is 206.7% compared/t8% for 2012. The 2013 rate reflects the tax ¢féa $1.092 billion non-deductible

goodwill impairment charge, a favorable settlemeitih the Internal Revenue Service of $33 millior§22 million reduction due to the rever
of an uncertain tax position and the tax effec @17 million unfavorable accounting adjustmentrfon-deductible life insurance costs. For
2013, the tax rate was decreased by a $5 millidnation to the valuation allowance due to the est@d ability to utilize more state NOLs tF
previously expected. The 2012 rate reflects theriiliion reversal of a valuation allowance relatedhe auction rate securities we sold in

2012. The 2011 rate was decreased by $12 millientda $16 million decrease to the valuation alloeearelated to state NOLs due primarily

to the effects of a tax law change in one of tlagestin which we operate, which is partially offisgtan $8 million valuation allowance recort
on deferred tax assets that require future incohaespecial character to realize the benefits.
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The tax effects of temporary differences that géseto significant portions of the deferred tageds and deferred tax liabilities at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

Years Ended
December 31,
2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)

Deferred tax asse

Pos-retirement and pension benefit cc $1,61¢ 2,311
Net operating loss carryforwar 1,53 2,17¢
Other employee benefi 182 184
Other 782 78¢
Gross deferred tax assi 4,11¢ 5,46(
Less valuation allowanc (43E) (444)
Net deferred tax asse 3,67¢ 5,01¢

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, primarily due tordejation difference (3,909 (3,789
Goodwill and other intangible ass: (3,22¢) (3,68¢)
Other (137) (192)
Gross deferred tax liabilitie (7,267) (7,669
Net deferred tax liabilit $(3,58¢) (2,649

Of the $3.588 billion and $2.648 billion net deéatitax liability at December 31, 2013 and 2012peesively, $4.753 billion and $3.564
billion is reflected as a long-term liability and.$65 billion and $916 million is reflected as & cerrent deferred tax asset at December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

In connection with our acquisitions of Savvis oityJlb, 2011 and Qwest on April 1, 2011, we recogdinet noncurrent deferred tax
liabilities of approximately $279 million and $5&3llion, respectively, which reflects the expectatlre tax effects of certain differences
between the financial reporting carrying amounts &@&ax bases of Savvis’ and Qwest's assets anditiabi In addition, due to the Qwest
acquisition, we recognized a net current deferagdhsset of $289 million, which relates primardycertain accrued liabilities that are expectec
to result in future tax deductions. These primaffecences involve Qwest’s pension and other petament benefit obligations as well as tax
effects for acquired intangible assets, propetantand equipment and long-term debt, includirgéffects of acquisition date valuation
adjustments, for both entities. The net deferredisdility is partially offset by a deferred tagset for expected future tax deductions relatir
Sawvis’ and Qwest's net operating loss carryforward

At December 31, 2013, we had federal NOLs of $2l@b and state NOLS of $12.4 billion. If unusetde NOLs will expire between
2015 and 2032; however, no significant amountsrexymtil 2020. At December 31, 2013, we had $50onil($33 million net of federal
income tax) of state investment tax credit carmyfEmds that will expire between 2014 and 2024 ifutdized. In addition, at December 31,
2013 we had $91 million of alternative minimum tak AMT, credits. Our acquisitions of Qwest and B@acaused “ownership changes”
within the meaning of Section 382 of the InternavBnue Code (“Section 382"). As a result, our gbith use these NOLSs is subject to annual
limits imposed by Section 382. Despite this, weestfo use substantially all of these NOLs as &ebhgainst our future taxable income,
although the timing of that use will depend upon foure earnings and future tax circumstances.

We establish valuation allowances when necessawdiace the deferred tax assets to amounts we teixpesalize. As of December 31,
2013, a valuation allowance of $435 million wasabbshed as it is more likely than

B-87



Table of Contents

not that this amount of net operating loss ancctaxlit carryforwards will not be utilized prior &xpiration. Our valuation allowance at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 is primarily relatestéte NOL carryforwards. This valuation allowaneerased by $9 million during 2013.

We recorded valuation allowances of $18 million 463 million related to the Savvis and Qwest asitjons, respectively, for the
portion of the acquired net deferred tax assetswkealid not believe is more likely than not torealized. Our acquisition date assignment of
deferred income taxes and the related valuatiawalhce was completed in 2012 as discussed in Ne#&cguisitions.

A reconciliation of the change in our gross unraetped tax benefits (excluding both interest and iaatgted federal benefit) from
January 1 to December 31 for 2013 and 2012 sl

2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of y $ 78 111
Increase in tax positions taken in the current: — 3
Decrease due to the reversal of tax positions takarprior yea — (39
Decrease from the lapse of statute of limitati (36) 2
Settlement: (28) —
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of y $ 14 78

During 2012, we entered into negotiations with lR& to resolve a claim that was filed by Qwestl®89. Based on the status of the
negotiations at year end 2012, we partially reviesseunrecognized tax benefit that was assumedrasfthe Qwest acquisition. The
negotiations were settled in 2013 and we fully regd the amount of the unrecognized tax positioredeivable was recorded for the refund
that is expected to be received in 2014.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits tifia¢,cognized, would impact the effective incorag tate was $29 million and $52
million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively

Our policy is to reflect interest expense assodiatigth unrecognized tax benefits in income tax egee We had accrued interest
(presented before related tax benefits) of appratehg $30 million and $33 million at December 3013 and 2012, respectively.

We file income tax returns, including returns for subsidiaries, with federal, state and locakgigtions. Our uncertain income tax
positions are related to tax years that are cuyremider or remain subject to examination by tHevant taxing authorities.

In 2012 Qwest filed an amended 2008 federal inctameeturn primarily to report the carryforward ieqp of prior year settlements. A
refund was received for the amended 2008 fedecahire tax return in 2013. In 2013, Qwest filed areaded 2009 federal income tax return
primarily to report the carryforward impact of prigear settlements. Such amended filing is sulijeatijustments by the IRS.

Beginning with the 2010 tax year, our federal cdidsted returns are subject to annual examinatiothb IRS. Qwest's federal
consolidated returns for the 2010 and pre-mergé&fl 28x years are open to examination by the IR8ei& consolidated returns for Savvis for
tax years 2010 and pre-merger 2011 are under egsiotirby the IRS.

In years prior to 2011, Qwest filed amended fed@@me tax returns for 2002-2007 to make protectiaims with respect to items
reserved in their audit settlements and to coitests not addressed in prior audits. The examinaifdhose amended federal income tax
returns by the IRS was completed in 2012.
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Our open income tax years by major jurisdictionasdollows at December 31, 2013:

Jurisdiction Open Tax Years
Federa 200%—curren
State
Florida 2006—2008 and 201—curren
Minnesota 1999 and 201—curren
Oregon 200¢—curren
Other state 200%—curren

Since the period for assessing additional liabttyically begins upon the filing of a return, stpossible that certain jurisdictions could
assess tax for years prior to the open tax yeactodied above. Additionally, it is possible thataia jurisdictions in which we do not believe
we have an income tax filing responsibility, andadingly did not file a return, may attempt toessa liability, or that other jurisdictions to
which we pay taxes may attempt to assert that weanditional taxes.

Based on our current assessment of various fadtatading (i) the potential outcomes of these dngaxaminations, (ii) the expiration
of statute of limitations for specific jurisdictien(iii) the negotiated settlement of certain displissues, and (iv) the administrative practides c
applicable taxing jurisdictions, it is reasonabbspible that the related unrecognized tax benfefitancertain tax positions previously taken
may decrease by up to $8 million within the nexii@nths. The actual amount of such decrease, ifwitlydepend on several future
developments and events, many of which are outsideontrol.

(13) Segment Information

During the first quarter of 2013, we announcedaaganization of our operating segments. Consequemt now report the following
four segments in our consolidated financial statgmeconsumer, business, wholesale and data ho3tiregprimary purpose of the
reorganization was to strengthen our focus on tisinless market while continuing our commitmentuowholesale, hosting and consumer
customers. The reorganization combined business sald operations functions that formerly residetthé enterprise marketetwork segme
and the regional markets segment into the newadchlifusiness segment. The remaining customers flyrs@wiced by the regional markets
segment became the new consumer segment. Each afittent segments are described further below:

. Consumer.Consists generally of providing strategic and éggaroducts and services to residential consun@us strategic
products and services offered to these customelsda our broadband, wireless and video servieetding our Prism TV
services. Our legacy services offered to theseomests include local and lo-distance service

. Business Consists generally of providing strategic and ésgaroducts and services to commercial, enterpgiedal and
governmental customers. Our strategic productssandces offered to these customers include ouafwiline, broadband,
Ethernet, Multiprotocol Label Switching (“MPLS”),0fce over Internet Protocol (“VolP”), and networlanagement services. Our
legacy services offered to these customers indluchd and lon-distance service

. Wholesale.Consists generally of providing strategic and éggaroducts and services to other communicatioogigers. Our
strategic products and services offered to thesemers are mainly private line (including speeietess), dedicated internet acc
digital subscriber line (“DSL") and MPLS. Our legaservices offered to these customers include eexfabur services, the sale of
unbundled network elements (“UNEs”) which allow euolesale customers the use of our network omabaation of our
network and their own networks to provide voice dath services to their customers, long-distandesantched access services
and other services, including billing and collentipole rental, floor space and database sen

. Data hosting Consists primarily of providing colocation, manddesting and cloud hosting services to commereiztkerprise,
global and governmental custome
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We have restated previously reported segment sefulthe years ended December 31, 2012 and 204 lodhe above-described
restructuring of our business on January 3, 20h8.fdllowing table summarizes our segment resolt2013, 2012 and 2011 based on the
segment categorization we were operating underexember 31, 2013.

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Total segment revenu $17,09¢ $17,32( 14,47
Total segment expens 8,24¢ 8,244 6,62%
Total segment incom $ 8,84¢ $ 9,07¢ 7,84¢
Total margin percentag 52% 52% 54%
Consumer
Revenue! $ 6,00« $ 6,162 5,38¢
Expense! 2,231 2,291 1,972
Income $ 3,77: $ 3,871 3,412
Margin percentag 63% 63% 63%
Business
Revenue! $ 6,13¢ $ 6,13 5,15(
Expense:! 3,76¢ 3,74% 3,06¢
Income $ 2,36 $ 2,39( 2,08
Margin percentag 3% 3% 40%
Wholesale
Revenue! $ 3,57¢ $ 3,72¢ 3,31«
Expense! 1,15¢ 1,23( 1,137
Income $ 2,421 $ 2,49t 2,177
Margin percentag 68% 67% 66%
Data hosting
Revenue! $ 1,37¢ $ 1,30( 625
Expense! 1,097 98( 44¢€
Income $ 28t $ 32C 177
Margin percentag 21% 25% 28%

We categorize our products and services relategMenues into the following four categories:

Strategic serviceswhich include primarily broadband, private linec{uding special access which we market to whddeaad
business customers), MPLS (which is a data netwgrtéchnology that can deliver the quality of seeviequired to support real-
time voice and video), hosting (including cloud fireg and managed hosting), colocation, Ethernégwi(including resold satellite
and our facilitie-based video services), VolP and Verizon Wirelesgices;

Legacy service, which include primarily local, long-distance, sstied access, Integrated Services Digital Netwd8ON")
(which uses regular telephone lines to supportejoicdeo and data applications), and traditionalenarea network (“WAN”)
services (which allows a local communications nekwo link to networks in remote location:

Data integration, which includes the sale of telecommunicationspgent located on customers’ premises and relatef@gsional
services, such as network management, installatidnmaintenance of data equipment and buildingagnetary fiber-optic
broadband networks for our governmental and busioestomers; ar
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. Other revenuesyhich consist primarily of Universal Service Furild$F”) revenue and surcharges. Unlike the firseérevenue
categories, other revenues are not included irsegment revenue

Our operating revenues for our products and seswioesisted of the following categories for thergeamded December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Strategic service $ 8,827 $ 8,42 6,312
Legacy service 7,617 8,221 7,621
Data integratior 65€ 672 537
Other 1,00( 1,05¢ 88C
Total operating revenut $18,09¢ $18,37¢ 15,35

Operating revenues attributable to certain bundéslices were revised from legacy services toegifatservices. Specifically, the
revision resulted in a reduction of revenues fregeky services of $104 million and $51 million @andorresponding increase in revenues fron
strategic services for the periods ended Decemhe2@®L2 and 2011, respectively. The revision wagsponse to over-allocating discounts to
broadband services revenues and under-allocatsoguints to local and long-distance services reveennder bundled services arrangements,
which resulted in strategic services revenues beimtprstated and legacy services revenues beingtates.

Operating revenues attributable to certain CLE@ises were revised from strategic services to legaevices. Specifically, the revision
resulted in a reduction of revenue from strategivises of $38 million and a corresponding incraasevenue from legacy services for the
period ended December 31, 2012. The revision wassiponse to recording certain legacy servicesweggenerated through CLEC services
arrangements as strategic services revenues, wdsaktied in strategic services revenues being tatersand legacy services revenues being
understated. Due to system limitations, we haverdehed that it is impracticable to revise 2011rafing revenues attributable to certain
CLEC services to conform to our current revenuegatization.

Other operating revenues include revenue from usaleervice funds, which allows us to recover dipo of our costs under federal and
state cost recovery mechanisms, and certain sgesan our customers, including billings for owjued contributions to several USF
programs. These surcharge billings to our customerseflected on a gross basis in our statemémgerations (included in both operating
revenues and expenses) and aggregated approxirfid&ymillion, $531 million and $392 million forehyears ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively. We also generate ofienating revenues from leasing and subleasisgade in our office buildings, warehou
and other properties. We centrally-manage the itiesvthat generate these other operating reveamggsonsequently these revenues are not
included in any of our four segments presented abov

Our segment revenues include all revenues fronstategic, legacy and data integration operatierescribed in more detail above.
Segment revenues are based upon each customsesgicion to an individual segment. We report seigment revenues based upon all
services provided to that segment’s customers, thighexception of data hosting revenue generated Business and wholesale customers,
which is reported as data hosting segment reveideseport our segment expenses for our four setmaefollows:

. Direct expense, which primarily are specific expenses incurre@akrect result of providing services and prodtctsegment
customers, along with selling, general and adnratise expenses that are directly associated witiciic segment customers or
activities; anc

. Allocated expensg, which include network expenses, facilities exgsrand other expenses such as fleet and real espEpses
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We do not assign depreciation and amortization es@er impairments to our segments, as the retessets and capital expenditures are
centrally managed and are not monitored by or tepgdo the chief operating decision maker (“CODMS)segment. Similarly, severance
expenses, restructuring expenses and, subjectarcaption for our data hosting segment, certairtrady managed administrative functions
(such as finance, information technology, legal huthan resources) are not assigned to our segnhetei®st expense is also excluded from
segment results because we manage our financiagatal company basis and have not allocated agsdebt to specific segments. Other
income (expense) is not monitored as a part o6egment operations and is therefore excluded frans@gment results.

The following table reconciles segment income toimeome for the years ended December 31, 2013, 264 2011:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Total segment incomr $ 8,84¢ $ 9,07¢ 7,84¢
Other operating revenu 1,00¢ 1,05¢ 88C
Depreciation and amortizatic (4,54)) (4,780) (4,02¢)
Impairment of goodwil (1,099 — —
Other unassigned operating exper (2,760 (2,639 (2,677)
Other income (expense), r (1,229 (1,469 (1,077
Income tax expens (469 (479 (375)
Net (loss) incom $ (239 7717 578

We do not have any single customer that provideeri@an 10% of our total operating revenues. Sukistyy all of our revenues come
from customers located in the United States.

(14) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts

2013

Operating revenue $4,51: 4,52t 4,51¢ 4,54 18,09¢
Operating income (lost 782 71t (68E) 641 1,45
Net income (loss 29¢ 26¢ (1,045 23¢ (239
Basic earnings (loss) per common sk 0.4¢ 0.4t (2.7¢) 0.41 (0.40
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh 0.4¢ 0.44 (1.7¢6) 0.41 (0.40
2012

Operating revenue $4,61( 4,612 4,571 4,58: 18,37¢
Operating incom 654 657 73€ 66€ 2,71
Net income 20C 74 27C 238 177
Basic earnings per common sh 0.32 0.12 0.4z 0.37 1.2t
Diluted earnings per common shi 0.32 0.12 0.4: 0.37 1.2t

During the third quarter of 2012, we discovered eodected an error that resulted in an overstat¢wfedepreciation expense in the
amount of $30 million in 2011 and $15 million iretfirst six months of 2012. The total reductiordepreciation expense of $45 million was
recognized in the third quarter of 2012.

The net loss of $1.045 billion in the third qua@2013 is primarily due to a goodwill impairmenftarge of $1.1 billion and a charge of
$233 million in connection with a tentative settlmhin a litigation matter.
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(15) Commitments and Contingencie:

We are vigorously defending against all of the erattescribed below. As a matter of course, weaagared both to litigate the matters
to judgment, as well as to evaluate and considase#lement opportunities. In this Note, when wker to a class action as “putative” it is
because a class has been alleged, but not ceitifibdt matter. We have established accrued iimsilfor the matters described below where
losses are deemed probable and reasonably estimable

Litigation Matters Relating to CenturyLink and Embg

In William Douglas Fulghum, et al. v. Embarqg Corpoaatj et al., filed on December 28, 2007 in the United Statissriat Court for the
District of Kansas, a group of retirees filed agtivie class action lawsuit challenging the decisomake certain modifications in retiree
benefits programs relating to life insurance, meldicsurance and prescription drug benefits, gdiyezéfective January 1, 2006 and January 1
2008 (which, at the time of the modifications, veapected to reduce estimated future expensesdamubject benefits by more than $300
million). Defendants include Embarq, certain ofiemefit plans, its Employee Benefits Committee @edindividual plan administrator of
certain of its benefits plans. Additional defendainclude Sprint Nextel and certain of its benglfins. The Court certified a class on certain of
plaintiffs’ claims, but rejected class certificatias to other claims. On October 14, 2011 Rhkghumlawyers filed a new, related lawsuit,
Abbott et al. v. Sprint Nextel et CenturyLink/Embarg is not named a defendant indkesuit. InAbbott,approximately 1,500 plaintiffs allege
breach of fiduciary duty in connection with the obas in retiree benefits that also are at isstieeiRulghumcase. Thébbottplaintiffs are all
members of the class that was certifie@ririghumon claims for allegedly vested benefits (Countsd Hl), and theAbbottclaims are similar t
the Fulghumbreach of fiduciary duty claim (Count II), on whithe Fulghumcourt denied class certification. The Court hagedigoroceedings
in Abbottindefinitely. On February 14, 2013, tRelghumcourt dismissed the majority of the plaintiffs’ ictes in that case. On July 16, 2013,
the Fulghumcourt granted plaintiffs’ request to seek interlmey review by the United States Court of Appealsthe Tenth Circuit. Embarq
and the other defendants will defend the appeatjrmae to vigorously contest any remaining claimgulghumand seek to have the claims in
the Abbottcase dismissed on similar grounds. We have notiada liability for these matters because we belieis premature (i) to
determine whether an accrual is warranted andf 60, to determine a reasonable estimate of fniedability.

In December 2009, subsidiaries of CenturyLink fited lawsuits against subsidiaries of Sprint Netgelecover terminating access
charges for VolP traffic owed under various intentection agreements and tariffs which originallprmximated $34 million in the aggregate.
In connection with the first lawsuit, a federal com Virginia issued a ruling in our favor, whichsulted in Sprint paying us approximately $2¢
million. The other lawsuit is pending in federalicbin Louisiana. In that case, in early 2011 thu€ dismissed certain of CenturyLink’s
claims, referred other claims to the FCC, and stdke litigation. In April 2012, Sprint Nextel fillea petition with the FCC, seeking a
declaratory ruling that CenturyLink'access charges do not apply to VolP originatésl #&le have not deferred any revenue recognitidatec
to these matters.

Litigation Matters Relating to Qwes

On July 16, 2013, Comcast MO Group, Inc. (“Comcdafiied a lawsuit in Colorado state court againgtgdt Communications
International, Inc. (“Qwest”). Comcast alleges Qinmgached the parties’ 1998 tax sharing agreei€8A") when it refused to partially
indemnify Comcast for a tax liability settlementr@cast reached with the Commonwealth of Massaclsusedt dispute to which we were not a
party. Comcast seeks approximately $80 millionamdges, excluding interest. Qwest and Comcastaatiepto the TSA in their capacities as
successors to the TSA's original parties, U S WHS@., a telecommunications company, and MediaOrmig Inc., a cable television
company, respectively. We have not accrued a iiglidr this matter because we do not believe liadiflity is probable.

On September 29, 2010, the trustees in the Dutckrbptcy proceeding for KPNQwest, N.V. (of which €stwas a major shareholder)
filed a lawsuit in the District Court of HaarlenhetNetherlands, alleging tort
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and mismanagement claims under Dutch law. QwesKamihklijke KPN N.V. (“KPN”) are defendants in thlawsuit along with a number of
former KPNQwest supervisory board members andradoofficer of KPNQwest, some of whom were formefiiliated with Qwest.

Plaintiffs allege, among other things, that defertslaactions were a cause of the bankruptcy of KRS, and they seek damages for the
bankruptcy deficit of KPNQwest, which is claimeda® approximately£2 billion (or approximately $5.8 billion based the exchange rate
December 31, 2013), plus statutory interest. Twslats asserting similar claims were previouslgdibgainst Qwest and others in federal
courts in New Jersey in 2004 and Colorado in 2@@8se courts dismissed the lawsuits without pregidin the grounds that the claims should
not be litigated in the United States.

In February 2014, Qwest, KPN, the individual defemid and the trustees reached a definitive agreesettiing the litigation. The
settlement terms include Qwest's payment of appnately €171 million (or approximately $235 millimased on the exchange rate on
December 31, 2013) to the KPNQwest bankruptcy estatsuant to its indemnification obligations, dssed below.

On September 13, 2006, Cargill Financial Markels afd Citibank, N.A. filed a lawsuit in the DigttiCourt of Amsterdam, the
Netherlands, against Qwest, KPN, KPN Telecom Baxid other former officers, employees or supervismgrd members of KPNQwest, sc
of whom were formerly affiliated with Qwest. TheMsuit alleges that defendants misrepresented KPNEsnancial and business condition
in connection with the origination of a credit fitgiand wrongfully allowed KPNQwest to borrow fundnder that facility. Plaintiffs allege
damages of approximately €219 million (or approxeha$301 million based on the exchange rate orebder 31, 2013). The value of this
claim will be reduced to the degree plaintiffs igeerecovery from the tentative trustee settlenusicribed above. While we expect the
plaintiffs would receive proceeds from any suclstiee settlement, the amounts of such expectedegcave not yet known. On April 25, 20
the court issued its judgment denying the clainserdsd by Cargill and Citibank in their lawsuit.r@id and Citibank are appealing that
decision.

Regarding the 2010 proceeding filed by the trusteesaccrued a liability in 2013 in the pre-tax ambof €171 million (or approximate
$235 million reflected in our accompanying consatédl financial statements based on the exchangemaDecember 31, 2013) which
represents our best estimate of Qwest’s contributitder the terms of the then-tentative settlenfRegarding the 2006 suit brought by Cargill
Financial Markets, Plc and Citibank. N.A., we dd helieve that liability is probable and will comtie to defend against the matter vigorously.

The terms and conditions of applicable bylaws,ifiestes or articles of incorporation, agreementagplicable law may obligate Qwest
to indemnify its former directors, officers or eropkes with respect to certain of the matters desdrabove, and Qwest has been advancing
legal fees and costs to certain former directdf&ays or employees in connection with certain texat described above.

Several putative class actions relating to theaitaton of fiber optic cable in certain rights-efiy were filed against Qwest on behalf of
landowners on various dates and in courts locat&d istates in which Qwest has such cable (Alabamizgna, California, Colorado,
Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, lgW&ansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Massachusetts, MamjdJ/innesota, Mississippi, Missouri,
Nebraska, Nevada, New Jersey, New Mexico, New YMdtth Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsyibya®outh Carolina, Tenness
Texas, Utah, Virginia, and Wisconsin.) For the npest, the complaints challenge our right to irsiat fiber optic cable in railroad rights-of-
way. The complaints allege that the railroads dwenrtght-of-way as an easement that did not incthdeight to permit us to install our cable
in the right-of-way without the plaintiffs’ consemflost of the currently pending actions purporb&brought on behalf of state-wide classes ir
the named plaintiffs’ respective states, althougé action pending before the lllinois Court of Apfsepurports to be brought on behalf of
landowners in lllinois, lowa, Kentucky, Michigan,iivhesota, Nebraska, Ohio and Wisconsin. In gentralcomplaints seek damages on
theories of trespass and unjust enrichment, asaselunitive damages. After previous attempts terénto a single nationwide settlement in a
single court proved
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unsuccessful, the parties proceeded to seek coprveal of settlements on a state-by-state basislate, the parties have received final
approval of such settlements in 30 states (Alab&aéfornia, Colorado, Delaware, Florida, Geordiiinois, Indiana, lowa, Kansas, Kentucky,
Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, MisspiNebraska, Nevada, New Jersey, New York, Norttoliraa, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon,
Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Tennessee, Utahinérgnd Wisconsin) and have not yet received ejheliminary or final approval in one
state where an action is pending (Texas) and gteg¢es where actions were at one time, but areurogntly, pending (Arizona, Massachusetts
and New Mexico). We have accrued an amount thaielieve is probable for these matters; howeveratheunt is not material to our
consolidated financial statements.

Securities Actions

CenturyLink and certain of its affiliates are defants in one consolidated securities and four stodder derivative actions. The securi
action is pending in federal court in the South@istrict of New York and the derivative actions @ending in federal court in the Eastern and
Western Districts of Louisiana. Plaintiffs in thesetions have variously alleged, among other thitigg CenturyLink and certain of its current
and former officers and directors violated fedsedurities laws and/or breached fiduciary dutiesate the Company and its shareholders.
Plaintiffs’ complaints focus on alleged materiabstatements or omissions concerning CenturyLink&nfcial condition and changes in
CenturyLink’s capital allocation strategy in ea2@13.

The matters are in preliminary phases and the Coynjpdiends to defend against the filed actions nogsly. We have not accrued a
liability for these matters as it is prematuret¢idetermine whether an accrual is warranted ani §o, to determine a reasonable estimate of
probable liability.

Other Matters

From time to time, we are involved in other prodegd incidental to our business, including patefringement allegations,
administrative hearings of state public utility aoissions relating primarily to rate making, actioakting to employee claims, various tax
issues, environmental law issues, grievance hesabirfpre labor regulatory agencies, and miscellaséard party tort actions. The outcome
these other proceedings is not predictable. Howdased on current circumstances we do not belfetghe ultimate resolution of these other
proceedings, after considering available defensdsaay insurance coverage or indemnification right have a material adverse effect on
our financial position, results of operations osltflows.

We are currently defending several patent infringenlawsuits asserted against us by poagticing entities. These cases have progrt
to various stages and one or more may do to triié coming 24 months if they are not otherwis®lkeed. Where applicable, we are seeking
full or partial indemnification from our vendorsdsuppliers. As with all litigation, we are vigogiy defending these actions and, as a matter
of course, are prepared both to litigate the matejudgment, as well as to evaluate and consifieettlement opportunities.

Capital Leases

We lease certain facilities and equipment undeiouarcapital lease arrangements. Depreciationgatasinder capital leases is included
in depreciation and amortization expense in ousobdated statements of operations. Payments dtatlgases are included in repayments of
long-term debt, including current maturities in ttemsolidated statements of cash flows.
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The tables below summarize our capital lease &gtivi

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012

(Dollars in millions)
Assets acquired through capital lea $ 12 20¢
Depreciation expens 13€ 15C
Cash payments towards capital lee 11¢ 112

December 31
2013 2012

(Dollars in millions)

Assets included in property, plant and equipn $ 877 $ 89:
Accumulated depreciatic 33¢ 22¢

The future annual minimum payments under capitddearrangements as of December 31, 2013 werdasgso

Future

Minimum
Payments
(Dollars in
millions)
Capital lease obligation
2014 $ 144
2015 111
2016 75
2017 70
2018 68
2019 and thereafts 30¢
Total minimum payment 77€
Less: amount representing interest and execut@ts (200
Present value of minimum payme 57C
Less: current portio (109
Long-term portion $ 461

Operating Leases

CenturyLink leases various equipment, office féeid, retail outlets, switching facilities, and etmetwork sites. These leases, with few
exceptions, provide for renewal options and esicalatthat are either fixed or based on the consyamee index. Any rent abatements, along
with rent escalations, are included in the companiadf rent expense calculated on a straight-lagidover the lease term. The lease term for
most leases includes the initial non-cancelabla fg@us any term under renewal options that areoresdsly assured. For the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, our gross rerpanse was $455 million, $445 million and $401iom| respectively. We also received
sublease rental income for the years ended Decedih@013, 2012 and 2011 of $16 million, $18 milliand $17 million, respectively.
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At December 31, 2013, our future rental commitméot®perating leases were as follows:

Future

Minimum
Payments
(Dollars in
millions)
2014 $ 297
2015 274
2016 252
2017 232
2018 20¢
2019 and thereaft: 1,391
Total future minimum paymen(® $ 2,65¢

(1) Minimum payments have not been reduced by minimulbfesise rentals of $104 million due in the futuneler noi-cancelable subleast

Purchase Obligation:

We have several commitments primarily for marketegvities and support services from a varietyaridors to be used in the ordinary
course of business totaling $628 million at Decen®ie 2013. Of this amount, we expect to purch& $nillion in 2014, $248 million in
2015 through 2016, $80 million in 2017 through 2@b8 $79 million in 2019 and thereafter. These am®do not represent our entire
anticipated purchases in the future, but represelytthose items for which we are contractually aaitted.

(16) Other Financial Information
Other Current Assets
The following table presents details of our oth@rent assets in our consolidated balance sheets:

December 31

2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Prepaid expenst $ 26€ 257
Materials, supplies and inventc 167 12t
Assets held for sal 26 96
Deferred activation and installation chari 94 53
Other 44 21
Total other current asse $ 597 552

Assets held for sale includes several propertiaswiie expect to sell within the next twelve months.
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Selected Current Liabilitie:
Current liabilities reflected in our consolidategldnce sheets include accounts payable and othentliabilities as follows:

December 31

2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)

Accounts payabl $1,111 1,207
Other current liabilities

Accrued ren $ 52 48

Legal reserve 273 39

Other 18¢ 147

Total other current liabilitie $ 514 234

Included in accounts payable at December 31, 2632812 were $88 million and $132 million, respesly, representing book
overdrafts and $140 million and $170 million, respeely, associated with capital expenditures. udeld in legal reserves at December 31,
2013 was $235 million related to the settlemeneagrent with the trustees in the KPNQwest Dutch haptky proceeding. See Note 15—
Commitment and Contingencies for additional infotioraon legal matters.

(17) Labor Union Contracts

Approximately 36% of our employees are membersaoiows bargaining units represented by the Comnatinics Workers of America
(“CWA") or the International Brotherhood of Eleatal Workers (“IBEWB). Approximately 12,000, or 26%f,our employees are subject to
collective bargaining agreements that expired Gat@) 2012, and an additional 1,600 or 3% of oupleyees are subject to additional
collective bargaining agreement that have expinacesthen. Since the expirations, we have beentraing the terms of new agreements.
Recently, we reached conditional agreements withAdWstrict 7 and IBEW Local 206 for a four-year ktive bargaining agreement
covering approximately 12,000 of our employeeseAfejecting the initial agreements, the CWA anB\B members approved the second
agreements, and they became effective on Octoh@023. The new agreements will expire on Octoh@017.

(18) Repurchase of CenturyLink Common Stock

In February 2013, our Board of Directors authorimedo repurchase up to $2 billion of our outstagdiommon stock. During the twelve
months ended December 31, 2013, we repurchasedlioh shares of our outstanding common stocthimopen market. These shares were
repurchased for an aggregate market price of $4ilban, or an average purchase price of $34.26spare. The repurchased common stocl
been retired. As of December 31, 2013, we had appedely $433 million in stock remaining availalite repurchase under the Stock
Repurchase Program. The repurchased shares $eafmvte exclude shares that, as of December 3B, #&lhad agreed to purchase under th
program for $29 million, or an average purchaseeof $31.90 per share, in transactions that se¢idely in the first quarter of 2014. As of
February 20, 2014, we had repurchased 51.8 milimres for $1.75 billion, or an average purchame of $33.78 per share.
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(19) Other Comprehensive Earnings

The table below summarize changes in our accuntutiteer comprehensive loss recorded on our coraelichalance sheet by
component for the year ending December 31, 2013:

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Pos-Retirement Adjustment
Pension Plan Benefit Plans and Other Total
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ (1,399 (289 (13 (1,700
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassification: 67t 164 1 84(
Amounts reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive incor 55 3 1 59
Net currer-period other comprehensive
income (loss 73C 167 2 89¢
Balance at December 31, 20 $ (669 (129 (11 (802)

The table below present information about our msifecations out of accumulated other comprehensise by component for the year
ending December 31, 2013:

Affected Line Item in Consolidated Statemen
of
Operations or Footnote Where Additional
Information is Presented If The Amount is not
Year Ended December 31, 201 in Net Loss Recognized in Net Income in Total
(Dollars in millions)

Decrease (Increas¢

Amortization of pension & post-retirement

plans
Net actuarial los $ (88) See Note —Employee Benefit
Prior service cos (5 See Note —Employee Benefit
Total before tas (93
Income tax expense (bene! 35 Income tax expens
Insignificant items D
Net of tax $ (59

(20) Dividends
Our Board of Directors declared the following diemdis payable in 2013 and 2012:

Dividend
Date Declared Record Date Per Share Total Amount Payment Date
(in millions)
November 12, 201 11/25/201. 0.54( $ 321 12/6/201:
August 27, 201: 9/6/201: 0.54( $ 321 9/19/201.
May 22, 201: 6/3/201: 0.54( $ 32C 6/14/201.
February 27, 201 3/11/201. 0.54( $ 33¢ 3/22/201.
November 13, 201 12/11/201. 0.72¢ $ 454 12/21/201.
August 21, 201! 9/11/201. 0.72¢ $ 452 9/21/201.
May 24, 201z 6/5/201: 0.72% $ 45¢ 6/15/201.
February 12, 201 3/6/201: 0.72¢ $ 457 3/16/201.

* k kkkkkk ok kK
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Proxy — CENTURYLINK, INC.
THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The urdersigried heseby conslittes and appoints Glen F. Pasl, Il or Stacey W, Gofl, or eiher of tem, proooes. for the undessigned, weth Rl powee of
substituion, ta represent the undersigned and to vole &l of the shates of comman stack and voing prederred stock {cofiecively, fe “Voting Shares”) of
CarturyLink, Inc: (the “Company’) that e undemsigned &= entiied fo vole at the annual meating of sharebalders of the Company 1o be hedd on
May 28, 2014, and al any and all sdjcumments therecd (he “Weetng).

Iry addition I serving &5 & Prowy, this card will 820 serve 85 indtuchons 1 Compularshars Innestor Services LILC, (lhe “Agent”) 1o vole in this mannar
designaled on the reverse side hereof the shares of the Company's commen stack hetd as of Apal 10, 2014 in the name of the Agerd and credsed to any
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ths: Prowy, propesty etcifed, 2ll of your Voling Shares, including any held in the name of tha Agent, will be voted as speciffad.

The Board of Direclors recammends thal you vobe FOR lems 1 through 4, and AGAINST Hem 5 lisied on the reverse side herea!, If you properly exacube
ared retum this Proay but fall o provide specific directions with respect (o any of the matiers Ebed on the reversa sice, ail of your vobes will be voled in
accondance with these recommendations with respect o such mallers.

{Piease See Reverss Sklg)
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W IF YOU HAYE NOT VOTED VA THE INTERKET QR TELEFHOME, FOLD ALDNG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND RETURN THE BOTTOM FORTION IN THE ERCLOSED ENVELOPE. W
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Voting Instruction Card — CENTURYLINK, INC,

CENTURYLINK DOLLARS & SENSE 401(k) PLAN
CENTURYLINK UNION 401(k) PLAN

The undersignad, acting 25 a pariiopant and a ‘named fiducary” in edher of the above-relanencid retirement plars (coliecingly, the Prians”), henedry dinscts The
Marthem: Trust Company {the “Trustee”), &5 direclad trustee of the Plans’ trust {the “Trissf), ko vobe & the: snnaal meebing of shareholders of CenturyLink, Inc,
(e Compary”) to be held on May 28, 2014, and any and all adjpurnmants thereof (fhe “Meetng’}, in the manner designated heremn, the number of shares of
the Company’s comman stock credited 1 the accour of the underaigned raintned undar eithes of he Plans an the maters set kth on e reverss side heseal
and moee fully described in fhe Company's proxy statement for the Meeting. If no instructions ana fumishad by the undersigned, the Truslee will vobe unvoted
shares and unatlocated shanes, ifary, hidd in the Trust (cobecthaly, “Undincted Shares™] in the same proportion as voled shans reganding each of the: matiers
et Torth on the reverse side hereof, excepl as ciherwise provided in accondance with appécable law. Uinder the Trust, plan panicipents ans deemed fo act as
“named Rducianes™ i the axient of their authodty (o dired tha yvoiing of shares held in thek accounts and their proportionale share of Undrectsd Shares.

The undersigned hensby directs the Trustee 1o awhceze the Company's proies b vode in their discretion upon such oiher busingss as may propery comsa
beefioes tha Mesting.

Upon the Trustes's timely racaipt of thase instnuclions, properly exacuted, the undersigned's shares will ba vobed in the manner diracled, B the undarsigned
peopary execites and rofurns thess instuctions but fails t pravide spacific directons with respect 1o any of the miatters kxted on the reverss side benecd,
the-undersigned's shares will be voled in accordance wilh the Boged's recommendations with respect 1o such matiers,

{Fizasy Soe Rovivse Sqaa)
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